
Tuesday, July 7, 2020 AGENDA Page 1 

 

 
P R O C L AM AT I O N  

C AL L I N G A S PE C I AL  M E E TI NG  O F T HE  
B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L  

In accordance with the authority in me vested, I do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special 
session as follows: 

 

 
 

Tuesday, July 7, 2020 

6:00 P.M. 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 

Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – CHERYL DAVILA  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   
 
Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable 
B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87660512181. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the 
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise 
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.  
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 and enter Meeting ID: 876 6051 2181. If you wish to comment during the 
public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject Line in this format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please observe a 
150 word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into the public record.   
 
Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any member 
of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City 
Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will 
adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified. 

 

1

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87660512181
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


Tuesday, July 7, 2020 AGENDA Page 2 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only 
 

Action Calendar – Public Hearing  

 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-
minute presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that 
persons wishing to speak, use the “raise hand” function to be recognized and to determine the number 
of persons interested in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per 
speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker 
shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing 
both sides of an issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of 
the hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the 
commencement of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the 
City Clerk. 
 

1. 
 

ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard, Administrative Use Permit 
#ZP2019-0111 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board decision to approve 
Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 to construct a 500 square-foot major 
residential addition on the third story of an existing 2,791 square-foot, three-story 
single-family dwelling, increasing the average and maximum building height by 
approximately two feet, increase the number of bedrooms on the parcel from four 
to five, and constructing a perimeter fence over six feet in height, on a conforming 
residential parcel, and dismiss the appeal. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 
2. 
 

ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir), Use Permit #ZP2018-
0236 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing regarding an appeal of the Zoning 
Adjustments Board decision to deny Use Permit #ZP2018-0236, a request to 
establish a new 50’ high monopole 4G LTE wireless facility operated by Verizon 
Wireless at the East Bay Municipal Utility District site consisting of six antennas, six 
remote radio units, and associated ground equipment and, upon conclusion, 
consider the record of proceedings and testimony to determine whether the 
findings for approval can be made regarding view protection and camouflage. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 
 

Adjournment 

2



 

Tuesday, July 7, 2020 AGENDA Page 3 

I hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each 
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith. 
 
    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 
    and caused the official seal of the City of Berkeley to be 
    affixed on this 30th day of June, 2020. 

     
    Jesse Arreguin, Mayor 

Public Notice – this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting. 

ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 

Date:  June 30, 2020 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to approve 
or deny an appeal, the following requirements and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 
Section 1094.6 and Government Code Section 65009(c)(1)(E), no lawsuit challenging a City decision to 
deny or approve a Zoning Adjustments Board decision may be filed and served on the City more than 90 
days after the date the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  Any lawsuit not filed 
within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision 
to approve or deny a Zoning Adjustments Board decision, the issues and evidence will be limited to those 
raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public 
hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 

3

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

Tuesday, July 7, 2020 AGENDA Page 4 

 

Communications 

Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and Commissions 
for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are public record. Copies 
of individual communications are available for viewing through Records Online. 

Item #2: ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir), Use Permit 
#ZP2018-0236 

1. 14 form letters “Deep Opposition” 
2. 9 form letters “Live on Euclid” 
3. 11 form letters “Do Not Want” 
4. Isaac Kaplan 
5. Jack Newman 
6. Ellen Archilla and Jacques Watteyne 
7. Elissa Berall 
8. Allison Sell 
9. Danielle Schanz 
10. Debbie Lai 
11. Julia MacMillan 
12. Wolf Arnold 
13. Lina Schweidel 
14. Amber Turley 
15. Brooke Dougherty 
16. David Moren 
17. Corien Anderson 
18. Julie Therien 
19. Rebecca Armstrong 
20. Kristi Lentz Taylor 
21. Janice Schroeder 
22. John Williams 
23. Mark Gonzalez 
24. Ginger Parnes 
25. Jane Eisenstark 
26. Francine Foltz 
27. Carolyn NcNiven 
28. Leah Mazel-Gee 
29. Julia Rogers 
30. Jane Hansen 
31. Debbie 
32. Julieta Zuniga 
33. Oliver Raisner 
34. Susan Nunes (2) 
35. Michael Burt on behalf of the Law Office of Michael Burt 
36. Raissa Lerner 
37. Anonymous 
38. Layal Nawfal, Associate Planner, Land Use Planning Division 
39. Regina DiMaggio 
40. Kaellyn Moss (2) 

4

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/recordsonline/


 

Tuesday, July 7, 2020 AGENDA Page 5 

41. Mary McGann (2) 
42. Andrea Lappen 
43. Cynthia Li 
44. Jennifer Monahan 
45. Daniel Richheimer 
46. Phyllis Peacock 
47. Mayanne Stahl 
48. Amanda Coggin 
49. Jan Jarvis 
50. Vivian Warkentin 
51. Tiffiny Fyans 
52. Arthur Stopes III 
53. Carol Hirth 
54. Mary Ann Brewin 
55. Lloyd Morgan 

5



6



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning & Development Department

Subject: ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard, Administrative Use Permit 
#ZP2019-0111

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a Resolution affirming the Zoning 
Adjustments Board decision to approve Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 to 
construct a 500 square-foot major residential addition on the third story of an existing 
2,791 square-foot, three-story single-family dwelling, increasing the average and 
maximum building height by approximately two feet, increase the number of bedrooms 
on the parcel from four to five, and constructing a perimeter fence over six feet in height, 
on a conforming residential parcel, and dismiss the appeal.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
On June 19, 2019, Lillian Mitchell Architects submitted an application for an 
Administrative Use Permit (#ZP2019-0111) to construct a 500 square-foot major 
residential addition on the third story of an existing 2,791 square-foot, three-story single-
family dwelling, increasing the average and maximum building height by approximately 
2’, and increase the number of bedrooms on the parcel from four to five. 

On October 29, 2019, after two rounds of comments from staff, the application was 
deemed complete.

On November 20, 2019, a Notice of Administrative Decision approving the 
Administrative Use Permit (AUP) application was issued by the Zoning Officer, which 
established a 20-day appeal period. 

On December 11, 2019, Pamela Sihvola, the neighbor at 1476 Summit Road, filed an 
appeal of the Zoning Officer’s decision to the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB). On 
February 27, 2020, staff posted the public hearing notice near the site and mailed 
notices to property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site and to all 
registered neighborhood groups that cover this area.

Page 1 of 258

7

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Special Meeting Item



ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 2

On March 12, 2020, the ZAB conducted a public hearing for the appeal of the Zoning 
Officer’s decision. After considering the staff report and administrative record, and 
hearing comments from the applicant and appellant, the ZAB added Condition of 
Approval #11 and Recommendation #12 related to the maximum ceiling height of the 
addition and the glare impacts of a white roof and exterior color of the addition to the 
adjacent neighbor to the rear, to which the applicant agreed. The ZAB then upheld the 
Zoning Officer’s decision to approve the AUP with the condition and recommendation by 
a unanimous vote (Yes: Clarke, Kahn, Kim, O’Keefe, Lewis, Pinkston, Sheahan, 
Tregub). 

On April 14, 2020, staff issued the notice of the ZAB decision, which established a 14-
day appeal period. On April 28, 2020, Pamela Sihvola, the neighbor at 1476 Summit 
Road, filed an appeal of the ZAB decision with the City Clerk. On June 23, 2020, staff 
posted the public hearing notices near the site and mailed notices to property owners 
and occupants within 300 feet of the project site and to all registered neighborhood 
groups that cover this area. This public hearing is required to resolve the appeal.

BACKGROUND
On May 23, 2014, the Zoning Officer approved a previous AUP (AUP#13-20000050) at 
the subject property to construct a two-story, 556 square-foot addition that increased the 
building’s average and maximum heights by four and five feet, respectively. During the 
review process for that AUP application, the applicant and the appellant engaged in 
voluntary mediation, which the appellant contends “included a commitment by the 
applicant to choose a building color to blend with the environment.”1 Mediation is a tool 
that the Land Use Planning Division encourages applicants and neighbors to utilize 
through a private third-party early in the design process in order to identify and resolve 
issues of concern. However, participation is voluntary, and compliance with any private 
party agreements reached in mediation cannot be enforced by the City, unless the 
commitments made in mediation are incorporated into a Condition of Approval. In this 
case, a Condition of Approval regarding exterior materials and colors was not included 
in the previously-approved AUP, and the approved plans indicate stucco as the exterior 
material on the newly constructed second and third stories. The Zoning Officer 
determined that the stucco exterior did not result in a detriment to views, privacy, light or 
air, pursuant to the required findings for approval.2  No appeals were filed for that permit 
and the work was completed pursuant to a Building Permit.

On November 20, 2019, the Zoning Officer approved the most recent AUP (ZP2019-
0111) at the subject property to construct a 500 square-foot major residential addition, 
expanding the existing third story at the rear of the building, increasing the average and 
maximum heights by 2’-2” and 2’-3”, respectively, adding the fifth bedroom on the 

1 Attachment 3, ZAB Staff Report, Appeal Issue 5 – Exterior Materials, page 10.
2 BMC Sections 23D.16.090.B and 23B.28.050. 

Page 2 of 258

8



ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 3

parcel, and constructing a perimeter fence four feet from the rear property line and at 
the side property lines that ranges from 6’-2” to 8’-7” in height. 

On December 11, 2019, the appellant, who lives uphill and to the east of the project 
site, filed an appeal of the Zoning Officer’s decision to the ZAB. As described in the 
March 12, 2020 ZAB staff report, the appeal listed eight separate points, including the 
approved increase in the maximum building height and the applicant’s choice of white 
stucco for the exterior and roof color. The appellant explained that the property owner 
and appellant discussed the color choice in mediation discussions during the review 
process for the previous AUP (#13-20000050) at the subject property; they agreed to 
choose a building color that blended with the environment.3 In the March 12, 2020 ZAB 
hearing staff report for the appeal, staff described that mediation cannot be enforced by 
the City unless the commitments made in mediation are incorporated into a Condition of 
Approval. A Condition of Approval was not incorporated into the AUP, and the Zoning 
Officer determined the white stucco did not cause a detriment to views, privacy, light or 
air. 

At the March 12, 2020 hearing, ZAB members had substantive discussion regarding 
three of the eight appeal points: 1) ceiling height; 2) roof color; and 3) exterior color. For 
reference, the ZAB discussion was recorded4 and the captioner’s record is provided as 
Attachment 4 to this report.5 Regarding ceiling height, the applicant agreed to a 
Condition of Approval to limit the height to nine feet in order to reduce impacts to views. 
Regarding the roof and exterior colors, the ZAB asked the applicant for their reaction to 
the appellant’s request that the third-floor siding be wood color and the roof be a similar 
color. The applicant responded that the color choice had been discussed with the 
appellant and they would continue discussing the issue, but “didn’t know if that’s 
appropriate for it to be a condition of approval from ZAB.” The ZAB asked the property 
owner to state the reason why they chose white for the roof color. The property owner 
responded that “the roofer recommended it because of the heat reflection and the home 
gets sun all day. I don’t feel like I should change the whole roof, it would be a $15,000 
roofing problem. If my neighbors can help me with that, great, but so far that hasn’t 
been the case.” 

After asking questions of the applicant and appellant, the ZAB continued its discussion. 
One ZAB member, referring to pictures submitted by the appellant of the view from their 
backyard, commented that the white roof color is “pretty bright” and recommended that 
the applicant agree to a “modest request” to change the color of the roof in the area of 
new construction only: “it doesn’t need to be wood, but it doesn’t need to be as 
reflective.” After describing how a cool roof is usually reflective and offering color 
options that would accomplish a cooling effect and are less reflective, the ZAB member 

3 Attachment 3, March 12, 2020 ZAB staff report.
4 March 12, 2020 ZAB recording, http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=af425775-
6581-11ea-99b9-0050569183fa
5 All quotes in this report are copied from the Captioner’s Record, Attachment 4. 

Page 3 of 258

9

http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=af425775-6581-11ea-99b9-0050569183fa
http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=af425775-6581-11ea-99b9-0050569183fa


ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 4

made a motion with a second to: “recommend that the applicant tone down the white 
with a different color on the back where it’s most visible.” Another ZAB member 
commented how a darker roof color “that is not so glaring accommodates the appellant 
without negatively impacting the applicant…we can't condition paint color. What I was 
saying as a good faith gesture, a recommendation that the applicant do that.” The ZAB 
chair clarified the motion on the table was to request a “non-binding look at changing 
the color for the roof…that the roof not be this bright.”

Another ZAB member, who was present during the mediation for the previously 
approved AUP in 2014, stated that the property owner promised to “do dark colors for 
the proposed addition, which helped lead to a successful outcome for the mediation and 
eventually the approval at the time.” The ZAB member asked that the property owner 
“honor the intent of the original mediation because the issues are there, they're all the 
same…the impact really is very intense from the appellant's house and not only the 
appellant's but also the houses to either side of the appellant. All the houses uphill, 
several houses, have a prominent view of this project. I think it's a reasonable ask on all 
points by the appellant.” The ZAB member then asked the Secretary to clarify whether it 
was within the ZAB’s purview to condition a darker roof color but not a darker wall color. 
The Secretary asked the ZAB to consider how “any conditions on this project or others 
relates to the findings that are required to be made. Findings around views, privacy, air, 
light, if you find areas of detriment related to those that are analyzed for residential 
projects…the other piece is that we do not have residential design guidelines in the City 
of Berkeley.” 

After hearing from the Secretary, the ZAB member proposed that a detriment finding be 
made and the roof color be included as a condition of approval, as “this intensely bright 
white structure which is proposed to be significantly expanded…is a serious detriment 
to the view and consequently the quality of life…the contrast is intense, and I think that 
constitutes detriment. I don't think it's unreasonable to ask for a moderation in color.” 
Although there was discussion, the ZAB did not make a finding of detriment related to 
views.

The ZAB continued to discuss whether it was within their purview to include a condition 
of approval to reduce the glaring condition caused by the white roof, and asked the 
applicant if they were willing to consider going with a color that is less glaring white, 
suggesting pale green or grey. The Secretary expressed concern about including a 
requirement for staff to negotiate an agreement between two neighbors and suggested 
the ZAB find a way to address the appellant’s concern directly through a condition or 
recommendation that would be the responsibility of the applicant to implement, rather 
than through an open-ended negotiation between the applicant, appellant and staff.

The ZAB continued its discussion and was not comfortable choosing a particular color 
but suggested that the “principle of good neighborliness would dictate that this neighbor 
try to reduce glare” by choosing a color that is “less glaring white.” The ZAB chair then 

Page 4 of 258

10



ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 5

restated the original motion related to the exterior color: “This is a recommendation from 
ZAB not enforced by staff but with the good faith hope that the applicant follows through 
with his pledge to work with the neighbors.” The final motion was stated by the ZAB 
Chair as follows: “A condition of approval for the 9-foot ceiling height, condition of 
approval that the roof be not as bright, and a recommendation for the change of the 
color of the third story addition.” 

Staff transcribed the final motion into a condition of approval and recommendation as 
follows:

Prior to Issuance of Any Building and Safety Permit (Demolition or Construction)
11.  The applicant shall revise the approved plans to indicate the following:

• The maximum ceiling height of the addition shall be no higher than 9’. 
• The roof material of the addition shall be a darker color than the proposed 

white, subject to review by staff.  

12.  The ZAB recommends that the exterior color of the addition at the third story be       
darker than the proposed white.

With the addition of this Condition of Approval and recommendation, the ZAB was 
satisfied that the appellant’s concerns were properly addressed. The ZAB upheld the 
remainder of the Zoning Officer’s decision to approve the Administrative Use Permit for 
the third story addition. Staff did not receive any further comments or concerns about 
the ZAB’s decision. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
The project approved by the ZAB is in compliance with all state and local environmental 
requirements. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The issues raised in the appellant’s letter, and staff’s responses, are as follows. For the 
sake of brevity, the appeal issues are not re-stated in their entirety. Please refer to the 
attached appeal letter (Attachment #2: Appeal Letter) for the full text.

Issue: Staff’s shortcomings transcribing the ZAB Conditions of Approval: The 
appellant contends that staff omitted two conditions of approval that were 
requested in her appeal of the AUP filed on December 11, 2019 and were 
approved by the ZAB at their March 12, 2020 hearing. Specifically, the 
appellant’s requested Conditions of Approval were the following:

Page 5 of 258

11



ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 6

1) Third floor siding to be ipe6 wood color, as ipe wood is already a 
feature of the house design.

2) Roof color similar in tone to the requested ipe wood color on the 
third-floor siding.

The appellant states that ipe wood is incorporated in the front entrance and 
in the areas under the overhang of the roof of the existing dwelling. As 
such, the appellant proposed ipe wood (or wood of a similar color), be 
incorporated as the siding of the third floor of the dwelling in the appeal 
letter to the ZAB filed on December 11, 2019. In order to mitigate glare 
impacts from the existing white roof and white third-floor siding, the 
appellant proposed the roof color be of a similar tone to the requested ipe 
siding. The appellant cited a 2014 mediation meeting and a later 2018 
meeting where the property owner previously agreed to these proposals. 
The appellant provided magazine cut sheets to illustrate the type of siding 
and roof color proposed to the ZAB during comments at the March 12, 
2020 hearing. 

In asserting that staff omitted the proposed Conditions of Approval, the 
appellant states that the proposed white exterior and roof color were 
determined by the ZAB to be detrimental to the neighbors residing to the 
east on Summit Road. Further, the appellant states that the ZAB 
determined the exterior and roof color must be a darker tone, similar to the 
ipe wood that exists on portions of the building’s exterior. 

The appellant states that ZAB discussion included a reference to staff to 
negotiate with neighbors, in the spirit of neighborliness, when the revised 
plans, with a couple color options, are ready for review. Finally, the 
appellant requested to receive a set of the revised plans via mail as soon 
as they are available. 

Response: A summary of the ZAB discussion is provided above in the Background 
section of this report. In response to the appellant’s request that ipe siding 
be used on the third story, and the roof color be a similar tone, the ZAB 
decided not to require ipe wood specifically, but rather recommended that 
the applicant choose a less reflective color.  In response to the appellant’s 
claim that the ZAB made findings of detriment related to views as a result 
of the roof and exterior color, the captioner’s record (Attachment 4) shows 
that ZAB did not make findings of detriment. However, ZAB members 
acknowledged that the roof color was bright, and one ZAB member 
proposed that a detriment finding be made. To address the appellant’s 

6 Ipe, also known as Brazilian walnut, is a hard tropical wood that is used for decking and siding. The 
wood is a medium to darker brown color, similar to mahogany.

Page 6 of 258

12



ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 7

concerns, the ZAB added a Condition of Approval that the roof not be as 
bright. 

In response to the appellant’s statement that ZAB determined the exterior 
and roof color must be a darker tone, similar to the existing wood, 
Condition of Approval #11 states that staff will review the roof material of 
the addition to ensure it is a darker color than the proposed white. As 
described in the Background section above, the City of Berkeley does not 
have residential design guidelines, and the ZAB Secretary expressed 
concern about including a requirement that staff negotiate between two 
neighbors. As such, Condition of Approval #11 was written according to 
standard Land Use Planning procedures, which are to review revised plans 
submitted by the applicant in order to ensure any required changes have 
been incorporated prior to issuance of any Building and Safety permit. 

In response to the appellant’s request to receive a set of revised plans via 
mail, the applicant sent a letter and color samples via certified mail to the 
appellant on June 1, 2020 (See Attachment 5: Applicant Communications). 
The letter confirms the color of the roof will be grey and the exterior wall 
color will be within a similar color value range. The applicant also provided 
a letter to staff indicating the chosen roof color and color range of the 
exterior (page 4), as well as three examples of recently constructed homes 
in the vicinity of the project site that are a similar color to the proposed 
addition (pages 5 to 8). 

Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council uphold the ZAB decision 
to approve the third-story addition as amended with conditions of approval 
related to the exterior colors. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.060.D, the Council may (1) continue the public 
hearing, (2) reverse, affirm, or modify the ZAB’s decision, or (3) remand the matter to 
the ZAB.

Action Deadline:
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.060.G, if the disposition of the appeal has not been 
determined within 30 days from the date the public hearing was closed by the Council 
(not including Council recess) then the decision of the Board shall be deemed affirmed 
and the appeal shall be deemed denied.

CONTACT PERSONS
Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning & Development Department, (510) 981-7437
Steven Buckley, Land Use Planning Manager, (510) 981-7411
Ashley James, Project Planner, (510) 981-7458

Page 7 of 258

13



ZAB Appeal: 1449 Grizzly Peak Road PUBLIC HEARING
Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 July 7, 2020

Page 8

Attachments:
1. Draft Resolution

 Exhibit A: Findings and Conditions
 Exhibit B: Project Plans, dated August 12, 2019

2. Appeal Letter dated April 28, 2020
3. ZAB Packet and Project Plans, dated March 12, 2020
4. Captioner’s Record, ZAB Hearing March 12, 2020
5. Applicant Communications, received June 3, 2020
6. Index to Administrative Record
7. Administrative Record
8. Public Hearing Notice

Page 8 of 258

14



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AFFIRMING THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD’S APPROVAL OF 
ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT #ZP2019-0111 TO CONSTRUCT A 500 SQUARE-
FOOT MAJOR RESIDENTIAL ADDITION TO EXPAND THE EXISTING THIRD STORY 
AND INCREASE THE NUMBER OF BEDROOMS ON THE PARCEL FROM FOUR TO 
FIVE, FOR AN EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING, AND DISMISSING THE 
APPEAL

WHEREAS, on June 19, 2019, Lillian Mitchell Architects (“applicant”) filed an application 
for an Administrative Use Permit to add a 500 square-foot residential addition to expand 
the third story of the existing dwelling and increase the number of bedrooms on the parcel 
from four to five at 1449 Grizzly Peak Road; and

WHEREAS, on October 29, 2019, staff deemed this application complete and determined 
that the project is categorically exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) under Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines (“Existing Facilities”); and

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2019, staff posted the Notice of Administrative Decision 
near the site in three locations and mailed 85 notices to property owners and occupants 
within 300 feet of the project site and to interested neighborhood organizations; and

WHEREAS, on December 11, 2019, Pamela Sihvola, the neighbor at 1476 Summit Road, 
filed an appeal of the Zoning Officer’s decision to the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB); 
and

WHEREAS, on February 27, 2020, staff posted the ZAB Notice of Public Hearing near 
the site in three locations and mailed 85 notices to property owners and occupants within 
300 feet of the project site and to interested neighborhood organizations; and

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, the ZAB conducted the public hearing in accordance 
with BMC Section 23B.32.030 and approved the application with modified Conditions of 
Approval; and

WHEREAS, on April 14, 2020, staff issued the notice of the ZAB decision; and

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2020, Pamela Sihvola filed an appeal of the ZAB decision with 
the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, on or before June 23, 2020, staff posted the public hearing notice near the 
site in three locations and mailed notices to property owners and occupants within 300 
feet of the project site and to interested neighborhood organizations; and 

Page 9 of 258

15



Page 2

WHEREAS, on July 7, 2020, the Council held a public hearing to consider the ZAB’s 
decision, and, in the opinion of this Council, the facts stated in, or ascertainable from the 
public record, including the staff report and comments made at the public hearing, warrant 
approving the project.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that 
the City Council hereby adopts the findings made by the ZAB in Exhibit A to affirm the 
decision of the ZAB to approve Use Permit #ZP2019-0111, adopts the conditions of 
approval in Exhibit A and the project plans in Exhibit B, and dismisses the appeal.

Exhibits
A: Findings and Conditions
B: Project Plans, dated August 12, 2019

Page 10 of 258

16



A t t a c h m e n t  1, Exhibit A 

F i n d i n g s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s 
A P P R O V E D  B Y  Z A B  O N  M A R C H  1 2 ,  2 0 2 0

1947 Center Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 
E-mail: planning@cityofberkeley.info

1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard 
Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

To alter a 5,526 square-foot residential parcel by 1) constructing a 500 
square-foot major residential addition on the third story of an existing 2,791 
square-foot, three-story single-family dwelling, which will increase the 
average building height by 2’-2” and the maximum building height by 2’-3, 
resulting in a 3,291 square-foot, three-story, single-family dwelling with an 
average building height of 24’-8” and a maximum building height of 28’-
9”,2) constructing the fifth bedroom on the parcel, and 3) constructing a 
perimeter fence four feet from the rear property line and on the side 
property lines that will be from 6’-2” to 8’-7” in height.  

PERMITS REQUIRED 
• Administrative Use Permit pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 23D.16.030

to construct a major residential addition (cumulative);
• Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.050.A to construct a fifth

bedroom on the parcel;
• Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.070.C to construct an addition

which would exceed fourteen feet in average height;
• Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23E.96.070.B to construct an addition

which would exceed twenty feet in maximum height for a building located within the “H”
Hillside Overlay District; and

• Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.08.060.A.2 to construct a fence
over six feet in height.

CEQA FINDINGS 
1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of
Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (Existing
Facilities). Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply,
as follows: (a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no
cumulative impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a
scenic highway, (e) the project site is not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5, and (f) the project would not affect any historical
resource.

FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL 
2. As required by BMC Section 23B.28.050.A, the project, under the circumstances of this

particular case existing at the time at which the application is granted, would not be
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of the persons

Page 11 of 258

17



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 2 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use or be detrimental or injurious 
to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the surrounding area or 
neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City because: 
 
A. The subject property is equal to or below the Single-Family Residential (R-1H) standards 

(BMC Section 23D.16.070-.080) for maximum residential density, height, setbacks, lot 
coverage, useable open space, and off-street parking (one main dwelling unit, where 
one main dwelling unit is allowed, average height of 24’-8” where 28’ is the maximum, 
5’-5” side (north) yard setback where 4’ is the minimum, 4’-1” side (south) yard setback 
where 4’ is the minimum, and 39’-3” rear yard setback where 20’ is the minimum, 30% 
lot coverage where 40% is the maximum, 1,545 sq. ft. of usable open space where 400 
sq. ft. is the minimum, and one off-street parking space where one is required). The 
subject property has a legally non-conforming front yard setback of 17’-1” where 20’ is 
the minimum; however, the project would not extend or worsen this non-conformity. The 
subject property is equal to or below the Hillside Overlay District standards (BMC 
Section 23E.96.070) for maximum height for all residential additions of 28’-9” where 35’ 
is the maximum. Therefore, the residential addition will be compatible with the existing 
property and neighborhood character; 
 

B. Privacy: Though the project includes new window openings on the addition to the third 
floor, these new windows on the front, northeast-side and rear are not expected to be 
detrimental to the privacy of neighbors because they would be located in walls that 
exceed all required yards; the new windows on the front of the building at the third floor 
would be setback 21’-1” from the front property line, where 20’ is required. The building 
to building separation from the subject dwelling to abutting dwelling to the southeast at 
1480 Summit Road is approximately 58’, the dwelling to the southwest at 1455 Grizzly 
Peak Boulevard is approximately 9’, and the dwelling to the northeast at 1445 Grizzly 
Peak Boulevard is approximately 14’-6”. This separation, along with new openings that 
will mostly not directly face any windows in neighboring dwellings, will limit new privacy 
impacts; 

 
C. The addition to the main building will be constructed with proportions, scale and roof 

slopes that match the existing; 
 

D. While the project increases the number of bedrooms as defined in BMC Section 
13.42.020.B on this parcel from four to five, the additional bedrooms will be added to an 
existing single-family residence. The addition of a fifth bedroom will provide more room 
for residents at the single-family residence and will not result in an increase in dwelling 
unit density; and 

 
E. The proposed perimeter fence will be from 6’-2” in height at the front of the property to 

8’-3” in height at the rear of the property, and will be setback approximately 6’ from the 
northwest property line at the front of the property, at the property line along the side 
yards, and setback approximately 4’ from the rear property line. The fence will be located 
approximately 19’ from the building located to the northeast at 1476 Summit Road, and 
17’ from the building located to the southeast at 1480 Summit Road. The fence will be 
constructed in an architectural style with colors and materials that are consistent with 
the surrounding buildings and fences. Due to its location, solar orientation, limited scale, 
and the presence of mature trees and other vegetation, the proposed fence is not 

Page 12 of 258

18



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 3 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

expected to create significant changes to the existing sunlight or privacy conditions in 
the immediate vicinity of this project. No new sight lines will be created to or from 
neighboring buildings, as the fence is located on a sloping hillside, below the existing 
sightlines to the San Francisco Bay from the properties directly to the rear of the 
property, and will thus not block views. 
 

3. Pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.090.B, the Zoning Officer finds that the major residential 
addition would not unreasonably obstruct sunlight, air, or views for the following reasons: 
 
A. Sunlight: The 500 sq. ft. addition to the existing third floor and the perimeter fence will 

not result in a significant loss of direct sunlight on neighboring dwellings. Shadow studies 
submitted by the applicant document the addition’s projected shadow angles and 
lengths at three times throughout the day during the summer and winter solstice.  

a. Two hours before sunset on the winter solstice, shadows on the west side of the 
dwelling at 1445 Grizzly Peak Boulevard will increase and cover portions of four 
living room windows and a portion of the entryway door.  

b. Two hours before sunset on the summer solstice, the shadows on the west side 
of the dwelling at 1445 Grizzly Peak Boulevard will increase and cover a living 
room window. 

c. Because the impacts to neighboring properties will occur on limited areas, and 
will only partially shade a neighboring building for a limited time during the year, 
and only for a few hours of the day, the residential addition will not result in a 
significant loss of direct sunlight on abutting residences, and these shading 
impacts are not deemed detrimental; 
 

B. Air: The addition is found to be consistent with the existing development and building-
to-building separation pattern – or air – in this R-1H neighborhood because the addition 
is an expansion of the existing third story, where a maximum of three are allowed. The 
minimum 4 ft. required side yard setbacks will be maintained; and 
 

C. Views: Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23F.04.010 defines view corridors as: a 
significant view of the Berkeley Hills, San Francisco Bay, Mt. Tamalpais, or a significant 
landmark such as the Campanile, Golden Gate Bridge, and Alcatraz. The dwellings to 
the east (1476 and 1480 Summit Road) are placed higher on the hill and have views of 
the Berkeley Hills and a partial view San Francisco Bay which is occluded by several 
mature trees in the yards of parcels across Grizzly Peak Boulevard from the subject 
property. Further, the proposed addition would not obstruct any existing partial views of 
the San Francisco Bay, as documented in the pictures of the story poles provided by the 
applicant. The dwellings to the west (1448 and 1446 Grizzly Peak Boulevard) are placed 
lower on the hill and have views of the Bay but the steep upsloping topography and the 
placement of the existing dwellings to the west occlude the Berkeley Hills. Further, the 
proposed addition would be located at the rear of the existing building on the third floor, 
and would match the existing roofline at the front of the building, therefore not 
obstructing views of the Berkeley Hills.   

Page 13 of 258

19



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 4 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

4. As required by BMC Section 23E.96.090.B, the Zoning Officer finds that the addition above 
the 20’ maximum height that applies to additions is consistent with the purposes of the 
Hillside Overlay District as the height occurs in part because of the slope of this site, the 
proposed addition and fence will not adversely compromise the quality and character of this 
hillside parcel and its immediate environs, nor will it adversely impact views available from 
neighboring residences and parcels. The project maintains the original pattern and design 
of the lot and preserves westward views of the San Francisco Bay from the original building 
and its neighbors, as described above, in Section 3. 

 
 
STANDARD CONDITIONS 

 
The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
apply to this Permit: 
 
1. Conditions Shall be Printed on Plans 

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set submitted 
for a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use Permit Conditions’. 
Additional sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not of sufficient size to list all of 
the conditions. The sheet(s) containing the conditions shall be of the same size as those 
sheets containing the construction drawings; 8-1/2” by 11” sheets are not acceptable. 

 
2. Applicant Responsible for Compliance with Conditions 

The applicant shall ensure compliance with all of the following conditions, including 
submittal to the project planner of required approval signatures at the times specified.  
Failure to comply with any condition may result in construction being stopped, issuance of 
a citation, and/or modification or revocation of the Use Permit. 

 
3. Uses Approved Deemed to Exclude Other Uses (BMC Section 23B.56.010) 

A. This Permit authorizes only those uses and activities actually proposed in the 
application, and excludes other uses and activities. 

B. Except as expressly specified herein, this Permit terminates all other uses at the location 
subject to it. 

 
4. Modification of Permits (BMC Section 23B.56.020) 

No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is issued is permitted unless the 
Permit is modified by the Zoning Officer. 

 
5. Plans and Representations Become Conditions (BMC Section 23B.56.030) 

Except as specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, building elevations and/or any 
additional information or representations, whether oral or written, indicating the proposed 
structure or manner of operation submitted with an application or during the approval 
process are deemed conditions of approval. 

 
6. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations (BMC Section 23B.56.040) 

The approved use and/or construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable 
City Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental agencies.  Prior to 
construction, the applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the Building 

Page 14 of 258

20



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 5 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

and Safety Division, Public Works Department and other affected City divisions and 
departments. 

 
7. Exercised Permit for Use Survives Vacancy of Property (BMC Section 23B.56.080) 

Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, that use is legally 
recognized, even if the property becomes vacant, except as set forth in Standard Condition 
#8, below. 

 
8. Exercise and Lapse of Permits (BMC Section 23B.56.100) 

A. A permit for the use of a building or a property is exercised when, if required, a valid City 
business license has been issued, and the permitted use has commenced on the 
property. 

B. A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed exercised when a valid 
City building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has lawfully commenced. 

C. A permit may be declared lapsed and of no further force and effect if it is not exercised 
within one year of its issuance, except that permits for construction or alteration of 
structures or buildings may not be declared lapsed if the permittee has:  (1) applied for 
a building permit; or, (2) made substantial good faith efforts to obtain a building permit 
and begin construction, even if a building permit has not been issued and/or construction 
has not begun. 

 
9. Indemnification Agreement 

The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its 
officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, 
judgments or other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert witness and 
consultant fees and other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, resulting 
from or caused by, or alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action or approval 
associated with the project.  The indemnity includes without limitation, any legal or 
administrative challenge, referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, 
stay or otherwise rescind any or all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any 
environmental determination made for the project and granting any permit issued in 
accordance with the project.  This indemnity includes, without limitation, payment of all 
direct and indirect costs associated with any action specified herein.  Direct and indirect 
costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees, expert witness and consultant 
fees, court costs, and other litigation fees.  City shall have the right to select counsel to 
represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any action specified in this 
condition of approval.  City shall take reasonable steps to promptly notify the Applicant of 
any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a claim for indemnification under these 
conditions of approval.   

 
ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE ZONING OFFICER 
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.28.050.D, the Zoning Officer attaches the following additional 
conditions to this Permit: 
 

Page 15 of 258

21



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 6 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

Prior to Submittal of Any Building Permit: 
10. Project Liaison. The applicant shall include in all building permit plans and post onsite the 

name and telephone number of an individual empowered to manage construction-related 
complaints generated from the project.  The individual’s name, telephone number, and 
responsibility for the project shall be posted at the project site for the duration of the project 
in a location easily visible to the public.  The individual shall record all complaints received 
and actions taken in response, and submit written reports of such complaints and actions 
to the project planner on a weekly basis. Please designate the name of this individual 
below: 

□ Project Liaison   
 Name           Phone # 

 
Prior to Issuance of Any Building and Safety Permit (Demolition or Construction) 
11.  The applicant shall revise the approved plans to indicate the following: 

• The maximum ceiling height of the addition shall be no higher than 9’.  
• The roof material of the addition shall be a darker color than the proposed white, subject 

to review by staff.   
 

12.  The ZAB recommends that the exterior color of the addition at the third story be darker 
than the proposed white.  
 

Standard Construction-related Conditions Applicable to all Projects: 
13. Transportation Construction Plan.  The applicant and all persons associated with the 

project are hereby notified that a Transportation Construction Plan (TCP) is required for all 
phases of construction, particularly for the following activities: 
• Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks, pedestrian paths or vehicle travel 

lanes (including bicycle lanes); 
• Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public ROW; 
• Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street; or  
• Significant truck activity. 

 
The applicant shall secure the City Traffic Engineer’s approval of a TCP.  Please contact 
the Office of Transportation at 981-7010, or 1947 Center Street, and ask to speak to a 
traffic engineer.  In addition to other requirements of the Traffic Engineer, this plan shall 
include the locations of material and equipment storage, trailers, worker parking, a 
schedule of site operations that may block traffic, and provisions for traffic control.  The 
TCP shall be consistent with any other requirements of the construction phase.   
 
Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 1947 Center Street or 981-7500 for details on 
obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and accompanying 
dashboard permits).  Please note that the Zoning Officer and/or Traffic Engineer may limit 
off-site parking of construction-related vehicles if necessary to protect the health, safety or 
convenience of the surrounding neighborhood.  A current copy of this Plan shall be 
available at all times at the construction site for review by City Staff. 
 

14. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 
Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 a.m. and noon on Saturday.  No construction-
related activity shall occur on Sunday or on any Federal Holiday. 

Page 16 of 258

22



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 7 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

 
15. If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered and/or broken, the 

contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works Department and the Building 
& Safety Division, and carry out any necessary corrective action to their satisfaction. 

 
16. Subject to approval of the Public Works Department, the applicant shall repair any damage 

to public streets and/or sidewalks by construction vehicles traveling to or from the project 
site. 

 
17. All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered at night and during 

rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter in thickness and secured to the 
ground. 

 
18. All active construction areas shall be watered at least twice daily, and all piles of debris, 

soil, sand or other loose materials shall be watered or covered. 
 
19. Trucks hauling debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered or required to 

maintain at least two feet of board. 
 
20. Public streets shall be swept (preferably with water sweepers) of all visible soil material 

carried from the site. 
 
21. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do not adversely affect 

adjacent properties and rights-of-way.   
 
22. The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account surface and subsurface 

waters and underground streams so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties and 
rights-of-way. 

 
23. Any construction during the wet season shall require submittal of a soils report with 

appropriate measures to minimize erosion and landslides, and the developer shall be 
responsible for following these and any other measures required by the Building and Safety 
Division and the Public Works Department. 

 
24. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural 

resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50 
feet of the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction 
contractor shall notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours.  The City will again 
contact any tribes who have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a 
qualified archaeologist, to evaluate the resources and situation and provide 
recommendations.  If it is determined that the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus 
significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be prepared and implemented in 
accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native American groups. If the 
resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce impacts to the 
resource and to address tribal concerns may be required. 

 
25. Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). 

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique 

Page 17 of 258

23



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 8 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted. 
Therefore: 
A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are 

discovered during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources 
shall be halted and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a 
qualified archaeologist, historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the 
find. 

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent 
and/or lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the 
appropriate avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate 
determination to be made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials 
recovered shall be subject to scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or 
a report prepared by the qualified professional according to current professional 
standards. 

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the 
project applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of 
factors such as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other 
considerations. 

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data 
recovery) shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while 
mitigation measures for cultural resources is carried out. 

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report 
on the findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center. 

 
26. Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the 

event that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-
disturbing activities, all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall 
be contacted to evaluate the remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 (e)(1) . If the County Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American, the City shall contact the California Native American 
Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c), and 
all excavation and site preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find 
until appropriate arrangements are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not 
feasible, then an alternative plan shall be prepared with specific steps and timeframe 
required to resume construction activities. Monitoring, data recovery, determination of 
significance and avoidance measures (if applicable) shall be completed expeditiously. 

 
27. Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). 

In the event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during 
construction, excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted 
until the discovery is examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate 
Paleontology standards [SVP 1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the 
discovery as needed, evaluate the potential resource, and assess the significance of the 
find. The paleontologist shall notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that 
would be followed before construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the 
City determines that avoidance is not feasible, the paleontologist shall prepare an 
excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the project on the qualities that make the 
resource important, and such plan shall be implemented. The plan shall be submitted to 
the City for review and approval. 

Page 18 of 258

24



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 9 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\ARCHIVE\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_FC_REVISED Findings and Conditions_1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

 
Prior to Issuance of Occupancy Permit or Final Inspection: 
28. All construction at the subject property shall substantially conform to the approved Use 

Permit drawings or to modifications approved by the Zoning Officer. 
 
29. All landscape, site and architectural improvements shall be completed per the attached 

approved drawings dated August 12, 2019. 
 

At All Times (Operation): 
30. All exterior lighting shall be energy efficient where feasible; and shielded and directed 

downward and away from property lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the subject 
property. 

 
31. Drainage Patterns. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do 

not adversely affect adjacent properties and rights-of-way.  Drainage plans shall be 
submitted for approval of the Building & Safety Division and Public Works Department, if 
required. 

 
32. Electrical Meter. Only one electrical meter fixture may be installed per dwelling unit. 
 

 

  
_____________________________________ 

Prepared by: Ashley James 
For Greg Powell, Zoning Officer 

 

Page 19 of 258

25



4'-0"

SETBACK

4'-0"
SETBACK

(E) 4'-1"

(E) 5'-5"

(E
)

3
9
'-3

"2
0
'-0

" 
S

E
T
B

A
C

K

(E
) 1

7
'-1

1
"

2
0
'-0

" S
E
T
B

A
C

K

5
2
'-3

"

40'-8"

21'-4 1/2"

3
7
'-8

"

1'-3"

2'-10"

2
5
'-5

"
1
2
'-7

 1
/4

"
1
4
'-3

"

15'-4"

1
5
'-7

 3
/4

"

20'-0 3/4" 14'-11 3/4"5'-7 1/2"

12'-5 1/2"

7'-2 1/2"

5
'-3

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

6
'-8

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

8'-0" WD.FENCE HT.
8'-7" WD.FENCE HT.

8'-5" WD.FENCE HT.

5
'-6

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

4
'-4

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

5
'-4

" W
D

.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

5
'-1

0
" W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

6
'-3

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

10'-0"

1
6
'-0

"

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

A - 0.0

COVER SHEET

1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE,
2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, 2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA
MECHANICAL CODE, 2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE, 2016
EDITION; 2016 ENERGY CODE; CITY OF BERKELEY ORDINANCES, ALAMEDA
COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES AND
ORDINANCES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS
ON THE SITE PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
FAMILIARIZE HIM/HERSELF WITH VERTICAL AND LATERAL LOAD TRANSFER
THROUGH FRAMING TO FOUNDATION.  DIMENSIONS, FOUNDATION LAYOUT,
FRAMING LAYOUT, LOAD TRANSFER THROUGH NEW AND EXISTING
FRAMING TO FOUNDATION LOCATION OF BEAMS, BRACING, ETC. SHOULD
ALL BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION.  VARIANCE BETWEEN
THE DRAWINGS AND THE ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS, AND ANY ERRORS OR
OMISSIONS FOUND IN THE DRAWINGS, SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.
UPON DISCOVERY OF UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS ON THE SITE, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP THE WORK AND REQUEST ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION FROM THE ARCHITECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE ARCHITECT WHEN THE EXISTING STRUCTURE HAS BEEN EXPOSED.

3. DURING DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS TO CAP ALL ELECTRICAL
OUTLETS, SWITCHES AND UTILITIES PER CODE.  NOTIFY OWNER 24 HOURS
PRIOR TO ANY INTERRUPTION IN POWER OR UTILITIES.

4. BRACE AND SUPPORT EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR WALLS AS NECESSARY
PRIOR TO REMOVAL OF EXISTING STRUCTURE  SO AS TO PREVENT ANY
MOVEMENT OF THE EXISTING STRUCTURE.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR
SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING ADEQUATE SHORING AND
BRACING DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR VERTICAL AND LATERAL LOADS AS
REQUIRED FOR THE PROTECTION OF LIFE AND PROPERTY DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

5. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS ARE TO FACE OF
FINISH UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED;  THEY SHALL HAVE PRECEDENCE
OVER ANY SCALED DIMENSIONS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT USE
SCALED DIMENSIONS.  DETAIL DRAWINGS HAVE PRECEDENCE OVER MORE
GENERAL DRAWINGS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL NEW WORK AGAINST LEAKS
FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE WORK.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING TO
ORIGINAL CONDITION, AT HIS OWN EXPENSE, ANY DAMAGE DONE BY HIM
OR HIS AGENTS TO THE EXISTING BUILDINGS OR GROUNDS.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL PRODUCTS AND MATERIALS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF TRADE STANDARDS,
PUBLISHED BY THE TRADE ASSOCIATIONS.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE PORTIONS OF
TITLE 24 OF THE CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

10. DIMENSIONS, LOCATIONS OF DOORS, PARTITIONS, CABINET WORK
AND SIMILAR FEATURES TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE.

11. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO COORDINATE
LAYOUT OF ALL THE VARIOUS COMPONENTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AS
REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE THE ELECTRICAL LAYOUT INDICATED.
SPECIAL ATTENTION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO FRAMING LAYOUT TO AVOID
CUTTING AND REFRAMING TO ACHIEVE PROPER LOCATIONS FOR FIXTURES.

12. THE ARCHITECT DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCE OR
PROCEDURES OF CONSTRUCTION, OR SAFETY PRECAUTIONS, WHICH ARE
TO REMAIN THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

13. THE ARCHITECT DOES NOT PROVIDE EVALUATION FOR THE EXISTENCE
OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL NOR ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR
MANAGEMENT.  SHOULD THE CONTRACTOR ENCOUNTER ANY HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS IN THE PERFORMANCE OF HIS WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE OWNER IMMEDIATELY AND PROCEED WITH WORK ONLY IN
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE HAZARDOUS MATERIAL HANDLING
REGULATIONS.

14. DIVERT CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION WASTE AS FOLLOWS:
A. DIVERT ALL CARDBOARD, CONCRETE, ASPHALT AND METALS.
B. DIVERT 25% C&D WASTE, EXCLUDING ALL CARDBOARD,

CONCRETE, ASPHALT, AND METALS.

GENERAL NOTES SITE PLANBEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

1. SAND, DIRT, AND SIMILAR MATERIALS MUST BE STORED AT LEAST 10
FEET FROM CATCH BASINS, AND COVERED WITH A TARP DURING WET
WEATHER OR WHEN RAIN IS FORECAST.

2. SWEEP STREETS AND OTHER PAVED AREAS DAILY.  DO NOT WASH
DOWN STREETS OR WORK AREAS WITH WATER.

3. RECYCLE ALL ASPHALT, CONCRETE, AND AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL
FROM DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.

4. CHECK DUMPSTERS REGULARLY FOR LEAKS AND TO MAKE SURE THEY
DON'T OVERFLOW.  REPAIR OR REPLACE LEAKING DUMPSTERS PROMPTLY.

5. LABEL ALL HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND HAZARDOUS WASTES (SUCH
AS PESTICIDES, PAINTS, THINNERS, SOLVENTS, FUEL, OIL, AND
ANTIFREEZE) IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY, STATE, AND FEDERAL
REGULATIONS.

6. STORE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTES IN SECONDARY
CONTAINMENT AND COVER THEM DURING WET WEATHER.

7. BE SURE TO ARRANGE FOR APPROPRIATE DISPOSAL OF ALL
HAZARDOUS WASTES.

8. WHEN SPILLS OR LEAKS OCCUR (HAZARDOUS OR NON-HAZARDOUS),
CONTAIN THEM IMMEDIATELY AND BE PARTICULARLY CAREFUL TO
PREVENT LEAKS AND SPILLS FROM REACHING THE GUTTER, STREET, OR
STORM DRAIN.  NEVER WASH SPILLED MATERIAL INTO A GUTTER, STREET,
STORM DRAIN, OR CREEK.

9. REPORT ANY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SPILLS IMMEDIATELY!  DIAL 911
OR YOUR LOCAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE NUMBER.

10. DO NOT CLEAN VEHICLES OR EQUIPMENT ON-SITE USING SOAPS,
SOLVENTS, DEGREASERS, STEAM CLEANING EQUIPMENT, ETC.

11. KEEP EXCAVATED SOIL ON THE SITE WHERE IT IS LEAST LIKELY TO
COLLECT IN THE STREET.  TRANSFER TO DUMP TRUCKS SHOULD TAKE
PLACE ON THE SITE, NOT IN THE STREET.

12. USE FIBER ROLLS, SILT FENCES, OR OTHER CONTROL MEASURES TO
MINIMIZE THE FLOW OF SILT OFF THE SITE.  SEE SITE PLAN FOR SPECIFIC
MEASURES.

13. SHOVEL, ABSORB, OR VACUUM SAW-CUT SLURRY AND PICK UP ALL
WASTE AS SOON AS YOU ARE FINISHED IN ONE LOCATION OR AT THE END
OF EACH WORK DAY (WHICHEVER IS SOONER!).

14. IF SAW CUT SLURRY ENTERS A CATCH BASIN, CLEAN IT UP
IMMEDIATELY.

15. PROTECT GUTTERS, DITCHES, AND DRAINAGE COURSES WITH
SAND/GRAVEL BAGS, OR EARTHEN BERMS.

16. BE SURE TO STORE CONCRETE, GROUT, AND MORTAR UNDER COVER
AND AWAY FROM DRAINAGE AREAS.  THESE MATERIALS MUST NEVER
REACH A STORM DRAIN.

17. WASH OUT CONCRETE EQUIPMENT/TRUCKS OFF-SITE.

18. NEVER RINSE PAINT BRUSHES OR MATERIALS IN A GUTTER OR
STREET.

19. PAINT OUT EXCESS WATER-BASED PAINT BEFORE RINSING BRUSHES,
ROLLERS, OR CONTAINERS IN A SINK.  IF YOU CAN'T USE A SINK, DIRECT
WASH WATER TO A DIRT AREA AND SPADE IN IT.

20. PAINT OUT EXCESS OIL-BASED PAINT BEFORE CLEANING BRUSHES IN
THINNER.

21. FILTER PAINT THINNERS AND SOLVENTS FOR REUSE WHENEVER
POSSIBLE.  DISPOSE OF OIL-BASED PAINT SLUDGE AND USEABLE
THINNER AS HAZARDOUS WASTE.

DRAWING INDEX

 PROPERTY LINE  55'

UP

PROJECT DATA

CLIENTS:

CHERYL AND RODRIGO UBILLUS
1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA 94708

PROJECT SCOPE:

REAR ADDITION OF 500 SQ. FT. AT THE THIRD FLOOR,
INCLUDING A BEDROOM, BATHROOM, AND WALK-IN CLOSET.

ZONING: R1-H

APN:  60-2493-45

FLOOD ZONE NO

FIRE ZONE 2

LANDSLIDE ZONE YES

FIRE SPRINKLERS NONE

OCCUPANCY: R-3

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B

AVG. LOT SLOPE: 15%

GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1/8" = 1' - 0" AT 24" x 36"

VICINITY MAP

A-0.0 COVER SHEET

A-1.0 DEMO PLANS AND EXISTING ELEVATIONS

A-2.0 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A-3.0 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-4.0 SECTION

ASSESSOR'S MAP

PROPERTY LINE  41'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
  
1
0
8
.9

1
'

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
  
1
1
8
.1

9
'

(E) CONC.
DRIVEWAY

(E) CONC. PATIO
495 SF USABLE OPEN SPACE

SHOWN HATCHED GREY

(E) CONC. PATIO
900 SF USABLE OPEN SPACE

SHOWN HATCHED GREY
(E) 8' TALL CMU WALL

(E) 2'-6" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) 4'-0" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALLS

(E) 5'-3"
WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
PATIO

UP

NAME (PRINTED) SIGNATURE OBJECTIONSADDRESS DATE

COMMENTS OR OBJECTIONSHAVE NO

YES/NO

OWNER

I HAVE REVIEWED THE DRAWINGS FOR THE PROPOSED ADDITION AT 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. WHICH INCLUDES  500 SF AT THE SECOND FLOOR.

1444 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1446 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1448 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1452 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1445 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1455 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1476 SUMMIT RD.

1480 SUMMIT RD.

NEIGHBOR'S SIGNATURES

(E) RESIDENCE
1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

ADDITION AT
THIRD FLOOR

ADDITION AT
THIRD FLOOR

(E) RESIDENCE
1445 GRIZZLY
PEAK BLVD.

(E) RESIDENCE
1455 GRIZZLY
PEAK BLVD.

(E) 9'x18'
MIN. CLR.
PARKING AT
FIRST FLOOR
GARAGE

(E) 5' SEWER EASEMENT

(E) 6'-2" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) STONE WALL
APPROX. 9" TALL

(E) STONE WALL
APPROX. 2' TALL

(E) 2'-9" WD.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 1'-8" CONC.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 14" DIA. OAK

(E) ELECT.
METER

(E) 3'-8" HIGH
METAL RAILING

(E) WD. DECK ABOVE
150 SF OF USABLE
OPEN SPACE

(E) PERMEABLE
LANDSCAPED
SURFACE SHOWN
GREEN HATCHED, TYP.

(PLEASE STATE BRIEFLY)
TABULATION FORM

SYMBOL LEGEND

A-4.0

1

X

X

INTERIOR
ELEVATION KEY

AX.X

ALIGN

X

X/A-X.X

AX.X

X

SHEET #

ELEVATION SHOWN
WHERE SHADED

ELEVATION KEY -
DRAWING #

WINDOW SYMBOL,
SEE SCHEDULE

DOOR SYMBOL,
SEE SCHEDULE

DRAWING KEY

DETAIL KEY

ALIGNMENT
SYMBOL

(E) CLEANOUT

(E) WATER METER

(E) GAS METER
BELOW HOUSE

(E) 7'-8" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 7'-10" WD. FENCE HT.

(E) 6'-11" WD. FENCE HT.
ON
6'-2" CONC. RET. WALL

(E) 5'-8" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 4'-6" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 4'-2" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 3'-3" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 2'-4" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 3'-0" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALLS

(E) 5'-10" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 6'-2" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 4'-5" WD.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 1'-11" CONC.
RET. WALL HT.

1/16" = 1' - 0" AT 12" x 18"

(N)
LANDSCAPED

AREA
160 SF SHOWN

HATCHED
GREN

ATTACHMENT 1, Exhibit B 
from ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 6

Page 20 of 258

26



ATTACHMENT 1, Exhibit B 
from ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 6

Page 21 of 258

27



A - 1.0

DEMO PLANS

AND EXISTING

ELEVATIONS

MASTER
BEDROOM 4

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

VESTIBULE

MASTER
BATH

 NO WORKA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

1 FIRST FLOOR

 NO WORKA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

2 SECOND FLOOR

 SHOWING DEMOLITIONA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

3 THIRD FLOOR

GARAGE

LAUNDRY

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM 1

DECK

BATH 1

BATH 2

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

KITCHENDINING

DECK

(E) CONSTRUCTION TO BE
REMOVED SHOWN DASHED; TYP.

METAL RAILING TO BE REMOVED

ROOF DECK

CLOSET

A1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

4 EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

FLAT ROOF

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/16"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

FRONT (NORTH WEST) ELEVATION SIDE (SOUTH WEST) ELEVATION

REAR (SOUTH EAST) ELEVATION SIDE (NORTH EAST) ELEVATION

(E) STAIR
(13) RISERS AT 7 3/4"
(12) TREADS AT 11 1/2"

(E) STAIR
(15) RISERS AT 7 1/4"
(14) TREADS AT 11 1/4"

ATTACHMENT 1, Exhibit B 
from ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 6

Page 22 of 258

28



A - 2.0

PROPOSED

FLOOR PLAN

AND

ROOF PLAN

WALL TYPE KEY

(E) WALLS TO REMAIN

(N) FULL HEIGHT WALL

FLOOR PLAN NOTES:

1.  THE TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET FROM ANY OPENINGS INTO THE
BUILDING.  DUCT TERMINATIONS (I.E. DRYERS, BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC.) MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS, WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS, OR ATTIC VENTS (PER CMC 504.5)

2.  VERIFY OR INSTALL AUTOMATIC GAS SHUT-OFF VALVES.

3.  ALL NEW HOT WATER SUPPLY PIPING 3/4" OR GREATER SHALL BE INSULATED PER CEC SECTION 150.0(j)2iii.

4.  ALL NEW HOT WATER SUPPLY PIPING FROM THE HEATING SOURCE T O THE KITCHEN FIXTURES SHALL BE INSULATED PER CEC
SECTION 150.0(j)2.vi.

(N) 1-HR CONSTRUCTION

MASTER
BEDROOM 4

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

 AREA OF WORKA2.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 THIRD FLOOR
A2.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 ROOF

(E) 3:12; V.I.F.

(E) ROOF TO REMAIN

(E) 3:12; V.I.F.

(E) ROOF TO REMAIN

(E) .25:12; V.I.F.

(E) FLAT ROOF TO REMAIN

(N) BEDROOM 5
236 SF

(INCLUDING CLOSET)

VESTIBULE

OFFICE

MASTER
BATH 3

(N)  WALK-IN
CLOSET
188 SF

TOILET

BATH 4
76 SF

1/4"  PER FT.

(N) FLAT ROOF

FOOTPRINT SHOWN DASHED BELOW

1/4" PER FT.

(N) FLAT ROOF
CLOSET

DECK

A4.0

2

L

1

2

3

JHG

F

D

C B A

K

(E) CHIMNEY

(N) PAINTED METAL
GUTTER TO MATCH (E)

(E) GUTTER TO REMAIN

(N) RWL, CONNECT TO (E) UNDERGROUND
DRAINAGE SYSTEM; TYP.

(E) RWL CONNECTED TO
UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE SYSTEM

(E) RWL CONNECTED TO
UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE SYSTEM

(E) GUTTER TO REMAIN

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

A4.0

1

ATTACHMENT 1, Exhibit B 
from ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 6

Page 23 of 258

29



(N
) 

2
0
'-7

 1
/2

" 
H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 R

E
A

R

2
8
'-0

" 
A

LL
O

W
A

B
LE

 A
V
E
R

A
G

E
 H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

U
A

L
E
Q

U
A

L

(E
) 

2
6
'-6

" 
M

A
X

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

1
9
'-1

1
" 
H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 F

R
O

N
T

(N
) 

2
4
'-8

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(N
) 

2
8
'-9

" 
M

A
X

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

2
2
'-6

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

5
'-3

"

2
5
'-6

" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
0
'-8

" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
. 
H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

(N
) 

2
2
'-1

1
" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

2
0
'-9

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

2
1
'- 

6
" 
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

1
9
'-1

" 
E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 M

A
X

 H
E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

5
'-3

"

E
Q

U
A

L

E
Q

U
A

L

(N
) 

2
1
'-0

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

1
8
'-9

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T2

1
'- 

6
" 
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
0
'- 

8
" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

1
9
'-1

" 
E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 M

A
X

 H
E
IG

H
T

A - 3.0

PROPOSED

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

12

3

A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

3 FRONT (NORTH WEST) ELEVATION
A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

4 SIDE (NORTH EAST) ELEVATION

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 REAR (SOUTH EAST) ELEVATION
A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 SIDE (SOUTH WEST) ELEVATION

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(E) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD(E) COMP. SHINGLE ROOFING; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) STEEL GARAGE DOOR

(E) ALUM. AND STEEL
CABLE RAILING

(N) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) GRADE

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(N) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. AND STEEL CABLE RAILING

(E) GRADE

(E) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) GRADE

(E) WOOD FENCE

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(N) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(E) GRADE

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) WOOD GATE

(E) WOOD FENCE

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

ATTACHMENT 1, Exhibit B 
from ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 5 of 6

Page 24 of 258

30



(E
) 

7
'-5

 1
/2

"

(E
) 

7
'-9

 1
/4

"

(E
) 

1
0
'-4

 1
/4

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

4
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-8

"

 (
E
) 

2
'-6

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-7

"

 (
N

) 
1
0
'-0

"

(E
) 

0
'-1

1
 1

/4
"

(E
) 

0
'-7

 1
/2

"
(E

) 
1
'-0

 3
/4

"

(E
) 

1
'-1

 3
/4

"

(N
) 

1
'-3

 1
/8

"

 (
E
) 

5
'-3

"

 (
E
) 

4
'-6

"
 (

E
) 

5
'-1

0
"

(E
) 

7
'-9

 1
/4

"
 (

E
) 

8
'-0

"
 (

N
) 

1
0
'-0

"

(E
) 

0
'-7

 1
/2

"
(E

) 
1
'-0

 3
/4

"
(N

) 
1
'-3

 1
/8

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-0

"

(E
) 

1
'-0

 3
/4

"

A - 4.0

SECTION

FACING NORTH EASTA4.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 SECTION 

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

(E) GRADE, TYP.

LIVING ROOM

SLOPED CEILING

GARAGE LAUNDRY

DINING

BEDROOM 5

NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
HATCHED ORANGE

(E) CONC. RETAINING WALL

(E) FOUNDATION V.I.F.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) METAL FENCE

FACING SOUTH EASTA4.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 SECTION

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

BEDROOM 5

DINING KITCHEN

LAUNDRY

BEDROOM 2

CLOSET BATH 4 MASTER BATH 3 TOILET

NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
HATCHED ORANGE

(E) GRADE, TYP.

(E) FOUNDATION V.I.F.

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

ROOF SLOPE: 1/4" PER FOOT

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

ATTACHMENT 1, Exhibit B 
from ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 6 of 6

Page 25 of 258

31



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 26 of 258

32



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 27 of 258

33



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 28 of 258

34



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 29 of 258

35



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 30 of 258

36



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 31 of 258

37



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 32 of 258

38



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 33 of 258

39



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 34 of 258

40



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 35 of 258

41



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 36 of 258

42



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 37 of 258

43



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 38 of 258

44



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 39 of 258

45



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 40 of 258

46



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 41 of 258

47



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 42 of 258

48



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 43 of 258

49



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 44 of 258

50



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 45 of 258

51



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 46 of 258

52



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 47 of 258

53



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 48 of 258

54



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 49 of 258

55



Z O N I N G 

A D J U S T M E N T S 

B O A R D 

S t a f f  R e p o r t  

 
1947 Center Street, Second Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

E-mail: zab@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

FOR BOARD ACTION 
MARCH 12, 2020 

 

1449 Grizzly Peak Road 
 
Appeal of Zoning Officer’s Decision to approve Administrative Use Permit 
#ZP2019-0111 to alter a 5,526 square-foot residential parcel by 1) 
constructing a 500 square-foot major residential addition on the third story 
of an existing 2,791 square-foot, three-story single-family dwelling, which 
will increase the average building height and maximum building height by 
approximately 2’; 2) constructing the fifth bedroom on the parcel; and 3) 
constructing a perimeter fence four feet from the rear property line and on 
the side property lines that will be from 6’-2” to 8’-7” in height. 
 
I. Background 
 

A. Land Use Designations: 
 General Plan:  LDR – Low Density Residential 
 Zoning:  R-1(H) – Single-Family Residential District, Hillside Overlay 

 
B. Zoning Permits Required: 

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 
23D.16.030 to construct a major residential addition (cumulative);  

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.050.A to construct a 
fifth bedroom on the parcel; 

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.070.C to construct an 
addition which would exceed fourteen feet in average height;  

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23E.96.070.B to construct an 
addition which would exceed twenty feet in maximum height for a building located 
within the “H” Hillside Overlay District; and 

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.08.060.A.2 to construct a 
fence over six feet in height. 

 
C. CEQA Determination:  Categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA 

Guidelines (“Existing Facilities”).  
 
D. Parties Involved: 

 Applicant:   Lillian Mitchell, 1708 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, Suite  B, Berkeley 

Attachment 3
Page 50 of 258

56



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 2 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

 Owner:        Rodrigo Ubillus, 1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard, Berkeley 
 Appellant:   Pamela Sihvola, 1476 Summit Road, Berkeley 

  

Page 51 of 258

57



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 3 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

Figure 1: Vicinity Map 
 

1476 Summit Rd., 
Owned by appellant 

Project Site 

 
 

North 

Page 52 of 258

58



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 4 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

Grizzly Peak Boulevard  

Figure 2: Site Plan 

 
 
 
 

Page 53 of 258

59



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 5 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

Table 1:  Land Use Information 
Location Existing Use Zoning District General Plan Designation 
Subject Property 

Single-family dwelling R-1(H) LDR (Low Density Residential)  Surrounding 
Properties 

North 
South 
East 
West 

 
Table 2:  Special Characteristics 

Characteristic Applies to 
Project? Explanation 

Creeks 
(Per BMC Section 17.08.045) No The project is not within a creek buffer zone. 

Green Building Score No The project does not involve a new main dwelling unit. 
The Green Building Checklist is not required. 

Housing Accountability Act  
(Per Gov’t Code Section 65589.5(j)) No 

The project is an addition to an existing residential 
building and is therefore not a “housing development 
project” as defined by Government Code. 

Historic Resources No The project does not involve demolition of an existing 
residential building that is greater than 40 years old.  

Oak Trees  
(BMC Section 6.52.010) Yes 

An existing, protected Coast Live Oak tree was 
removed from the project site at some point after the 
construction approved under AUP#13-20000050. A 
Code Enforcement case was opened in January 2020, 
pursuant to BMC Section 6.52.010.  

Rent Controlled Units 
(Per BMC Chapter 13.76) No There are no units subject to the Rent Control 

Ordinance at this site. 
Residential Preferred Parking 
(RPP)  
(Per BMC Chapter 14.72) 

No The Residential Preferred Parking Program does not 
apply to the site. 

Seismic Hazards Mapping Act 
(Per State Hazards Mapping Act) Yes The project is located within an area susceptible to 

landslide.  

Soil/Groundwater 
Contamination No 

The project site is not located in the City’s Hazards 
Management Area and the site is not on any list 
maintained pursuant to the Cortese List. 

 
Table 3:  Project Chronology 

Date Action 
June 19, 2019 Application submitted 
July 18, 2019 Application deemed incomplete  
August 12, 2019 Revised application submitted  
August 30, 2019 Application deemed incomplete 
October 29, 2019 Revised application submitted/Application deemed complete  
November 20, 2019 Notice of Administrative Decision issued 
December 11, 2019 Application appealed 
February 27, 2020 Public hearing notices mailed/posted 
March 12, 2020 ZAB hearing 

 

Page 54 of 258

60



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 6 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

Table 4:  Development Standards 
Standard 
BMC Sections 23D.16.070-080 

Existing Change Proposed  Permitted/ 
Required 

Lot Area (sq. ft.) 5,526 - 5,526 5,000 min. 

Gross Floor Area (sq. ft.) 2,791 +500 3,291 N/A 

Dwelling Units (Parcel)  1 - 1 1 max. 

Bedrooms (Parcel)  4 +1 5 4 max. 
(without AUP or UPPH) 

Building 
Height 

Maximum 26’-6” +2’-3” 28’-9” 35’ max. 

Average 22’-6” +2’-2” 24’-8” 

14’ max. for residential 
additions 

(28’ max. average height 
w/AUP) 

Stories 3 - 3 3 max. 

Building 
Setbacks 

Front 17’-11” - 17’-11” 20’ min. 

Rear 39’-3” - 39’-3” 20’ min. 

Left (North) Side 5’-5” - 5’-5” 4’ min. 

Right (South) Side 4’-1” - 4’-1” 4’ min. 

Lot Coverage (%) 30 - 30 40 max. 

Usable Open Space (sq. ft.) 1,545 - 1,545 400 min. 
(400 per unit) 

Automobile Parking 1 - 1 1 min. 

 
II. Project Setting 

 
A. Neighborhood/Area Description: The project site is located in the Terrace View 

neighborhood of North Berkeley on the east side of Grizzly Peak Boulevard between 
Avenida Drive and Senior Avenue. The neighborhood primarily consists of two- and 
three-story single-family dwellings, separated by driveways leading to garages in the 
front yard and landscaping. The area slopes toward the west and includes mature 
vegetation along the street and between buildings.  
 

B. Site Conditions:  The project site slopes to the east, is rectangular in shape, and 55’ 
wide by 118.19’ deep. As noted above, the lot is currently developed with a 3-story 
single-family dwelling. The main building exceeds the rear and side yard setback 
requirements and provides a 17’-11” front yard setback, where 20’ is required. There 
is one off-street parking space located in an existing garage in the front portion of the 
property at the first floor.   

 
III. Project Description 

 
The project approved by the Zoning Officer would construct a 500 sq. ft. addition, 
comprised of an approximately 200 square foot addition and an approximately 300 

Page 55 of 258

61



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 7 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

addition. The addition would extend the existing third story at the rear of the dwelling, 
where an unenclosed roof deck and flat roof currently exist. The addition would increase 
the height of the dwelling by 2’-3” in maximum height (2’-2” average height) for a new 
maximum height of 28’-9” and a new average height of 24’-8”. The new floor area would 
consist of a bedroom (the fifth on the parcel), bathroom and walk-in closet.  
 
While the approved project is less than 600 square feet (which in certain circumstances 
could be approved with a Zoning Certificate, see BMC 23D.16.030), it is considered a 
major residential addition because the cumulative square footage added to the existing 
dwelling since October 31, 1991, is 1,056 sq. ft.1 On May 23, 2014, the Planning Division 
issued AUP#13-20000050 to construct a two-story, 556 sq. ft. addition to a 1,515 sq. ft. 
single-family dwelling. 
 
The site plan submitted on June 19, 2019 for the residential addition showed an existing, 
approximately 1,395 sq. ft. split-level concrete patio connected by a staircase and 
retaining wall, surrounded by an existing fence ranging from 6 feet to 8’-3” in height. During 
the initial 30-day review, staff determined that the retaining wall required a building permit, 
which had not been obtained prior to its construction. Staff requested the applicant submit 
a building permit application to properly permit the retaining wall. In response, the 
applicant submitted a building permit application to the Permit Service Center on October 
29, 2019, and the building permit is ready to issue as of February 13, 2020.2 

 
IV. Community Discussion 

 
A. Neighbor/Community Concerns: Prior to submitting this application to the City, a 

pre-application poster was erected by the applicant. The applicant also notified owners 
and occupants of all confronting and abutting properties, including the appellant. On 
July 15 and July 23, 2019, Staff received letters from the appellant stating concerns 
that are similar to the appeal points listed below, and discussed those concerns with 
the appellant (See Attachment 3). On November 20, 2019, Staff posted the Notice of 
Administrative Decision at the site and two nearby locations and sent notices to 
abutting and confronting property owners and occupants and to interested 
neighborhood groups. 

 
B. Zoning Officer’s Decision to Approve:  The Zoning Officer determined that the 

proposed project will not be detrimental to those living and working in the 
neighborhood because it will meet the R-1(H) district standards for maximum 
residential density, height, minimum rear and side setbacks, lot coverage, usable open 
space and parking, and because the minor nature and location of the proposed 
addition will not create detrimental air, views, light, or privacy impacts (see Attachment 
1). In addition, the project will not extend the non-conforming front yard setback. The 
addition of the fifth bedroom on the parcel will provide more room for residents at the 
single-family residence and will not result in an increase in dwelling unit density. The 
perimeter fence, ranging from 6’-2” to 8’-3” in height, is not expected to create 

                                            
1 Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23F.04.010, Addition, Major Residential.  
2 Building Permit No. B2019-04688 

Page 56 of 258

62



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 8 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

significant changes to the existing sunlight or privacy conditions in the immediate 
vicinity of the project, as the fence is located on a sloping hillside, below the existing 
sightlines to the San Francisco Bay from the properties directly to the rear, and will 
thus not block views.  

  
An appeal of the administrative decision was filed on December 11, 2019. 
 

C. Public Notice: On December 31, 2019, January 31, 2020, and February 13, 2020, 
Staff notified the appellant that the public hearing date had been tentatively scheduled 
for March 12, 2020, and requested confirmation of their availability to attend the 
hearing. The City received confirmation that the notification was delivered. The City 
did not receive any communication from the appellant in response to the notifications. 
On February 27, 2020, the City mailed public hearing notices to all adjacent property 
owners and occupants within 300 feet of the subject property, and to interested 
neighborhood organizations. Staff also posted the Notice of Public Hearing at two 
locations within the immediate vicinity of the subject site. At the time of this writing, 
Staff has received no other communication from the public regarding this project. 

 
V. Appeal Issues and Analysis 

 
A. Appeal Issue 1 – “Construction Creep”.  The appellant believes the proposed 

project would appear to represent "construction creep" and a violation of the premise 
of the previous permit AUP #13-20000050, dated May 1, 2014, which was approved 
after City Planning & Development recommended negotiations and mediation among 
the applicant and the neighbors to modify the project and define the limits of 
construction and its impacts on the abutting neighbors (page 1).” See Attachment 4, 
page 1, bullet 1. 
 
Staff Analysis: The 2019 application is a new and distinct application from that 
approved and constructed five years earlier in 2014.  In addition, as noted above, while 
the approved project is less than 600 square feet (which in certain circumstances could 
be approved with a Zoning Certificate, see BMC 23D.16.030), it is considered a major 
residential addition because the cumulative square footage added to the existing 
dwelling since October 31, 1991, is 1,056 square feet. As per the definition of Addition, 
Major Residential (BMC Section 23F.04.010), Floor area from all residential additions 
since October 31, 1991, with two exceptions, shall count towards the calculation of 
gross floor area for the purposes of this definition. The project conforms to the 
development standards of the R-1(H) district, and meets the findings for non-detriment 
as summarized above as described in the findings and conditions (Attachment 1). 
Negotiations and mediations among the applicant and neighbors is addressed under 
Appeal Point 5.  

 
B. Appeal Issue 2 – Oak Tree removal: The appellant contends that a protected Oak 

Tree was removed from the rear yard, in violation of the conditions of approval for AUP 
#13-20000050 (Attachment 4, page 1, bullet 2). 
 

Page 57 of 258

63



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 9 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

Staff Analysis: According to the appellant, a Coast Live Oak Tree was removed from 
the southwest corner of the property sometime after construction approved pursuant 
to AUP #13-20000050 was completed, most likely during the unpermitted construction 
of the concrete patio and retaining wall (see Attachment 2, page 3A and Attachment 
5). Staff conferred with the City’s consulting arborist, who confirmed the tree is a Coast 
Live Oak, based on site photos submitted by the appellant, and is therefore subject to 
the provisions of BMC Chapter 6.52 (Moratorium on the Removal of Coast Live Oak 
Trees), which states that there are “no permits and no exceptions to its removal unless 
it is an emergency or passed by Ordinance”. The City has recently executed a contract 
with a consulting Arborist to enhance the review of proposed projects that include 
demolition and or/construction activity near a protected Coast Live Oak, as well as to 
improve the enforcement process. In addition, the Land Use Planning Division 
supports the Parks, Recreation and Waterfront Department in their current efforts to 
consider an update to the Tree Ordinance.  In response to the arborist’s confirmation, 
a Code Enforcement Case was opened on January 29, 2020, pursuant to BMC Section 
1.20.020, which provides that any violation of any ordinance of the City may be 
charged as an infraction; the penalty by fine for the first violation is $100.3   
 
Since the protected Oak Tree is subject to Code Enforcement, staff recommends the 
ZAB dismiss this appeal point.  
 

C. Appeal Issue 3 – Construction in the rear yard: The appellant contends that a 
concrete structure was constructed in the rear yard, in violation of the conditions of 
approval for AUP #13-20000050 (Attachment 4, page 1, bullets 1 and 2). 

 
Staff Analysis: As discussed in the Project Description (Section III) above, during initial 
30-day review of the AUP#2019-0111, staff determined that the retaining wall in the 
rear yard was constructed without the necessary building permits. In response, staff 
requested the applicant apply for a building permit to correct the unpermitted work; the 
applicant submitted a building permit on October 29, 2019, which is ready to issue as 
of February 13, 2020. According to the appellant, construction of the concrete patio 
and retaining wall violates the Conditions of Approval pursuant to AUP #13-20000050 
(See Attachment 5). The scope of work approved under that AUP did not include the 
concrete patio and retaining wall, nor did the associated building permit.  The building 
permit associated with AUP #13-20000050 was finaled, indicating that construction 
was completed in compliance with the Conditions of Approval. As construction of the 
retaining wall and patio occurred after the building permit was finaled, it is not 
considered a violation of the Conditions of Approval, and is rather considered 
unpermitted work that must either be removed or properly permitted.  
 
Since the unpermitted construction of the retaining wall occurred separately from the 
scope of work approved under AUP #13-20000050, and the applicant has since 
applied for a building permit to legalize the unpermitted work, which is ready to issue, 
staff recommends the ZAB dismiss this appeal point.  

                                            
3 The removal of the subject Protected Live Oak Tree is being enforced through Code Enforcement Case No. 
121000747356.  

Page 58 of 258

64



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 10 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

 
D. Appeal Issue 4 – Roof deck: The appellant asks staff to explain why a permit was 

granted for a roof deck facing the Summit Road neighbors “without informing the 
neighbors who are impacted.” (Attachment 4, page 1, bullet 3). 

 
Staff Analysis: The roof deck was permitted as a revision to the approved 
Administrative Use Permit plans (AUP #13-20000050) during the Building Permit 
application process to add a “roof terrace over an existing flat roof” (B2014-04403-
REV2). The roof deck is approximately 310 square feet, and setback 5’-5” from the 
side (northwest) property line and 55’ from the rear property line. It includes a railing 
which is located below the roof line of the addition approved under the previous AUP 
at a height of 12’-10”, where the roof line is at a height of 18’-7” at the rear. Planning 
Staff determined the revision was a minor change, consistent with AUP #13-20000050 
Condition of Approval #4: “the Zoning Officer may approve changes that do not 
expand, intensify, or substantially change the use or building.” Also, the approved 
project (ZP2019-0111) includes replacement of the existing roof terrace with a new 
bedroom and bathroom at the third level. Therefore, Staff recommends that the ZAB 
dismiss this appeal point.  

 
E. Appeal Issue 5 – Exterior Materials: The appellant contends that during the review 

process for AUP#13-20000050, “mediation discussion included a commitment by the 
applicant to choose a building color to blend with the environment - note the stark 
bright white facade remains on the house and continues to reflect sunlight in a blinding 
and obtrusive manner.” (Attachment 4, page 1, bullet 4).  
 

F. Staff Analysis: The project plans approved under the previous AUP indicated stucco 
as the exterior material on the new third floor and wood siding to remain on the existing 
second floor. Although the approved building permit plans indicate stucco on both the 
second and third floors, the change of exterior materials is considered minor as it does 
not “expand, intensify or substantially change the use or building” pursuant to standard 
Condition of Approval #4. Further, the change in exterior materials complies with 
Condition of Approval #24 (AUP#13-20000050), which states “All construction at the 
subject property shall substantially conform to the approved Use Permit drawings or 
to modifications approved by the Zoning Officer.”  

 
Mediation is a tool that the Planning Division encourages applicants and neighbors to 
utilize through a private third-party early in the design process, in order to identify and 
resolve issues of concern. However, participation in mediation is voluntary, and 
compliance with any private party agreements reached in mediation cannot be 
enforced by the City unless the commitments made in mediation are incorporated into 
a Condition of Approval.  Further, Planning Staff determined that the stucco exterior 
did not result in a significant aesthetic impact (i.e., light and glare), and was therefore 
determined to be non-detrimental. Since the appellant has not provided additional 
evidence to suggest the non-detriment finding cannot be made based on impacts to 
light and glare from the stucco exterior materials at the second and third stories, staff 
recommends the ZAB dismiss this appeal point.  

 

Page 59 of 258

65



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 11 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

G. Appeal Issue 6 – Sewer easement encroachment: The appellant asks staff to 
confirm whether a “boundary survey [was] done in order to determine the exact 
location of the rear property line to determine its location with respect to the City's 
sewer easement? Did the backyard concrete construction, in fact, encroach upon the 
City's sewer easement? Did, also, the recently constructed rear fence encroach upon 
the City's sewer easement?” (Attachment 4, page 2, bullet 5). 
 
Staff Analysis: A boundary survey was completed prior to the submittal of the zoning 
permit application, and the existing 8’-3”- tall fence encroaches on a portion of the 
sewer easement. However, the fence does not require an encroachment permit 
pursuant to BMC Section 16.18.020, and Public Works Staff approved the location of 
the fence as part of the current building permit application, as the fence can be easily 
removed in the event the sanitary sewer needs to be accessed; therefore, staff 
recommends the ZAB dismiss this appeal point.  

 
H. Appeal Issue 7 – Maximum Building Height: The appellant asks staff to explain why 

the proposed increase in the maximum building height by 2’-3” was approved by the 
Zoning Officer without a public hearing, “If the approved AUP #13-20000050 
specifically stipulated that the maximum ceiling of the structure would be 8 ft.?” 
(Attachment 4, page 2, bullet 6). 
 
Staff Analysis: The Conditions of Approval for AUP #13-20000050 are applicable to 
the previously approved project, which has been constructed, and do not carry over to 
the current, approved project (ZP2019-0111), including the maximum allowable 
building height.   
 
The proposed project requires the Administrative Use Permits listed on page 1 of this 
Staff Report. The application process requires multiple forms of neighbor notification:  
a yellow poster must be installed at the front of the project site, and the applicant must 
notify all abutting and confronting neighbors by obtaining signatures on the site plan 
prior to submitting an application. The Notice of Administrative Decision is posted on-
site and mailed to property owners within 300 feet; the Decision may be appealed for 
a period of 21 days after it is posted.  A public hearing is not required for approval of 
an AUP.  Staff recommends the ZAB dismiss this appeal point.  
 

I. Appeal Issue 8 – Major Residential Addition: The appellant asks staff to explain 
“how is it legal that the Planning Department allows the applicant to over-double the 
residence size from the original 1,515 sq. ft. to 3,291 sq. ft. in a piecemeal fashion 
without scheduling a Public Hearing?” (Attachment 4, page 2, bullet 7). 
 
Staff Analysis: As described in Appeal Point 1, cumulative projects are addressed in 
the Berkeley Municipal Code. As described in Appeal Point 7, the project requires 
several AUPs; however the AUP process does not require a public hearing.  Staff 
recommends that the ZAB dismiss this appeal point.  
 
 

 

Page 60 of 258

66



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK ROAD 
MARCH 12, 2020 Page 12 of 12 
 

 
File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-
12_ZAB_SR_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

VI. Recommendation 
 
The appeal points discussed above are focused on process, and no evidence has been 
provided to dispute any finding of non-detriment for this project. Because of the project’s 
consistency with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan, and minimal impact on 
surrounding properties, staff recommends that the Zoning Adjustments Board: APPROVE 
Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 pursuant to Section 23B.28.060.C.1 and 
subject to the attached Findings and Conditions (see Attachment 1) and DISMISS the 
Appeal. 

 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Findings and Conditions, ZP#2019-0111, November 20, 2019 
2. Project Plans, received August 12, 2019 
3. Neighbor Comment Letters, received July 17, and July 23, 2019 
4. Letter of Appeal, received December 11, 2019 
5. AUP #13-20000050, effective May 23, 2014  
6. Notice of Public Hearing 
 
Staff Planner: Ashley James, ajames@cityofberkeley.info, (510) 981-7458 

Page 61 of 258

67



N o t i c e o f

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

D e c i s i o n

1947 Center Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.7420 
E-mail: planning@ci.berkeley.ca.us

1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard 
Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

To alter a 5,526 square-foot residential parcel by 1) constructing a 500 square-foot 
major residential addition on the third story of an existing 2,791 square-foot, three-
story single-family dwelling, which will increase the average building height by 2’-
2” and the maximum building height by 2’-3, resulting in a 3,291 square-foot, three-
story, single-family dwelling with an average building height of 24’-8” and a 
maximum building height of 28’-9”,2) constructing the fifth bedroom on the parcel, 
and 3) constructing a perimeter fence four feet from the rear property line and on 
the side property lines that will be from 6’-2” to 8’-7” in height.  

ZONING OFFICER DECISION:  The Zoning Officer of the City of Berkeley has APPROVED the 
following permits pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 23B.28.050, and based on the 
attached findings and conditions (attachment 1) and plans (attachment 2): 
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 23D.16.030 to

construct a major residential addition (cumulative);
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.050.A to construct a fifth bedroom on the

parcel;
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.070.C to construct an addition which

would exceed fourteen feet in average height;
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23E.96.070.B to construct an addition which would

exceed twenty feet in maximum height for a building located within the “H” Hillside Overlay District;
and

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.08.060.A.2 to construct a fence over six feet
in height.

DATE NOTICE IS ISSUED: November 20, 2019 
APPEAL PERIOD: November 21, 2019 to December 11, 2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Findings and Conditions
2. Project Plans, dated received August 12, 2019

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION: 
All application materials for this project are available online at: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications 
and at the Permit Service Center, Third Floor, at 1947 Center Street, between 8:30 AM to 4 PM Monday, 
Wednesday - Friday & 8:30 AM to 2:30 PM Tuesday (closed 2nd Friday of every month).  Questions about 
the project should be directed to the project planner, Ashley James, at (510) 981-7458 or 
ajames@cityofberkeley.info. 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 18

Page 62 of 258

68

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications


1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 
Page 2 of 3 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

PUBLIC NOTICE, PURSUANT TO BMC SECTION 23B.28.040 B&C: 
This Notice of Administrative Decision was: 
1. Forwarded to the Zoning Adjustments Board and sent to the Main Library;
2. Posted at three visible locations in the vicinity of the subject property and at a bulletin board at the

Zoning counter.
3. Mailed to neighborhood and community organizations for which the project falls within their expressed

area of interest, as set forth in BMC Section 23B.24.060;
4. Mailed to owners and residents of properties abutting and confronting the subject property.
The validity of the proceedings, however, shall not be affected by the failure of any such property owner,
occupant or neighborhood or community organization to receive such mailed notice.

TO APPEAL THIS DECISION, PURSUANT TO BMC SECTION 23B.28.060: 
To appeal this decision, you must: 
1. Submit a letter clearly and concisely setting forth the grounds for the appeal, along with the required fee

(see below) to the Zoning Officer, at the Permit Service Center, 1947 Center Street, 3rd Floor, Berkeley.
2. The appeal and required fee (see below) must be received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the last day of the appeal

period shown above (if the close of the appeal period falls on a weekend or holiday, then the appeal period
expires the following business day).

3. Submit the required fee to the Permit Service Center (see above; checks and money orders must be
payable to ‘City of Berkeley’):
a. The basic fee for appeals of a Zoning Officer decision to the Zoning Adjustments Board is $200.  This

fee may be reduced to $75 if the appeal is signed by persons who lease or own at least 35 percent of
the parcels or dwelling units within 300 feet of the project site, or at least 20 such persons (not including
dependent children), whichever is less.

b. The fee for appeals of affordable housing projects (defined as projects which provide 50 percent or
more affordable units for households earning 80% or less of Area Median Income) is $500, which may
not be reduced.

c. The fee for all appeals by Applicants is $2500.
If an appeal is filed, the Zoning Officer shall set the matter for consideration by the Zoning Adjustments Board. 
An appeal stays the issuance and exercise of the AUP until a decision is rendered or the appeal is withdrawn. 
If no appeal is received, the permit will be issued on the first business day following expiration of the appeal 
period, and the project may proceed at that time. 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: 
If you object to this decision, the following requirements and restrictions apply: 
1. If you challenge this decision in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else

raised in an appeal of the decision.
2. You must appeal to the Zoning Adjustments Board within twenty (20) days after the Notice of Decision of

the action of the Zoning Officer is mailed.  It is your obligation to notify the Land Use Planning Division in
writing of your desire to receive a Notice of Decision when it is completed.

3. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(b) and Government Code Section 65009(c)(1), no
lawsuit challenging a City decision, as defined by Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(e), regarding a
use permit, variance or other permit may be filed more than ninety (90) days after the date the decision
becomes final, as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(b).  Any lawsuit not filed within that
ninety (90) day period will be barred.

4. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), notice is hereby given to the applicant that the 90-day
protest period for any fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions included in any permit approval
begins upon final action by the City, and that any challenge must be filed within this 90-day period.

5. If you believe that this decision or any condition attached to it denies you any reasonable economic use of
the subject property, was not sufficiently related to a legitimate public purpose, was not sufficiently

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 18

Page 63 of 258

69

http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/html/Berkeley23B/Berkeley23B24/Berkeley23B24060.html#23B.24.060
http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/html/Berkeley23B/Berkeley23B24/Berkeley23B24060.html#23B.24.060


1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 
Page 3 of 3 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 
 

proportional to any impact of the project, or for any other reason constitutes a “taking” of property for public 
use without just compensation under the California or United States Constitutions, your appeal of this 
decision must including the following information: 
A. That this belief is a basis of your appeal. 
B. Why you believe that the decision or condition constitutes a "taking" of property as set forth above. 
C. All evidence and argument in support of your belief that the decision or condition constitutes a “taking” 

as set forth above. 
If you do not do so, you will waive any legal right to claim that your property has been taken, both before 
the City and in court. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 18

Page 64 of 258

70



A t t a c h m e n t  1 

F i n d i n g s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s 

N O V E M B E R  2 0 ,  2 0 1 9  

 
1947 Center Street, 2nd Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

E-mail: planning@cityofberkeley.info 

1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard 
 
Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 
 
To alter a 5,526 square-foot residential parcel by 1) constructing a 500 
square-foot major residential addition on the third story of an existing 2,791 
square-foot, three-story single-family dwelling, which will increase the 
average building height by 2’-2” and the maximum building height by 2’-3, 
resulting in a 3,291 square-foot, three-story, single-family dwelling with an 
average building height of 24’-8” and a maximum building height of 28’-
9”,2) constructing the fifth bedroom on the parcel, and 3) constructing a 
perimeter fence four feet from the rear property line and on the side 
property lines that will be from 6’-2” to 8’-7” in height.  
 
PERMITS REQUIRED 
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 23D.16.030 

to construct a major residential addition (cumulative);  
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.050.A to construct a fifth 

bedroom on the parcel; 
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.070.C to construct an addition 

which would exceed fourteen feet in average height;  
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23E.96.070.B to construct an addition 

which would exceed twenty feet in maximum height for a building located within the “H” 
Hillside Overlay District; and 

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.08.060.A.2 to construct a fence 
over six feet in height. 
 

CEQA FINDINGS 
1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of 
Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (Existing 
Facilities). Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply, 
as follows: (a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no 
cumulative impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a 
scenic highway, (e) the project site is not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65962.5, and (f) the project would not affect any historical 
resource. 

 
FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL 
2. As required by BMC Section 23B.28.050.A, the project, under the circumstances of this 

particular case existing at the time at which the application is granted, would not be 
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general welfare of the persons 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 18

Page 65 of 258

71



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 2 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use or be detrimental or injurious 
to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the surrounding area or 
neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City because: 
 
A. The subject property is equal to or below the Single-Family Residential (R-1H) standards 

(BMC Section 23D.16.070-.080) for maximum residential density, height, setbacks, lot 
coverage, useable open space, and off-street parking (one main dwelling unit, where 
one main dwelling unit is allowed, average height of 24’-8” where 28’ is the maximum, 
5’-5” side (north) yard setback where 4’ is the minimum, 4’-1” side (south) yard setback 
where 4’ is the minimum, and 39’-3” rear yard setback where 20’ is the minimum, 30% 
lot coverage where 40% is the maximum, 1,545 sq. ft. of usable open space where 400 
sq. ft. is the minimum, and one off-street parking space where one is required). The 
subject property has a legally non-conforming front yard setback of 17’-1” where 20’ is 
the minimum; however, the project would not extend or worsen this non-conformity. The 
subject property is equal to or below the Hillside Overlay District standards (BMC 
Section 23E.96.070) for maximum height for all residential additions of 28’-9” where 35’ 
is the maximum. Therefore, the residential addition will be compatible with the existing 
property and neighborhood character; 
 

B. Privacy: Though the project includes new window openings on the addition to the third 
floor, these new windows on the front, northeast-side and rear are not expected to be 
detrimental to the privacy of neighbors because they would be located in walls that 
exceed all required yards; the new windows on the front of the building at the third floor 
would be setback 21’-1” from the front property line, where 20’ is required. The building 
to building separation from the subject dwelling to abutting dwelling to the southeast at 
1480 Summit Road is approximately 58’, the dwelling to the southwest at 1455 Grizzly 
Peak Boulevard is approximately 9’, and the dwelling to the northeast at 1445 Grizzly 
Peak Boulevard is approximately 14’-6”. This separation, along with new openings that 
will mostly not directly face any windows in neighboring dwellings, will limit new privacy 
impacts; 

 
C. The addition to the main building will be constructed with proportions, scale and roof 

slopes that match the existing; 
 

D. While the project increases the number of bedrooms as defined in BMC Section 
13.42.020.B on this parcel from four to five, the additional bedrooms will be added to an 
existing single-family residence. The addition of a fifth bedroom will provide more room 
for residents at the single-family residence and will not result in an increase in dwelling 
unit density; and 

 
E. The proposed perimeter fence will be from 6’-2” in height at the front of the property to 

8’-3” in height at the rear of the property, and will be setback approximately 6’ from the 
northwest property line at the front of the property, at the property line along the side 
yards, and setback approximately 4’ from the rear property line. The fence will be located 
approximately 19’ from the building located to the northeast at 1476 Summit Road, and 
17’ from the building located to the southeast at 1480 Summit Road. The fence will be 
constructed in an architectural style with colors and materials that are consistent with 
the surrounding buildings and fences. Due to its location, solar orientation, limited scale, 
and the presence of mature trees and other vegetation, the proposed fence is not 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 5 of 18

Page 66 of 258

72



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 3 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

expected to create significant changes to the existing sunlight or privacy conditions in 
the immediate vicinity of this project. No new sight lines will be created to or from 
neighboring buildings, as the fence is located on a sloping hillside, below the existing 
sightlines to the San Francisco Bay from the properties directly to the rear of the 
property, and will thus not block views. 
 

3. Pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.090.B, the Zoning Officer finds that the major residential 
addition would not unreasonably obstruct sunlight, air, or views for the following reasons: 
 
A. Sunlight: The 500 sq. ft. addition to the existing third floor and the perimeter fence will 

not result in a significant loss of direct sunlight on neighboring dwellings. Shadow studies 
submitted by the applicant document the addition’s projected shadow angles and 
lengths at three times throughout the day during the summer and winter solstice.  

a. Two hours before sunset on the winter solstice, shadows on the west side of the 
dwelling at 1445 Grizzly Peak Boulevard will increase and cover portions of four 
living room windows and a portion of the entryway door.  

b. Two hours before sunset on the summer solstice, the shadows on the west side 
of the dwelling at 1445 Grizzly Peak Boulevard will increase and cover a living 
room window. 

c. Because the impacts to neighboring properties will occur on limited areas, and 
will only partially shade a neighboring building for a limited time during the year, 
and only for a few hours of the day, the residential addition will not result in a 
significant loss of direct sunlight on abutting residences, and these shading 
impacts are not deemed detrimental; 
 

B. Air: The addition is found to be consistent with the existing development and building-
to-building separation pattern – or air – in this R-1H neighborhood because the addition 
is an expansion of the existing third story, where a maximum of three are allowed. The 
minimum 4 ft. required side yard setbacks will be maintained; and 
 

C. Views: Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23F.04.010 defines view corridors as: a 
significant view of the Berkeley Hills, San Francisco Bay, Mt. Tamalpais, or a significant 
landmark such as the Campanile, Golden Gate Bridge, and Alcatraz. The dwellings to 
the east (1476 and 1480 Summit Road) are placed higher on the hill and have views of 
the Berkeley Hills and a partial view San Francisco Bay which is occluded by several 
mature trees in the yards of parcels across Grizzly Peak Boulevard from the subject 
property. Further, the proposed addition would not obstruct any existing partial views of 
the San Francisco Bay, as documented in the pictures of the story poles provided by the 
applicant. The dwellings to the west (1448 and 1446 Grizzly Peak Boulevard) are placed 
lower on the hill and have views of the Bay but the steep upsloping topography and the 
placement of the existing dwellings to the west occlude the Berkeley Hills. Further, the 
proposed addition would be located at the rear of the existing building on the third floor, 
and would match the existing roofline at the front of the building, therefore not 
obstructing views of the Berkeley Hills.   

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 6 of 18

Page 67 of 258

73



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 4 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

4. As required by BMC Section 23E.96.090.B, the Zoning Officer finds that the addition above 
the 20’ maximum height that applies to additions is consistent with the purposes of the 
Hillside Overlay District as the height occurs in part because of the slope of this site, the 
proposed addition and fence will not adversely compromise the quality and character of this 
hillside parcel and its immediate environs, nor will it adversely impact views available from 
neighboring residences and parcels. The project maintains the original pattern and design 
of the lot and preserves westward views of the San Francisco Bay from the original building 
and its neighbors, as described above, in Section 3. 

 
 
STANDARD CONDITIONS 

 
The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
apply to this Permit: 
 
1. Conditions Shall be Printed on Plans 

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set submitted 
for a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use Permit Conditions’. 
Additional sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not of sufficient size to list all of 
the conditions. The sheet(s) containing the conditions shall be of the same size as those 
sheets containing the construction drawings; 8-1/2” by 11” sheets are not acceptable. 

 
2. Applicant Responsible for Compliance with Conditions 

The applicant shall ensure compliance with all of the following conditions, including 
submittal to the project planner of required approval signatures at the times specified.  
Failure to comply with any condition may result in construction being stopped, issuance of 
a citation, and/or modification or revocation of the Use Permit. 

 
3. Uses Approved Deemed to Exclude Other Uses (BMC Section 23B.56.010) 

A. This Permit authorizes only those uses and activities actually proposed in the 
application, and excludes other uses and activities. 

B. Except as expressly specified herein, this Permit terminates all other uses at the location 
subject to it. 

 
4. Modification of Permits (BMC Section 23B.56.020) 

No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is issued is permitted unless the 
Permit is modified by the Zoning Officer. 

 
5. Plans and Representations Become Conditions (BMC Section 23B.56.030) 

Except as specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, building elevations and/or any 
additional information or representations, whether oral or written, indicating the proposed 
structure or manner of operation submitted with an application or during the approval 
process are deemed conditions of approval. 

 
6. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations (BMC Section 23B.56.040) 

The approved use and/or construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable 
City Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental agencies.  Prior to 
construction, the applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the Building 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 7 of 18

Page 68 of 258

74



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 5 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

and Safety Division, Public Works Department and other affected City divisions and 
departments. 

 
7. Exercised Permit for Use Survives Vacancy of Property (BMC Section 23B.56.080) 

Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, that use is legally 
recognized, even if the property becomes vacant, except as set forth in Standard Condition 
#8, below. 

 
8. Exercise and Lapse of Permits (BMC Section 23B.56.100) 

A. A permit for the use of a building or a property is exercised when, if required, a valid City 
business license has been issued, and the permitted use has commenced on the 
property. 

B. A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed exercised when a valid 
City building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has lawfully commenced. 

C. A permit may be declared lapsed and of no further force and effect if it is not exercised 
within one year of its issuance, except that permits for construction or alteration of 
structures or buildings may not be declared lapsed if the permittee has:  (1) applied for 
a building permit; or, (2) made substantial good faith efforts to obtain a building permit 
and begin construction, even if a building permit has not been issued and/or construction 
has not begun. 

 
9. Indemnification Agreement 

The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and its 
officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, demands, 
judgments or other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, expert witness and 
consultant fees and other litigation expenses), referendum or initiative relating to, resulting 
from or caused by, or alleged to have resulted from, or caused by, any action or approval 
associated with the project.  The indemnity includes without limitation, any legal or 
administrative challenge, referendum or initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, 
stay or otherwise rescind any or all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any 
environmental determination made for the project and granting any permit issued in 
accordance with the project.  This indemnity includes, without limitation, payment of all 
direct and indirect costs associated with any action specified herein.  Direct and indirect 
costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees, expert witness and consultant 
fees, court costs, and other litigation fees.  City shall have the right to select counsel to 
represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any action specified in this 
condition of approval.  City shall take reasonable steps to promptly notify the Applicant of 
any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create a claim for indemnification under these 
conditions of approval.   

 
ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE ZONING OFFICER 
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.28.050.D, the Zoning Officer attaches the following additional 
conditions to this Permit: 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 8 of 18

Page 69 of 258

75



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 6 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

Prior to Submittal of Any Building Permit: 
10. Project Liaison. The applicant shall include in all building permit plans and post onsite the 

name and telephone number of an individual empowered to manage construction-related 
complaints generated from the project.  The individual’s name, telephone number, and 
responsibility for the project shall be posted at the project site for the duration of the project 
in a location easily visible to the public.  The individual shall record all complaints received 
and actions taken in response, and submit written reports of such complaints and actions 
to the project planner on a weekly basis. Please designate the name of this individual 
below: 

□ Project Liaison   
 Name           Phone # 

 
Standard Construction-related Conditions Applicable to all Projects: 
11. Transportation Construction Plan.  The applicant and all persons associated with the 

project are hereby notified that a Transportation Construction Plan (TCP) is required for all 
phases of construction, particularly for the following activities: 
 Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks, pedestrian paths or vehicle travel 

lanes (including bicycle lanes); 
 Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public ROW; 
 Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street; or  
 Significant truck activity. 

 
The applicant shall secure the City Traffic Engineer’s approval of a TCP.  Please contact 
the Office of Transportation at 981-7010, or 1947 Center Street, and ask to speak to a 
traffic engineer.  In addition to other requirements of the Traffic Engineer, this plan shall 
include the locations of material and equipment storage, trailers, worker parking, a 
schedule of site operations that may block traffic, and provisions for traffic control.  The 
TCP shall be consistent with any other requirements of the construction phase.   
 
Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 1947 Center Street or 981-7500 for details on 
obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and accompanying 
dashboard permits).  Please note that the Zoning Officer and/or Traffic Engineer may limit 
off-site parking of construction-related vehicles if necessary to protect the health, safety or 
convenience of the surrounding neighborhood.  A current copy of this Plan shall be 
available at all times at the construction site for review by City Staff. 
 

12. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 
Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 a.m. and noon on Saturday.  No construction-
related activity shall occur on Sunday or on any Federal Holiday. 

 
13. If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered and/or broken, the 

contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works Department and the Building 
& Safety Division, and carry out any necessary corrective action to their satisfaction. 

 
14. Subject to approval of the Public Works Department, the applicant shall repair any damage 

to public streets and/or sidewalks by construction vehicles traveling to or from the project 
site. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 9 of 18

Page 70 of 258

76



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 7 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

15. All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered at night and during 
rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter in thickness and secured to the 
ground. 

 
16. All active construction areas shall be watered at least twice daily, and all piles of debris, 

soil, sand or other loose materials shall be watered or covered. 
 
17. Trucks hauling debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered or required to 

maintain at least two feet of board. 
 
18. Public streets shall be swept (preferably with water sweepers) of all visible soil material 

carried from the site. 
 
19. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do not adversely affect 

adjacent properties and rights-of-way.   
 
20. The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account surface and subsurface 

waters and underground streams so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties and 
rights-of-way. 

 
21. Any construction during the wet season shall require submittal of a soils report with 

appropriate measures to minimize erosion and landslides, and the developer shall be 
responsible for following these and any other measures required by the Building and Safety 
Division and the Public Works Department. 

 
22. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural 

resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50 
feet of the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction 
contractor shall notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours.  The City will again 
contact any tribes who have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a 
qualified archaeologist, to evaluate the resources and situation and provide 
recommendations.  If it is determined that the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus 
significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be prepared and implemented in 
accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native American groups. If the 
resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce impacts to the 
resource and to address tribal concerns may be required. 

 
23. Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). 

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique 
archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted. 
Therefore: 
A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are 

discovered during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources 
shall be halted and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a 
qualified archaeologist, historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the 
find. 

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent 
and/or lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the 
appropriate avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 10 of 18

Page 71 of 258

77



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 8 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

determination to be made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials 
recovered shall be subject to scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or 
a report prepared by the qualified professional according to current professional 
standards. 

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the 
project applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of 
factors such as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other 
considerations. 

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data 
recovery) shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while 
mitigation measures for cultural resources is carried out. 

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report 
on the findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center. 

 
24. Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the 

event that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-
disturbing activities, all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner shall 
be contacted to evaluate the remains, and following the procedures and protocols pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 (e)(1) . If the County Coroner determines that the 
remains are Native American, the City shall contact the California Native American 
Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5(c), and 
all excavation and site preparation activities shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find 
until appropriate arrangements are made. If the agencies determine that avoidance is not 
feasible, then an alternative plan shall be prepared with specific steps and timeframe 
required to resume construction activities. Monitoring, data recovery, determination of 
significance and avoidance measures (if applicable) shall be completed expeditiously. 

 
25. Paleontological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). 

In the event of an unanticipated discovery of a paleontological resource during 
construction, excavations within 50 feet of the find shall be temporarily halted or diverted 
until the discovery is examined by a qualified paleontologist (per Society of Vertebrate 
Paleontology standards [SVP 1995,1996]). The qualified paleontologist shall document the 
discovery as needed, evaluate the potential resource, and assess the significance of the 
find. The paleontologist shall notify the appropriate agencies to determine procedures that 
would be followed before construction is allowed to resume at the location of the find. If the 
City determines that avoidance is not feasible, the paleontologist shall prepare an 
excavation plan for mitigating the effect of the project on the qualities that make the 
resource important, and such plan shall be implemented. The plan shall be submitted to 
the City for review and approval. 

 
Prior to Issuance of Occupancy Permit or Final Inspection: 
26. All construction at the subject property shall substantially conform to the approved Use 

Permit drawings or to modifications approved by the Zoning Officer. 
 
27. All landscape, site and architectural improvements shall be completed per the attached 

approved drawings dated August 12, 2019. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 11 of 18

Page 72 of 258

78



1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 9 of 9 Administrative Use Permit #ZP2019-0111 

 

G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2019-11-18_APFC_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx 

At All Times (Operation): 
28. All exterior lighting shall be energy efficient where feasible; and shielded and directed 

downward and away from property lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the subject 
property. 

 
29. Drainage Patterns. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do 

not adversely affect adjacent properties and rights-of-way.  Drainage plans shall be 
submitted for approval of the Building & Safety Division and Public Works Department, if 
required. 

 
30. Electrical Meter. Only one electrical meter fixture may be installed per dwelling unit. 
 

 

  
_____________________________________ 

Prepared by: Ashley James 
For Greg Powell, Zoning Officer 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 12 of 18

Page 73 of 258

79



4'-0"

SETBACK

4'-0"
SETBACK

(E) 4'-1"

(E) 5'-5"

(E
) 

3
9
'-3

"2
0
'-0

" 
S

E
T
B

A
C

K

(E
) 1

7
'-1

1
"

2
0
'-0

" S
E
T
B

A
C

K

5
2
'-3

"

40'-8"

21'-4 1/2"

3
7
'-8

"

1'-3"

2'-10"

2
5
'-5

"
1
2
'-7

 1
/4

"
1
4
'-3

"

15'-4"

1
5
'-7

 3
/4

"

20'-0 3/4" 14'-11 3/4"5'-7 1/2"

12'-5 1/2"

7'-2 1/2"

5
'-3

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

6
'-8

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

8'-0" WD.FENCE HT.
8'-7" WD.FENCE HT.

8'-5" WD.FENCE HT.

5
'-6

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

4
'-4

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

5
'-4

" W
D

.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

5
'-1

0
" W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

6
'-3

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

10'-0"

1
6
'-0

"

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

A - 0.0

COVER SHEET

1.  ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE,
2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, 2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA
MECHANICAL CODE, 2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE, 2016
EDITION; 2016 ENERGY CODE; CITY OF BERKELEY ORDINANCES, ALAMEDA
COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES AND
ORDINANCES.

2.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS
ON THE SITE PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
FAMILIARIZE HIM/HERSELF WITH VERTICAL AND LATERAL LOAD TRANSFER
THROUGH FRAMING TO FOUNDATION.  DIMENSIONS, FOUNDATION LAYOUT,
FRAMING LAYOUT, LOAD TRANSFER THROUGH NEW AND EXISTING
FRAMING TO FOUNDATION LOCATION OF BEAMS, BRACING, ETC. SHOULD
ALL BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION.  VARIANCE BETWEEN
THE DRAWINGS AND THE ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS, AND ANY ERRORS OR
OMISSIONS FOUND IN THE DRAWINGS, SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.
UPON DISCOVERY OF UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS ON THE SITE, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP THE WORK AND REQUEST ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION FROM THE ARCHITECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE ARCHITECT WHEN THE EXISTING STRUCTURE HAS BEEN EXPOSED.

3.  DURING DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS TO CAP ALL ELECTRICAL
OUTLETS, SWITCHES AND UTILITIES PER CODE.  NOTIFY OWNER 24 HOURS
PRIOR TO ANY INTERRUPTION IN POWER OR UTILITIES.

4.  BRACE AND SUPPORT EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR WALLS AS NECESSARY
PRIOR TO REMOVAL OF EXISTING STRUCTURE  SO AS TO PREVENT ANY
MOVEMENT OF THE EXISTING STRUCTURE.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR
SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING ADEQUATE SHORING AND
BRACING DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR VERTICAL AND LATERAL LOADS AS
REQUIRED FOR THE PROTECTION OF LIFE AND PROPERTY DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

5.  WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS ARE TO FACE OF
FINISH UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED;  THEY SHALL HAVE PRECEDENCE
OVER ANY SCALED DIMENSIONS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT USE
SCALED DIMENSIONS.  DETAIL DRAWINGS HAVE PRECEDENCE OVER MORE
GENERAL DRAWINGS.

6.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL NEW WORK AGAINST LEAKS
FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE WORK.

7.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING TO
ORIGINAL CONDITION, AT HIS OWN EXPENSE, ANY DAMAGE DONE BY HIM
OR HIS AGENTS TO THE EXISTING BUILDINGS OR GROUNDS.

8.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL PRODUCTS AND MATERIALS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF TRADE STANDARDS,
PUBLISHED BY THE TRADE ASSOCIATIONS.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE PORTIONS OF
TITLE 24 OF THE CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

10.  DIMENSIONS, LOCATIONS OF DOORS, PARTITIONS, CABINET WORK
AND SIMILAR FEATURES TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE.

11.  IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO COORDINATE
LAYOUT OF ALL THE VARIOUS COMPONENTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AS
REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE THE ELECTRICAL LAYOUT INDICATED.
SPECIAL ATTENTION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO FRAMING LAYOUT TO AVOID
CUTTING AND REFRAMING TO ACHIEVE PROPER LOCATIONS FOR FIXTURES.

12.  THE ARCHITECT DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCE OR
PROCEDURES OF CONSTRUCTION, OR SAFETY PRECAUTIONS, WHICH ARE
TO REMAIN THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

13.  THE ARCHITECT DOES NOT PROVIDE EVALUATION FOR THE EXISTENCE
OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL NOR ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR
MANAGEMENT.  SHOULD THE CONTRACTOR ENCOUNTER ANY HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS IN THE PERFORMANCE OF HIS WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE OWNER IMMEDIATELY AND PROCEED WITH WORK ONLY IN
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE HAZARDOUS MATERIAL HANDLING
REGULATIONS.

14.  DIVERT CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION WASTE AS FOLLOWS:
A.  DIVERT ALL CARDBOARD, CONCRETE, ASPHALT AND METALS.
B.  DIVERT 25% C&D WASTE, EXCLUDING ALL CARDBOARD,

CONCRETE, ASPHALT, AND METALS.

GENERAL NOTES SITE PLANBEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

1. SAND, DIRT, AND SIMILAR MATERIALS MUST BE STORED AT LEAST 10
FEET FROM CATCH BASINS, AND COVERED WITH A TARP DURING WET
WEATHER OR WHEN RAIN IS FORECAST.

2.  SWEEP STREETS AND OTHER PAVED AREAS DAILY.  DO NOT WASH
DOWN STREETS OR WORK AREAS WITH WATER.

3.  RECYCLE ALL ASPHALT, CONCRETE, AND AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL
FROM DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.

4.  CHECK DUMPSTERS REGULARLY FOR LEAKS AND TO MAKE SURE THEY
DON'T OVERFLOW.  REPAIR OR REPLACE LEAKING DUMPSTERS PROMPTLY.

5.  LABEL ALL HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND HAZARDOUS WASTES (SUCH
AS PESTICIDES, PAINTS, THINNERS, SOLVENTS, FUEL, OIL, AND
ANTIFREEZE) IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY, STATE, AND FEDERAL
REGULATIONS.

6.  STORE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTES IN SECONDARY
CONTAINMENT AND COVER THEM DURING WET WEATHER.

7.  BE SURE TO ARRANGE FOR APPROPRIATE DISPOSAL OF ALL
HAZARDOUS WASTES.

8.  WHEN SPILLS OR LEAKS OCCUR (HAZARDOUS OR NON-HAZARDOUS),
CONTAIN THEM IMMEDIATELY AND BE PARTICULARLY CAREFUL TO
PREVENT LEAKS AND SPILLS FROM REACHING THE GUTTER, STREET, OR
STORM DRAIN.  NEVER WASH SPILLED MATERIAL INTO A GUTTER, STREET,
STORM DRAIN, OR CREEK.

9.  REPORT ANY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SPILLS IMMEDIATELY!  DIAL 911
OR YOUR LOCAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE NUMBER.

10.  DO NOT CLEAN VEHICLES OR EQUIPMENT ON-SITE USING SOAPS,
SOLVENTS, DEGREASERS, STEAM CLEANING EQUIPMENT, ETC.

11.  KEEP EXCAVATED SOIL ON THE SITE WHERE IT IS LEAST LIKELY TO
COLLECT IN THE STREET.  TRANSFER TO DUMP TRUCKS SHOULD TAKE
PLACE ON THE SITE, NOT IN THE STREET.

12.  USE FIBER ROLLS, SILT FENCES, OR OTHER CONTROL MEASURES TO
MINIMIZE THE FLOW OF SILT OFF THE SITE.  SEE SITE PLAN FOR SPECIFIC
MEASURES.

13.  SHOVEL, ABSORB, OR VACUUM SAW-CUT SLURRY AND PICK UP ALL
WASTE AS SOON AS YOU ARE FINISHED IN ONE LOCATION OR AT THE END
OF EACH WORK DAY (WHICHEVER IS SOONER!).

14.  IF SAW CUT SLURRY ENTERS A CATCH BASIN, CLEAN IT UP
IMMEDIATELY.

15.  PROTECT GUTTERS, DITCHES, AND DRAINAGE COURSES WITH
SAND/GRAVEL BAGS, OR EARTHEN BERMS.

16.  BE SURE TO STORE CONCRETE, GROUT, AND MORTAR UNDER COVER
AND AWAY FROM DRAINAGE AREAS.  THESE MATERIALS MUST NEVER
REACH A STORM DRAIN.

17.  WASH OUT CONCRETE EQUIPMENT/TRUCKS OFF-SITE.

18.  NEVER RINSE PAINT BRUSHES OR MATERIALS IN A GUTTER OR
STREET.

19.  PAINT OUT EXCESS WATER-BASED PAINT BEFORE RINSING BRUSHES,
ROLLERS, OR CONTAINERS IN A SINK.  IF YOU CAN'T USE A SINK, DIRECT
WASH WATER TO A DIRT AREA AND SPADE IN IT.

20.  PAINT OUT EXCESS OIL-BASED PAINT BEFORE CLEANING BRUSHES IN
THINNER.

21.  FILTER PAINT THINNERS AND SOLVENTS FOR REUSE WHENEVER
POSSIBLE.  DISPOSE OF OIL-BASED PAINT SLUDGE AND USEABLE
THINNER AS HAZARDOUS WASTE.

DRAWING INDEX

 PROPERTY LINE  55'

UP

PROJECT DATA

CLIENTS:

CHERYL AND RODRIGO UBILLUS
1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA 94708

PROJECT SCOPE:

REAR ADDITION OF 500 SQ. FT. AT THE THIRD FLOOR,
INCLUDING A BEDROOM, BATHROOM, AND WALK-IN CLOSET.

ZONING: R1-H

APN:  60-2493-45

FLOOD ZONE NO

FIRE ZONE 2

LANDSLIDE ZONE YES

FIRE SPRINKLERS NONE

OCCUPANCY: R-3

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B

AVG. LOT SLOPE: 15%

GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1/8" = 1' - 0" AT 24" x 36"

VICINITY MAP

A-0.0 COVER SHEET

A-1.0 DEMO PLANS AND EXISTING ELEVATIONS

A-2.0 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A-3.0 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-4.0 SECTION

ASSESSOR'S MAP

 PROPERTY LINE  41'

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
  
1
0
8
.9

1
'

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
  
1
1
8
.1

9
'

(E) CONC.
DRIVEWAY

(E) CONC. PATIO
495 SF USABLE OPEN SPACE

SHOWN HATCHED GREY

(E) CONC. PATIO
900 SF USABLE OPEN SPACE

SHOWN HATCHED GREY
(E) 8' TALL CMU WALL

(E) 2'-6" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) 4'-0" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALLS

(E) 5'-3"
WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
PATIO

UP

NAME (PRINTED) SIGNATURE OBJECTIONSADDRESS DATE

COMMENTS OR OBJECTIONSHAVE NO

YES/NO

OWNER

I HAVE REVIEWED THE DRAWINGS FOR THE PROPOSED ADDITION AT 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. WHICH INCLUDES  500 SF AT THE SECOND FLOOR.

1444 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1446 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1448 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1452 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1445 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1455 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1476 SUMMIT RD.

1480 SUMMIT RD.

NEIGHBOR'S SIGNATURES

(E) RESIDENCE
1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

ADDITION AT
THIRD FLOOR

ADDITION AT
THIRD FLOOR

(E) RESIDENCE
1445 GRIZZLY
PEAK BLVD.

(E) RESIDENCE
1455 GRIZZLY
PEAK BLVD.

(E) 9'x18'
MIN. CLR.
PARKING AT
FIRST FLOOR
GARAGE

(E) 5' SEWER EASEMENT

(E) 6'-2" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) STONE WALL
APPROX. 9" TALL

(E) STONE WALL
APPROX. 2' TALL

(E) 2'-9" WD.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 1'-8" CONC.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 14" DIA. OAK

(E) ELECT.
METER

(E) 3'-8" HIGH
METAL RAILING

(E) WD. DECK ABOVE
150 SF OF USABLE
OPEN SPACE

(E) PERMEABLE
LANDSCAPED
SURFACE SHOWN
GREEN HATCHED, TYP.

(PLEASE STATE BRIEFLY)
TABULATION FORM

SYMBOL LEGEND

A-4.0

1

X

X

INTERIOR
ELEVATION KEY

AX.X

ALIGN

X

X/A-X.X

AX.X

X

SHEET #

ELEVATION SHOWN
WHERE SHADED

ELEVATION KEY -
DRAWING #

WINDOW SYMBOL,
SEE SCHEDULE

DOOR SYMBOL,
SEE SCHEDULE

DRAWING KEY

DETAIL KEY

ALIGNMENT
SYMBOL

(E) CLEANOUT

(E) WATER METER

(E) GAS METER
BELOW HOUSE

(E) 7'-8" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 7'-10" WD. FENCE HT.

(E) 6'-11" WD. FENCE HT.
ON
6'-2" CONC. RET. WALL

(E) 5'-8" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 4'-6" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 4'-2" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 3'-3" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 2'-4" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 3'-0" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALLS

(E) 5'-10" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 6'-2" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 4'-5" WD.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 1'-11" CONC.
RET. WALL HT.

1/16" = 1' - 0" AT 12" x 18"

(N)
LANDSCAPED

AREA
160 SF SHOWN

HATCHED
GREN

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 13 of 18

Page 74 of 258

80

mjacob
AJ



ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 14 of 18

Page 75 of 258

81

mjacob
AJ



A - 1.0

DEMO PLANS

AND EXISTING

ELEVATIONS

MASTER
BEDROOM 4

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

VESTIBULE

MASTER
BATH

 NO WORKA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

1 FIRST FLOOR

 NO WORKA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

2 SECOND FLOOR

 SHOWING DEMOLITIONA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

3 THIRD FLOOR

GARAGE

LAUNDRY

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM 1

DECK

BATH 1

BATH 2

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

KITCHENDINING

DECK

(E) CONSTRUCTION TO BE
REMOVED SHOWN DASHED; TYP.

METAL RAILING TO BE REMOVED

ROOF DECK

CLOSET

A1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

4 EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

FLAT ROOF

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/16"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

FRONT (NORTH WEST) ELEVATION SIDE (SOUTH WEST) ELEVATION

REAR (SOUTH EAST) ELEVATION SIDE (NORTH EAST) ELEVATION

(E) STAIR
(13) RISERS AT 7 3/4"
(12) TREADS AT 11 1/2"

(E) STAIR
(15) RISERS AT 7 1/4"
(14) TREADS AT 11 1/4"

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 15 of 18

Page 76 of 258

82

mjacob
AJ



A - 2.0

PROPOSED

FLOOR PLAN

AND

ROOF PLAN

WALL TYPE KEY

(E) WALLS TO REMAIN

(N) FULL HEIGHT WALL

FLOOR PLAN NOTES:

1.  THE TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET FROM ANY OPENINGS INTO THE
BUILDING.  DUCT TERMINATIONS (I.E. DRYERS, BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC.) MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS, WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS, OR ATTIC VENTS (PER CMC 504.5)

2.  VERIFY OR INSTALL AUTOMATIC GAS SHUT-OFF VALVES.

3.  ALL NEW HOT WATER SUPPLY PIPING 3/4" OR GREATER SHALL BE INSULATED PER CEC SECTION 150.0(j)2iii.

4.  ALL NEW HOT WATER SUPPLY PIPING FROM THE HEATING SOURCE T O THE KITCHEN FIXTURES SHALL BE INSULATED PER CEC
SECTION 150.0(j)2.vi.

(N) 1-HR CONSTRUCTION

MASTER
BEDROOM 4

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

 AREA OF WORKA2.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 THIRD FLOOR
A2.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 ROOF

(E) 3:12; V.I.F.

(E) ROOF TO REMAIN

(E) 3:12; V.I.F.

(E) ROOF TO REMAIN

(E) .25:12; V.I.F.

(E) FLAT ROOF TO REMAIN

(N) BEDROOM 5
236 SF

(INCLUDING CLOSET)

VESTIBULE

OFFICE

MASTER
BATH 3

(N)  WALK-IN
CLOSET
188 SF

TOILET

BATH 4
76 SF

1/4"  PER FT.

(N) FLAT ROOF

FOOTPRINT SHOWN DASHED BELOW

1/4" PER FT.

(N) FLAT ROOF
CLOSET

DECK

A4.0

2

L

1

2

3

JHG

F

D

C B A

K

(E) CHIMNEY

(N) PAINTED METAL
GUTTER TO MATCH (E)

(E) GUTTER TO REMAIN

(N) RWL, CONNECT TO (E) UNDERGROUND
DRAINAGE SYSTEM; TYP.

(E) RWL CONNECTED TO
UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE SYSTEM

(E) RWL CONNECTED TO
UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE SYSTEM

(E) GUTTER TO REMAIN

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

A4.0

1

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 16 of 18

Page 77 of 258

83

mjacob
AJ



(N
) 

2
0
'-7

 1
/2

" 
H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 R

E
A

R

2
8
'-0

" 
A

LL
O

W
A

B
LE

 A
V
E
R

A
G

E
 H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

U
A

L
E
Q

U
A

L

(E
) 

2
6
'-6

" 
M

A
X

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

1
9
'-1

1
" 
H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 F

R
O

N
T

(N
) 

2
4
'-8

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(N
) 

2
8
'-9

" 
M

A
X

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

2
2
'-6

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

5
'-3

"

2
5
'-6

" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
0
'-8

" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
. 

H
E
IG

H
T

E
Q

(N
) 

2
2
'-1

1
" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

2
0
'-9

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

2
1
'- 

6
" 
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

1
9
'-1

" 
E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 M

A
X

 H
E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

5
'-3

"

E
Q

U
A

L

E
Q

U
A

L

(N
) 

2
1
'-0

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

1
8
'-9

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T2

1
'- 

6
" 
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
0
'- 

8
" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

1
9
'-1

" 
E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 M

A
X

 H
E
IG

H
T

A - 3.0

PROPOSED

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

12

3

A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

3 FRONT (NORTH WEST) ELEVATION
A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

4 SIDE (NORTH EAST) ELEVATION

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 REAR (SOUTH EAST) ELEVATION
A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 SIDE (SOUTH WEST) ELEVATION

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(E) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD(E) COMP. SHINGLE ROOFING; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) STEEL GARAGE DOOR

(E) ALUM. AND STEEL
CABLE RAILING

(N) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) GRADE

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(N) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. AND STEEL CABLE RAILING

(E) GRADE

(E) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) GRADE

(E) WOOD FENCE

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(N) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(E) GRADE

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) WOOD GATE

(E) WOOD FENCE

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 17 of 18

Page 78 of 258

84

mjacob
AJ



(E
) 

7
'-5

 1
/2

"

(E
) 

7
'-9

 1
/4

"

(E
) 

1
0
'-4

 1
/4

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

4
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-8

"

 (
E
) 

2
'-6

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-7

"

 (
N

) 
1
0
'-0

"

(E
) 

0
'-1

1
 1

/4
"

(E
) 

0
'-7

 1
/2

"
(E

) 
1
'-0

 3
/4

"

(E
) 

1
'-1

 3
/4

"

(N
) 

1
'-3

 1
/8

"

 (
E
) 

5
'-3

"

 (
E
) 

4
'-6

"
 (

E
) 

5
'-1

0
"

(E
) 

7
'-9

 1
/4

"
 (

E
) 

8
'-0

"
 (

N
) 

1
0
'-0

"

(E
) 

0
'-7

 1
/2

"
(E

) 
1
'-0

 3
/4

"
(N

) 
1
'-3

 1
/8

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-0

"

(E
) 

1
'-0

 3
/4

"

A - 4.0

SECTION

FACING NORTH EASTA4.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 SECTION 

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

(E) GRADE, TYP.

LIVING ROOM

SLOPED CEILING

GARAGE LAUNDRY

DINING

BEDROOM 5

NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
HATCHED ORANGE

(E) CONC. RETAINING WALL

(E) FOUNDATION V.I.F.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) METAL FENCE

FACING SOUTH EASTA4.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 SECTION

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

BEDROOM 5

DINING KITCHEN

LAUNDRY

BEDROOM 2

CLOSET BATH 4 MASTER BATH 3 TOILET

NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
HATCHED ORANGE

(E) GRADE, TYP.

(E) FOUNDATION V.I.F.

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

ROOF SLOPE: 1/4" PER FOOT

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

ATTACHMENT 1 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 18 of 18

Page 79 of 258

85

mjacob
AJ



4'-0"

SETBACK

4'-0"
SETBACK

(E) 4'-1"

(E) 5'-5"

(E
)

3
9
'-3

"2
0
'-0

" 
S

E
T
B

A
C

K

(E
) 1

7
'-1

1
"

2
0
'-0

" S
E
T
B

A
C

K

5
2
'-3

"

40'-8"

21'-4 1/2"

3
7
'-8

"

1'-3"

2'-10"

2
5
'-5

"
1
2
'-7

 1
/4

"
1
4
'-3

"

15'-4"

1
5
'-7

 3
/4

"

20'-0 3/4" 14'-11 3/4"5'-7 1/2"

12'-5 1/2"

7'-2 1/2"

5
'-3

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

6
'-8

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

8'-0" WD.FENCE HT.
8'-7" WD.FENCE HT.

8'-5" WD.FENCE HT.

5
'-6

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

4
'-4

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

5
'-4

" W
D

.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

5
'-1

0
" W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

6
'-3

" 
W

D
.

FE
N

C
E
 H

T
.

10'-0"

1
6
'-0

"

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

A - 0.0

COVER SHEET

1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE,
2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE, 2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA
MECHANICAL CODE, 2016 EDITION; CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE, 2016
EDITION; 2016 ENERGY CODE; CITY OF BERKELEY ORDINANCES, ALAMEDA
COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES AND
ORDINANCES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS
ON THE SITE PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
FAMILIARIZE HIM/HERSELF WITH VERTICAL AND LATERAL LOAD TRANSFER
THROUGH FRAMING TO FOUNDATION.  DIMENSIONS, FOUNDATION LAYOUT,
FRAMING LAYOUT, LOAD TRANSFER THROUGH NEW AND EXISTING
FRAMING TO FOUNDATION LOCATION OF BEAMS, BRACING, ETC. SHOULD
ALL BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION.  VARIANCE BETWEEN
THE DRAWINGS AND THE ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS, AND ANY ERRORS OR
OMISSIONS FOUND IN THE DRAWINGS, SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.
UPON DISCOVERY OF UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS ON THE SITE, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP THE WORK AND REQUEST ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION FROM THE ARCHITECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE ARCHITECT WHEN THE EXISTING STRUCTURE HAS BEEN EXPOSED.

3. DURING DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS TO CAP ALL ELECTRICAL
OUTLETS, SWITCHES AND UTILITIES PER CODE.  NOTIFY OWNER 24 HOURS
PRIOR TO ANY INTERRUPTION IN POWER OR UTILITIES.

4. BRACE AND SUPPORT EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR WALLS AS NECESSARY
PRIOR TO REMOVAL OF EXISTING STRUCTURE  SO AS TO PREVENT ANY
MOVEMENT OF THE EXISTING STRUCTURE.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR
SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING ADEQUATE SHORING AND
BRACING DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR VERTICAL AND LATERAL LOADS AS
REQUIRED FOR THE PROTECTION OF LIFE AND PROPERTY DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

5. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS ARE TO FACE OF
FINISH UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED;  THEY SHALL HAVE PRECEDENCE
OVER ANY SCALED DIMENSIONS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT USE
SCALED DIMENSIONS.  DETAIL DRAWINGS HAVE PRECEDENCE OVER MORE
GENERAL DRAWINGS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL NEW WORK AGAINST LEAKS
FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE WORK.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING TO
ORIGINAL CONDITION, AT HIS OWN EXPENSE, ANY DAMAGE DONE BY HIM
OR HIS AGENTS TO THE EXISTING BUILDINGS OR GROUNDS.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL PRODUCTS AND MATERIALS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF TRADE STANDARDS,
PUBLISHED BY THE TRADE ASSOCIATIONS.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE PORTIONS OF
TITLE 24 OF THE CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

10. DIMENSIONS, LOCATIONS OF DOORS, PARTITIONS, CABINET WORK
AND SIMILAR FEATURES TO BE VERIFIED ON SITE.

11. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO COORDINATE
LAYOUT OF ALL THE VARIOUS COMPONENTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AS
REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE THE ELECTRICAL LAYOUT INDICATED.
SPECIAL ATTENTION SHOULD BE GIVEN TO FRAMING LAYOUT TO AVOID
CUTTING AND REFRAMING TO ACHIEVE PROPER LOCATIONS FOR FIXTURES.

12. THE ARCHITECT DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCE OR
PROCEDURES OF CONSTRUCTION, OR SAFETY PRECAUTIONS, WHICH ARE
TO REMAIN THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

13. THE ARCHITECT DOES NOT PROVIDE EVALUATION FOR THE EXISTENCE
OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL NOR ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR
MANAGEMENT.  SHOULD THE CONTRACTOR ENCOUNTER ANY HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS IN THE PERFORMANCE OF HIS WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE OWNER IMMEDIATELY AND PROCEED WITH WORK ONLY IN
COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE HAZARDOUS MATERIAL HANDLING
REGULATIONS.

14. DIVERT CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION WASTE AS FOLLOWS:
A. DIVERT ALL CARDBOARD, CONCRETE, ASPHALT AND METALS.
B. DIVERT 25% C&D WASTE, EXCLUDING ALL CARDBOARD,

CONCRETE, ASPHALT, AND METALS.

GENERAL NOTES SITE PLANBEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

1. SAND, DIRT, AND SIMILAR MATERIALS MUST BE STORED AT LEAST 10
FEET FROM CATCH BASINS, AND COVERED WITH A TARP DURING WET
WEATHER OR WHEN RAIN IS FORECAST.

2. SWEEP STREETS AND OTHER PAVED AREAS DAILY.  DO NOT WASH
DOWN STREETS OR WORK AREAS WITH WATER.

3. RECYCLE ALL ASPHALT, CONCRETE, AND AGGREGATE BASE MATERIAL
FROM DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.

4. CHECK DUMPSTERS REGULARLY FOR LEAKS AND TO MAKE SURE THEY
DON'T OVERFLOW.  REPAIR OR REPLACE LEAKING DUMPSTERS PROMPTLY.

5. LABEL ALL HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND HAZARDOUS WASTES (SUCH
AS PESTICIDES, PAINTS, THINNERS, SOLVENTS, FUEL, OIL, AND
ANTIFREEZE) IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY, STATE, AND FEDERAL
REGULATIONS.

6. STORE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WASTES IN SECONDARY
CONTAINMENT AND COVER THEM DURING WET WEATHER.

7. BE SURE TO ARRANGE FOR APPROPRIATE DISPOSAL OF ALL
HAZARDOUS WASTES.

8. WHEN SPILLS OR LEAKS OCCUR (HAZARDOUS OR NON-HAZARDOUS),
CONTAIN THEM IMMEDIATELY AND BE PARTICULARLY CAREFUL TO
PREVENT LEAKS AND SPILLS FROM REACHING THE GUTTER, STREET, OR
STORM DRAIN.  NEVER WASH SPILLED MATERIAL INTO A GUTTER, STREET,
STORM DRAIN, OR CREEK.

9. REPORT ANY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SPILLS IMMEDIATELY!  DIAL 911
OR YOUR LOCAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE NUMBER.

10. DO NOT CLEAN VEHICLES OR EQUIPMENT ON-SITE USING SOAPS,
SOLVENTS, DEGREASERS, STEAM CLEANING EQUIPMENT, ETC.

11. KEEP EXCAVATED SOIL ON THE SITE WHERE IT IS LEAST LIKELY TO
COLLECT IN THE STREET.  TRANSFER TO DUMP TRUCKS SHOULD TAKE
PLACE ON THE SITE, NOT IN THE STREET.

12. USE FIBER ROLLS, SILT FENCES, OR OTHER CONTROL MEASURES TO
MINIMIZE THE FLOW OF SILT OFF THE SITE.  SEE SITE PLAN FOR SPECIFIC
MEASURES.

13. SHOVEL, ABSORB, OR VACUUM SAW-CUT SLURRY AND PICK UP ALL
WASTE AS SOON AS YOU ARE FINISHED IN ONE LOCATION OR AT THE END
OF EACH WORK DAY (WHICHEVER IS SOONER!).

14. IF SAW CUT SLURRY ENTERS A CATCH BASIN, CLEAN IT UP
IMMEDIATELY.

15. PROTECT GUTTERS, DITCHES, AND DRAINAGE COURSES WITH
SAND/GRAVEL BAGS, OR EARTHEN BERMS.

16. BE SURE TO STORE CONCRETE, GROUT, AND MORTAR UNDER COVER
AND AWAY FROM DRAINAGE AREAS.  THESE MATERIALS MUST NEVER
REACH A STORM DRAIN.

17. WASH OUT CONCRETE EQUIPMENT/TRUCKS OFF-SITE.

18. NEVER RINSE PAINT BRUSHES OR MATERIALS IN A GUTTER OR
STREET.

19. PAINT OUT EXCESS WATER-BASED PAINT BEFORE RINSING BRUSHES,
ROLLERS, OR CONTAINERS IN A SINK.  IF YOU CAN'T USE A SINK, DIRECT
WASH WATER TO A DIRT AREA AND SPADE IN IT.

20. PAINT OUT EXCESS OIL-BASED PAINT BEFORE CLEANING BRUSHES IN
THINNER.

21. FILTER PAINT THINNERS AND SOLVENTS FOR REUSE WHENEVER
POSSIBLE.  DISPOSE OF OIL-BASED PAINT SLUDGE AND USEABLE
THINNER AS HAZARDOUS WASTE.

DRAWING INDEX

 PROPERTY LINE  55'

UP

PROJECT DATA

CLIENTS:

CHERYL AND RODRIGO UBILLUS
1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA 94708

PROJECT SCOPE:

REAR ADDITION OF 500 SQ. FT. AT THE THIRD FLOOR,
INCLUDING A BEDROOM, BATHROOM, AND WALK-IN CLOSET.

ZONING: R1-H

APN:  60-2493-45

FLOOD ZONE NO

FIRE ZONE 2

LANDSLIDE ZONE YES

FIRE SPRINKLERS NONE

OCCUPANCY: R-3

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B

AVG. LOT SLOPE: 15%

GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1/8" = 1' - 0" AT 24" x 36"

VICINITY MAP

A-0.0 COVER SHEET

A-1.0 DEMO PLANS AND EXISTING ELEVATIONS

A-2.0 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A-3.0 PROPOSED EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A-4.0 SECTION

ASSESSOR'S MAP

PROPERTY LINE  41'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
  
1
0
8
.9

1
'

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
  
1
1
8
.1

9
'

(E) CONC.
DRIVEWAY

(E) CONC. PATIO
495 SF USABLE OPEN SPACE

SHOWN HATCHED GREY

(E) CONC. PATIO
900 SF USABLE OPEN SPACE

SHOWN HATCHED GREY
(E) 8' TALL CMU WALL

(E) 2'-6" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) 4'-0" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALLS

(E) 5'-3"
WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
PATIO

UP

NAME (PRINTED) SIGNATURE OBJECTIONSADDRESS DATE

COMMENTS OR OBJECTIONSHAVE NO

YES/NO

OWNER

I HAVE REVIEWED THE DRAWINGS FOR THE PROPOSED ADDITION AT 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. WHICH INCLUDES  500 SF AT THE SECOND FLOOR.

1444 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1446 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1448 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1452 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1445 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1455 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

1476 SUMMIT RD.

1480 SUMMIT RD.

NEIGHBOR'S SIGNATURES

(E) RESIDENCE
1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.

ADDITION AT
THIRD FLOOR

ADDITION AT
THIRD FLOOR

(E) RESIDENCE
1445 GRIZZLY
PEAK BLVD.

(E) RESIDENCE
1455 GRIZZLY
PEAK BLVD.

(E) 9'x18'
MIN. CLR.
PARKING AT
FIRST FLOOR
GARAGE

(E) 5' SEWER EASEMENT

(E) 6'-2" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) STONE WALL
APPROX. 9" TALL

(E) STONE WALL
APPROX. 2' TALL

(E) 2'-9" WD.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 1'-8" CONC.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 14" DIA. OAK

(E) ELECT.
METER

(E) 3'-8" HIGH
METAL RAILING

(E) WD. DECK ABOVE
150 SF OF USABLE
OPEN SPACE

(E) PERMEABLE
LANDSCAPED
SURFACE SHOWN
GREEN HATCHED, TYP.

(PLEASE STATE BRIEFLY)
TABULATION FORM

SYMBOL LEGEND

A-4.0

1

X

X

INTERIOR
ELEVATION KEY

AX.X

ALIGN

X

X/A-X.X

AX.X

X

SHEET #

ELEVATION SHOWN
WHERE SHADED

ELEVATION KEY -
DRAWING #

WINDOW SYMBOL,
SEE SCHEDULE

DOOR SYMBOL,
SEE SCHEDULE

DRAWING KEY

DETAIL KEY

ALIGNMENT
SYMBOL

(E) CLEANOUT

(E) WATER METER

(E) GAS METER
BELOW HOUSE

(E) 7'-8" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 7'-10" WD. FENCE HT.

(E) 6'-11" WD. FENCE HT.
ON
6'-2" CONC. RET. WALL

(E) 5'-8" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 4'-6" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 4'-2" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 3'-3" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 2'-4" CONC.
RET. WALL

(E) 3'-0" HIGH CONC.
RETAINING WALLS

(E) 5'-10" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 6'-2" WD.
FENCE HT.

(E) 4'-5" WD.
RET. WALL HT.

(E) 1'-11" CONC.
RET. WALL HT.

1/16" = 1' - 0" AT 12" x 18"

(N)
LANDSCAPED

AREA
160 SF SHOWN

HATCHED
GREN

ATTACHMENT 2 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 6

Page 80 of 258

86



ATTACHMENT 2 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 6

Page 81 of 258

87



A - 1.0

DEMO PLANS

AND EXISTING

ELEVATIONS

MASTER
BEDROOM 4

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

VESTIBULE

MASTER
BATH

 NO WORKA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

1 FIRST FLOOR

 NO WORKA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

2 SECOND FLOOR

 SHOWING DEMOLITIONA1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

3 THIRD FLOOR

GARAGE

LAUNDRY

LIVING ROOM

BEDROOM 1

DECK

BATH 1

BATH 2

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

KITCHENDINING

DECK

(E) CONSTRUCTION TO BE
REMOVED SHOWN DASHED; TYP.

METAL RAILING TO BE REMOVED

ROOF DECK

CLOSET

A1.0 1/8" = 1'- 0"

4 EXISTING EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

FLAT ROOF

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/16"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

FRONT (NORTH WEST) ELEVATION SIDE (SOUTH WEST) ELEVATION

REAR (SOUTH EAST) ELEVATION SIDE (NORTH EAST) ELEVATION

(E) STAIR
(13) RISERS AT 7 3/4"
(12) TREADS AT 11 1/2"

(E) STAIR
(15) RISERS AT 7 1/4"
(14) TREADS AT 11 1/4"

ATTACHMENT 2 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 6

Page 82 of 258

88



A - 2.0

PROPOSED

FLOOR PLAN

AND

ROOF PLAN

WALL TYPE KEY

(E) WALLS TO REMAIN

(N) FULL HEIGHT WALL

FLOOR PLAN NOTES:

1.  THE TERMINATION OF ALL ENVIRONMENTAL AIR DUCTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 3 FEET FROM ANY OPENINGS INTO THE
BUILDING.  DUCT TERMINATIONS (I.E. DRYERS, BATH AND UTILITY FANS, ETC.) MUST BE 3 FEET AWAY FROM DOORS, WINDOWS,
OPENING SKYLIGHTS, OR ATTIC VENTS (PER CMC 504.5)

2.  VERIFY OR INSTALL AUTOMATIC GAS SHUT-OFF VALVES.

3.  ALL NEW HOT WATER SUPPLY PIPING 3/4" OR GREATER SHALL BE INSULATED PER CEC SECTION 150.0(j)2iii.

4.  ALL NEW HOT WATER SUPPLY PIPING FROM THE HEATING SOURCE T O THE KITCHEN FIXTURES SHALL BE INSULATED PER CEC
SECTION 150.0(j)2.vi.

(N) 1-HR CONSTRUCTION

MASTER
BEDROOM 4

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

 AREA OF WORKA2.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 THIRD FLOOR
A2.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 ROOF

(E) 3:12; V.I.F.

(E) ROOF TO REMAIN

(E) 3:12; V.I.F.

(E) ROOF TO REMAIN

(E) .25:12; V.I.F.

(E) FLAT ROOF TO REMAIN

(N) BEDROOM 5
236 SF

(INCLUDING CLOSET)

VESTIBULE

OFFICE

MASTER
BATH 3

(N)  WALK-IN
CLOSET
188 SF

TOILET

BATH 4
76 SF

1/4"  PER FT.

(N) FLAT ROOF

FOOTPRINT SHOWN DASHED BELOW

1/4" PER FT.

(N) FLAT ROOF
CLOSET

DECK

A4.0

2

L

1

2

3

JHG

F

D

C B A

K

(E) CHIMNEY

(N) PAINTED METAL
GUTTER TO MATCH (E)

(E) GUTTER TO REMAIN

(N) RWL, CONNECT TO (E) UNDERGROUND
DRAINAGE SYSTEM; TYP.

(E) RWL CONNECTED TO
UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE SYSTEM

(E) RWL CONNECTED TO
UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE SYSTEM

(E) GUTTER TO REMAIN

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

A4.0

1

ATTACHMENT 2 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 6

Page 83 of 258

89



(N
) 

2
0
'-7

 1
/2

" 
H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 R

E
A

R

2
8
'-0

" 
A

LL
O

W
A

B
LE

 A
V
E
R

A
G

E
 H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

U
A

L
E
Q

U
A

L

(E
) 

2
6
'-6

" 
M

A
X

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

1
9
'-1

1
" 
H

E
IG

H
T
 A

T
 F

R
O

N
T

(N
) 

2
4
'-8

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(N
) 

2
8
'-9

" 
M

A
X

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

2
2
'-6

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

5
'-3

"

2
5
'-6

" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
0
'-8

" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
. 

H
E
IG

H
T

E
Q

(N
) 

2
2
'-1

1
" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

2
0
'-9

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

E
Q

2
1
'- 

6
" 
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

1
9
'-1

" 
E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 M

A
X

 H
E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

5
'-3

"

E
Q

U
A

L

E
Q

U
A

L

(N
) 

2
1
'-0

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T

(E
) 

1
8
'-9

" 
A

V
G

. 
H

E
IG

H
T2

1
'- 

6
" 
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

2
0
'- 

8
" 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E
D

 M
A

X
 H

E
IG

H
T

1
9
'-1

" 
E
X

IS
T
IN

G
 M

A
X

 H
E
IG

H
T

A - 3.0

PROPOSED

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

12

3

A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

3 FRONT (NORTH WEST) ELEVATION
A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

4 SIDE (NORTH EAST) ELEVATION

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 REAR (SOUTH EAST) ELEVATION
A3.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 SIDE (SOUTH WEST) ELEVATION

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(E) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD(E) COMP. SHINGLE ROOFING; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) STEEL GARAGE DOOR

(E) ALUM. AND STEEL
CABLE RAILING

(N) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) GRADE

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(N) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. AND STEEL CABLE RAILING

(E) GRADE

(E) ALUM. CLAD, DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) GRADE

(E) WOOD FENCE

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED
TEMPERED DOOR; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(N) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(E) GRADE

(E) ALUM. CLAD,
DUAL GLAZED WINDOW; TYP.

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) STUCCO, TYP.

(N) PTD. WD. FASCIA BOARD, TYP.

(N) 7/8" 3-COAT STUCCO,
FINISH TO MATCH (E); TYP.

(N) CONSTRUCTION SHOWN HATCHED
INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT 10'-0", TYP.

(E) WOOD GATE

(E) WOOD FENCE

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

ATTACHMENT 2 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 5 of 6

Page 84 of 258

90



(E
) 

7
'-5

 1
/2

"

(E
) 

7
'-9

 1
/4

"

(E
) 

1
0
'-4

 1
/4

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

4
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-0

"

 (
E
) 

3
'-8

"

 (
E
) 

2
'-6

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-7

"

 (
N

) 
1
0
'-0

"

(E
) 

0
'-1

1
 1

/4
"

(E
) 

0
'-7

 1
/2

"
(E

) 
1
'-0

 3
/4

"

(E
) 

1
'-1

 3
/4

"

(N
) 

1
'-3

 1
/8

"

 (
E
) 

5
'-3

"

 (
E
) 

4
'-6

"
 (

E
) 

5
'-1

0
"

(E
) 

7
'-9

 1
/4

"
 (

E
) 

8
'-0

"
 (

N
) 

1
0
'-0

"

(E
) 

0
'-7

 1
/2

"
(E

) 
1
'-0

 3
/4

"
(N

) 
1
'-3

 1
/8

"

 (
E
) 

8
'-0

"

(E
) 

1
'-0

 3
/4

"

A - 4.0

SECTION

FACING NORTH EASTA4.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

2 SECTION 

AUP SUBMITTAL 06/03/2019

UBILLUS
RESIDENCE
ADDITION

1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD.
BERKELEY, CA   94708

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
KDSE
1101 8TH STREET
BERKELEY, CA 94710
510-528-5394

PRELIMINARY XX/XX/16
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 04/13/16
BUILDING SUBMITTAL 06/06/16

AUP RESPONSE 08/12/2019

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

(E) GRADE, TYP.

LIVING ROOM

SLOPED CEILING

GARAGE LAUNDRY

DINING

BEDROOM 5

NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
HATCHED ORANGE

(E) CONC. RETAINING WALL

(E) FOUNDATION V.I.F.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

(E) METAL FENCE

FACING SOUTH EASTA4.0 1/4" = 1'- 0"

1 SECTION

FIRST FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

SECOND FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

THIRD FLOOR
FINISH FLOOR

BEDROOM 5

DINING KITCHEN

LAUNDRY

BEDROOM 2

CLOSET BATH 4 MASTER BATH 3 TOILET

NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
HATCHED ORANGE

(E) GRADE, TYP.

(E) FOUNDATION V.I.F.

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E

ROOF SLOPE: 1/4" PER FOOT

(E) WD. FENCE

(E) CONC.
RETAINING WALL

NOTE: DRAWING SCALE WILL BE 1/8"=1'-0" IF PRINTED TO FIT A 12" X 18" SHEET SIZE

ATTACHMENT 2 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 6 of 6

Page 85 of 258

91



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 32

Page 86 of 258

92



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 32

Page 87 of 258

93



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 32

Page 88 of 258

94



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 32

Page 89 of 258

95



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 5 of 32

Page 90 of 258

96



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 6 of 32

Page 91 of 258

97



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 7 of 32

Page 92 of 258

98



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 8 of 32

Page 93 of 258

99



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 9 of 32

Page 94 of 258

100



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 10 of 32

Page 95 of 258

101



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 11 of 32

Page 96 of 258

102



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 12 of 32

Page 97 of 258

103



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 13 of 32

Page 98 of 258

104



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 14 of 32

Page 99 of 258

105



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 15 of 32

Page 100 of 258

106



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 16 of 32

Page 101 of 258

107



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 17 of 32

Page 102 of 258

108



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 18 of 32

Page 103 of 258

109



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 19 of 32

Page 104 of 258

110



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 20 of 32

Page 105 of 258

111



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 21 of 32

Page 106 of 258

112



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 22 of 32

Page 107 of 258

113



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 23 of 32

Page 108 of 258

114



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 24 of 32

Page 109 of 258

115



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 25 of 32

Page 110 of 258

116



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 26 of 32

Page 111 of 258

117



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 27 of 32

Page 112 of 258

118



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 28 of 32

Page 113 of 258

119



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 29 of 32

Page 114 of 258

120



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 30 of 32

Page 115 of 258

121



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 31 of 32

Page 116 of 258

122



ATTACHMENT 3 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 32 of 32

Page 117 of 258

123



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 26

Page 118 of 258

124



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 26

Page 119 of 258

125



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 26

Page 120 of 258

126



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 26

Page 121 of 258

127



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 5 of 26

Page 122 of 258

128



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 6 of 26

Page 123 of 258

129



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 7 of 26

Page 124 of 258

130



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 8 of 26

Page 125 of 258

131



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 9 of 26

Page 126 of 258

132



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 10 of 26

Page 127 of 258

133



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 11 of 26

Page 128 of 258

134



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 12 of 26

Page 129 of 258

135



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 13 of 26

Page 130 of 258

136



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 14 of 26

Page 131 of 258

137



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 15 of 26

Page 132 of 258

138



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 16 of 26

Page 133 of 258

139



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 17 of 26

Page 134 of 258

140



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 18 of 26

Page 135 of 258

141



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 19 of 26

Page 136 of 258

142



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 20 of 26

Page 137 of 258

143



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 21 of 26

Page 138 of 258

144



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 22 of 26

Page 139 of 258

145



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 23 of 26

Page 140 of 258

146



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 24 of 26

Page 141 of 258

147



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 25 of 26

Page 142 of 258

148



ATTACHMENT 4 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 26 of 26

Page 143 of 258

149



N o t i c e o f

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

D e c i s i o n

Page 1 of 2 
2120 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.7420 

E-mail: planning@ci.berkeley.ca.us

1449 Grizzly Peak Blvd. 
Administrative Use Permit #13-20000050 

To construct a two-story, 556 square foot residential addition that will increase the 
building’s average and maximum heights from 14’ 6” to 18’ 6” and from 17’ to 22’ 
respectively. 

ZONING OFFICER DECISION:  The Zoning Officer of the City of Berkeley has APPROVED, pursuant to 
Zoning Ordinance Section 23B.28.050 and subject to the attached findings and conditions (attachment 
1), and based on the attached approved plans (attachment 2), an Administrative Use Permit pursuant to: 

· Section 23D. 16.070 to construct a residential addition greater than 14’ in average height.

DATE OF DECISION:  May 1, 2014 
APPEAL PERIOD:  May 2, 2014 to May 22, 2014 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Findings and Conditions
2. Project Plans, dated March 5, 2014

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION: 
All application materials for this project are available online at: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications 
and at the Permit Service Center, Second Floor, at 2120 Milvia Street, between 8:30 a.m. and 4 p.m., 
Monday through Friday (closed the 2nd Friday of every month).  Questions about the project should be 
directed to the project planner, Claudine Asbagh, at (510) 981-7424 or casbagh@cityofberkeley.info. 

PUBLIC NOTICE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 23B.28.040 B&C OF THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE: 
This Notice of Administrative Decision was: 
1. Forwarded to the Zoning Adjustments Board and sent to the Main Library;
2. Posted at three visible locations in the vicinity of the subject property and at a bulletin board at the Zoning

counter.
3. Mailed to neighborhood and community organizations for which the project falls within their expressed

area of interest, as set forth in Section 23B.24.060;
4. Mailed to owners and residents of properties abutting and confronting the subject property -or- when for a

major residential additions in the R-1(H) District, or any project within the C-T District, to property owners
and residents in a 300 foot radius.

The validity of the proceedings, however, shall not be affected by the failure of any such property owner, 
occupant or neighborhood or community organization to receive such mailed notice. 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 10

Page 144 of 258

150

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications
http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/html/Berkeley23B/Berkeley23B24/Berkeley23B24060.html#23B.24.060
http://codepublishing.com/ca/berkeley/html/Berkeley23B/Berkeley23B24/Berkeley23B24060.html#23B.24.060


1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 
Page 2 of 2 AUP #13-20000050 
 
TO APPEAL THIS DECISION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 23B.28.060 OF THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE: 
To appeal this decision, you must: 
1. Submit a letter clearly and concisely setting forth the grounds for the appeal, along with the required fee 

(see below) to the Zoning Officer, at the Permit Service Center, 2120 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley. 
2. The appeal and required fee (see below) must be received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the last day of the appeal 

period shown above (if the close of the appeal period falls on a weekend or holiday, then the appeal 
period expires the following business day). 

3. Submit the required fee to the Permit Service Center (see above; checks and money orders must be 
payable to ‘City of Berkeley’): 
a. The basic fee for appeals of a Zoning Officer decision to the Zoning Adjustments Board is $200.  This 

fee may be reduced to $75 if the appeal is signed by persons who lease or own at least 35 percent of 
the parcels or dwelling units within 300 feet of the project site, or at least 20 such persons (not 
including dependent children), whichever is less.   

b. The fee for appeals of affordable housing projects (defined as projects which provide 50 percent or 
more affordable units for households earning 80% or less of Area Median Income) is $500, which 
may not be reduced. 

c. The fee for all appeals by Applicants is $2500.   
If an appeal is filed, the Zoning Officer shall set the matter for consideration by the Zoning Adjustments 
Board.  An appeal stays the issuance and exercise of the AUP until a decision is rendered or the appeal is 
withdrawn.  If no appeal is received, the permit will be issued on the first business day following expiration of 
the appeal period, and the project may proceed at that time. 
 
NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: 
If you object to this decision, the following requirements and restrictions apply: 
1. If you challenge this decision in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 

else raised in an appeal of the decision. 
2. You must appeal to the Zoning Adjustments Board within twenty (20) days after the Notice of Decision of 

the action of the Zoning Officer is mailed.  It is your obligation to notify the Land Use Planning Division in 
writing of your desire to receive a Notice of Decision when it is completed. 

3. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(b) and Government Code Section 65009(c)(1), no 
lawsuit challenging a City decision, as defined by Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(e), regarding a 
use permit, variance or other permit may be filed more than ninety (90) days after the date the decision 
becomes final, as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(b).  Any lawsuit not filed within that 
ninety (90) day period will be barred. 

4. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), notice is hereby given to the applicant that the 90-
day protest period for any fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions included in any permit 
approval begins upon final action by the City, and that any challenge must be filed within this 90-day 
period. 

5. If you believe that this decision or any condition attached to it denies you any reasonable economic use 
of the subject property, was not sufficiently related to a legitimate public purpose, was not sufficiently 
proportional to any impact of the project, or for any other reason constitutes a “taking” of property for 
public use without just compensation under the California or United States Constitutions, your appeal of 
this decision must including the following information: 
A. That this belief is a basis of your appeal. 
B. Why you believe that the decision or condition constitutes a "taking" of property as set forth above. 
C. All evidence and argument in support of your belief that the decision or condition constitutes a “taking” 

as set forth above. 
If you do not do so, you will waive any legal right to claim that your property has been taken, both before 
the City and in court. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 10

Page 145 of 258

151



A t t a c h m e n t  1 

F i n d i n g s  a n d  C o n d i t i o n s 

M A Y  1 ,  2 0 1 4  

 

 
2120 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

E-mail: zab@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

1449 Grizzly Peak Blvd. 
 
Administrative Use Permit #13-20000050 
 
To construct a two-story, 556 square foot residential addition that will 
increase the building’s average and maximum heights from 14’ 6” to 18’ 6” 
and from 17’ to 22’ respectively. 

CEQA FINDINGS 
1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of 
Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines 
(“Existing Facilities”). Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA Guidelines Section 
15300.2 apply, as follows: (a) the site is not located in an environmentally sensitive area, 
(b) there are no cumulative impacts, (c) there are no significant effects, (d) the project is 
not located near a scenic highway, (e) the project site is not located on a hazardous waste 
site pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, and (f) the project will not affect any 
historical resource. 

 
FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL 
2. As required by Section 23B.28.050.A of the Zoning Ordinance, the project, under the 

circumstances of this particular case existing at the time at which the application is 
granted, will not be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, and general 
welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use or 
be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the 
surrounding area or neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City because: 

 The proposed addition would not unreasonably obstruct sunlight, air, or views, 
because it would not cast new shadows on the windows of adjacent residences. The 
addition remains well outside of the required yards, and is located within the general 
footprint of the existing dwelling in an area that is already developed with substantial 
vegetation that also filters views.  

 The project consists of a two story addition that will maintain the flat roof lines of the 
existing dwelling to maintain the views of adjacent neighbors located uphill from the 
site.  

 The subject property satisfies the district standards for maximum residential density, 
maximum main building height, minimum front, rear, and side yard setbacks, 
maximum lot coverage and minimum open space. 

 The project would not increase parking demand and existing parking is provided in 
accordance with the minimum requirement. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 10

Page 146 of 258

152



1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 2 of 5 AUP #13-20000050 

 

File: G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\AUP 13-20000050\DOCUMENT FINALS\2014-05-01_APFC__1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 

The following conditions, as well as all other applicable provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, 
apply to this Permit: 
 

1. Conditions Shall be Printed on Plans 
The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set 
submitted for a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use Permit 
Conditions’. Additional sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not of sufficient 
size to list all of the conditions. The sheet(s) containing the conditions shall be of the 
same size as those sheets containing the construction drawings; 8-1/2” by 11” sheets are 
not acceptable. 

 
2. Applicant Responsible for Compliance with Conditions 

The applicant shall ensure compliance with all of the following conditions, including 
submittal to the project planner of required approval signatures at the times specified.  
Failure to comply with any condition may result in construction being stopped, issuance of 
a citation, and/or modification or revocation of the Use Permit. 

 
3. Uses Approved Deemed to Exclude Other Uses (Section 23B.56.010) 

A. This Permit authorizes only those uses and activities actually proposed in the 
application, and excludes other uses and activities. 

B. Except as expressly specified herein, this Permit terminates all other uses at the 
location subject to it. 

 
4. Modification of Permits (Section 23B.56.020) 

No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is issued is permitted unless the 
Permit is modified by the Zoning Officer, except that the Zoning Officer may approve 
changes that do not expand, intensify, or substantially change the use or building. 

 
5. Plans and Representations Become Conditions (Section 23B.56.030) 

Except as specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, building elevations and/or any 
additional information or representations, whether oral or written, indicating the proposed 
structure or manner of operation submitted with an application or during the approval 
process are deemed conditions of approval. 

 
6. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations (Section 23B.56.040) 

The approved use and/or construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable 
City Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental agencies.  Prior to 
construction, the applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the 
Building and Safety Division, Public Works Department and other affected City divisions 
and departments. 

 
7. Exercised Permit for Use Survives Vacancy of Property (Section 23B.56.080) 

Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, that use is legally 
recognized, even if the property becomes vacant, except as set forth in Standard 
Condition #8, below. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 10

Page 147 of 258

153



1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 3 of 5 AUP #13-20000050 

 

File: G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\AUP 13-20000050\DOCUMENT FINALS\2014-05-01_APFC__1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

8. Exercise and Lapse of Permits (Section 23B.56.100) 
A. A permit for the use of a building or a property is exercised when, if required, a valid 

City business license has been issued, and the permitted use has commenced on the 
property. 

B. A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed exercised when a 
valid City building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has lawfully 
commenced. 

C. A permit may be declared lapsed and of no further force and effect if it is not exercised 
within one year of its issuance, except that permits for construction or alteration of 
structures or buildings may not be declared lapsed if the permittee has:  (1) applied for 
a building permit; or, (2) made substantial good faith efforts to obtain a building permit 
and begin construction, even if a building permit has not been issued and/or 
construction has not begun. 

 
9. Indemnification Agreement 

The applicant shall hold the City of Berkeley and its officers harmless in the event of any 
legal action related to the granting of this Permit, shall cooperate with the City in defense 
of such action, and shall indemnify the City for any award of damages or attorneys fees 
that may result. 

 
ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS IMPOSED BY THE ZONING OFFICER 
Pursuant to BMC 23B.28.050.D, the Zoning Officer attaches the following additional 
conditions to this Permit: 

 
Prior to Submittal of Any Building Permit: 
10. The applicant shall provide the project planner with the name and telephone number of 

the individual empowered to manage construction noise from the project.  The 
individual’s name, telephone number, and responsibility for noise management shall be 
posted at the project site for the duration of construction in a location easily visible to the 
public.  The individual shall record all noise complaints received and actions taken in 
response, and submit written reports of such complaints and actions to the project 
planner on a weekly basis.  Individual Responsible for Noise Management: 

 
 Name:       Phone:        
 

11. The applicant and all persons associated with the project are hereby notified that a 
Transportation Management Permit (TMP) would be required under any of the following 
circumstances: 
 Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks or pedestrian paths 
 Alterations, closures, or blockages to vehicle travel lanes (including bicycle lanes) 
 Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public ROW 
 Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street 
 Significant truck activity. 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 5 of 10

Page 148 of 258

154



1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 4 of 5 AUP #13-20000050 

 

File: G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\AUP 13-20000050\DOCUMENT FINALS\2014-05-01_APFC__1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 2120 Milvia Street or 981-7500 for details 
on obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and accompanying 
dashboard permits). Public Works Traffic Engineering (981-6400) reviews all submitted 
TMP requests. 
 
The TMP may include designation of a specific truck haul route.  Meter heads (if in the 
construction area) shall be removed only by City staff.  Contact the site inspector 72 
hours in advance of required removal so arrangements can be made. 

 
 Prior to Issuance of Any Building Permit: 
12. Drainage plans shall be submitted for approval of the Building & Safety Division and 

Public Works Department, if required. 
 

During Construction: 
13. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 

Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 a.m. and noon on Saturday.  No 
construction-related activity shall occur on Sunday or on any Federal Holiday. 
 

14. If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered and/or broken, the 
contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works Department and the 
Building & Safety Division, and carry out any necessary corrective action to their 
satisfaction. 
 

15. Subject to approval of the Public Works Department, the applicant shall repair any 
damage to public streets and/or sidewalks by construction vehicles traveling to or from 
the project site. 
 

16. All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered at night and 
during rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter in thickness and secured 
to the ground. 
 

17. All active construction areas shall be watered at least twice daily, and all piles of debris, 
soil, sand or other loose materials shall be watered or covered. 
 

18. Trucks hauling debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be covered or required to 
maintain at least two feet of board. 

19. Public streets shall be swept (preferably with water sweepers) of all visible soil material 
carried from the site. 

 
20. The applicant shall establish and maintain drainage patterns that do not adversely affect 

adjacent properties and rights-of-way.   
 
21. The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account surface and subsurface 

waters and underground streams so as not to adversely affect adjacent properties and 
rights-of-way. 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 6 of 10

Page 149 of 258

155



1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BLVD. NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION - Findings and Conditions 
Page 5 of 5 AUP #13-20000050 

 

File: G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\AUP 13-20000050\DOCUMENT FINALS\2014-05-01_APFC__1449 
Grizzly Peak.docx 

22. Any construction during the wet season shall require submittal of a soils report with 
appropriate measures to minimize erosion and landslides, and the developer shall be 
responsible for following these and any other measures required by the Building and 
Safety Division and the Public Works Department. 

 
23. The height and location of the proposed structure, property lines and spot elevations 

shall be verified by a licensed surveyor or engineer on site after foundation forms are 
placed, but before pouring concrete or placing construction material in its permanent 
position.  This verification shall be to the satisfaction of the Zoning Officer. 

 
Prior to Issuance of Occupancy Permit or Final Inspection: 
24. All construction at the subject property shall substantially conform to the approved Use 

Permit drawings or to modifications approved by the Zoning Officer. 
 

25. All landscape, site and architectural improvements shall be completed per the attached 
approved drawings dated March 5, 2014. 

 
At All Times (Operation): 
26. All exterior lighting shall be shielded and directed downward and away from property 

lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the subject property. 
 

27. This permit is subject to review, imposition of additional conditions, or revocation if 
factual complaint is received by the Zoning Officer that the maintenance or operation of 
this establishment is violating any of these or other required conditions or is detrimental 
to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort or general welfare of persons residing or 
working in the neighborhood or is detrimental or injurious to property and improvements 
in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the City. 
 

28. Noise and exterior lighting shall be controlled so as to prevent verified complaints from 
the surrounding neighborhood.  

 
 

 

  
_____________________________________ 

Prepared by: Claudine Asbagh 
For Eric Angstadt, Planning Director 

ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 7 of 10

Page 150 of 258

156



ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 8 of 10

Page 151 of 258

157

mjacob
Claudine



ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 9 of 10

Page 152 of 258

158

mjacob
Claudine



ATTACHMENT 5 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 10 of 10

Page 153 of 258

159

mjacob
Claudine



Z O N I N G 

A D J U S T M E N T S 

B O A R D 

N o t i c e  o f  P u b l i c  H e a r i n g 

Land Use Planning Division 
1947 Center Street, Second Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 

E-mail: zab@cityofberkeley.info 

1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard 
Appeal of Zoning Officer’s Decision to approve Administrative Use Permit 
#ZP2019-0111 to alter a 5,526 square-foot residential parcel by 1) 
constructing a 500 square-foot major residential addition on the third story 
of an existing 2,791 square-foot, three-story single-family dwelling, which 
will increase the average building height and maximum building height by 
approximately 2’; 2) constructing the fifth bedroom on the parcel; and 3) 
constructing a perimeter fence four feet from the rear property line and on 
the side property lines that will be from 6’-2” to 8’-7” in height. 

The Zoning Adjustments Board of the City of Berkeley will hold a public hearing on the above 
matter, pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 23B.32.020, on March 12, 2020 at the Berkeley 
Unified School District meeting room, 1231 Addison Street, (wheelchair accessible).  The 
meeting starts at 7:00 p.m. 

A. Land Use Designations:
 General Plan:  LDR – Low Density Residential
 Zoning:  R-1(H) – Single-Family Residential District, Hillside Overlay

B. Zoning Permits Required:
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section

23D.16.030 to construct a major residential addition (cumulative);
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.050.A to construct a fifth

bedroom on the parcel;
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.16.070.C to construct an

addition which would exceed fourteen feet in average height;
 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23E.96.070.B to construct an

addition which would exceed twenty feet in maximum height for a building located within
the “H” Hillside Overlay District; and

 Administrative Use Permit pursuant to BMC Section 23D.08.060.A.2 to construct a fence
over six feet in height.

C. CEQA Determination:  Categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA
Guidelines (“Existing Facilities”).

D. Parties Involved:
 Applicant Lillian Mitchell, 1708 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, Suite  B, 

Berkeley 
 Property Owner Rodrigo Ubillus, 1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard, Berkeley 

ATTACHMENT 6 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 1 of 4

Page 154 of 258

160



1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Page 2 of 4 Posted FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 

File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_ZAB_ATT 
6_PHN_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx   

 Appellant    Pamela Sihvola, 1476 Summit Road, Berkeley 
 
  

ATTACHMENT 6 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 2 of 4

Page 155 of 258

161



1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Page 3 of 4 Posted FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 

File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_ZAB_ATT 
6_PHN_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx   

Further Information: 
All application materials are available at the Land Use Planning Division, during normal office 
hours or online at: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications.  The Zoning Adjustments 
Board agenda and all agenda materials regarding this project will be available online 6 days 
prior to this meeting at: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentsboard. 
 
Questions about the project should be directed to the project planner, Ashley James, at (510) 
981-7458 or ajames@cityofberkeley.info. 
 
Written comments or a request for a Notice of Decision should be directed to the Zoning 
Adjustments Board Secretary at zab@cityofberkeley.info. 
 
Communication Disclaimer: 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will 
become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  
Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not 
required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or 
committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address 
or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. 
Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee.  
If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include 
that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information. 
 
Communications and Reports: 
Written comments must be directed to the ZAB Secretary at the Land Use Planning Division 
(Attn: ZAB Secretary), or via e-mail to: zab@cityofberkeley.info.  All materials will be made 
available via the Zoning Adjustments Board Agenda page online at this address: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentboard/.   
 
Correspondence received by 8:00 AM, on the Thursday before this public hearing, will 
be provided with the agenda materials provided to the Board.  Note that if you submit a 
document of more than 10 pages, or in color, or with photos, you must provide 15 copies.  
Correspondence received after this deadline will be conveyed to the Board in the following 
manner: 
 Correspondence received by Noon Tuesday, the week of this public hearing, will be 

conveyed to the Board in Supplemental Communications and Reports #1, which is released 
the end of the day Tuesday, two days before the public hearing; 

 Correspondence received by Noon Wednesday, the week of this public hearing, will be 
conveyed to the Board in Supplemental Communications and Reports #2, which is released 
the end of the day Wednesday, one day before the public hearing; or  

 Correspondence received by 3 PM Thursday will be given to the Zoning Adjustment 
Board just prior to the public hearing. 

 
Members of the public may submit written comments themselves at the meeting.  To 
distribute correspondence at the meeting, please provide 15 copies and submit to the 
Zoning Adjustments Board Clerk.  Correspondence received later, and after the meeting, will 
be posted to the web site following the meeting.  

ATTACHMENT 6 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 3 of 4

Page 156 of 258

162

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentsboard
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentsboard
mailto:zab@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:zab@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:zab@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:zab@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentboard/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentboard/


1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Page 4 of 4 Posted FEBRUARY 27, 2020 
 

File:  G:\LANDUSE\Projects by Address\Grizzly Peak\1449\ZP2019-0111\DOCUMENT FINALS\2020-03-12_ZAB\2020-03-12_ZAB_ATT 
6_PHN_1449 Grizzly Peak.docx   

 Accessibility Information / ADA Disclaimer: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please 
contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6342 (V) or 981-6345 (TDD) at least three 
business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this 
meeting. 
 
SB 343 Disclaimer: 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the Land Use Planning Division, during 
regular business hours.   
 
Notice Concerning Your Legal Rights: 
If you object to a decision by the Zoning Adjustments Board regarding a land use permit project, 
the following requirements and restrictions apply: 
1. If you challenge the decision of the City in court, you may be limited to raising only those 

issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the Zoning Adjustments Board at, or prior to, the public 
hearing.  

2. You must appeal to the City Council within fourteen (14) days after the Notice of Decision 
of the action of the Zoning Adjustments Board is mailed.  It is your obligation to notify the 
Land Use Planning Division in writing of your desire to receive a Notice of Decision when it 
is completed. 

3. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(b) and Government Code Section 
65009(c)(1), no lawsuit challenging a City Council decision, as defined by Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.6(e), regarding a use permit, variance or other permit may be filed 
more than ninety (90) days after the date the decision becomes final, as defined in Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1094.6(b).  Any lawsuit not filed within that ninety (90) day period 
will be barred. 

4. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), notice is hereby given to the applicant 
that the 90-day protest period for any fees, dedications, reservations, or other exactions 
included in any permit approval begins upon final action by the City, and that any challenge 
must be filed within this 90-day period. 

5. If you believe that this decision or any condition attached to it denies you any reasonable 
economic use of the subject property, was not sufficiently related to a legitimate public 
purpose, was not sufficiently proportional to any impact of the project, or for any other 
reason constitutes a “taking” of property for public use without just compensation under the 
California or United States Constitutions, the following requirements apply: 
A. That this belief is a basis of your appeal. 
B. Why you believe that the decision or condition constitutes a "taking" of property as set  

forth above.  
C. All evidence and argument in support of your belief that the decision or condition 

constitutes a “taking” as set forth above. 
If you do not do so, you will waive any legal right to claim that your property has been taken, 
both before the City Council and in court. 

 

ATTACHMENT 6 
ZAB 03-12-2020 

Page 4 of 4

Page 157 of 258

163



   ROUGHLY EDITED COPY 

BERKELEY ZAB MEETING 

REMOTE BROADCAST CAPTIONING 

THURSDAY, MARCH 12, 2020 

Services provided by: 

QuickCaption, Inc. 

4927 Arlington Avenue 

Riverside, CA 92504 

Telephone - 951-779-0787 

Fax Number - 951-779-0980 

quickcaption@gmail.com 

www.quickcaption.com 

* * * * * 

This text is being provided in a rough draft format.  

Communication Access Realtime Translation (CART) is provided in 

order to facilitate communication accessibility and may not be 

totally verbatim record of the proceedings. 

* * * * * 

ATTACHMENT 4
Page 158 of 258

164

mailto:quickcaption@gmail.com


 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY, WE'RE GOING TO START. HELLO, EVERYONE. 

WELCOME TO MARCH 12TH, 2020 EDITION OF ZONING AND ADJUSTMENTS 

BOARD. BEFORE WE BEGIN AND DO ROLL CALL AND ALL OF THAT, I JUST 

WANT TO ADDRESS SOME OF THE WAYS THAT WE'RE ADDRESSING THE 

PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS THAT WE'RE FACING. THERE WAS A MEETING TO 

DISCUSS WHETHER OR NOT WE SHOULD EVEN GO FORWARD WITH THIS 

MEETING. BECAUSE OF THE MANY GATHERINGS ARE CANCELED. I DON'T 

BELIEVE THIS IS NONESSENTIAL. WE ARE GOING FORWARD, BUT I WANTED 

EVERYONE TO KNOW THAT THERE ARE CERTAIN PRECAUTIONS THAT WE'RE 

TAKING AND I'M GOING TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO EVERYONE ON THE 

BOARD AND IN THE AUDIENCE TO PROTECT OUR HEALTH. THE FIRST IS 

STAFF HAS WIPED DOWN ALL SURFACES BEFORE THE MEETING. THAT IS 

GOOD. PLEASE WASH YOUR HANDS AND AVOID COFFERING OR TOUCHING 

YOUR FACE. COUGHING INTO YOUR HANDS AND TOUCHING YOUR FACE AS WE 

ALL KNOW. AS YOU CAN SEE, WE'RE SITTING IN A DIFFERENT 

ARRANGEMENT SO WE'RE TRYING TO ENFORCE SOCIAL DISTANCING. WE 

ENCOURAGE YOU ALL IN THE AUDIENCE TO DO THAT AS WELL. WE HAVE 

QUITE A BIT OF SPACE. WE WOULD LIKE TO ENCOURAGE EVERYONE TO USE 

UP THE SPACE AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE. SO ANOTHER RECOMMENDATION THAT 

I THINK IS A GOOD ONE IS THAT WE REDUCE THE NUMBER OF PEOPLE IN 

THE ROOM AT ANY ONE TIME. I WOULD LIKE IT SUGGEST IF YOUR ITEM 

IS NOT DISCUSSED, THAT YOU WAIT OUTSIDE. THE WEATHER IS PRETTY 

NICE OUTSIDE. WE PROMISE WE'LL COME AND GET YOU WHEN WE BEGIN TO 

DISCUSS YOUR ITEM. AND WE'LL TAKE A FIVE-MINUTE BREAK BETWEEN 

Page 159 of 258

165



ITEMS TO MAKE SURE EVERYBODY KNOW WHAT IS GOING ON. WE'RE GOING 

TO TRY TO RUSH THROUGH THE MEETING AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE TO 

MINIMIZE THE AMOUNT OF TIME WE'RE SPENDING, WE'RE GOING TO 

RESPECT THE PROCESS AND EVERYONE WILL GET THEIR TIME. BUT WE ARE 

GOING TO TAKE SOME MEASURES TO SPEED THROUGH THE MEETING AS MUCH 

AS POSSIBLE WHILE STILL MAKING SURE EVERYONE GETS TO SPEAK. 

PLEASE BE RESPECTFUL AND UNDERSTAND IF WE RUSH YOU A LITTLE BIT. 

I'M MOSTLY TALKING TO THE BOARD MEMBERS. WE'RE GOING TO LIMIT 

HOW MUCH YOU GUYS SPEAK. SO, ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT THAT FROM THE 

BOARD? SEEING NONE, OKAY, LET'S DO ROLL CALL AND EX-PARTE.  

 >> THANK YOU. BOARD MEMBER TREGUB.  

 >> I. TREGUB: PRESENT. ON 2150 TO 2817 -- RENA RICKLES 

ATTEMPTED TO MAKE CONTACT WITH ME BUT WE WERE UNABLE TO CONNECT.  

 >> CLERK: BOARD MEMBER CLARKE.  

 >> PRESENT NO EX-PARTE.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER SHEAHAN.  

 >> PRESENT AND I HAVE EX-PARTE FOR THE PROJECT ON GRIZZLY. 

I RECEIVED A CALL FROM THE APPELLANT ASKING ME IF THE MEETING 

WAS STILL ON AND REASSURED IT WAS. HOWEVER, ALSO I WANTED TO 

DISCLOSE PRIOR TO BEING ON ZAB, I WAS ASKED TO ATTEND A MEETING 

WITH THE CURRENT PROJECT PROPONENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE 

PREVIOUS PROJECT DATING 13 AND 14TH. AND I WAS ASKED TO ATTEND A 

MEDIATION MEETING WHICH I DID.  

 >> MEDIATION FOR THE PROJECT BEFORE US THIS EVENING?  

Page 160 of 258

166



 >> 2013-14.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER KIM.  

 >> PRESENT NO EX-PARTE.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER PINKSTON.  

 >> PRESENT NO EX-PARTE.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER LEWIS.  

 >> PRESENT NO EX-PARTE. CAN I GET A COPY OF THE PACKET?  

 >> WE DON'T HAVE AN EXTRA COPY. VICE CHAIR KAHN.  

 >> C. KAHN: PRESENT NO EX-PARTE.  

 >> AND CHAIR O'KEEFE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: PRESENT NO EX-PARTE. SO WE HAVE A QUORUM. 

NOW WE'RE GOING TO OPEN UP THE MEETING WHO IS HERE TO SPEAK ON 

ANYTHING THAT IS NOT ON THE AGENDA. WOULD ANYONE LIKE TO SPEAK? 

SEEING NONE, WE'LL MOVE ON. WE'LL DISCUSS THE AGENDA. THERE IS 

NOTHING ON CONSENT EXCEPT FOR THE MINUTES. SO IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I MOVE THE MINUTES.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MINUTES ARE MOVED. IS THERE A SECOND? IS 

THERE A PROBLEM WITH THE MINUTES?  

 >> SECOND.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: A MOTION AND A SECOND. WE DO A ROLL CALL 

VOTE?  

 >> BOARD MEMBER TREGUB.  

 >> YES.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER CLARKE -- BOARD MEMBER CLARKE ON THE 

Page 161 of 258

167



MINUTES.  

 >> YES.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER SHEAHAN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER OLSON -- BOARD MEMBER KIM.  

 >> ABSTAIN DUE TO ABSENCE.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER PINKSTON.  

 >> ABSTAIN DUE TO ABSENCE.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER KAHN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> AND CHAIR O'KEEFE.  

 >> YES.  

 >> REGARDING 2150. 2176 KITTREDGE, I WONDER IF MY FELLOW 

COMMISSIONERS WOULD ENTERTAIN THE NOTION OF MOVING THAT TO 

CONSENT. I FEEL LIKE WE ASKED FOR CERTAIN CONVERSATIONS WITH THE 

COMMUNITY TO MAKE SURE THAT THEIR NEEDS AND CONCERNS WERE 

ADDRESSED. I THINK THE SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT SATISFIES ME IN THAT 

REGARD AND GIVEN THE CONCERNS OF THE LENGTH OF THIS PROCEEDING 

AND HEALTH CONCERNS, UNLESS SOMEONE HAS AN OBJECTION, I THOUGHT 

WE MIGHT BE ABLE TO MOVE THAT TO CONSENT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I WOULD BE HAPPY TO SECOND THAT IF YOU ARE 

WILLING TO ACCEPT AMENDMENTS SUBMITTED INTO THE RECORD BY I 

BELIEVE THIS IS SABRINA RICKLES.  

Page 162 of 258

168



 >> THE AMENDMENTS ADMITTED TO THE RECORD.  

 >> I. TREGUB: AS A LATE COMMUNICATION.  

 >> WHAT IS -- THE THICKER PACKET?  

 >> I. TREGUB: IT'S TITLED [INDISCERNIBLE] AMENDMENTS TO 

KITTREDGE.  

 >> SO THE THICKER ONE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THAT ONE WE GOT TONIGHT.  

 >> I. TREGUB: YES.  

 >> I DIDN'T GET A CHANCE TO READ THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: LET'S HOPE TO HAVE A SHORT HEARING ON IT.  

 >> THAT WAS JUST AN IDEA.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SOUNDS MORE APPROPRIATE, BUT THANK YOU FOR 

THE IDEA. NO FURTHER AGENDA CHANGES? OKAY.  

 >> CALL THE QUESTION.  

 >> I MOVE WE VOTE ON THE AGENDA.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I DON'T THINK WE HAVE TO VOTE ON AGENDA. 

MOVING ON, WE'LL DO KITTREDGE FIRST. IF YOU'LL GIVE ME A MOMENT, 

I MISPLACED THE SPEAKER CARDS. IS THERE IS A MYSTERY. IS IT OVER 

THERE? I WALKED OVER THERE FOR A SECOND. I HAD THE SPEAKER CARDS 

IN MY HANDS AND QUESTIONED NO IDEA WHAT HAPPENED TOO THEM. WE'LL 

TAKE A BRIEF RECESS. WOULD I LIKE TO REMIND THOSE HERE TO SPEAK 

ON 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK AND 2016 TELEGRAPH, IF YOU COULD WAIT 

OUTSIDE THAT WOULD BE BETTER FOR PUBLIC HEALTH AND WE PROMISE 

WE'LL COME AND GET YOU.  

Page 163 of 258

169



 >> [OFF MIC]  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'LL DO IT AS QUICKLY AS WE CAN. THEY DON'T 

HAVE TO. IT'S A SUGGESTION.  

 >> SHOSHANA, YOU CAN ASK PEOPLE TO COMPLETE ANOTHER CARD.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IT'S HERE SOMEWHERE. I HAVE NO EXPLANATION 

FOR IT. BUT, THAT'S A GOOD IDEA. WE CAN START WITH THE STAFF 

PRESENTATION.  

 >> THE USE PERMIT HEARING IS A CONTINUATION OF 

CONSIDERATION FOR A PROJECT PROPOSAL AT 2150 TO 2176 KITTREDGE 

STREET CALLS FOR A DEMOLITION OF A LOW-RISE SET OF BUILDINGS AND 

A MULTI-STORY BUILDING ON TWO ADJACENT PARCELS CAN WITH A TOTAL 

165 DWELLING UNITS. IT'S ZONED FOR COMMERCIAL -- I'M SORRY, 

UNDER THE GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION IT'S NOT DOWN. PROJECT SITE 

IS LOCATED ON THE CORNER OF KITTREDGE AND FULTON. IT'S A CORNER 

AND A THROUGH LOT KITTREDGE TO THE NORTH BOLTEN TO THE EAST AND 

BANCROFT TO THE SOUTH LOCATED THREE BLOCKS FROM THE DOWNTOWN 

BERKELEY BART STATION. IT WOULD DEMOLISH THE OFFICE BUILDING AS 

WELL AS THE CAR WASH, CONVENIENCE SCORE AND GAS STATION AND 

MERGE THE TWO ABUTTING PARCELS INTO A SINGLE PARCEL AND 

CONSTRUCT A 7-STOREY MIXED USE BUILDING WITH ONE LEVEL OF 

UNDERGROUND PARKING TO ACCOMMODATE 52 VEHICLES AND 89 BICYCLE 

SPACES. THE BUILDING WOULD HAVE -- I'M SORRY SEARCH-STOREY MASS 

ON ALL THREE STREET FRONTAGES. THE GROUND FLOOR WOULD FEATURE AN 

ESTIMATED 21,000 SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL TENANT SPACE. THE 

Page 164 of 258

170



COMMERCIAL USES AT THIS TIME ARE DESIGNATED AS FOOD SERVICES 

ALTHOUGH THAT'S NOT CLEAR THEY'D ALL BE FOOD SERVICES. 

SUBSURFACE PARKING AND GARAGE ENTRANCE WOULD APPEAR ON 

KITTREDGE. SECOND AND 7TH STOREYS WOULD HAVE IS 65 DWELLING 

UNITS. 39 STUDIO APARTMENTS, 48 ONE BEDROOM/ONE BATH APARTMENTS 

AND 78 TWO BEDROOM TWO BATH APARTMENTS A TOTAL OF 1300 -- 13,355 

SQUARE FEET OF USABLE OPEN SPACE FOR RESIDENTIAL COMPONENT WILL 

BE PROVIDED IN PATIOS. TERRACES WITHIN THE PROJECT AND PLANS ARE 

PRESENTED FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION. JUST BRIEFLY I'LL LIST THE USE 

PERMITS. USE PERMIT TO DEMOLISH THE EXISTING BUILDING, USE 

PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE MIXED USE BUILDING TO CONSTRUCT MORE 

THAN 10,000 SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL FLOOR AREA. TO EXCEED 60 

FEET IN HEIGHT BUT NOT EXCEED 75 FEET IN BUILDING HEIGHT TO 

MODIFY THE MINIMUM REQUIRED INTERIOR SIDE YARD SETBACKS FROM 

FIVE FEET IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS TO ZERO FEET AND PAY IN-LIEU 

PARKING INSTEAD OF PROVIDING THE TOTAL REQUIREMENT FOR PARKING 

AT THIS SITE. TO REDUCE THE PUBLICLY ACCESSIBLE USABLE OPEN 

SPACE AND FINALLY TO ESTABLISH A FOOD SERVICE. THIS PROJECT IS 

CATEGORICALLY ATTEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW SUBJECT TO THE 

STREAMLINING INFILL REQUIREMENT OF CEQA. THE PROJECT ANALYSIS 

AND COMPLIANCE WITH ALL STANDARDS WAS PRESENTED IN THE PREVIOUS 

STAFF REPORT TONIGHT. THIS HEARING WAS OPENED ON JANUARY 24TH. 

THERE ARE CONCERNS AFTER LEARNING ABOUT CONCERNS FROM MAKES IT 

WHO SAID THEY DIDN'T HAVE OPPOSITION TO THE PROJECT BUT HAD 

Page 165 of 258

171



CONCERNS ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION FACE. THE ZAB ASKED THE 

APPLICANT TO WORK WITH THE CONCERNED NEIGHBORS TO REACH AN 

AGREEMENT AND UNDERSTANDINGS ABOUT THEIR CONCERN. SINCE THAT 

MEETING ON JANUARY 23RD, THE APPLICANT HAS MET WITH THE FOLKS 

WHO SPOKE THAT NIGHT, ONE OF THEM WAS SUSAN CARLSON, SHE'S A 

RESIDENT PROPERTY OWNER AT THE BUILDING AT 2138 KITTREDGE AS 

WELL AS THE OPERATOR OF THE GREAT CHINA RESTAURANT. WHICH IS A 

BLOCK SOUTH AND THE REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ODD FELLOWS LODGE AT 

2288 FULTON STREET. STAFF ALSO MET WITH THESE FOLKS AND THE 

APPLICANTS. WE CONTINUE TO MEET WITH OUR OTHER STAFF MEMBERS TO 

FOCUS ON THE LIST THAT THE ZAB PRESENTED AND KIND OF TAKE THAT 

LIST DOWN TO EXACTLY WHAT IS THE USE PERMIT AND LAND USE RELATED 

MATTERS AND SAW THAT THE CONCERNS AROUND TEMPORARY IMPACTS 

RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION HAVE BEEN RAISED AND STUDIED AND 

ADDRESSED IN THE CITY'S EXISTING PLANS AND ORDINANCES AND HAS 

BEEN CODIFIED IN OUR STANDARD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR 

PROJECTS OF THIS SIZE AND SCALE IN THE DOWNTOWN. WE'RE GOING TO 

REITERATE OUR RECOMMENDATION FAR APPROVAL AND THE RELIANCE ON 

THE STANDARD CONDITIONS THEREIN. AND JUST WANTED TO MENTION AND 

REMIND THE ZAB THE IMPORTANT THING ABOUT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

IS NOT ONLY THAT THEY REPRESENT INTERAGENCY COORDINATION IN OUR 

ESTABLISHED PRACTICE, BUT THEY'RE ALSO ENFORCEABLE. WE'VE SEEN 

SEVERAL ITERATIONS OF AGREEMENTS AND REQUESTS FROM THE OWNERS 

AND REPRESENTATIVES OF THE ODD FELLOWS LODGE AND WE'RE NOT 

Page 166 of 258

172



CONVINCED THAT ALL OF THOSE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL THAT THEY'RE 

RECOMMENDING WOULD BE ENFORCEABLE SO WE'RE GOING TO STICK WITH 

THE ORIGINAL RECOMMENDATION AND SUGGEST THAT ZAB CONSIDER 

APPROVING THE PROJECT GIVEN THE CLIENTS WITH THE DOWNTOWN AREA 

PLAN AND ALL AT APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND CONDITIONS. THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY QUESTIONS FOR STAFF AT THIS TIME? IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I HAVE TWO QUESTIONS. FIRST, IS THIS PROJECT 

GOING TO BE SUBJECT TO BERKELEY'S NEW BUILDING ELECTRIFICATION 

REQUIREMENTS?  

 >> NO IT WOULDN'T BECAUSE IT WAS PRIOR TO THE DEADLINE THAT 

PROJECTS UNDER THAT ORDINANCE WOULD BE AFFECTED.  

 >> I WILL RESERVE MY QUESTION FOR THE APPLICANT THEN. IF 

THEY WOULD BE WILLING TO VOLUNTARILY AGREE TO THAT. MY SECOND 

QUESTION IS -- AND I RECOGNIZE WE ALL JUST RECEIVED THIS, BUT IT 

WOULD BE EXTREMELY HELPFUL IF YOU COULD HELP US GO THROUGH THEM 

AND LET US KNOW WHICH ONES IN YOUR PROFESSIONAL OPINION WOULD 

NOT BE ENFORCEABLE.  

 >> OKAY. LET ME GET TO THAT.  

 >> WHEN WERE THESE SUBMITTED TO YOU?  

 >> THEY WERE SUBMITTED TO ME AT THE SAME TIME THEY WERE 

SUBMITTED TO YOU.  

 >> YOU HAVE REVIEWED THEM?  

 >> NO, I'VE SEEN EARLIER VERSIONS AND MY UNDERSTANDING IS 

THAT THE TWO PARTIES, THE APPLICANT AND THE REPRESENTATIVE FROM 

Page 167 of 258

173



THE ODD FELLOWS HAVE REACH A PRIVATE AGREEMENT. OUR POSITION IS 

THIS A PRIVATE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TWO PARTIES. THE USE PERMIT 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ARE SPECIFICALLY BETWEEN THE REGULATORY 

AGENT AND THE RECIPIENTS OF THE APPLICANT AND IT'S NOT OPEN TO 

THIRD OR FOURTH PARTIES IN THIS CASE. I'M GOING TO GRAB THAT 

PIECE OF PAPER.  

 >> MAYBE YOU CAN ASK ANOTHER QUESTION WHILE I LOOK FOR THAT 

AND I'LL COME BACK TO YOUR QUESTION, IGOR.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: IS THIS A CONTINUATION? SO THE PUBLIC HEARING 

IS CLOSED.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'RE GOING TO HAVE A NEW HEARING.  

 >> IT'S REQUIRED. WHILE THERE WAS PUBLIC TESTIMONY, ANY 

TIME AN ITEM IS AGENDIZED FOR ACTION, WE'RE REQUIRED TO HAVE A 

PUBLIC HEARING ON THE ITEM.  

 >> WE HAVE TO HAVE A PUBLICATION FROM EVERYONE? OR JUST A 

PUBLIC HEARING?  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'RE LIMITING THE TIME. WE'RE LIMITING 

THEIR TIME AS WE ALWAYS DO.  

 >> T. CLARKE: OKAY.  

 >> SO MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT THESE TEXT REVISIONS ARE 

INTENDED TO IMPEL THE CITY -- OR COMPEL THE CITY TO MEDIATION A 

PRIVATE AGREEMENT. FOR EXAMPLE, THE FIRST SUGGESTION THAT WE ADD 

A CONDITION TO TEXT LANGUAGE AGAINST NUMBER 14, I BELIEVE THE 

Page 168 of 258

174



REQUEST THERE THAT THE APPLICANT HAS MADE IS COVERED BY 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL NUMBER 10. THE TEXT EDIT SUGGESTED FOR A 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL NUMBER 15, IS THIS INTRODUCING A THIRD 

PARTY INTO THIS SET OF CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL AND IT WOULD BE 

DIFFICULT FOR US TO ENFORCE AND WE'D DISCOURAGE THAT. THE TEXT 

REVISION FOR THAT SECTION FALLS UNDER THAT SAME CONCERN. THE 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL SUGGESTED FOR CONDITION NUMBER 

41 -- ACTUALLY I DON'T HAVE ANY STRONG CONCERN ABOUT THAT. THE 

TEXT SUGGESTION FOR CONDITION NUMBER 56 IS ACTUALLY A CONDITION 

FOR PUBLIC WORK STAFF TO ENFORCE AND I'M NOT GOING TO MAKE ANY 

PROMISES ABOUT WHAT THEIR ABLE TO DO OR WILLING TO DO THAT 

INVOLVES A THIRD PARTY. FINALLY JUST THE SUGGESTIONS TO ADD 

LANGUAGE RELATED TO DISCLOSURES IN FUTURE TENANTS IS COVERED 

UNDER 72 IN STAFF'S RECOMMENDATION. AND THE FINAL ONE, I'M NOT 

SURE WHERE THIS WELL IS LOCATED SO I CAN'T COMMENT ON IT AND I 

WOULDN'T SUGGEST TO THE APPLICANT HOW THEY ENGINEERED A PROJECT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: CAN YOU REPEAT THE ONE YOU HAD NO OBJECTION 

TO.  

 >> THERE WAS ONE. THE SUGGESTION FOR EDITS TO CONDITION OF 

APPROVAL NUMBER 41 THAT SAYS ADDITIONALLY TO EXTENT POSSIBLE 

DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD THAT WILL THE FRONT -- SIDEWALK 

IN FRONT OF 2288 FULTON REMAIN UNOBSTRUCTED WHICH IS ONE OF OUR 

PRACTICES ANYWAY.  

 >> SO YOU HAVE NO OBJECTION TO PUTTING THAT IN WRITING. 

Page 169 of 258

175



OKAY, THANK YOU. IGOR, DOES THAT ANSWER YOUR QUESTION?  

 >> I. TREGUB: THAT ANSWERS MY QUESTION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY FURTHER QUESTIONS FOR STAFF? SEEING 

NONE, WE'LL HAVE THE APPLICANT COME UP. AND EVEN -- YOU HAVE 

THREE MINUTES OR YOU HAVE FIVE MINUTES ACTUALLY BUT YOU DON'T 

HAVE IT USE THE WHOLE TIME. YOU'RE WELCOME TO SAY WHATEVER YOU'D 

LIKE TO SAY ABOUT THIS.  

 >> THE ONLY THING -- I'M HEAR TO ANSWER QUESTIONS ON THE 

DESIGN. ONE THING I WANT TO SAY IS I WANT TO THANK STAFF. I 

THINK WITHOUT HAVING A CREDIBLE RESOURCE THAT BOTH THE COMMUNITY 

AND APPLICANT COULD GO TO BE AN HONEST BROKER IN THIS 

DISCUSSION, I COULD HAVE TALKED UNTIL I WAS BLUE IN THE FACE AND 

WOULDN'T HAVE A LOT OF CREDIBILITY. TO HEAR IT FROM STAFF AND TO 

HAVE THAT HAPPEN WAS HELPFUL. I HAD WANTED TO SAY -- I WANTED TO 

SAY THANKS. THE PROJECT IS UNCHANGED FROM WHAT YOU SAW ON THE 

23RD. WE SPENT THE LAST FEW WEEKS TRYING TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE 

NEIGHBORS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY QUESTIONS?  

 >> I. TREGUB: I WANT TO THANK YOU FOR YOUR EFFORTS TO WORK 

WITH AFFECTED NEIGHBORS. AND MY QUESTION TO YOU IS THERE IS SOME 

PROJECTS WE'VE APPROVED THAT HAVE INDICATED A COMMITMENT TO MAKE 

THEMSELVES READY FOR ALL ELECTRIC WHEN FEASIBLE. WOULD YOU BE 

WILLING TO MAKE THE SAME COMMITMENT?  

 >> WHEN YOU SAY "WHEN FEASIBLE" WHAT DOES THAT MEAN FOR THE 

Page 170 of 258

176



OTHER APPLICANTS?  

 >> I. TREGUB: I WOULD HAVE TO DEFER TO STAFF ON THE 

LANGUAGE USED. BUT ESSENTIALLY IT'S THE IDEA -- THERE IS A WAY 

THAT THEY'D SWAP OUT GAS BOILERS AND REPLACE IT WITH ALL 

ELECTRIC HEATING. THAT MEANS ALSO -- I CAN'T REMEMBER IF THEY 

PUT IN INDUCTION STOVES OR WERE JUST EXPRESSED INTEREST IN DOING 

SO. BUT THOSE TWO THINGS WOULD BE GOOD WAYS TO ADHERE TO THE 

SPIRIT IF NOT THE LETTER OF THE NEW BUILDING ELECTRIFICATION 

ORDINANCE THAT WENT INTO EFFECT THIS YEAR.  

 >> I'M HAPPY TO CONSIDER AND ALL ACTIONS WE CAN TAKE TO BE 

BETTER STEWARDS OF THE ENVIRONMENT.  

 >> I. TREGUB: THANK YOU AND WE CAN TALK MORE AFTER THIS 

ABOUT WHAT THAT ENTAILS BUT THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY OTHER QUESTIONS FOR THE APPLICANT? YES, 

DOHEE.  

 >> D. KIM: I WAS WONDERING IN OUR PACKET WE HAVE THE ACCESS 

LICENSE AGREEMENT. AND SOME OTHER CONDITIONS THAT SEEM TO BE 

EVIDENT THAT YOU TALKED WITH THE LODGE PEOPLE AND NEIGHBORS 

NEARBY. IS THAT SOMETHING THAT HAS BEEN DISCUSSED BEFORE THIS 

MEETING WITH ALL THE NEIGHBORS?  

 >> WE MET WITH GREAT CHINA AND WALKED THE SITE WITH HIM AND 

HE FELT COMFORTABLE THAT GIVEN SOME OF THE ITEMS NOW IN THE 

CONDITIONS AND JUST AN E-MAIL AGREEMENT THAT WE HAVE THAT HE 

FELT COMFORTABLE THAT WE WERE GOING TO BE GOOD NEIGHBORS AND HE 

Page 171 of 258

177



SUPPORTS THE PROJECT. WE'VE HAD PROBABLY FOUR OR FIVE IN-PERSON 

MEETINGS WITH RESIDENTS AT 2138 KITTREDGE IN ADDITION TO TEXT 

AND E-MAILS AND GOING BACK AND FORTH AND EXPLAINING WHO IT IS 

THAT WOULD BE IMPACTED AND HOW WE'D MITIGATE CERTAIN IMPACTS TO 

THEM AND TRYING TO SET THEIR MIND AT EASE. WE HAVE AN AGREEMENT 

WITH MEMBERS AND THEY FEEL COMFORTABLE SUPPORTING THE PROJECT. 

WE MET WITH THE LODGE ON SEVERAL OCCASIONS AND COME UP WITH AN 

AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED BETWEEN THE PRIVATE PROJECTS. THE ISSUE 

ON WHETHER OR NOT THE CITY ELECTS TO HAVE THE CONDITIONS 

ACCEPTED INTO ITS DOCUMENTATION IS NOT A DECISION FOR US TO 

MAKE. THE AGREEMENT EXISTS AND IS ENFORCEABLE BETWEEN US. IF YOU 

GUYS WANT TO DO MORE, IT'S UP TO YOU. WE SPENT A LOT OF TIME 

TRYING TO GET THIS TO THE FINISH LINE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: CHARLES.  

 >> C. KAHN: TO UNDERSTAND THE LATE-ARRIVING REQUESTED 

AMENDMENTS FROM THE LODGE ARE ALREADY PART OF A SEPARATE 

AGREEMENT YOU MADE WITH THE LODGE?  

 >> WE HAVE AN EXECUTED AGREEMENT WITH THE LODGE ALREADY.  

 >> C. KAHN: OKAY. THAT'S REASSURING.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. NO MORE QUESTIONS FOR THE APPLICANT? 

YOU CAN HAVE A SEAT. I'M GOING TO GIVE EVERYBODY TWO MINUTES. WE 

HAVE THREE SPEAKER CARDS. I THINK TWO MINUTES IS NORMAL. FIRST 

WE HAVE DAVID KELLOGG AND RITA COOPER.  

 >> PLEASE PROCEED. I WILL TAKE THE CHAIR UNTIL SHOSHANA 

Page 172 of 258

178



RETURNS.  

 >> I WANT TO BRING A COUPLE OF POINTS BEFORE THE BOARD. 

ONE, THIS IS NOT AHA COMPLIANT. I'D LIKE TO PROTECT AGAINST THAT 

BECAUSE IT'S GENERALLY NOT TRUE. THEY CONSIDER -- YOU HAVE YOUR 

BASE HEIGHT LIMIT, 65. YOU CAN ASK FOR A USE PERMIT TO GO UP. IF 

YOU MEET THE OBJECTIVE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE HIGHER USE PERMIT 

YOU'RE PROTECTED FROM THE AHA. WHEN YOU MEET ALL THE OBJECTIVE 

REQUIREMENTS YOU'RE PROTECTED FROM DENIAL UNDER THE AHA. LOOK AT 

THAT CLOSELY. I WOULD NOT SUGGEST THAT. THE OTHER THING I WANT 

TO MENTION IS THIS APPLICATION WAS CEQA COMPLETE ON JANUARY 

23RD. FAIL TOWER TO APPROVE OR DENY WITHIN THE 60 DAYS IS A 

DENIAL UNDER THE AHA. THERE IS STANDING ANY CITIZEN INCLUDING ME 

JUST FOR THE DELAY. LET'S NOT DO THAT AGAIN. THIS CASE IS 

OVERDUE. I HOPE YOU CAN APPROVE IT TODAY AND WE CAN AVOID ANY 

SITUATION WHERE THE AHA COMES IN PLAY. THE DEVELOPER CAN TURN 

AROUND AT ANY INSTANT AND SAYS THIS APPLICATION IS DEEMED 

APPROVED. TAKE IT OUT OF YOUR HANDS. THAT IS SOMETHING WE DON'T 

WANT TO HAPPEN. LET'S GET THESE THINGS APPROVED QUICKLY WITHIN 

THE STATE DEADLINE AND I THINK THAT'S BETTER FOR EVERYONE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: NEXT WE HAVE RITA COOPER.  

 >> GOOD EVENING, CHAIR AND GOOD EVENING BOARD MEMBERS. I 

WANTED TO SAT THAT LITERALLY 45 MINUTES AGO WE EXECUTED THE 

AGREEMENT AND WE'RE HAPPY ABOUT THAT. IT WAS AT THE LAWYERS ON 

BOTH SIDES WORKED VERY, VERY HARD TO MAKE SURE THAT BOTH PARTIES 

Page 173 of 258

179



WERE PROTECTED NOT ONLY LOOKING AT THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE BUT 

BEYOND THAT IN THE FUTURE. AND IT SO HAPPENS THAT MANY OF THE 

ITEMS OF REGARDING THE CITY CHANGES INCORPORATED INTO OUR 

PRIVATE AGREEMENT. I WOULD LIKE TO THANK YOU AND ALSO TO THANK 

MY ATTORNEY RENA RICKLES AND WITH THEIR ATTORNEY BROUGHT US OVER 

THE GOAL LINE ABOUT TWO HOURS AGO. SO THANK YOU VERY MUCH.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU.  

 >> C. KAHN: THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MISS RICKLES.  

 >> GOOD EVENING. YES, ATTORNEYS WERE INVOLVED AND YOU GOT 

IT LATE, IT DID WORK VERY WELL. I THINK BOTH PARTIES WORKED 

COOPERATIVELY. MY PART WAS IS THIS ENFORCEMENT AND ARE YOU OKAY 

WITH THE CONDITIONS THAT WE WANT AS PART OF THE APPROVAL ARE 

ONES TO SOLVE PROBLEMS, NOT TO CREATE THEM. AND I CAN GO THROUGH 

THE SPECIFICALLY THIS IS A 1927 BUILDING WHEN THE LODGE OWNED 

ALL OF THE PROPERTY SO THE BUILDING TOOK LICENSE INTO WHERE THE 

BASEMENT WOULD BE AND AIR VENTS WOULD BE AND WHERE THE SEWERS 

WOULD BE AND NOW HERE COMES A BUILDING THAT IS GOING TO BE ON 

TOP OF IT. ALL WE'RE ASKING IS TO SHORT CIRCUIT THE PROCESS AND 

THE OPPOSING ATTORNEY CONCURS THERE IS A WAY THAT THE LODGE IS 

BROUGHT IN EARLIER. THE NOISE USUAL IS THAT THEY BE ALLOWED TO 

GET IN EARLY AND TO THE CONTRACTORS NOT TO HAVE TO WAIT FOR THE 

NORMAL WAY IT TAKES TO WORK OUT A NOISE ISSUE. NUMBER 150, THAT 

WE ADDED IS THAT THE LODGE BE BROUGHT IN NOT TO MAKE A DECISION 

Page 174 of 258

180



BUT TO BE THERE AND BE IN THE LOOP. WHAT IS AT ISSUE IS THE 

FOUNDATION TO THE LODGE BUILDING. AND THERE WILL BE DECISIONS 

MADE WHETHER THAT FOUNDATION IS IN TROUBLE OR NOT. THE LODGE 

SHOULD BE INFORMED EARLY ON AS TO HERE IS WHAT WE FOUND. IT JUST 

BRINGS THEM IN. ON THE NEXT ONE WHICH IS THE NUMBER 41, WE'RE 

AGREED AND STAFF HAS AGREED IT'S IMPORTANT TO HAVE THAT. THESE 

ARE OPEN BUSINESSES THAT NEED TO SEE THEIR CLIENTS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE HAVE THE AGREEMENT.  

 >> THE REASON YOU GOT THAT LATE WAS NOT TO SABOTAGE ANYONE. 

IT'S JUST MEANT TO SOLVE PROBLEMS SO STAFF IS NOT GETTING A 

MYRIAD OF THINGS COMING TO THEM.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU VERY MUCH. ALL RIGHT THAT'S OUR 

LAST SPEAKER CARD. DOES THE APPLICANT WANT TO COME BACK UP? OKAY 

SO WE'LL CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING. BOARD COMMENTS. DOHEE.  

 >> D. KIM: I THINK BASED ON THE FACT THAT THE PROJECT 

DIDN'T CHANGE AS MUCH OTHER THAN THE THIRD PARTY AGREEMENTS, I 

FEEL COMFORTABLE MOTIONING FOR AN APPROVAL RIGHT NOW. FOR THE 

PROJECT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. THAT'S A MOTION.  

 >> I'LL SECOND.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IGOR HAD HIS HAND UP.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I WOULD LIKE TO SEE IF THE MOVER AND SECONDER 

WOULD BE FRIENDLY TO ADDING CONDITION 41. WHICH IS THE ONE STAFF 

WAS --  

Page 175 of 258

181



 >> NO PROBLEM. I WAS GOING TO SUGGEST THAT MYSELF.  

 >> I. TREGUB: THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: QUESTION -- I'M GOING TO RECOGNIZE MATTHEW 

AND THEN TERESA.  

 >> [OFF MIC]  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: I WANT TO MAKE SURE THAT STAFF IS COMFORTABLE 

WITH THAT LANGUAGE. I DON'T REALLY FEEL COMFORTABLE ADDING 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL THAT STAFF HASN'T HAD A CHANCE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I BELIEVE SHE SAID SHE WAS COMFORTABLE.  

 >> SHE WAS COMFORTABLE WITH THE CONCEPT BUT I DON'T KNOW 

ABOUT THE EXACT WORDING. I WOULD WANT TO HEAR FROM STAFF PRIOR 

TO US VOTING ON THAT.  

 >> THANK YOU FOR THE QUESTION. I AGREE, I CAN'T COMMENT ON 

THE EXACT LANGUAGE, BUT IT IS REDUNDANT. IT'S ALREADY WHAT 

WE -- WHAT OUR PRACTICE IS WITH RESPECT TO KEEPING SIDEWALKS 

OPEN. THAT'S A REQUIREMENT AS A MAINTAINER OF THE PUBLIC 

RIGHT-OF-WAY.  

 >> REDUNDANT, SO I'M NOT SURE WHY WE'D BE ADDING AND 

CHANGING STAFF'S REPORT AND CONDITIONS. I DON'T THINK THAT'S THE 

LAST MINUTE THAT'S THAT IMPORTANT IF YOU CAN MAKE THE CASE, IGOR 

OR WHY YOU THINK THAT LANGUAGE IS SO MUCH BETTER THAN OUR 

STANDARD LANGUAGE, I MIGHT FEEL MORE COMFORTABLE WITH IF. COULD 

YOU DO THAT?  

Page 176 of 258

182



 >> I. TREGUB: SURE IF THE CHAIR --  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: YOU CAN RESPOND.  

 >> I. TREGUB: YOU NOTICED THAT I ONLY WAS AMENABLE AND I 

DON'T THINK WE WOULD HAVE THE VOTES TO ADD ANYTHING THAT STAFF 

WOULD NOT BE AGREEABLE TO. THAT SAID, THIS IS IMPORTANT, SO YES, 

CONDITIONS ARE WRITTEN BY STAFF. THAT SAID, ANY DISCRETIONARY 

REVIEW, WE HAVE THE FULL DISCRETION UNLESS APPEALED TO THE CITY 

COUNCIL TO DETERMINE WHETHER ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS ARE 

WARRANTED.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TERESA --  

 >> I. TREGUB: I'M TRYING TO ANSWER YOUR QUESTIONS AND I'M 

GETTING THERE. I THINK AFTER THE BERKELEY [INDISCERNIBLE] 

DEBACLE AND I WAS ON THE BOARD GUILTY AS CHARGED WHEN WE 

APPROVED SOMETHING WITH CONDITIONS THAT END ENDED UP BEING SO 

UNENFORCEABLE THAT MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC HAVE TO COME TO US OVER 

AND OVER AGAIN BECAUSE THEY WERE NOT GETTING RELIEF THROUGH THE 

ENFORCEMENT PROCESS. SO EVEN IF SOMETHING LOOKS REDUNDANT, I 

THINK IF THESE NEIGHBORS THAT HAVE WORKED VERY CLOSELY WITH THE 

APPLICANT AND HAVE RESOLVED MOST OF THEIR ISSUES VIA A PRIVATE 

AGREEMENT, IF THEY WANT TO INSERT THIS IN HERE, I WOULD LIKE TO 

OR ON THE FIVE OF THEM DOING SO TO AGAIN, AS A STEP TOWARDS 

AVOIDING THE TYPES OF THINGS THAT HAPPENED WITH BERKELEY HONDA.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. ANY FURTHER COMMENT? SHOULD WE CALL 

THE QUESTION? TERESA, YOU CAN VOTE AGAINST IT IF YOU DON'T FEEL 

Page 177 of 258

183



COMFORTABLE. LET'S HAVE A ROLL CALL. MOTION IS TO APPROVE WITH 

THE AMENDED -- YOU WANT TO STAY WITH THE AMENDMENT? WITH THE 

AMENDMENT TO NUMBER 41.  

 >> CLERK: BOARD MEMBER SHEAHAN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> KIM.  

 >> YES.  

 >> CLARKE.  

 >> PASS.  

 >> PINKSTON.  

 >> YES.  

 >> TREGUB.  

 >> YES.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER LEWIS.  

 >> YES. I DON'T THINK MY MICROPHONE IS ON.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: HE SAID YES.  

 >> CLERK: BOARD MEMBER CLARKE.  

 >> YES.  

 >> CLERK: VICE CHAIR KAHN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> AND CHAIR O'KEEFE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SO THE MOTION PASSES. KITTREDGE STREET YOU 

HAVE YOUR USE PERMIT AND IT'S APPEALABLE TO THE CITY COUNCIL. 

YOU CAN GO AND GET OUT OF THIS. NEXT UP WE HAVE AS PROMISED 

Page 178 of 258

184



WE'LL TALK A QUICK BREAK AND MAKE SURE THAT EVERYONE WHO IS HERE 

FOR I BELIEVE GRIZZLY PEAK IS NEXT. EVERYONE HERE FOR GRIZZLY 

PEAK IS IN THE ROOM. SO SOMEONE FROM STAFF IS GOING TO MAKE SURE 

THEY COME IN. WE'LL HAVE A VERY BRIEF RECESS.   

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'LL START THE GRIZZLY PEAK PROJECT IN A 

MOMENT. I WANT TO MAKE SURE EVERYONE WHO WANTS TO SPEAK ON THIS 

HAS FILLED OUT A SPEAKER CARD. I DON'T HAVE ANY. OF COURSE, 

WE'LL HEAR FROM -- WE DON'T HAVE ANYBODY. WE'LL HEAR FROM THE 

APPELLANT AND APPLICANT, IF ANYONE ELSE WOULD LIKE TO SPEAK, LET 

US KNOW NOW. WE'LL START AS SOON AS DOHEE GETS BACK. WE'RE GOING 

TO START. SO THIS IS 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD. WE'LL START 

WITH THE STAFF REPORT. IT'S AN APPEAL, BY THE WAY.  

 >> GOOD EVENING, ZAB MEMBERS. THIS IS AN APPEAL OF THE 

ZONING OFFICER'S DECISION TO APPROVE THE ADMINISTRATIVE USE 

PERMIT BP 2019-0111 THIS IS A 500 SQUARE FOOT RESIDENTIAL 

CONDITION ON A THIRD STOREY OF A 7,091 SQUARE FOOT SINGLE-FAMILY 

DWELLING. INCREASE THE BUILDING HEIGHT BY THREE FEET AND 

CONSTRUCT A FIFTH BEDROOM FROM 6 FEET TWO INCHES TO 8'7" IN 

HEIGHT. THE PROPERTY HAS A LAND USE DESIGNATION OF LOW DENSITY 

RESIDENTIAL AND IS IN THE SINGLE FAMILY HILLSIDE OVERLAY ZONING 

DISTRICT. THE PROJECT REQUIRED A ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT. THE 

FIFTH BEDROOM ON THE PARCEL, ADDITION ABOVE 14 FEET IN AVERAGE 

HEIGHT AND 7 FEET IN MAXIMUM HEIGHT AND CONSTRUCT A FENCE. THE 

CEQA DETERMINATION MADE IT EXEMPT UNDER THE EXISTING FACILITY 

Page 179 of 258

185



SECTION. THE PLAN IS UP ON THE PROJECTOR. THE PROJECT APPROVED 

BY THE ZONING OFFICER EXTENDED THE EXISTING THIRD STOREY YOU'LL 

A SEE AT THE REAR OF THE DWELLING WHICH WAS A FLAT ROOF AND ROOF 

DECK INCREASING THE HEIGHT TO 28 FEET. WHILE THE APPROVED 

PROJECT IS LESS THAN 600 SQUARE FEET WHICH OTHERWISE WOULD BE 

APPROVED WITH A ZONING CERTIFICATE, BECAUSE THERE WAS CUMULATIVE 

SQUARE FOOT ADDED OF 1,056 SQUARE FEET, THIS REQUIRED AN AUP FOR 

A MAJOR ADDITION. THE SITE PLAN SUBMITTED FOR THE APPLICATION ON 

JUNE 19TH SHOWED AN EXISTING APPROXIMATELY 1,390-FOOT SQUARE 

FEET PATIO IN THE BACKYARD SURROUNDED BY A FENCE FROM 6 FEET TO 

8 FEET IN HEIGHT. STAFF DETERMINED THE RETAINING WALL REQUIRED A 

BUILDING PERMIT. SO STAFF REQUESTED THAT THE APPLICANT APPLY FOR 

THE BUILDING PERMIT WHICH THEY DID AND IT'S READY FOR ISSUE. AND 

BEFORE SUBMITTING THE APPLICATION, THE APPLICANT NOTIFIED ALL 

OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS AND THE APPELLANT IS THE PROPERTY OWNER AT 

THE REAR OF THE PROPERTY 1476 SUMMIT ROAD. AND STAFF HAS 

RECEIVED LETTERS FROM THE APPELLANT STATING THEIR CONCERNS JULY 

15TH AND 23RD AND DISCUSSED THOSE CONCERNS WITH THEM. AND THE 

NOTICE OF DECISION WAS POSTED ON NOVEMBER 20TH AND THE APPEAL 

WAS FILED ON DECEMBER 11TH. THE DECISION TO APPROVE THE PERMIT 

WAS BASED ON THE FINDING OF NON-DETRIMENT BECAUSE THE PROJECT 

MET THE R-1(H) DISTRICT STANDARD AND WOULD NOT CREATE 

DETRIMENTAL IMPACTS. THE FENCE WOULD NOT CREATE A SIGNIFICANT 

CHANGES. IT'S LOCATED ON A SLOPING HILLSIDE AND SLOPES TO THE 

Page 180 of 258

186



WEST WHICH IS BELOW THE EXISTING SIGHT LINES TO THE BAY AND 

PROPERTIES TO THE REAR. YOU'LL SEE IN SECTION 5 OF THE STAFF 

REPORT THERE IS A TOTAL OF 8 APPEAL POINTS WHICH I WILL BRIEFLY 

SUMMARIZE AND ARE ANALYZED IN MORE DETAIL IN THE STAFF REPORT. 

THE FIRST APPEAL ISSUE IS THE CONCERN THAT THE PROJECT 

REPRESENTS CONSTRUCTION FROM WHAT WAS APPROVED UNDER PREVIOUS 

AUP IN 2014. THAT THERE WERE NEGOTIATIONS AND MEDIATIONS AMONG 

THE APPLICANT AND NEIGHBORS AT THAT TIME. AND IN RESPONSE TO 

THIS APPEAL POINTS, STAFF BELIEVES THE APPLICATION IS A NEW AND 

DIFFERENT APPLICATION THAN WHAT WAS APPROVED AND CONSTRUCTED 

FIVE YEARS PREVIOUSLY AND THAT THE PROJECT IN 2019 CONFORMS TO 

THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE DISTRICT AND LEAVES THE 

FINDINGS FOR NON-DETRIMENT. APPEAL ISSUE TWO IS BILLION A OAK 

TREE. STAFF CONSULTED WITH AN ARBORIST THAT WE HAVE ON CONTRACT 

AND DETERMINED THAT THE OAK TREE WAS PROTECTED AND OPENED A CODE 

ENFORCEMENT CASE ON JANUARY 29TH. APPEAL ISSUE THREE, CONTENDS 

THERE WAS A CONCRETE STRUCTURE CONSTRUCTED IN THE REAR YARD 

WHICH VIOLATED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE PREVIOUS AUP AND 

DURING LIKE I SAID PREVIOUSLY, THE INITIAL 30-DAY REVIEW STAFF 

DID NOTE THAT THE CONCRETE PATIO AND RETAINING WALL REQUIRED A 

BUILDING PERMIT. THE APPLICANT HAS SINCE APPLIED FOR THE PERMIT 

WHICH IS READY TO ISSUE. APPEAL ISSUE FOUR, QUESTIONS THE 

APPROVAL OF A ROOF DECK FACING THE NEIGHBORS TO THE REAR ALONG 

SUMMIT ROAD WITHOUT INFORMING THE NEIGHBORS IMPACTED. THAT WAS 

Page 181 of 258

187



DONE RESEARCH FOR BUILDING PERMIT ASSOCIATED WITH THE AUP 

APPROVED IN 2014 AND DURING THE BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION 

PROCESS, THE ROOF TERRACE IS CONSIDERED A MINOR CHANGE WHICH 

MEETS STANDARDS CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR MINOR CHANGES THAT 

WOULD NOT EXPAND INTENSIFIER IT CHANGE THE USE OF THE BUILDING 

AND UNDER THE CURRENT AUP APPROVED AT THE END OF 2019, THE ROOF 

TERRACE WOULD BE REPLIES PLACED WITH A NEW BEDROOM AND BATHROOM. 

UNDER APPEAL ISSUE FIVE, THIS CONTENDS THAT THE MEDIATION 

DISCUSSION FOR THE AUP APPROVED IN 2014 INCLUDED A COMMITMENT TO 

CHOOSE A BUILDING COLOR THAT BLENDED WITH THE ENVIRONMENT RATHER 

THAN THE WHITE STUCCO THAT WAS CONSTRUCTED. AND THE APPROVED 

BUILDING PERMIT PLANS UNDER THE AUP DID INDICATE STUCCO ON THE 

SECOND AND THIRD FLOORS, THE CHANGE OF THE MATERIAL FROM WHAT 

WAS DISCUSSED IN MEDIATION IS ALSO CONSIDERED MINOR AGAIN UNDER 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL NUMBER FOUR WHICH WOULD NOT CHANGE THE USE 

OR THE BUILDING. DURING THAT TIME, STAFF DETERMINED THAT THE 

STUCCO WOULD NOT RESULT IN A SIGNIFICANT DETRIMENTAL IMPACT TO 

LIGHTING GLARE. THE REPEAL ISSUE 6, THIS WAS A QUESTION FOR 

STAFF TO CONFIRM WHETHER A BOUNDARY SURVEY WAS COMPLETED TO 

DETERMINE IF THE FENCE WAS CONSTRUCTED OVER A SEWER EASEMENT. 

THE FENCE DOES ENCROACH ON A PORTION OF THE SEWER EASEMENT, BUT 

AFTER TALKING WITH PUBLIC WORK STAFF, THAT FENCE IS APPROVED 

BECAUSE IT CAN BE REMOVED IF THEY NEED TO ACCESS THE SANITARY 

SEWER. UNDER APPEAL ISSUE 7, THIS QUESTIONS THE APPROVAL OF THE 

Page 182 of 258

188



INCREASE IN THE MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT BY 2'3" ABOVE WHAT WAS 

APPROVED UNDER THE AUP IN 2014 WITHOUT A PUBLIC HEARING. AND THE 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THAT PROJECT DO NOT CARRY OVER TO THE 

CURRENT APPROVED PROJECT INCLUDING THE MAXIMUM HEIGHT. AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMITS REQUIRE MULTIPLE FORMS OF 

NEIGHBORHOOD NOTIFICATION AND A PUBLIC HEARING IS NOT REQUIRED 

FOR A APPROVAL OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT. AND APPEAL ISSUE 

NUMBER 8 QUESTIONS APPROVAL OF THE CUMULATIVE ADDITION FROM THE 

ORIGINAL SIZE OF THE HOUSE WHICH IS 1,516 SQUARE FEET TO BE 

APPROVED 3,091 SQUARE FOOT. THIS PROJECT REQUIRES SEVERAL AUPS 

FOR A MAJOR RESIDENTIAL EDITION THAT IS CUMULATIVE AND AUP DOES 

NOT REQUIRE A PUBLIC HEARING. IN CONCLUSION, THE APPEAL POINTS 

FOCUS ON PROCESS, BUT THERE IS NO EVIDENCE TO DISPUTE ANY 

FINDING OF NON-DETRIMENT. BECAUSE OF THE CONSISTENCY WITH THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE AND GENERAL PLAN AND MINIMAL IMPACTS ON 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES WE RECOMMEND APPROVAL AND DISMISSAL OF 

THE APPEAL.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: QUESTIONS FOR STAFF. SEEING NONE. WITH 

APPEALS, WE BRING THE APPELLANT UP FIRST. AND LET THE APPLICANT 

RESPOND. IS THE APPELLANT HERE? HELLO. WE'LL GIVE YOU THREE 

MINUTES.  

 >> I'M SORRY, I WAS ABLE TO -- DO YOU ALL HAVE THIS PACKET? 

IT WAS NOT IN YOUR PACKET.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I HAVE IT. DO DOES EVERYONE HAVE IT?  

Page 183 of 258

189



 >> YOU GOT IT. SO I WOULD LIKE TO -- WE HAVE A FEW PHOTOS 

AND IT HAS BASICALLY MY CURRENT POINTS THAT I WOULD LIKE THIS 

COMMISSION TO ADDRESS. FIRST I WANT TO THANK THE CITY PLANNING 

STAFF AND ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD FOR PROVIDING THIS FIRST 

OPPORTUNITY FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROJECT THAT STARTED OVER 

SIX YEARS AGO. SINCE 2014, THERE HAVE BEEN FOUR SEPARATE STAGES 

OF DEVELOPMENT AND DEMOLITION AT THE SITE. SOME WITH PERMITS, 

SOME WITHOUT PERMITS RESULTING IN AN EXPANSION OF A 1515 SQUARE 

FOOT HOUSE TO THE PROPOSED 3,091 SQUARE FOOT THREE STOREY 

STRUCTURE OVER DOUBLING THE SIZE OF THE ORIGINAL HOUSE. THE 

HISTORY OF THE DEVELOPMENT IS OUTLINED IN OUR LETTER OF JULY 15, 

2019 WHICH IS ALSO PART OF YOUR PACKET. AND THE CONTINUATION OF 

THE MAIN CONCERNS ARE INCLUDED IN THE APPEAL LETTER DATED 

DECEMBER 11TH, 2019. I LIVED IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD FOR OVER A 

QUARTER OF A CENTURY. THE NEIGHBORHOOD WAS BUILT AFTER THE 

SECOND WORLD WAR CONSISTS MAINLY OF MODEST SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES. 

MANY ORIGINALLY BUILT FOR LAB SCIENTISTS AND IT WAS BUILT WITH 

THE G.I. BUILD FUNDS BY HOME-COMING SERVICE MEN. THE 

NEIGHBORHOOD IS NEXT TO FIELD AND REGIONAL PARK. THE HOMES IN 

THE COMMUNITY WERE BUILT RESPECTING NATURE. USING COLORS AND 

MATERIALS REFLECTING THE NATURAL SURROUNDINGS. MANY OF MY 

NEIGHBORS ARE ORIGINAL RESIDENTS NOW IN THEIR LATE 80S AND 90S. 

THE LOTS HERE ARE MOST STANDARD, NARROW 50 X 100 FEET WITH REAR 

YARDS OF GRIZZLY PEAK PROPERTIES ABUTTING THE FRONT YARDS OF 

Page 184 of 258

190



SUMMIT ROAD RESIDENCES. IN ADDITION TO THE TOPOGRAPHY OF THE 

HILLSIDE, INCREASES THE IMPACTS TO SUMMIT ROAD RESIDENTS AS YOU 

CAN SEE IN THE FIRST PHOTO OFFER THE PROPOSED PROJECT. AND IF 

YOU LOOK AT THE FIRST PHOTO, IT ACTUALLY SHOWS THE VERY STARK, 

BRIGHT, WHITE COLOR OF THE STUCCO. THAT IS THE MAIN -- THIS IS A 

VIEW FROM MY MAIN LIVING ROOM, DINING ROOM WINDOW. IT IS 

EXTREMELY DETRIMENTAL TO THE WELL-BEING OF OUR EVERY DAY 

EXISTENCE. SO I AM -- SO THAT IS GOING TO BE ONE OF THE ISSUES 

THAT I HAVE ADDRESSED AT THE END OF THE LETTER. I AM NOT 

OPPOSING THE APPLICANT'S RIGHT TO BUILD THESE TWO NEW 

THIRD-STOREY ADDITIONS, BUT PRESENTING AN OPPORTUNITY TO 

POSITIVELY MITIGATE THE IMPACTS OF THE STRUCTURES HEIGHT, MASS 

AND COLOR AS VIEWED FROM SUMMIT ROAD.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I'LL GIVE YOU ONE MORE MINUTE TO FINISH.  

 >> I JUST HAVE THIS PARAGRAPH. THE STREET VIEW OF 1449 

GRIZZLY PEAK BOULEVARD WHICH IS THE SECOND PHOTO IN THE PACKET. 

THIS IS THE GOOGLE STREET VIEW AND SHOWS THE INCORPORATION AT 

THE FRONT ENTRANCE AND IN THE AREAS UNDER THE OVERHANG OF THE 

ROOF. AS A MITIGATION PROPOSAL, I AM SUBMITTING TWO PHOTOS OF 

AWARD-WINNING HOMES WHERE A WOOD OF SIMILAR COLOR WAS 

INCORPORATED AS THE SIDING OF THE BUILDING'S THIRD FLOOR. PHOTO 

NUMBER FOUR AND PHOTO NUMBER FIVE ARE SHOWING A WHITE STUCCO 

BUILDING WITH AN IPE WOOD COLOR THIRD STOREY SIDING AND 

CLADDING. WITH THE ADDITION OF THE IPE WOOD COLOR SIDING ON THE 

Page 185 of 258

191



THIRD FLOOR ADDITIONS AND WITH THE ROOF COLOR OF SIMILAR TONE, 

THE GLARE OF THE CURRENT STARK WHITE BRIGHT STRUCTURE WOULD BE 

MITIGATED AND THE STRUCTURE WOULD BLEND WITH THE NATURAL SETTING 

WHICH HAD BEEN THE PROMISE OF THE APPLICANT ALREADY AT THE 2014 

MEDIATION MEETING.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: YOUR IT TIME HAS ELAPSED.  

 >> I JUST HAVE WITHIN MORE PARAGRAPH.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE HAVE THE LETTER AND WE READ IT.  

 >> BUT I WANT TO SPEAK.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: NO. I'M SORRY. THIS IS I GAVE YOU THREE 

MINUTES AND GAVE YOU ONE MORE MINUTE AND YOU'VE A EXCEEDED THAT.  

 >> THE LAST PARAGRAPH.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SUMMARIZE IT IN TWO SENTENCE.  

 >> IN CLOSING I'M THANKFUL FOR THE BOARD IN ALLOWING ME TO 

PRESENT THIS AND ASKING THAT YOU ADD THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS TO 

THE AUP AS LISTED. THIRD FLOOR SIDING TO BE IPE WOOD COLOR. ROOF 

COLOR SIMILAR IN TONE TO THE THIRD FLOOR SIDING COLOR AND LASTLY 

THE MAXIMUM CEILING HEIGHT -- THIS IS A COMPROMISE -- TO BE 9 

FEET. AND I WOULD VERY MUCH APPRECIATE YOUR POSITIVE DECISION ON 

THESE THREE CONDITIONS TO BE ADDED TO THE PERMIT. AND THEN I AM 

HAPPY TO DEFEND THE APPLICANT TO GET HIS PERMIT.  

 >> I. TREGUB: CAN I ASK A QUESTION. MAYBE THIS IS FOR THE 

APPLICANT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IS IT FOR THE APPELLANT OR APPLICANT?  

Page 186 of 258

192



 >> I. TREGUB: APPELLANT CLAIMED MAXIMUM CEILING HEIGHT 

SHOULD BE 9 FEET. I WONDER WHAT IT IS NOW.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MAYBE THE APPLICANT CAN ANSWER THAT 

QUESTION. CAN THE APPLICANT COME UP, PLEASE. I WAS GOING TO GIVE 

YOU THREE MINUTES.  

 >> MY NAME IS LILLIAN MITCHELL. I'M THE ARCHITECT FOR MY 

CLIENT THE PROPERTY OWNER. LIKE EVERYONE ELSE, WOULD I LIKE TO 

THANK THE ZAB BOARD AND FOR THE STAFF REPORT. LOOKING AT THIS, 

THE QUESTIONS THAT I HEARD JUST ASKED THAT CEILING LIGHTS AT 9 

FEET. WE HAD TO -- THE ROOF HEIGHT LOOKS A LITTLE HIGHER BECAUSE 

OF TRYING TO MAKE THE ROOF SLOPE WORK OUT ON A FLAT WORK 

SITUATION. OUR INTERIOR CEILING HEIGHT IS AT 9 FEET. I'M HAPPY 

TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: LET'S LET IGOR CONTINUE.  

 >> I. TREGUB: SO THERE ARE TWO OTHER REQUESTS, THE THIRD 

FLOOR SIDING TO BE IPE WOOD COLOR AND THE ROOF COLOR SIMILAR TO 

THE THIRD FLOOR COLOR AND I WANTED TO ASK HOW THE APPLICANT 

FEELS ABOUT THIS.  

 >> WE DID DISCUSS IT. I DON'T KNOW THAT IT'S APPROPRIATE 

FOR IT TO BE A CONDITION OF APPROVAL FROM ZAB. BUT I'M HAPPY TO 

DISCUSS IT WITH MY CLIENT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY.  

 >> I. TREGUB: IS YOUR CLIENT HERE?  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WHY DON'T YOU COME UP AND ANSWER THE 

Page 187 of 258

193



QUESTION.  

 >> I DON'T KNOW IF I WANT TO DO THAT. LAST TIME I DID THAT, 

IT CAUSED ME ISSUES. WHEN THE ORIGINAL PERMIT -- WHEN THE 

ORIGINAL PERMIT WAS APPROVED, I HAD WOOD SIDING WHEN I OPENED 

THE HOME TO MAKE SURE THE FOUNDATION WAS STRONG ENOUGH TO GO UP 

AND PUT THE NEW BEDROOM UPSTAIRS, THERE WERE RATS AND DIFFERENT 

THINGS HAPPENING. I HAD TO REPLACE ALL OF THE SIDING. IF YOU 

LOOK AT THE PHOTO THAT SHE GAVE YOU, I DON'T IMPACT HER VIEW AT 

ALL. ALL THE OTHER NEIGHBORS ARE FINE WITH THE PROJECT. WE GET 

ALONG GREAT. TWO HOUSES DOWN, ANOTHER HOME GOT STUCCO ON THE 

SIDING.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I THINK YOU'VE ANSWERED THE QUESTION.  

 >> I. TREGUB: THE FIRST OF MY QUESTIONS -- THE SECOND ONE 

WAS THE ROOF COLOR. CAN YOU SPEAKING TO THAT.  

 >> IT WAS RECOMMENDED BY A ROOFER. ALL IT IS THE SINGLE 

PLY. THE ROOF IS ALMOST SEMI FLAT. THAT'S JUST -- I CAN'T DIDN'T 

WANT TO PUT TILE OR ANYTHING ELSE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THAT'S YOUR ANSWER.  

 >> I HAVE HUNDREDS OF THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS INTO THE HOME.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU FOR ANSWERING THE QUESTION. I 

THINK IGOR, ARE YOU FINISHED? MATTHEW.  

 >> MY QUESTION WAS THE SAME. YOU HAD.  

 >> T. CLARKE: WHY DO YOU HAVE TO HAVE THE WALLS WHITE?  

 >> FOR THE HEAT.  

Page 188 of 258

194



 >> T. CLARKE: SO YOU'RE ONLY DOING WHITE.  

 >> BECAUSE IF I REPLACE --  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I'M TALKING ABOUT THE PAINT COLOR ON THE 

STUCCO.  

 >> IT'S AN ACRYLIC STUCCO THAT COMES LIKE THAT.  

 >> BUT YOU DIDN'T BUILT IT LIKE THAT.  

 >> THE REST OF THE HOME IS BUILT. SO I WOULD JUST CHANGE 

ONE BEDROOM TO BE ONE COLOR AND THE REST OF THE HOME IS TO 

ANOTHER COLOR.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SO HE'S SAYING NO. YOU'RE SAYING IT'S THE 

COLOR. IT DOESN'T HAVE ANYTHING DO WITH THE RATS. THE COLOR 

DOESN'T HAVE ANYTHING DO WITH THE RATS, DOES IT? I GUESS THE 

WOOD COLOR, SHE REQUESTED IPE WOOD COLOR.  

 >> I HAVE IPE IN THE HOME.  

 >> T. CLARKE: THE OTHER QUESTION I HAVE IS ABOUT THE 

DEMOLITION OF THE CALIFORNIA LIVE OAK AND IF YOU COULD EXPLAIN 

WHY YOU DEMOLISHED THAT WITHOUT A PERMIT.  

 >> THAT WAS THE FAULT OF MY CONTRACTOR. I DO APOLOGIZE AND 

I WILL BE HAPPY DO WHATEVER PENALTY OR WHATEVER I HAVE TO DO 

ABOUT IT. THERE IS NO GREAT RESPONSE FOR IT. I DO HAVE NORTHERLY 

LIVE OAK IN THE FRONT OF THE HOME WHICH I'VE MEASURED AND HAD A 

SURVEYOR MAKE SURE IT'S OKAY TO BE REMOVED OR KEPT THERE. IT WAS 

LARGER THAN THE ONE IN THE BACKYARD. A BERKELEY HILL'S -- MY 

BACKYARD CONSISTS OF THREE RETAINING WALLS BASED OUT OF ROCK. 

Page 189 of 258

195



WHAT I ACTUALLY DID IS I PUT REAL RETAINING WALLS BECAUSE IF YOU 

HAVE A ROCK RETAINING WALL, THEY ALL COME APART AND DIRT COMES 

THROUGH.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IT SOUND LIKE IT'S BEEN REFERRED TO CODE 

ENFORCEMENT SO THAT'S OUTSIDE OF OUR -- DO YOU HAVE ANY MORE 

QUESTIONS FOR HIM? CHARLES.  

 >> C. KAHN: YOU KNOW, WHEN WE HAVE NEIGHBORS HAVE CONCERNS, 

WE TRY TO ACCOMMODATE THEIR CONCERNS IF POSSIBLE. SO IT'S NOT A 

REQUIREMENT, THIS IS AN ADJUSTMENTS BOARD. ACTUALLY LILLIAN, I 

THINK THAT SHEET A-4 SHOWS INTERIOR 10-FOOT CLEAR CEILING HEIGHT 

THAT MIGHT BE IN ERROR. IF YOU'RE WILLING TO HAVE 9-FOOT 

CEILINGS IN THAT BEDROOM, I APPRECIATE THAT YOU'RE ACCOMMODATING 

HALF OF THE REQUEST. ARE YOU WILLING TO HAVE A 9-FOOT CEILING?  

 >> I'M FINE WITH THAT.  

 >> C. KAHN: IT GIVES US A CHANCE TO LET THE APPELLANT KNOW 

THAT WE'VE HEARD THEM AND TRIED TO MEET THEM HALFWAY. THANKS AND 

I APPRECIATE YOUR POINT ABOUT NOT WANTING ONE PART OF THE HOUSE 

A DIFFERENT COLOR FROM THE REST. MAYBE YOU CAN TALK TO YOUR 

NEIGHBOR ABOUT HAVING SOME PLANTING THAT MIGHT HELP WITH THE FEW 

ISSUES. I DON'T KNOW WHAT YOU COULD DO.  

 >> DID I DO THAT. I'VE ACTUALLY ON THE BACK OF THE FENCE I 

PUT EIGHT OR NINE DIFFERENT TREES TO GIVE HER MORE GREENERY. THE 

ISSUE WITH THE FENCE THAT IT'S 8 FEET, IT'S AN ABUTTING FENCE TO 

HER. IT WAS AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN HER AND I.  

Page 190 of 258

196



 >> C. KAHN: I'M NOT TOO CONCERNED ABOUT THAT.  

 >> ANY OTHER QUESTIONS? PATRICK.  

 >> THAT WAS RESOLVED BY CHARLES' QUESTION.  

 >> I WANT TO CONFIRM SOMETHING YOU SAID EARLIER. THE REASON 

WHY YOU'RE GOING WITH THAT COLOR IS BECAUSE IT REFLECT HEAT 

BETTER IN.  

 >> THE ROOFING, THE ROOFER SAID THAT REFLECTS HEAT. I 

DIDN'T WANT IT WHITE TO BE HONEST WITH YOU. MY ROOFER 

RECOMMENDED IT BECAUSE OF THE HEAT REFLECTION AND THE HOME GETS 

THE SUN ALL DAY LONG. THE REST OF THE HOMES THAT. I DON'T FEEL 

LIKE I SHOULD CHANGE THE WHOLE ROOF. IT WOULD BE A $15,000 

ROOFING PROBLEM. IF MY NEIGHBORS CAN HELP ME WITH THAT, GREAT, 

BUT SO FAR THAT HASN'T BEEN THE CASE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. SEEING NO MORE QUESTIONS FOR THE 

APPLICANT, YOU CAN HAVE A SEAT. WE HAVE NO SPEAKER CARDS ON THIS 

ITEM. I WANT TO MAKE SURE NO ONE FROM THE AUDIENCE WOULD LIKE TO 

COME AND SPEAK. THIS IS YOUR CHANCE. WITH THAT, WE'LL CLOSE THE 

PUBLIC HEARING AND BRING IT BACK FOR BOARD COMMENT. TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: YES, I POINT OUT TO PAGE 9 OF 26, THE PHOTO 

OF THE STOREY POLES. IF EVERYBODY COULD GO TO THAT. WHAT TIME IT 

SHOWS IS THE ADDITION. THIS IS THE ADDITION ON HERE. DOES 

EVERYBODY SEE THAT? IT'S ATTACHMENT 4. ATTACHMENT 4, PAGE 9 OF 

26. AND TO WHAT I SEE THERE ARE TWO NEW PIECES OF VOLUME BEING 

ADDED. I SEE THAT THOSE ARE GOING TO -- IF THOSE ARE PAINTED 

Page 191 of 258

197



BRIGHT WHITE, YOU CAN'T EVEN SEE THE REST OF THE BUILDING. THIS 

IS FACING THE BACK OF THE PROPERTY. THIS IS THE VIEW THAT THE 

APPELLANT CAN CONCERNED ABOUT BECAUSE IF THIS IS ALL GOING TO BE 

AS BRIGHT WHITE AS THE OTHER ONE, IT IS PRETTY BRIGHT. I DON'T 

KNOW WHY THIS COULD BE A DIFFERENT COLOR. IT'S IN THE BACKYARD. 

I DON'T BUY THE ARGUMENT YOU CAN'T PAINT IT A DIFFERENT COLOR. 

THAT'S A MINOR REQUEST TO SOFTEN THE BRIGHT COLOR OF THE 

BUILDING. SO I WOULD RECOMMEND THAT THE APPLICANT AGREE TO SOME 

KIND OF MODEST CHANGE IN THE COLOR. IT DOESN'T NEED TO BE IPE 

WOOD BUT IT DOESN'T NEED TO BE AS REFLECTIVE. I UNDERSTAND ABOUT 

THE COOL ROOF. BASICALLY WHAT A COOL ROOF IS USUALLY REFLECTIVE. 

IF YOU DON'T HAVE INSULATION IN YOUR OLDER HOUSE, WHICH HE MAY 

OR MAY NOT, THEN YOU NEED THAT COOL ROOF BECAUSE THAT'S GOING TO 

REFLECT THE HEAT. IN THE NEW CONSTRUCTION WHICH THEY'RE DOING 

HERE, I DON'T SEE WHY THE ROOF COLOR COULDN'T BE LESS THAN A 

WHITE BRIGHT. THERE ARE A COUPLE OF DIFFERENT TYPES OF COOL 

ROOFS THAT YOU CAN USE THAT WOULDN'T BE SO STARK WHITE. THERE IS 

A COUPLE OF DIFFERENT TYPES. THERE ONE THAT IS GRAY AND HAS A 

SIMILAR REFLECTION FACTOR AND I'M SURE THE ARCHITECT CAN FIND 

THAT FOR THE APPLICANT. SO I WOULD RECOMMEND THAT THE APPLICANT 

DO THOSE TWO THINGS. TONE DOWN THE WHITE WITH A DIFFERENT COLOR 

ON THE BACK. WHERE IT'S MOST VISIBLE. I DON'T THINK THAT'S A BIG 

ASK, REALLY.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: CHARLES. THAT'S A MOTION AND A SECOND AND 

Page 192 of 258

198



CHARLES WOULD LIKE TO COMMENT.  

 >> C. KAHN: I THINK YOUR POINTS ARE VALID SO FAR AS THE 

ROOF IS CONCERNED. I THINK THAT ONLY PEOPLE THAT ARE GOING TO 

SEE THE NEW ROOFS ARE THE APPELLANT. I DON'T THINK THE APPLICANT 

WILL SEE THE ROOFS. I THINK GOING WITH A DARKER COLOR THERE THAT 

IS NOT SO GLARING ACCOMMODATES THE APPELLANT WITHOUT NEGATIVELY 

IMPACTING THE APPLICANT. BUT I CAN'T SEE CHANGING THE BUILDING 

MASS BECAUSE THAT WILL BE VISIBLE FROM THEIR BACKYARD AS I SEE 

IT HERE. I THINK THAT IT IS A LITTLE BIT OF A BIG ASK TO TELL 

YOUR NEIGHBOR WHAT COLOR TO PAINT THEIR BUILDING. IF THEY CAN 

SEE IT AND DOESN'T WANT TO DO IT THAT COLOR, IT DOESN'T FEEL 

RIGHT NO ME.  

 >> WE CAN'T CONDITION PAINT COLOR. WHAT I WAS SAYING AS A 

GOOD FAITH GESTURE, A RECOMMENDATION THAT THE APPLICANT DO THAT.  

 >> C. KAHN: I THINK WE COULD PUT IN A THAN THE ROOFING 

MATERIAL BE REVIEWED BY STAFF THAT IT'S BRIGHTNESS NOT BE SO 

SEVERE. CERTAINLY WE CAN MAKE THE REQUEST. I HAVE NO TROUBLE 

WITH THAT.  

 >> CAN I CLARIFY. IS THE MOTION THEN THAT THE CEILING BE 

LOWER THAN 9 FEET THAT THE APPLICANT HAVE A COOL ROOF WITH A 

LESS REFLECTIVE COLOR AND THAT WE SUGGEST THE APPLICANT CONSIDER 

A DIFFERENT PAINT COLOR, IS THAT WHAT THE MAKER AND SECONDER OF 

THE MOTION INTENDED?  

 >> T. CLARKE: I DIDN'T HAVE ANY CONCERN ABOUT THE HEIGHT, 

Page 193 of 258

199



BUT I'M OKAY WITH THE HEIGHT BECAUSE IT SOUNDED LIKE THE 

ARCHITECT WAS OKAY WITH THAT SO I WOULD BE FINE WITH THAT.  

 >> DID YOU WANT THE HEIGHT TO STAY AS IT IS ON THE PLANS?  

 >> T. CLARKE: I WASN'T CONCERNED ABOUT THE HEIGHT. I'M OKAY 

IF EVERYONE ELSE WANTS THAT.  

 >> I WOULD LIKE YOU TO INCLUDE THAT AND I THINK WE CAN CALL 

THE QUESTION AND KEEP MOVING.  

 >> COULD SOMEONE REPEAT THE QUESTION.  

 >> ARCHITECT STOOD THERE AS I RECALL. IT WASN'T A CONCERN 

OF MINE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I'M ON BOARD WITH ALL THREE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: RECOMMENDATION AND LOWERING THE HEIGHT TO 9 

FEET.  

 >> ENSURING THAT IT IS 9 FEET.  

 >> THOUGH CLARIFY, WE ARE A MAKING IT A CONDITION TO BE 9 

FEET, WE'RE REQUESTING NON-BINDING TO LOOK AT CHANGING THE COLOR 

FOR THE ROOF COLOR OR THE FLOOR?  

 >> SECOND STOREY ADDITION, NOT THE ROOF. THIRD STOREY.  

 >> I'M TRYING TO LINE THESE UP. WE'RE SAYING -- SO THE 

SECOND FLOOR WOULD BE -- IS THERE A THIRD PART OF THIS MOTION?  

 >> THAT THE ROOF NOT BE THIS BRIGHT.  

 >> ROOF NOT BE THIS RIGHT AND OTHER COLORS WE'RE ASKING TO 

BE CHANGED.  

Page 194 of 258

200



 >> I'M SAYING JUST THE NEW ROOF. NOT THE OLD ROOF, JUST THE 

NEW. AS HE POINTED OUT, IT'S NOT RIGHT TO HAVE TO REPLACE THE 

ENTIRE ROOF FOR THAT.  

 >> THESE ARE NOT GOING TO AFFECT THE ABILITY TO BE A HEAT 

ISLAND.  

 >> THERE IS ANOTHER COLOR, THERE IS MORE THAN ONE COLOR. 

THERE IS STARK WHITE AND THERE IS KIND OF A LESS WHITE.  

 >> THIS IS A LOT OF DISCUSSION ON SOMETHING WE DON'T HAVE 

ANY CONTROL OVER.  

 >> I THINK I'LL SUPPORT THIS.  

 >> CALL THE QUESTION.  

 >> PATRICK, FURTHER COMMENT?  

 >> I WOULD LIKE TO -- SINCE I WAS THERE IN 2014 DISCUSSING 

THIS PROJECT IN ITS PREVIOUS EXPANSION, AND I HAVE BEEN AT THE 

APPELLANT'S HOUSE. I HAVE SEEN THAT VIEW. AND THIS LITTLE POCKET 

OF THE HILLS IS ACTUALLY QUITE DENSE. SEVERAL HOUSES IN CLOSE 

PROXIMITY. THERE IS A LETTER INCLUDED HERE FROM ANOTHER CLOSE BY 

NEIGHBOR SUPPORTING THE CONCERNS RAISED BY THE APPELLANT. IN THE 

MEDIATION IN 2014, THERE WERE SEVERAL NEIGHBORS SURROUNDING 

NEIGHBORS ALL VOICING THE SAME CONCERNS. PART OF THAT MEDIATION 

WAS A PROMISE BY THE DEVELOPER TO DO DARK COLORS FOR THE 

PROPOSED ADDITION. THAT HELPED LEAD TO A SUCCESSFUL OUTCOME FOR 

THE MEDIATION AND EVENTUALLY THE APPROVAL AT THAT TIME. SO I 

JUST WANT TO ASK THAT THE APPELLANT HONOR THE INTENT OF THE 

Page 195 of 258

201



ORIGINAL MEDIATION BECAUSE THE ISSUES ARE THERE, THEY'RE ALL THE 

SAME. THE IMPACT REALLY IS VERY INTENSE FROM THE APPELLANT'S 

HOUSE AND NOT ONLY THE APPELLANT'S BUT ALSO THE HOUSES TO EITHER 

SIDE OF THE APPELLANT. ALL THE HOUSES UPHILL -- SEVERAL HOUSES 

HAVE A PROMINENT VIEW OF THIS PROJECT. I THINK IT'S A REASONABLE 

ASK ON ALL POINTS BY THE APPELLANT. I'M NOT SURE WHY WE CAN 

ASK -- CONDITION A DARKER ROOF COLOR BUT NOT A DARKER WALL 

COLOR. STAFF. CAN YOU CLARIFY? IS THAT NOT WITHIN OUR PURVIEW?  

 >> SO WHAT I WOULD ASK ZAB TO CONSIDER IS HOW ANY 

CONDITIONS ON THIS PROJECT OR OTHERS RELATES TO THE FINDINGS 

THAT ARE REQUIRED TO BE MADE. FINDINGS AROUND VIEWS, PRIVACY, 

AIR, LIGHT, IF YOU FIND AREAS OF DETRIMENT RELATED TO THOSE THAT 

ARE ANALYZED FOR RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS, THAT'S HOW I WOULD ASK 

THE ZAB TO CONSIDER. THE OTHER PIECE IS THAT WE DO NOT HAVE 

RESIDENTIAL DESIGN GUIDELINES IN THE CITY OF BERKELEY.  

 >> WELL, I WILL COUCH THAT IN TERMS OF DETRIMENT. BASED 

UPON MY FIRST-HAND OBSERVATION OF THIS SITE, I THINK THIS 

INTENSELY BRIGHT WHITE STRUCTURE WHICH IS PROPOSED TO BE 

SIGNIFICANTLY EXPANDED THAT MUCH CLOSER TO THE APPELLANT 

IS -- IT IS A SERIOUS DETRIMENT TO THE VIEW AND CONSEQUENTLY THE 

QUALITY OF LIFE. IT'S EXTREMELY BRIGHT. LOOK AT THE BACKGROUND 

AROUND THE PHOTOGRAPH. TREES ARE DARK, CITY THE IS DARK. THE 

CONTRAST IS INTENSE AND I THINK THAT CONSTITUTES DETRIMENT. I 

DON'T THINK IT'S UNREASONABLE TO ASK FOR A MODERATION IN COLOR.  

Page 196 of 258

202



 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. FURTHER COMMENTS?  

 >> PATRICK AND I OFTEN DON'T AGREE, BUT I DO AGREE WITH HIM 

ON THIS POINT. I THINK THAT THE FINDING VIEWS ARE A 

CONSIDERATION. AND WE USUALLY THINK OF VIEWS IN TERMS OF 

OBSTRUCTION OF VIEWS. BUT A GLARING CONDITION AND IT DOES APPEAR 

TO BE GLARING AND WE HAVE PATRICK'S FIRSTHAND TESTIMONY THAT IT 

IS GLARING. I THINK IT'S GOOD NEIGHBORLINESS AND COURTESY NOT TO 

PERPETUATE THAT. I COULD SUPPORT A REQUEST THAT THE ARCHITECT 

WORK WITH THE APPLICANT AND STAFF TO FIND A COLOR WHICH IS LESS 

GLARING THAN THE WHITE CURRENTLY ON THE BUILDING FOR THESE TWO 

ADDITIONS. JUST FOR THE ADDITION UNLESS THEY WANT TO PAINT THE 

WHOLE THING. THAT'S AT THEIR DISCRETION.  

 >> WHEN YOU SAY REQUEST, DO WE MEAN REQUEST OR CONDITION OF 

THE PERMIT?  

 >> I THINK PATRICK WAS ASKING FOR A CONDITION AND I SUPPORT 

HIM IN THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SO I'D LIKE TO HEAR FROM THE MOTION MAKER 

AND SECONDER WHICH IS IGOR.  

 >> I MADE THE MOTION AND I THINK IT'S OKAY TO CONDITION IT 

IF STAFF THINKS WE CAN. I DIDN'T THINK WE COULD CONDITION A 

PAINT COLOR ON A RESIDENTIAL. I THINK BECAUSE OF THE GLARE, IT 

HAS MORE WEIGHT.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I'M FINE WITH ADDING THAT AS A CONDITION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: DO YOU WANT TO COMMENT?  

Page 197 of 258

203



 >> I WORRY ABOUT A CONDITION THAT STAFF WOULD NEGOTIATE 

SOME AGREEMENT BETWEEN TWO NEIGHBORS THAT HAVEN'T AGREED FOR 10 

YEARS. I'M NOT CONFIDENT IN MY NEGOTIATING SKILLS TO THAT LEVEL. 

SHOULD WE REFER TO ANN BURNS?  

 >> I'M GUESSING DENISE HAS BETTER LANGUAGE ON HOW TO GET TO 

A YES THAT DOESN'T INVOLVE STAFF.  

 >> I THINK THE ARCHITECTS ON THE BOARD SHOULD RECOMMEND A 

COLOR AND LIGHT GRAY AND ASK THE APPLICANT TO PAINT IT THAT 

COLOR. YOU GUYS HAVE AN IDEA OF WHAT WORKS, YOU SHOULD SUGGEST 

IT AND ASK THE APPLICANT AND WE SHOULD WRAP THIS UP.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I LIKE THAT SUGGESTION. ARCHITECT? 

SHOULD -- DOHEE, I'M GOING TO LET THEM THINK ABOUT THIS. 

ARCHITECTS WHAT DO YOU THINK? PATRICK?  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: I THINK THE SUGGESTION FROM THE APPELLANT IN 

THE FIRST PLACE -- THAT'S NOT MY COMMENT, JUST TO POINT THAT 

OUT. IN LIEU OF THAT, YOU COULD VALUE MATCH A COLOR TO THAT. AND 

THAT WOULD GIVE YOU, I THINK, A MEDIUM, WARM BROWN GRAY.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: CHARLES.  

 >> I APPRECIATE SHANNON'S POINT. IT WAS NEBULOUS VERBAL 

DESCRIPTION AND HARD TO ENFORCE. SO -- BUT I'M NOT PREPARED TO 

SPECIFY A PARTICULAR COLOR OR IMPOSE THAT. WHILE I AGREE WITH 

THE PRINCIPLE THAT GOOD NEIGHBORLINESS WOULD DICTATE THAT THIS 

NEIGHBOR TRY TO REDUCE THE GLARE, AND I DON'T THINK YOU SHOULD 

HAVE TO MAKE US MAKE YOU DO IT. I THINK IT'S THE RIGHT THING DO. 

Page 198 of 258

204



I SEE NODDING. THAT IS GOOD TO SEE. SO ARE YOU WILLING TO 

CONSIDER GOING WITH A COLOR THAT IS LESS GLARING WHITE? IT COULD 

BE A PALE GREEN OR GRAY. SOMETHING THAT BLENDS IN WITH THE 

ENVIRONMENT. FOR THOSE TWO PIECES.  

 >> [OFF MIC]  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SIR, WOULD YOU MIND COMING UP -- WE'D LIKE 

TO GET YOUR COMMENTS ON THE RECORD.  

 >> IT'S BEEN DISCUSSED THAT WE WOULD TONE THE STRUCTURE 

DOWN SO IT DOESN'T LOOK LIKE AN ERECT CEMENT BUILDING. WE CAN 

HAVE A COUPLE OF OPTIONS WITH TONING IT DOWN.  

 >> LILLIAN SERVES ON DESIGN REVIEW AND DOES A GREAT JOB. I 

THINK THE NEIGHBOR'S CONCERNS WILL BE IN GOOD HANDS.  

 >> I AGREE.  

 >> NOW IT GOES BACK TO THE ORIGINAL MOTION THAT THIS IS A 

RECOMMENDATION FROM ZAB NOT ENFORCED BY STAFF BUT WITH THE GOOD 

FAITH HOPE THAT THE APPLICANT FOLLOWS THROUGH WITH HIS PLEDGE TO 

WORK WITH THE NEIGHBORS.  

 >> LILLIAN HAS A GOOD SENSE OF COLOR.  

 >> SHE IS TRYING TO HELP ME PUT IPE ON THE WALLS.  

 >> AND I UNDERSTAND IT'S EXPENSIVE.  

 >> YOUR SHIRT IS A HANDSOME COLOR, GO WITH THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU, WE'LL CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING. 

I'M COMFORTABLE WITH THAT. ANY OTHER COMMENTS -- DO WE 

UNDERSTAND WHAT THE MOTION IS? DOHEE WANTED TO SPEAK.  

Page 199 of 258

205



 >> D. KIM: I JUST WANT TO SAY THAT I'M NOT COMFORTABLE WITH 

ADDING A CONDITION OF APPROVAL BECAUSE THE PURVIEW OF ZAB 

DOESN'T SEEM TO BE ADDING THIS ADDITIONAL LEGAL --  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'RE MAKING IT A SUGGESTION.  

 >> I WANT TO MAKE SURE, IS IT A SUGGESTION ONLY?  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: GREAT, SO YOU'RE GOOD. LET'S VOTE. CAN WE 

VOTE?  

 >> I'M SORRY, I WANT TO MAKE SURE. CONDITIONAL OF APPROVAL 

FOR THE 9-FOOT CEILING HEIGHT. CONDITION OF APPROVAL THAT THE 

ROOF BE NOT AS BRIGHT AND A RECOMMENDATION FOR THE CHANGE OF THE 

COLOR OF THE THIRD STOREY ADDITION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU FOR -- THAT'S GOOD TO GET THAT 

CLEAR. CAN WE DO A ROLL CALL.  

 >> PINKSTON.  

 >> YES.  

 >> KIM.  

 >> YES.  

 >> TREGUB.  

 >> YES.  

 >> SHEAHAN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> CLARKE.  

 >> YES.  

 >> LEWIS.  

Page 200 of 258

206



 >> YES.  

 >> VICE CHAIR KAHN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> AND CHAIR O'KEEFE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: YES, THE MOTION PASSES. WE SAID APPROVED, 

BUT IT'S A DENIAL OF THE APPEAL AND UPHOLDING OF THE ORIGINAL 

AUP. THERE WE GO AS MANNED YOU HAVE YOUR AUP AND IT'S APPEALABLE 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL.  

 >> I. TREGUB: JUST TO CLARIFY UPHOLDING OF THE AUP WITH NEW 

CONDITIONS.  

 >> YES AS WE JUST VOTED ON. THANK YOU VERY MUCH. YOU MAY 

GO. NOW WE'LL TAKE A BREAK. IT GOT DARK. KEY WE MAKE SURE THAT 

NO ONE IS OUTSIDE FOR KITTREDGE AND WE'LL TAKE A BRIEF BREAK 

WHILE WE MAKE SURE EVERYONE IS IN THE ROOM -- IT'S TELEGRAPH, I 

APOLOGIZE.  

 >> IS IT FIVE MINUTES OR SHORTER?  

 >> KEVIN: I THINK IT'S -- IT DOESN'T SEEM LIKE --  

 >> I'M FINE WITH SHORTER. I WANTED TO CLARIFY.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I'VE RECEIVED AN E-MAIL THAT BERKELEY 

SCHOOLS ARE CLOSED.  

 >> ARE WE KICKED OUT?  

 >> NO, BUT I DON'T HAVE TO GO TO WORK TOMORROW. IAN, YOU 

HAVE TO GO TO SCHOOL TOMORROW. ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS ARE CLOSED 

STARTING MONDAY. DO YOU NEED CHILD CARE TOMORROW? YOU DO 

Page 201 of 258

207



STARTING MONDAY.  

 >> SO IS IT -- SO IS IT NEXT WEEK THERE WOULD NORMALLY BE 

SCHOOL? I'M CURIOUS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TWO WEEKS OF SCHOOL ARE CANCELED AND OUR 

SPRING BREAK IS MARCH 30TH THROUGH APRIL --  

 >> THAT'S A WEEK LATER THAN UC BERKELEY DOES IT. I THINK 

THAT'S WHEN BCC DOES.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ARE WE READY TO BEGIN? NOT QUITE? JUST TO 

WARN EVERYONE. WE'LL HAVE TO TAKE A CAPTIONER BREAK IN 30 

MINUTES BUT MAYBE WE'LL BE DONE BY THEN. I JUST WANT TO WARRANT 

SPEAKERS, SINCE THERE ARE QUITE A FEW SPEAKER CARDS, I'M GOING 

TO LIMIT YOUR TIME. BUT I'LL BE FLEXIBLE. I SEE THERE ARE FOUR 

PEOPLE THAT WOULD LIKE TO GO TOGETHER. AS I SAID WE'LL TRY TO 

SHORT THEN MEET BUG RESPECT THE PROCESS. I WOULD NORMALLY GIVE 

ONE MINUTE PER PERSON BUT IF YOU WANT TO BE FLEXIBLE. NORMALLY 

WE DON'T DO CEDING TIME BUT WE'LL DO THAT TO MAKE UP FOR THE ONE 

MINUTE. IF YOU HAVE A TEAM THAT YOU WANT TO GO TOGETHER, YOU CAN 

HAVE FOUR MINUTES IF THERE ARE FOUR. FIGURE THAT OUT WHILE WE'RE 

DOING STAFF REPORT. OKAY. ARE WE READY?  

 >> SO THE PROJECT IS 2650 TELEGRAPH AVENUE WHICH IS USE 

PERMIT ZP2019-0070 WHICH WOULD DEMOLISH A CURRENT BUILDING TO 

CONSTRUCT THE 34,249 SQUARE FEET MIXED USE BUILDING WITH 49 

DWELLING UNITS WHICH ARE FOUR LOW INCOME. COMMERCIAL SPACE ON 

THE GROUND LEVEL, 4,051 USABLE OPEN SPACE. 50 BICYCLE PARKING 

Page 202 of 258

208



SPACES AND 20 VEHICULAR PARKING SPACES AT THE GROUND LEVEL. THE 

LAND USE DESIGNATION IS AVENUE COMMERCIAL IN THE GENERAL 

COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT. THE ZONING PERMITS REQUIRED ARE USE 

PERMITS TO DEMOLISH A COMMERCIAL BUILDING TO CONSTRUCT NEW FLOOR 

AREA OF 5,000 SQUARE FEET OR MORE AND ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT 

TO ALLOW ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS TO EXCEED THE HEIGHT LIMIT. THIS 

QUALIFIES FOR A STATE DENSITY BONUS AND THERE ARE THREE WAIVERS 

AND ONE CONCESSION. WAIVER TO EXCEED THE HEIGHT LIMIT TO BE 55 

FEET 6 INCHES WHERE 40 FEET IS THE LIMIT. TO REDUCE THE PARKING 

LIMIT. TO EXCEED THE MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA RATIO TO BE 3.15. THE 

CONCESSION IS TO DECREASE THE USABLE OPEN SPACE BY ELIMINATING 

THE ROOF DECK PROVIDING 4,051 SQUARE FEET WHERE 5,000 IS THE 

MINIMUM. THE CEQA IS A CATEGORICAL EXCEPTION UNDER 15332 UNDER 

INFILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS. THIS PROJECT WAS HEARD BY ZAB AS A 

PREVIEW IN DECEMBER AND DRC ALSO IN DECEMBER. REVISED 

APPLICATION WAS SUBMITTED ON JANUARY 21ST. ON FEBRUARY 20TH, THE 

DRC CONDUCTED THEIR PRELIMINARY REVIEW WITH A FAVORABLE 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE ZAB INCLUDING CONDITIONS FOR FINAL DESIGN 

REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION WHICH ARE ATTACHMENT 

SEVEN TO THE STAFF REPORT. THE PROJECT COMPLIES WITH ALL 

APPLICABLE AND OBJECTIVE GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING STANDARDS. SO 

THE HOUSING ACCOUNTABILITY ACT DOES APPLY. PROJECT SITE IS 

LOCATED WITHIN THE RPP BOUNDARY. HOWEVER, BECAUSE THE APPLICANT 

IS NOT REQUESTING A VARIANCE FOR PARKING, THE PROJECT IS NOT 

Page 203 of 258

209



ELIGIBLE FOR THAT PROGRAM. IN TERMS OF THE NEIGHBOR CONTEXT, 

THIS IS 7 TO 8 BLOCKS WEST OF THE UC CLARK CAMPUS ALONG THE 

TRANSIT CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL DISTRICT AT THE SOUTHERN END OF THE 

TELEGRAPH BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND LOCATED ONE BLOCK 

SOUTH OF CARLETON WHERE THERE ARE TWO BUILDING ON THAT SAME SIDE 

AND THREE BLOCKS NORTH OF OREGON WHERE TWO SIX STOREY BUILDINGS 

ARE LOCATED ON BOTH SIDES MUCH TELEGRAPH. IN THIS AREA, MOST 

COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS HAVE ACTIVE PEDESTRIAN ORIENTED USES ON THE 

GROUND FLOOR. TO THE WEST ARE LOW-RISE RESIDENTIAL UNITS MOSTLY 

CONSISTING OF ONE TO TWO-STOREY BUILDING WITH A MIX OF SINGLE 

AND MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING. THE PROJECT IS LOCATED ABOUT ONE MILE 

FROM BOTH THE DOWNTOWN BERKELEY AND ASHBY BART STATION. FOUR 

BLOCKS NORTH OF RUSSELL WHICH ARE BOTH BICYCLE BOULEVARDS. IN 

RESPONSE TO BOTH THE ZAB AND DRC PREVIEW COMMENTS, THE APPLICANT 

REVISED THE PROJECT TO REDUCE THE HEIGHT. THIS IS ACHIEVED BY 

LOWERING THE GROUND FLOOR BY FOUR FEET AND BY EXCAVATING BELOW 

GRADE. IN THE PROPOSED OPTIONAL MEZZANINE HAS BEEN ELIMINATED 

AND THE PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL [INDISCERNIBLE] HAS BEEN 

REDESIGNED. THE OPEN SPACE ON THE PROPERTY CONSISTS OF SEVEN 

PATIOS AND A COMMONLY ACCESSIBLE PODIUM ON THE SECOND FLOOR THAT 

IS 1,572 SQUARE FEET AS WELL AS A 1,300 SQUARE FEET COMMONLY 

ACCESSIBLE ROOF DECK. ALSO ON THE GROUND FLOOR IS A 562 SQUARE 

FOOT COMMON AREA DESIGNED AS A COMMON AREA GARDEN BUT NOT USABLE 

OPEN SPACE. THAT'S AT THE REAR OF THE PROPERTY. SO TO SUMMARIZE 

Page 204 of 258

210



THE ANALYSIS FROM SECTION 5, STAFF BELIEVES THE FINDINGS FOR NOT 

DETRIMENT WILL BE MADE. DURING THE APPLICATION REVIEW, STAFF HAS 

RECEIVED SEVERAL LETTERS FROM BOTH RESIDENTS AND THE COMMERCIAL 

PROPERTIES THAT ARE ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT AND THOSE ARE 

ATTACHMENTS THREE AND I BELIEVE THERE ARE SUPPLEMENTAL 

COMMUNICATIONS YOU RECEIVED TONIGHT AND ANOTHER COMMUNICATION 

THAT YOU RECEIVED PREVIOUSLY. IN ATTACHMENT THREE IS A RESPONSE 

LETTER FROM THE ARCHITECT DAVID TRACHTENBERG THAT RESPONDED AND 

STAFF AS WELL AS THE CITY ATTORNEY HAS MET WITH THE ATTORNEY 

REPRESENTING SEVERAL OF THE NEIGHBORS YESTERDAY AND WE'VE 

LISTENED AND REVIEWED THEIR CONCERNS WHICH ARE LISTED IN TABLE 

SIX WHICH IS PAGE 14 OF THE STAFF REPORT. I'LL SUMMARIZE THE 

TOPICS AND HAPPY TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS AND ALLOW TIME FOR THE 

PEOPLE THAT ARE HERE TO SPEAK. SO THE TOPICS INCLUDE SHADING OF 

ROOFTOP SOLAR PANELS ON THE DENTIST'S OFFICE NORTH OF THE SITE. 

ELIMINATION OF THE SIGNAGE AND REDUCED VISIBILITY OF THAT 

DENTIST'S OFFICE. GENERAL PRIVACY AND NOISE IMPACTS RELATED TO 

THE USABLE OPEN SPACE AS WELL AS THE COMMON AREA GARDEN ON THE 

GROUND FLOOR. POTENTIAL NOISE FROM THE GARAGE DOOR, PARKING 

IMPACTS AND SHADOWS, AFFORDABILITY, CULTURAL RESOURCES, LIGHT 

POLLUTION AND CONSTRUCTION-RELATED IMPACTS. I'LL LEAVE IT TO 

PUBLIC COMMENT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY QUESTIONS FOR STAFF? OKAY. DONE. TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: COULD YOU SPEAK TO THE DEADLINE FOR CEQA 

Page 205 of 258

211



EXEMPT PROJECTS TO BE COMPLETED BY FEBRUARY 10TH.  

 >> I THINK SHANNON CAN ANSWER THAT.  

 >> I CAN. THE CITY HAS RECEIVED A HANDFUL OF LETTERS 

RECENTLY QUESTIONING THE TIMING OF THE CEQA DETERMINATIONS AND 

THE PERMITS STREAMLINING ACT. IT'S THE CITY STAFF HAS REVIEWED 

THESE LETTERS SUBMITTED MOST RECENTLY BY MR. KELLOGG AND DOES 

NOT FIND THE CITY IS VIOLATING THE ACT. STREAMLINE STARTS WHEN 

THE AGENCY DETERMINES THAT THE PROJECT IS EXEMPT. STAFF 

RECOMMENDS THE CEQA DETERMINATION BUT ZAB CONFIRMS THAT AND 

MOVING FORWARD, THE LANGUAGE IN THE STAFF REPORTS WILL BE 

REVISED TO REFLECT THAT NUANCE. SECONDLY, A PERMIT CANNOT BE 

DEEMED APPROVED UNDER THE STREAMLINING ACT UNLESS A PUBLIC 

NOTICE REQUIRED BY LAW HAS OCCURRED. THE NOTICE MUST COMPLY WITH 

THE CITY'S CODE AS WELL AS DUE PROCESS REQUIREMENTS. SINCE 

NOTICE HAS INTO THE BEEN GIVEN WITH RESPECT TO AN APPLICANT'S 

PROJECT, THE 60-DAY PERIOD FOR APPROVAL UNDER THE STREAMLINING 

ACT DOES NOT APPLY.  

 >> ARE YOU SAYING IN OUR APPROVAL WE'RE DETERMINING THE 

CEQA EXEMPTION? WHERE IS THAT IN OUR RECOMMENDATION? SO IN THE 

FRONT OF SECTION HERE UNDER BACKGROUND AND WHAT WE ARE 

APPROVING, I SEE -- I SEE FOUR USE PERMITS.  

 >> ON PAGE 2 THERE IS A CEQA DETERMINATION THAT IS 

CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT UNDER SECTION 15332 UNDER THE CALIFORNIA 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT.  

Page 206 of 258

212



 >> DO WE HAVE PURVIEW TO DENY THAT IT'S CATEGORICALLY 

EXEMPT? YOU'RE ARGUING THAT WE'RE THE ONE AS PROVING THE 

DETERMINATION.  

 >> AND THEN -- YES.  

 >> BECAUSE WE'VE NEVER DISCUSSED THAT BEFORE. WE'VE BEEN 

TOLD BY THE STAFF THAT THIS IS A CEQA -- THE PROJECT IS EXEMPT 

FROM CEQA.  

 >> I DON'T WANT TO BE ARGUE WITH YOU BUT I WANT TO CLARIFY. 

THERE ARE FINDINGS THAT ARE STANDARD AND WE'LL GET TO THOSE.  

 >> WE'RE ESSENTIALLY APPROVING THE STANDARDS SO WHEN WE'RE 

CONSIDERING THE PROJECT, WE HAVE THE OPTION TO SAY THAT IT'S NOT 

OR IS.  

 >> ON PAGE ONE FOR FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS THERE ARE CEQA 

FINDINGS. IT SAYS IT'S EXEMPT AND LIST REASONINGS BEFORE THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IT'S ALWAYS BEEN THERE.  

 >> I'M SAYING WE'VE NEVER DISCUSSED IT. OCCASIONALLY WE 

HAVE IN TERMS OF HAZARDOUS MATERIAL, WE'VE DISCUSSED IT. BUT 

NORMALLY WE DON'T. BUT BASICALLY WE'RE APPROVING THAT AS WELL 

WHEN WE APPROVE A PROJECT.  

 >> YES.  

 >> I WANT TO MAKE THAT CLEAR TO EVERYBODY.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MATTHEW.  

 >> I HAVE A QUESTION FOR STAFF ABOUT THE LETTER FROM RAMSEY 

LAW GROUP. IN IT THAT HE TALK ABOUT -- THEY SUGGEST THAT IN 

Page 207 of 258

213



ORDER TO DEAL WITH THE SHADING OF THE EXISTING SOLAR PANELS WE 

SHOULD USE THE POWER UNDER 23B.32.030 TO REQUIRE AS A CONDITION 

TO PUT BASICALLY THE PANELS ON THE ROOF OF THE PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT. I WANT TO CONFIRM, THAT SOMETHING IN THEORY WE 

COULD DO IF IT VIOLATED THE CONDITIONS AROUND MORALS OR GENERAL 

WELFARE? I'M NOT GOING TO READ THE WHOLE LIST, COULD WE REQUIRE 

THAT THEORETICALLY?  

 >> THEORETICALLY YOU COULD.  

 >> I THINK IT'S WORTH CONSIDERING.  

 >> IT'S NOT -- IT'S NOTHING THAT THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS 

BOARD HAS DETERMINED IN THE PAST. THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 

HAS APPROVED PROJECTS WHERE NEW CONSTRUCTION CAST SHADOWS ON 

SOLAR PANELS. IT WOULD BE A DEVIATION FROM PAST PRACTICE AND NOT 

SOMETHING THAT THE ZONING BOARD HAS CONSIDERED WHEN THEY'VE 

DISCUSSED DETRIMENT ASSOCIATED WITH SHADOWS.  

 >> DOES STAFF HAVE ANY OPINIONS ON THAT BEING A THING THAT 

THE ZAB MIGHT CONSIDER? ARE THERE DOWN SIDES TO DO THAT? WHAT 

ARE THE DOWNSIDES?  

 >> I PREFER THIS IS A CONVERSATION FOR THE ZONING 

ADJUSTMENTS BOARD. THERE IS LANGUAGE SAYING CITY MAY NOT LIMIT 

THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY TO PROTECT THE ABILITY 

OF ANOTHER PROPERTY TO INSTALL PRODUCTIVE SOLAR PANELS. THIS IS 

A DENSITY BONUS PROJECT SO THERE ARE DIFFERENT FINDINGS THAT 

NEED TO BE MADE IF YOU WERE TO DENY AN ELEMENT OF DENSITY OF THE 

Page 208 of 258

214



PROPOSED PROJECT AND IT'S HEALTH AND SAFETY.  

 >> ARE YOU SAYING IF WE REQUIRED PUTTING THE SOLAR PANELS 

ON THIS DEVELOPMENT, IT WOULD REDUCE THE DENSITY OF THE 

DEVELOPMENT?  

 >> I'M --  

 >> SHE DID NOT SAY THAT.  

 >> YOU'RE CONSIDERING FOR -- YOU'RE ASKING FOR STAFF'S 

THOUGHT IF YOU WERE TO CONDITION -- PUT A CONDITION OF APPROVAL 

ON THIS PROJECT THAT THEY PROVIDE SOLAR ON THEIR ROOF FOR THEIR 

ADJACENT NEIGHBORS OR THAT YOU WOULD LIKE TO REQUIRE THE 

RELOCATION OF SOLAR ON THE DENTIST'S LETTER.  

 >> I DIDN'T UNDERSTAND THE DISTINCTION BETWEEN THE TWO THAT 

YOU'RE OFFERING.  

 >> CAN YOU RESTATE WHAT YOU'RE ASKING.  

 >> I WANT TO CONFIRM IF IT WAS -- IF THIS WAS A POTENTIAL 

THING WE DO TO. I MEAN MAYBE WE'LL LEAVE IT UP FOR DISCUSSION 

AMONG THE BOARD LATER.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: DENISE, DID YOU HAVE A RESPONSE?  

 >> I'VE NEVER SEEN AN APPLICANT BE OBLIGATED TO PROVIDE 

SOLAR FROM THE PROJECT TO AN ADJACENT PROJECT. THERE ARE 

ENFORCEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE PROBLEMS WITH REQUIRING THAT. 

SOMETHING ONE GUY OWNS IS ON THE BUILDING ANOTHER GUY OWNS. THAT 

IS LIKE AN EASEMENT WHICH CREATES ENFORCEABILITY ISSUES. I WOULD 

NEVER RECOMMEND WE GET INTO THAT.  

Page 209 of 258

215



 >> I THINK TALKING ABOUT IT UNDER BOARD DISCUSSION IS GOOD. 

LET'S MOVE THIS CONVERSATION TO THEN. ANY MORE QUESTIONS FOR 

STAFF? TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: I KNOW ON SOME PROJECTS WE'VE PUT IN SKY 

LIGHTS FOR NEXT DOOR NEIGHBORS.  

 >> MY RECOLLECTION IS THAT ANY KIND OF WORK ON SOMEONE 

ELSE'S PROPERTY IS DONE AS A SIDE -- COULD SOMEONE OUT OF THE 

GOODNESS OF THEIR HEART OR FOR NEIGHBORLY RELATIONS PUT IN SKY 

LIGHTS OR RELOCATE SOLAR. THAT'S MY RECOMMENDATION THAT ZAB 

DOESN'T HAVE THAT AS A CONDITION BUT OTHER PEOPLE HAVE 

NEGOTIATED THAT.  

 >> OKAY.  

 >> FURTHER QUESTIONS FOR STAFF. IT'S 8:47, I'M TRYING TO BE 

MINDFUL OF THE CAPTIONER BREAK AT 9:00. LET'S BRING UP THE 

APPLICANT. AND DO YOU GUYS NEED FIVE MINUTES? OKAY. ALL RIGHT, 

WE'LL GIVE YOU FIVE. PLEASE STICK TO THE TIME LIMIT.  

 >> I'M MICHAEL, I'M THE DEVELOPER OF 2650 TELEGRAPH. I WAS 

AT THE ARB HEARING AND THE ZAB PRELIMINARY HEARING AND 

SUBSEQUENTLY MY ARCHITECT DAVID TRACHTENBERG HAS MET WITH THE 

NEIGHBORS AND DONE HIS BEST TO ADDRESS THEIR CONCERNS. TONIGHT 

HE'LL PROVIDE A PRESENTATION AND HOW HE HAS TRIED TO ADDRESS THE 

CONCERNS AND IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS AFTERWARDS, I'M HERE TO 

ANSWER THEM TO THE BEST OF MY ABILITY. THANK YOU.  

 >> THANK YOU AND THANKS EVERYBODY FOR BEING HERE. I'M GOING 

Page 210 of 258

216



TO GO THROUGH THIS. HERE IS THE PROJECT. WHAT'S THE DEAL HERE? 

AS YOU HEARD, WE VOLUNTARILY LOWERED IT JUST UNDER THE HEIGHT 

LIMIT, FOUR FEET DOWN TO 55.5. WE DID THAT BY TAKING FOUR FEET 

OUT OF THE PODIUM LEVEL AND DID THAT BY INTRODUCING THESE -- AT 

CONSIDERABLE COST. THE OTHER THING WE DID WAS ELIMINATE THE LOFT 

BEDROOMS IN THE THREE UNITS AT THE GROUND LEVEL THERE SO THOSE 

BECOME STUDIOS INSTEAD OF ONE BEDROOMS. THOSE ARE SIGNIFICANT 

RESPONSES TO THE NEIGHBORS. WE MET MULTIPLE TIMES WITH NEIGHBORS 

AND THEIR ATTORNEYS. I THINK WE'VE DONE A LONG WAY TO DEALING 

WITH THEIR ISSUES. I'M GOING TO DEAL WITH THE THREE MAIN 

CONCERNS WHICH IS ONE LOSS OF LIGHTING IN THE DENTIST'S OFFICE 

AND EXISTING SOLAR PANELS AND NOISE AND PRIVACY TO THE WEST. ON 

THIS PLAN, WE SHOW THE ADJACENT DENTIST'S OFFICE RIGHT THERE. 

ONE THING THAT MASSIH DID WAS ALLOW FOR A LIGHT COURT BECAUSE HE 

UNDERSTOOD THAT EVENTUALLY THERE WOULD BE A TALL BUILDING HERE 

ON THIS SITE. I THINK THAT CONDITION IS SOLVED BY THE BUILDING 

ITSELF. ANY CONCERNS ABOUT THE LIGHT IN THE TWO ROOMS AT THE 

GROUND FLOOR WHICH IS A TREATMENT ROOM AND A STAFF KITCHEN, I 

THINK IT'S MANAGED QUITE WELL. AS YOU GO UP A FLOOR -- THIS 

SOUTH ELEVATION OF THE BUILDING. THESE ARE THE WINDOWS IN 

QUESTION OF CONCERN TO THE OWNERS OF THE TWO BUSINESS. A DENTIST 

BELOW AND ORTHODONTIST ABOVE. ON THE GROUND FLOOR THERE IS FILM 

ON THE WINDOWS WHICH SUGGESTED THERE IS TOO MUCH LIGHT THERE. I 

THINK CHANGE IN THE CONTEXT IS GOING TO HAVE LITTLE NEGLIGIBLE 

Page 211 of 258

217



EFFECT. ESPECIALLY YOU GO UP A FLOOR WHERE THE BIG MOVE IS 

CARVING OUT THIS PORTION OF THE MASS TO ALLOW LIGHT TO GET INTO 

THE BUILDING IS A NON-ISSUE. WE SHOW THE EXISTING SOLAR PANELS 

AND I THINK THAT THE L-SHAPED BUILDING ALSO HELPS TO MITIGATE 

THE LOSS OF SUN ON TO THE PANELS. AND I NOTE THAT YOU CAN SEE IN 

THIS VIEW YOU CAN SEE BOTH THE 5'8" SETBACK HERE AND YOU CAN 

IMAGINE THAT THE LIGHT -- THE MOST IMPACTED PORTION OF THE SOLAR 

IS THIS TRIANGULAR PORTION OUT BY TELEGRAPH AVENUE. I CAN'T READ 

THIS. THIS IS A CITATION OF THE STATE LAW ABOUT SOLAR. THIS IS 

THE SUMMER -- MOST PRODUCTIVE TIME FOR SUMMER IS DURING THE 

SUMMER. AS YOU CAN SEE IN THESE ILLUSTRATIONS, THE BUILDING MASS 

THAT WE'RE PROPOSING HAS VIRTUALLY NO IMPACT. IT'S IN THE 

WINTERTIME WHEN THE PANELS ARE LESS PRODUCTIVE THAT THERE IS 

SOME IMPACT. WE HIRED A STUDY TO BE DONE WHICH INDICATED THAT 

THE NEW MASS WOULD HAVE AN IMPACT BY REDUCING THE EFFICACY OF 

THE EXISTING SOLAR PANEL BY 33%. AND AGAIN, THAT'S IN THIS AREA 

RIGHT BY THE STREET. YOU CAN SEE THE BUILDING DEPENDING ON WHERE 

YOU ARE, THE SOLAR PANELS ARE ON THAT ROOF AND MORE OR LESS 

EFFECTIVE. ONE THING I WOULD SUGGEST IS THE POSSIBILITY OF THE 

OWNER COULD RELOCATE SOME OF THE PANELS TO A CARPORT THAT THEY 

MIGHT WANT TO BUILD HERE IN THE REAR. THEY'D HAVE GOOD SOLAR 

ACCESS BACK THERE. NOISE AND PRIVACY, BY DESIGN THE BUILDING IS 

STEPPING DOWN. WE HAVE THE BAKED-IN CONFLICT WHICH OCCURS WITH 

BIG BUILDINGS NEXT TO SMALL BUILDINGS. WE TRIED TO MITIGATE 

Page 212 of 258

218



THAT. SO I WANT TO POINT OUT THESE TERRACES HERE ARE PRIVATE TO 

THE ONE BEDROOM APARTMENTS. THAT'S A COMMON AREA. AND THE 

NEIGHBORS PROPOSED -- PROPOSED THAT WE ADD AN 8-FOOT RAILING 

AROUND THAT. I WANT TO PUT OUT AN ANALOGOUS POSITION HERE. THERE 

ARE NO CAN COMPLAINTS ABOUT THIS BUILDING WHICH HAS NO ON SITE 

MANAGER BUT THERE ARE COMPLAINTS ABOUT THE ONE-STOREY BUILDING.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU VERY MUCH. AND ARE THERE QUESTIONS 

FOR YOU. IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: THANK YOU. THE QUESTION ARE YOU AMENABLE TO 

PUTTING IN ANY OF THE BUILDING ELECTRIFICATION MANDATES THAT 

WENT IN?  

 >> ARE WE AMENABLE? FULL ELECTRIFICATION?  

 >> I. TREGUB: OR SOMETHING THAT IS ENOUGH TO EVENTUALLY GET 

THERE.  

 >> I DON'T REMEMBER. I HAVE TO ASK THE DEVELOPER ABOUT 

THAT.  

 >> I CAN ANSWER THAT. THIS APPLICATION WAS FILED IN 2019 

AND SO THE NATURAL GAS DOESN'T APPLY. BUT THE BUILDING 

ELECTRIFICATION AND NEW BUILDING CODE DOES APPLY TO THIS PROJECT 

BECAUSE THE BUILDING PERMIT WILL BE SUBMITTED IN 2020.  

 >> I. TREGUB: IT'S WITHIN THE REACH CODE?  

 >> CORRECT.  

 >> I. TREGUB: AND THEN HOW OPEN IS THE APPLICANT TO 

CONTINUING THE DIALOGUE WITH THE DENTAL CLINIC OVER PAYING SOME 

Page 213 of 258

219



OR ALL OF THE COSTS OF RELOCATING THE SOLAR PANELS IF THEY 

CHOOSE TO GO THAT ROUTE?  

 >> THAT'S A SLIPPERY SLOPE. I THINK ANYBODY WHO WANTS TO 

STOP A PROJECT CAN INSTALL SOLAR PANELS IN THEIR BACKYARD AND 

STOP A PROJECT. THE LAW SAYS, YOU READ THE CITATION EARLIER. I 

THINK ONE THING IS CURIOUS THIS WAS BUILT ONLY 10 YEARS AGO WHEN 

THEY COULD HAVE BUILT A FIVE STOREY BUILDING AND AT THIS POINT I 

THINK THEY WISH THEY HAD.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I APPRECIATE THE ANSWER.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MORE QUESTIONS FOR THE APPLICANT. TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: WAS THERE ANOTHER ITEM OR IS THAT THE LOST 

ONE?  

 >> THERE IS ANOTHER. I'D LIKE TO ADDRESS THAT. SO THE 

NEIGHBORS REQUESTED AN 8-FOOT TALL GLASS RAIL AT THE TOP DECK. I 

WANT TO SHOW YOU WHAT THAT LOOKS LIKE. WE TOOK THAT SERIOUSLY. 

HERE IS THE CONDITION AS IT EXISTS. I WANT TO POINT OUT WE'VE 

TAKEN CARE TO PUT BARRICADES OF LANDSCAPE THAT PREVENT THEM FROM 

GETTING UP TO THE EDGES AS WELL AS THE STEEL CORNICE WHICH 

SHADES PEOPLE'S VIEW DOWN PEOPLE CANNOT OCCUPY THE EDGE. WE'RE 

SHOWING LIGHTS VERY LOW WHICH WASH THE DECK SURFACE. WE DON'T 

HAVE ANY LIGHTS. THIS IS A GOOD CONDITION. THIS IS WHAT THEY'VE 

REQUESTED. HERE ARE A COUPLE OTHER VIEWS. I THINK THIS IS 

TERRIBLE. I THINK -- I'M ALSO THE ARCHITECT OF THE PEOPLE WHO 

ARE GOING TO LIVE HERE. TRY TO BE THE ARCHITECT OF NEIGHBORS. I 

Page 214 of 258

220



WANT THEIR QUALITY OF LIFE TO MEAN SOMETHING HERE. HERE IS 

ANOTHER VIEW. THINK THIS WOULD BE AN UNPLEASANT THING. IT'S 

ANOTHER SLIPPERY SLOPE. WE HAVE MANY CASES AROUND THE CITY WHERE 

WE HAVE TERRACES LIKE THIS. THERE IS A CODE ISSUE WHICH IS THE 

NEED FOR WINDOW WASHING EQUIPMENT WHICH GETS TO BE -- WHERE YOU 

THROW THE CABLES OVER A GLASS RAILING. I THINK IT'S A DIFFICULT 

CONDITION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU.  

 >> SO WOULD YOU CONSIDER SOME GLAZING IN TERMS OF WIND 

PROTECTION? I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE PURPOSE OF THE GLASS IS 

EXACTLY.  

 >> IT WOULD MITIGATE AGAINST [INDISCERNIBLE]  

 >> I THOUGHT IT WAS FOR PEOPLE LOOKING DOWN OR SOMETHING.  

 >> LOOKING INTO CLEAR GLASS.  

 >> OKAY, THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: CHARLES AND A REMINDER WE HAVE A CAPTIONER 

BREAK COMING UP. BUT GO AHEAD.  

 >> ONE OF THE IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS FOR DESIGN REVIEW 

WHEN YOU CAME BEFORE US WAS THE MASSING OF THE BUILDING. IT WAS 

SPOKEN FAVORABLY IN DESIGN REVIEW. I WOULD LIKE TO MAKE MY 

COLLEAGUES AWARE OF YOUR CHOICES RELATIVE TO THAT BECAUSE I 

THINK IT SPEAKS TO SOME OF THE NEIGHBOR'S CONCERNS SORT OF 

PROACTIVELY. DO YOU HAVE ANY -- CAN YOU SPEAK TO THAT?  

 >> THINK YOU'RE RIGHT. WE TRY TO GET APPROVAL QUICKLY. IN 

Page 215 of 258

221



OUR PRACTICE WHICH MEANS WE DON'T TRY TO FAKE PEOPLE OUT AND 

COME BACK WITH STUFF THAT IS STUPID. WE TRY TO PRESENT A 

BUILDING THAT IS GOOD AND SOLVES A PROBLEM IN THE BEST POSSIBLE 

WAY. I THINK AT THE GATE WE DID THAT HERE. AGAIN, I THINK THE 

BIG MOVE OF CARVING OUT A QUARTER OF THE MASS TO RELIEVE SHADOW 

IMPACTS AND SO ON WAS A BIG AND IMPORTANT MOVE. IN ADDITION TO 

THE STEPPING OF THE MASS AS IT MOVES TOWARDS THE WEST.  

 >> THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY MORE QUESTIONS FOR THE APPLICANT? YOU 

CAN SIT DOWN MR. TRACHTENBERG. WHICH HAVE TO TAKE A BREAK AT 

9:00 BECAUSE THERE IS SOMEBODY WHO CAPTIONING THE MEETING AND 

THEY NEED A BREAK EVERY TWO HOURS. WE'LL TAKE A BREAK AND 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC, IF YOU HAVE ANY LITTLE STRATEGIES OR 

ANYTHING, YOU CAN TELL ME AS YOU COME UP. THANK YOU.   

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'LL BRING THE MEETING BACK TO ORDER. 

HELLO. SO WE'RE GOING TO START WITH PUBLIC COMMENT. ONCE AGAIN, 

I WANT TO REMIND EVERYONE YOU HAVE ONE MINUTE. WE'RE TRYING TO 

GET THIS MEETING WRAPPED UP AS QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE WHILE STILL 

RESPECTING THE PROCESS AND LET EVERYONE SPEAK. DO BE RESPECTFUL 

OF YOUR WITHIN-MINUTE TIME LIMIT. EVERYONE IS GOING TO HAVE YOUR 

ONE MINUTE. I HAVE THE FOUR PEOPLE THAT WILL HAVE ONE PERSON 

SPEAK FOR FOUR MINUTES. THIS IS THE ORDER THAT I RECEIVED THE 

CARDS IN. FIRST WE HAVE DAVID KELLOGG FOLLOWED BY -- PLEASE BE 

READY TO COME UP IF YOUR NAME IS NEXT. DAVID KELLOGG FOLLOWED BY 

Page 216 of 258

222



CORY SMITH FOLLOWED BY SILANE KAHN. YOU HAVE ONE MINUTE.  

 >> TERESA, YOU WERE ASKING GOOD QUESTIONS ABOUT THE CEQA 

DETERMINATION. IT'S TO STAFF NOT TO THE BOARD. IS THERE A STATE 

DEADLINE TO DO THE INITIAL CEQA DETERMINATION AND WE KNOW THERE 

IS NO WAY THE BOARD IS MAKING THAT DETERMINATION IN 30 DAYS. THE 

BOARD CAN'T DO ANYTHING IN 30 DAYS. THE IDEA FOR THE BOARD TOO 

DO IS THE CITY ATTORNEY'S GRAND FANTASY TO AVOID A LAWSUIT. NOT 

HOW IT WORKS. THERE IS A DIFFERENCE BETWEEN INITIAL 

DETERMINATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS. IT'S THAT'S PART OF YOUR JOB 

BUT NOT THE CEQA DETERMINATION. THE PREVIEW MEETING, THAT 

SATISFIED THE DUE PROCESS REQUIREMENTS. IT'S BEEN LEGALLY DENY 

SOD YOU HAVE TO APPROVE IT TODAY.  

 >> GOOD EVENING, CORY SMITH ON BEHALF THE BAY AREA. WE'RE A 

REGIONAL NON-PROFIT TO ADVOCATE FOR HOUSING FOR AFFORDABLE 

HOUSING. WE ASK YOU TO APPROVE THE PROJECT. THIS PROJECT HAS 20% 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCLUDED IN THIS. WHENEVER WE HAVE THE 

OPPORTUNITY TO GET SUBSIDIZED AFFORDABLE HOUSING, WE NEED TO 

TAKE ADVANTAGE OF IT. WHILE I UNDERSTAND THE DESIRE TO GET 

ADDITIONAL CONCESSIONS AND EXTRACTIONS, WHEN YOU ADD THOSE UP, 

IT GETS TO THE POINT WHERE THE PROJECT DOESN'T WORK. IF IT 

DOESN'T WORK 20% OF ZERO WILL BE ZERO AFFORDABLE HOUSING. THE 

OTHER THING IS THE FACT THAT THE CONVERSATION HAS OCCURRED OVER 

AND OVER AGAIN WITH THE NEIGHBORS. THE WAY THAT THIS PROJECT HAS 

MOVED FORWARD, THEY DESERVE A GOOD-FAITH EFFORT TO COMMUNICATE 

Page 217 of 258

223



AND TRY TO WORK WITH THE NEIGHBORS IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD. AND WE 

WANT TO APPLAUD THEM FOR THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I WANT TO SAY FOR THE RECORD I BELIEVE THIS 

HAS FOUR UNITS LOW-INCOME HOUSING AND THERE IS A FEE AS WELL. SO 

IT'S MEETING THE 20% REQUIREMENT. SYLVAIN INVOLVED BY OLGA.  

 >> I LIVE ACROSS THE STREET FROM THE PROPOSED PROJECT. 

THANK YOU TO ZAB AND TO THE ARCHITECTS FOR THE EFFORTS THEY MADE 

TO SPORT NEIGHBORS THIS EFFORT. ONE ISSUE THAT HASN'T BEEN 

ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED IS THE PARKING ISSUE. 20 PACES IF FOR 45 

UNITS PLUS COMMERCIAL IS DEEPLY INADEQUATE. EVEN WITHOUT 

RESIDENTIAL PARKING PERMITS, THAT IS GOING TO MEAN THAT PEOPLE 

CAN EFFECTIVELY USE COMMUTER VEHICLES AND THERE WILL BE VERY 

LITTLE DIFFERENCE IN TERMS OF THE PARKING SITUATION. MY OTHER 

MAJOR CONCERN IS JUST SOME ISSUES AROUND STREET AND HOW THAT IS 

GOING TO WORK. FIRST OF ALL, CONSTRUCTION HOURS AND WHETHER OR 

NOT THAT'S GOING TO BE BLOCKING DERBY. THE OTHER ISSUE IS WHERE 

DELIVERIES AND MAINTENANCE VEHICLES MIGHT GO. THEY SAID THEY'LL 

BE PARKING ON TELEGRAPH.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU. MARTIN HUSSEIN.  

 >> I'LL SPEAK ON BEHALF OF THE NEXT DOOR NEIGHBORS. WHICH 

WE LIVE ABOUT SIX YARDS FROM THE SITE WHERE THE 

DEMOLITION -- FROM THE DEMOLITION ITS SOFA. SO THE POLLUTION AND 

THE NOISE IS A MAJOR, MAJOR CONCERN. AND THE SEVEN SPOTS -- THE 

ROOF WILL BE RIGHT ABOVE OUR BEDROOM. I THINK THAT THOSE GLASS 

Page 218 of 258

224



SCREENS WHICH WERE ADVISED BY THE DESIGN REVIEW ARE ESSENTIAL. 

AND WHAT ELSE YOU CAN DO TO HELP US DECREASE NOISE WOULD BE WISE 

BECAUSE RIGHT NOW WE'RE CONSIDERING WHAT WE CAN DO AND WE CANNOT 

MOVE OUT BECAUSE THE PROJECT DECREASES THE VALUE OF OUR HOUSE 

LIKEWISE IT KEY DECREASES THE VALUE OF THE BUSINESSES. THEY 

DON'T ALLOW US TO CHANGE THE RESIDENCE. THAT'S THE CHANGE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I THINK YOU HAVE ONE MORE MINUTE?  

 >> I THINK TO SUMMARIZE YOUR CONCERNS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU. OKAY. TELL US YOUR NAME.  

 >> I'M HUSSEIN. SO I SUBMITTED A COUPLE OF LETTERS 

INCLUDING TWO EARLIER TODAY TO TRY TO ADDRESS SOME OF THE ISSUES 

THAT IMPACT BOTH THE DENTISTRY AND PEDIATRIC OFFICE. I WOULD 

URGE ZAB TO DISCUSS AND EXPLORE WAYS TO ACHIEVE RELOCATION OF 

SOLAR PANELS. IT'S A PITY TO LOSE THE SOLAR PANELS. AT THE SAME 

TIME WE'LL TRY TO FIND A WAY TO DO THAT. I BULLET POINTED A 

LETTER IN RELATION TO PRIVACY THAT I THINK COULD BE ACHIEVED. I 

WANT TO ADD TO THOSE. I ASK ZAB TO REVIEW THOSE. ONE POINT 

REGARDING CONSTRUCTION THAT WAS NOT IN THERE IS THAT I WOULD ASK 

THAT THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL REGARDING CONSTRUCTION NOISE. 

THOSE APPLICABLE TO RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION AND ZONING FOR 

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION, ALTHOUGH THE SITE ITSELF IS IN A 

COMMERCIALLY-ZONED AREA, THE RESIDENTS -- THERE WILL BE IMPACTS 

ON RESIDENTS. I THINK THE MAX IS 60 RATHER THAN 75, I ASK THAT 

THAT BE CONSIDERED TOGETHER WITH A TALLER THAN THE MINIMUM 

Page 219 of 258

225



TEMPORARY FENCE TO ALSO MITIGATE NOISE BOTH FOR THE RESIDENTS 

AND THE SPECIAL NEEDS PATIENTS OF THE DENTIST'S OFFICE. AS FOR 

THE PRIVACY ISSUES, WE ADVOCATE FOR THE GLASS ENCLOSURE ON THE 

SECOND FLOOR AS WELL AS TALLER GLASS RAILINGS FOR THE OTHER 

PATIOS. RIGHT NOW I THINK THERE ARE FOUR FEET ADDITIONALLY -- A 

FOOT OR TWO ADDITIONAL WOULD BE APPROPRIATE, WE THINK. TO 

MINIMIZE NOISE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU VERY MUCH. NOW WE HAVE THE GROUP 

OF FOUR WHICH IS JEFF, DAVID, JOHN AND KATHLEEN REPRESENTED BY 

JEFF. IS THAT RIGHT? FOUR MINUTES.  

 >> I'M JEFF I LIVE TO THE WEST OF THE PROPOSED SITE WITH MY 

WIFE AND OUR TWO SMALL KIDS. LAST WEEK THE NEIGHBORS PART OF 

THIS GROUP HAD A GREAT MEETING WITH DAVID TRACHTENBERG THE 

ARCHITECT AND WE CAME UP WITH A LIST OF AGREEMENTS WITH HIM THAT 

WE SUBMITTED TO ASHLEY AND ZAB AS PART OF YOUR PACKET TODAY. 

MOST OF THESE WERE NOT ADDRESSED IN THE REMARKS BY DAVID 

EARLIER. I WANT TO MAKE SURE THAT THESE ARE CLEAR AND ARE 

CONSIDERED AS AGREEMENTS AND GET BAKED INTO THE PLAN AS 

CONDITIONS. ONE IS RELATED TO THE LANDSCAPING PLAN HAVING A 

SERIES OF MATURE TREES PLANTED ALONG THE WESTERN EDGE OF THE 

PROPERTY BETWEEN OUR HOUSE AND 2650 TELEGRAPH. AT THE TIME THAT 

WE MET WITH THE ARCHITECT, A DOG RUN WAS BEING PROPOSED. I THINK 

THE LANGUAGE HAS CHANGED THAT TONIGHT TO AN OUTDOOR AREA WHICH 

IS THE SOUTHWESTERN PART OF THE PROPERTY AND WE BELIEVE THERE IS 

Page 220 of 258

226



NO REASON TO HAVE A DOG RUN AS PART OF THIS PROJECT AND THAT 

WOULD BE INCREDIBLY DISRUPTIVE TO US AS NEIGHBORS. INSTEAD OF 

THAT, WE PROPOSE HAVING MORE MATURE TREES PLANTED IN THAT AREA 

TO PROVIDE MORE PRIVACY TO THE NEIGHBORS. WE ALSO TALKED ABOUT A 

FENCE BETWEEN OUR PROPERTY AND 2650 TELEGRAPH THAT WAS 8 FEET IN 

HEIGHT AND NOT 6 FEET IN HEIGHT. SO DAVID PROPOSED A TYPE OF 

MATERIAL TO USE THAT WE THOUGHT WOULD WORK NICELY. THE WALLS 

AROUND THE PATIO ARE ALREADY ADDRESSED EARLIER. AND OLGA TALKED 

ABOUT THAT. IN TERMS OF NOISE, WE'RE PLEASED TO SEE THERE IS 

GOING TO BE AN ON SITE BUILDING MANAGER THAT WE CAN CONTACT WITH 

EXCESSIVE NOISE AND WE PROPOSE THERE WILL BE SIGNAGE PLACED ON 

TERRACES TO LIMIT THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF PEOPLE ALLOWED ON THE 

TERRACE AND IF THERE ARE NEIGHBOR COMPLAINTS ABOUT NOISE THAT 

THOSE KINDS OF GATHERINGS BE STOPPED AND PROHIBITED. THERE WAS 

TALK ABOUT THE LIGHTING ISSUES AND HAVING WALKWAY LIGHTING SEEMS 

GREAT, LIGHTING THAT IS FACING TO THE EAST AND NOT TO OUR 

PROPERTY. ON THE GROUND FLOOR, LIGHTING THAT DOES NOT EXCEED 7 

FEET SO BELOW THE 8-FOOT FENCE THAT WE HAD AGREED UPON AND OUR 

LAST POINT WAS AROUND THE GARAGE DOOR NOT INCLUDING ANY LIGHT OR 

SOUND THAT WILL WOULD BE A NUISANCE FOR THE NEIGHBORHOOD. WOULD 

ANYBODY LIKE TO SAY ANYTHING?  

 >> I'M DAVID MILLER I LIVE AT 2639 DANA WHICH IS THE HOUSE 

NEXT TO THEM. I LIVE WITH MY WIFE AND DAUGHTER. I WAS PART OF 

THE MEETING THAT JEFF MENTIONED AND I WANTED TO MAKE IT A 

Page 221 of 258

227



CLARIFICATION. THE ARCHITECT SAID WE HAD NO NOISE COMPLAINTS 

WITH THE MULTI-STOREY BUILDING AND THAT IS NOT CORRECT. WE DO 

HAVE NOISE COMPLAINTS WITH THAT BUILDING AS WELL SO WE'D LIKE TO 

STICK WITH OUR REQUEST ON NOISE COMPLAINTS INCLUDING THE GLASS 

STRUCTURES. FINALLY, I WANT TO MAKE SURE IT'S ON THE RECORD THAT 

IN ADDITION TO THE MATURE TREES THAT WE'RE ASKING FOR ON THE 

WESTERN SIDE OF THE BUILDING THAT WE ASK FOR A MATURE TREE ON 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE LOT FOR ADDITIONAL PRIVACY. THANK 

YOU.  

 >> JOHN ALLEN 2643 DANA. THE ARCHITECT'S PLAN CALLS FOR A 

COMMON AREA GARDEN OF 562 SQUARE FEET. WE'RE ALL IN FAVOR OF 

THAT. SOMEHOW THE TERM "DOG RUN" HAS MORPHED INTO THIS 

CONVERSATION. WE'RE OPPOSED TO A DOG RUN.  

 >> I THOUGHT I HAD MORE CARDS BUT THEY WERE EXTRA CARDS. 

GREAT MYSTERY WHICH WAS SOLVED. SO WE'LL BRING THE APPLICANT 

BACK UP NOW TO RESPOND TO ANYTHING THAT WAS SAID OR ANYTHING 

ELSE YOU WANTED TO ADD. YOU HAVE THREE MINUTES.  

 >> THANKS FOR THE COMMENTS. I'LL TRY TO CAPTURE THEM. 

PARKING ISSUE. IT'S CURIOUS THAT THE DENTIST BUILDING HAS 24 

EMPLOYEES AND ABOUT THAT MANY CUSTOMERS AND FIVE PARKING SPACES. 

SO I THINK THAT THEY HAVE SOME RESPONSIBILITY FOR PARKING 

ISSUES. THE DOG RUN IS TAKEN OUT AT THE REQUEST OF THE 

NEIGHBORS. WE ARE WILLING TO LOOK AT RAISING THE WALL AT THE TOP 

FLOOR THERE TO INSTEAD OF 42 INCHES TO 52 INCHES WHICH WOULD 

Page 222 of 258

228



MEAN THE PEOPLE SITTING DOWN WOULD NOT HAVE A VIEW BUT PEOPLE 

STANDING UP WOULD HAVE A VIEW. WE'RE NOT PUTTING THE GLASS UP 

BECAUSE IT'S OF NO CONSEQUENCE ANYWAY. WE'RE HAPPY TO MAKE THE 

HIRE AGAINST WHICH IS HELPFUL TO BOTH PARTIES AS WELL AS TO 

NEGOTIATE WHATEVER SPECIES THAT IS MUTUALLY AGREEABLE FOR THE 

TREES PLANTED ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE. I THINK THAT'S IT.  

 >> YOU'RE GOING TO HAVE AN 8-FOOT PROPERTY LINE FENCE?  

 >> THAT'S WHAT THE NEIGHBORS REQUESTED. WE THINK THAT IS 

REASONABLE.  

 >> WHY?  

 >> IT SEPARATES THE THREE LITTLE COMMON -- PATIOS FROM THE 

NEIGHBORS' BACKYARD.  

 >> WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF IT?  

 >> PRIVACY.  

 >> FOR PEOPLE PEEKING ABOVE IT OR WHAT?  

 >> THIS IS A REQUEST FROM THE NEIGHBORS.  

 >> I KNOW BUT I DON'T LIKE 8-FOOT FENCES ON ANYBODY'S 

PROPERTY. IT WILL BE -- IT'S A ZONING CERTIFICATE OR SOMETHING. 

IT'S A USE PERMIT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TERESA, IS THIS A REQUEST FOR THE APPLICANT.  

 >> THE OTHER QUESTION I HAD WAS WHAT ARE YOU REPLACING THE 

DOG RUN AREA WITH?  

 >> LANDSCAPE.  

 >> THAT'S WHERE THE TREES ARE GOING. MATURE TREES?  

Page 223 of 258

229



 >> LANDSCAPE PLAN --  

 >> DID YOU REVISE THAT?  

 >> YES WE REVISED IT IN THE SET YOU HAVE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SHANNON, DID YOU WANT TO SAY SOMETHING ABOUT 

THE FENCE?  

 >> IF THE ZAB DECIDES IT ADD AN 8-FOOT FENCE, THERE IS AN 

ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT REQUIRED. WE WANT TO READ THAT INTO 

THE RECORD.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THANK YOU. DENISE AND IGOR AND MATTHEW.  

 >> I WANT TO CLARIFY THE STATUS OF THE OTHER THINGS THE 

NEIGHBORS OUTLINED AS BEING PART OF THE AGREEMENT. THE LANDSCAPE 

PLANS ARE SHOWING MATURE TREES AT THE WESTERN EDGE, THEY SHOW 

THAT NOW?  

 >> YES.  

 >> THE LANDSCAPE PLANS SHOW A MATURE TREE AT THE WEST 

CORNER OF THE LOT NOW?  

 >> IS THAT A QUESTION?  

 >> YES, IS THAT AGREEMENT ON THE LANDSCAPE PLAN OR DO WE 

HAVE TO ADD IT AS A CONDITION?  

 >> THIS HAPPENED QUICKLY.  

 >> THERE IS NO RIGHT OR WRONG ANSWER. I JUST WANT TO KNOW.  

 >> WE DON'T HAVE ANY PROBLEM WITH THAT.  

 >> I'M GOING TO SAY IF IT'S NOT ON THE PLAN, PUT IT ON THE 

PLAN. YOU SHOWED US AN IMAGE OF OUTDOOR LIGHTING ON THE 

Page 224 of 258

230



EXTERIOR. IS THAT ON THE PLANS TONIGHT?  

 >> LIGHTS IS THE FINAL DESIGN REVIEW ISSUE. BUT WE 

ACKNOWLEDGE THAT'S A GOOD IDEA AND WE DID SHOW IT IN THE SET IN 

THE -- SOMEWHERE IN THE SET. IT'S NOT SPECIFIED. WE ALSO AGREED 

TO HAVE THE LIGHTING ALONG THE WESTERN FACADE DOWNWARD FACING 

LESS THAN 7 FEET IN HEIGHT.  

 >> THAT WILL BE IN FINAL DESIGN REVIEW AND THE GARAGE DOOR 

ISSUE I SAW IN THE STAFF REPORT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL? NO? I 

DIDN'T?  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SHANNON.  

 >> THAT WOULD BE REVIEWED BY THE CITY ENGINEER NOT TO HAVE 

ANY NOISE OR LIGHT AT AN EXIT OF A GARAGE.  

 >> THAT'S WHAT I MEANT. THAT'S PART OF THE CITY'S STANDARD. 

OKAY. THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: I WANTED TO FOLLOW UP ABOUT SOME COMMENTS ON 

THE COMMERCIAL LOADING ZONE. AND ACTUALLY JUST FOR MY OWN 

EDIFICATION WHERE IS THAT PROPOSED NOW TO BE? AND WHAT KIND OF 

CONVERSATIONS HAVE BEEN HAD WITH THE NEIGHBORS? HAS ANYTHING 

CHANGED?  

 >> WE DISCUSSED THAT WITH THE DENTIST. WE THINK THE LOGICAL 

PLACE FOR LOADING IS THE FRONT ENTRANCE OF THE LOBBY ON 

TELEGRAPH. VERY OFTEN WE HAVE A LOADING ZONE THERE FOR THE 

PICKUPS AND SO ON.  

Page 225 of 258

231



 >> I. TREGUB: OKAY. AND THEN WOULD YOU BE AMENABLE -- THIS 

IS WITHIN OUR JURISDICTION TO DECIDE ON, BUT I'M ASKING TO 

CHANGE THE CONSTRUCTION HOURS TO START AT 8:00 A.M. GIVEN THAT 

IT IS LARGELY A RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD.  

 >> I DON'T THINK I CAN SPEAKING TO THAT. THE CITY HAS 

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF CONSTRUCTION AND I THINK THEY SHOULD BE 

OBSERVED.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: BUT THAT'S FOR THE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT. THIS 

IS HALF RESIDENTIAL.  

 >> WE CHANGED THAT BEFORE IN SIMILAR SITUATIONS.  

 >> IF THAT'S -- I MEAN I DEFER TO YOUR WISDOM.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ARE YOU AMENABLE?  

 >> YES, WE ARE.  

 >> I. TREGUB: AND THE LAST ONE WAS ABOUT THE HOURS FOR 

CONSTRUCTION WHICH I WASN'T EVEN AWARE OF THAT THE NOISE LIMITS 

WERE DIFFERENT FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL. MAYBE THIS IS A 

QUESTION FOR STAFF IN TERMS OF CAN WE REGULATE OR CHANGE THE 

THRESHOLD LIMITS ALIGNED TO THE RESIDENTIAL STANDARD.  

 >> WAS THAT -- NEVER MIND. WHAT ARE THE CONSTRUCTION HOURS 

FOR COMMERCIAL VERSUS RESIDENTIAL? CAN YOU CLARIFY, PLEASE.  

 >> I HAVE THE CONDITION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IT'S THE COMMERCIAL HOURS. ARE THEY 

DIFFERENT FOR RESIDENTIAL?  

 >> I DON'T KNOW BUT I CAN LOOK IT UP.  

Page 226 of 258

232



 >> S. O'KEEFE: I'D LIKE TO STICK WITH SOMETHING --  

 >> I THINK -- THERE ARE TWO DIFFERENT QUESTIONS THERE. 

MAYBE I'M NOT UNDERSTANDING, BUT THE FIRST QUESTION WAS ABOUT 

HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION. SO THAT MAYBE HAS BEEN PUT TO BED THAT 

THE ZAB COULD CHANGE THAT. THE QUESTION OF THE COMMUNITY NOISE 

STANDARDS WITHIN THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE THAT RELATES TO 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS VERSUS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS, I'M NOT 

FAMILIAR WITH AN INSTANCE WHERE THE ZAB HAS CHANGED THAT AND I'M 

NOT SURE BECAUSE THAT'S MANAGED BY OUR NOT PUBLIC HEALTH, BUT 

THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DIVISION. SO I'M NOT SURE WHAT -- HOW 

YOU WOULD MAKE THE CONNECTION FOR THIS PROPERTY TO BE SUBJECT TO 

DIFFERENT STANDARDS THAN OTHERS.  

 >> IT'S NOT IN THE FINDINGS AND CONDITION ABOUT DECIBEL 

LEVELS.  

 >> I. TREGUB: THANK YOU.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. MATTHEW WAS NEXT.  

 >> I HOPE I'M WRONG ON THIS. DID WE FORGET TO FORMALLY OPEN 

THE PUBLIC HEARING.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE DON'T USUALLY DO THAT.  

 >> OKAY, NEVER MIND.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ARE THERE MORE QUESTIONS FOR THE APPLICANT? 

PATRICK.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: YOU'RE A PROPOSES RAISING THE GLASS PORTION, 

THE RAILING TO 52 AT THE COMMON DECK?  

Page 227 of 258

233



 >> TO 54 BUT WE'D LIKE TO HAVE AN OPTION. WEED LIKE TO HAVE 

THE TOP 12 INCHES BE TRANSLUCENT GLASS.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: MEANING CLEAR?  

 >> SANDBLASTED. IF IT'S NOT FEES BE, WE'LL HAVE THE STUCCO 

WALL GO UP TO 54.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: OKAY.  

 >> THAT MEANS WHEN YOU'RE SITTING DOWN YOU CAN'T HAVE A 

VIEW OF THE BAY BUT WHEN YOU STAND UP, YOU CAN. IT AFFORDS MORE 

PRIVACY.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: WOULD YOU CONSIDER THAT FOR THE PRIVATE 

PATIOS AS WELL?  

 >> NO. THESE ARE ONE-BEDROOM APARTMENTS.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: MY THOUGHT WAS DO THAT IN CLEAR GLASS, FOR 

INSTANCE. THIS IS PARTLY DO ADDRESS THE PROPOSAL TO DO 8-FOOT 

SCREENS BECAUSE SOUND DEFLECTED BY LINE OF SIGHT. IF YOU HAVE A 

SOLID OBJECT, IT DOESN'T PENETRATE. THE HIGHER EVEN A MODEST 

AMOUNT HIGHER PROJECTS OF IMPACT OF THE SOUND MUCH FARTHER OUT. 

IT MIGHT GO SOME WAYS TO HELP TO ALLEVIATE THAT CONCERN BY 

MITIGATING THAT MUCH MORE IMPACT.  

 >> OUR CLIENT SAYS HE'S WILLING TO ACCEPT THE CONDITION OF 

54 INCHES ON BOTH LEVELS. THAT MIGHT BE AT OUR DISCRETION EITHER 

GLASS FOR ONE FOOT OR SOLID PLASTER UP TO 54 INCHES.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. MORE QUESTIONS FOR THE APPLICANT? 

SORRY, SIR, WE'RE NOT GOING TO RECOGNIZE YOU. MORE QUESTIONS FOR 

Page 228 of 258

234



THE APPLICANT. NO? OKAY, WE'LL CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING AND BRING IT 

BACK FOR BOARD COMMENTS. SIR, PLEASE HAVE A SEAT. IT'S CLOSED TO 

PUBLIC HEARING.  

 >> [OFF MIC]  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SIR, PLEASE HAVE A SEAT. THANK YOU. BOARD 

COMMENTS. IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: OKAY. SO I'D LIKES TO SEE IF THERE MIGHT BE 

CONSENSUS ON THE BOARD. HERE ARE THE VARIOUS CONDITIONS I HEARD. 

WHERE WE SEEM TO HAVE SOME AGREEMENT. SO UNTIL SHORT, SOME OF 

THESE ARE PROBABLY BEST REFLECTED IN THE PLAN. THE FACT THAT THE 

DOG RUN WAS TAKEN OUT, THAT'S PROBABLY MORE OF A PLAN ISSUE. I 

HEARD WILLINGNESS TO RAISE THE TOP WALL TO 54 --  

 >> 54, I BELIEVE.  

 >> I. TREGUB: AND THAT WILL IT BE MADE OF GLASS OR SOLID 

PLASTIC. IF I HEARD THAT CORRECTLY.  

 >> DISCRETION OF THE APPLICANT.  

 >> I. TREGUB: HIGHER FENCE UP TO 8 FEET INCLUDING AN 

ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT ASSOCIATED WITH THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TERESA, WAIT TO BE RECOGNIZED.  

 >> I. TREGUB: MAYBE NOT FULL CONSENSUS PLANTED TO BE 

SPECIES TO BE MUTUALLY AGREEABLE WITH THE APPLICANT AND 

NEIGHBORS. LANDSCAPING PLAN, OUTDOOR LIGHTING AND CONSTRUCTION 

HOURS THAT WILL START AT 8:00 A.M. WHICH IS A CHANGE TO ONE OF 

THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. I THINK IT'S 63.  

Page 229 of 258

235



 >> S. O'KEEFE: OKAY. SO WAS THAT -- WERE YOU SAYING THINGS? 

OR WAS IT AN OPTION?  

 >> I. TREGUB: I CAN MAKE A MOTION AND I'M AMENABLE -- IF I 

MISSED ANYTHING -- HAPPY TO CONSIDER IT.  

 >> I SECOND THE MOTION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I THINK DOHEE HAD HER HAND UP. I'M GOING TO 

RECOGNIZE DOHEE. SHE DID THE RIGHT THING BY RAISING HER HAND.  

 >> D. KIM: I'M STILL ON THE FENCE ABOUT THE 8 FEET. BUT SO 

FAR I AGREE WITH WHAT HAS BEEN SAID.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: SO A MOTION AND A SECOND. I THINK MATTHEW 

HAD HIS HAND UP AS WELL.  

 >> GOING BACK TO THE SOLAR PANELS FROM EARLIER, I THINK THE 

POINT RAISED ABOUT HOW SPECIES RAISE A LOT OF COMPLEXITIES. ONE 

THING MENTIONED BY THE APPLICANT, I THINK IT WAS BY THE 

ARCHITECT, WAS THE IDEA THAT THE DENTIST FOLKS SHOULD MOVE THE 

PANEL TO -- I THINK IT WAS A CARPORT IN THE BACK OF THAT LOT. I 

WAS THINKING ABOUT THE IDEA OF WE COULD REQUIRE AS A CONDITION 

AND I THINK IT IS WITHIN OUR POWER UNDER 23B.32.340 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE TO REQUIRE THE CONDITION TO PAY FOR MOVING THOSE. 

I THINK IT DOES AFFECT THE THINGS LISTED IN THERE SUCH AS 

GENERAL WELFARE OF THE NEIGHBORS FOLKS. I THINK THAT IS A SMALL 

ASK THAT IS REASONABLE AS A CONDITION FOR THIS AND I'D LIKE TO 

GET THE REST OFFED BOARD'S THOUGHTS. ALSO IF THE APPLICANT 

VOLUNTEERS TO DO THAT, THAT'S EVEN BETTER.  

Page 230 of 258

236



 >> S. O'KEEFE: CHARLES IS NEXT.  

 >> C. KAHN: I THINK THE CARPORT WAS A THEORETICAL CARPORT, 

NOT ONE THAT CURRENTLY EXISTS. I DON'T FEEL COMFORTABLE ASKING 

THE APPLICANT TO PAY FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TO THE NEIGHBOR'S 

PROPERTY IN ORDER TO PROVIDE THE SOLAR DEVICES. THE OTHER -- IN 

THEORY, IT MAKES TOTAL SENSE TO ME. IN THEORY IT MAKES TOTAL 

SENSE TO PUT IT ON THE ROOF OF YOUR NEW BUILDING. ALTHOUGH THE 

POINTS THAT DENISE BRINGS UP ABOUT EASEMENTS AND SO FORTH MAKE 

THAT UNTENABLE. THE OTHER PROBLEM IS THAT WE -- I DON'T THINK WE 

HAVE -- WE CAN'T COMPEL ONE NEIGHBOR TO PAY ANOTHER NEIGHBOR FOR 

A LOSS. I DON'T THINK THAT'S WITHIN OUR AUTHORITY. THAT IS 

EFFECTIVELY DEMANDING A PAYMENT. I WISH WE DID BECAUSE IT SEEMS 

LIKE A REASONABLE SOLUTION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MATTHEW. I WILL SAY THAT I MEAN I'M 

NOT -- I'M SERVING AS AN ALTERNATE COMMISSIONER. I'M NOT LIKE AN 

EXPERIENCED MEMBER LIKE THE REST OF THE BOARD. I LOOK AT WITHIN 

THAT PART OF THE CODE, I LOOK AT PART D WHICH THE BOARD MAY 

ATTACH CONDITIONS USE PERMITTED AS IT DEEMS NECESSARY. I 

ACTUALLY DO THINK IT IS WITHIN OUR POWER. LIKE I'LL -- IF LIKE 

CITY ATTORNEY WERE TO TELL US NO YOU DON'T HAVE THE POWER. BUT I 

DO THINK WE HAVE THAT POWER. MAYBE IT'S -- I DIDN'T REALIZE THAT 

APPARENTLY THE CARPORT IS THEORETICAL. THEY SHOULDN'T HAVE TO 

PAY FOR THE CARPORT BUT MAYBE IT'S SOMETHING LIKE -- I MEAN, I 

DON'T EVEN KNOW WHAT AN EASEMENT IS OFF THE TOP OF MY HEAD. BUT 

Page 231 of 258

237



LIKE I DO THINK LIKE WHETHER IT'S -- I THINK THERE DOES NEED TO 

BE SOME TYPE OF MITIGATION THAT IS TIED TO ENSURING THAT 

SPECIFICALLY THAT THE SOLAR PANEL -- WE DON'T LOSE RENEWABLE 

ENERGY. THAT'S IN PART BECAUSE I DON'T THINK IT SHOULD BE LIKE 

AN UNCONDITIONAL CASH PAYMENT. BUT I SAY LIKE MORALS AND GENERAL 

WELFARE ARE TIED TO HAVING RENEWABLE ENERGY.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I THINK WE UNDERSTAND YOUR POSITION. IF 

ANYBODY HAS A WAY TO DO IT TO ACCOMPLISH THIS GOAL, WE SHOULD 

COMMENT ON THAT. AS YOU ASKED, WE CAN GET MORE COMMENTS ON IT 

FROM THE BOARD. PATRICK.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: I'M NOT SUBJECT -- I THINK ANALOGOUS I KNOW 

THIS OCCURRED ON SEVERAL OCCASIONS THROUGHOUT THE CITY WHERE AN 

AGREEMENT IS MADE BETWEEN THE PARTIES TO -- YES, I'LL PAY FOR 

THE INSTALLATION OF A SKY LIGHT INTO YOUR BEDROOM 

IN -- ACKNOWLEDGE OF THE FACT THAT MY PROJECT IS BLOCKING A 

SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT OF YOUR LIGHT. I THINK IT WOULD BE 

APPROPRIATE FOR US TO ENCOURAGE A GOOD FAITH NEGOTIATION BETWEEN 

THE PROPERTY OWNERS TO TRY TO FIND SOME SORT OF MITIGATION NOT 

ONLY BETWEEN THE NEIGHBORS BUT FOR THE COMMON GOOD TO HAVE MORE 

SOLAR PANELS, HAVE MORE TREES. THESE THINGS ARE FOR THE COMMON 

GOOD. SO I JUST SUGGEST WE ENCOURAGE THAT APPROACH BETWEEN THE 

NEIGHBORS AND OPEN THAT SOMETHING PRODUCTIVE CAN COME OUT OF IT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I'M GOING TO MAKE A SMALL CLARIFICATION THAT 

THESE SOLAR PANELS ARE STILL GOING TO OPERATE AT 66% CAPACITY. 

Page 232 of 258

238



IT'S MAKING THEM LESS EFFICIENT IS MY UNDERSTANDING. I'LL 

RECOGNIZE IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: THANK YOU. 66% IS BETTER THAN HALF. BUT IT'S 

STILL A SIGNIFICANT REDUCTION. IN LIGHT OF THAT, I WAS THINKING 

ALONG SIMILAR LINES TO PATRICK. I'D LIKE TO AMEND THE MOTION, 

BUT NOT ADD IT TO THE CONDITION BUT MAKE IT A STRONG 

ENCOURAGEMENT TO CONTINUE ATTEMPTING TO FINAL A MUTUALLY 

AGREEABLE SOLUTION WITH THE DENTAL CLINIC AROUND THE ISSUE OF 

SOLAR ACCESS. SOLAR PANEL ACCESS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: DOES THE SECONDER FEEL OKAY IF.  

 >> I'M AMENABLE TO THAT.  

 >> I'M IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION. IF WE ENCOURAGE THE 

APPLICATION TO TALK TO THEIR NEIGHBOR ABOUT SOLAR, THAT'S NICE, 

BUT UNENFORCEABLE AND NOT OUR BUSINESS. WE MAKE OURSELVES FEEL 

BETTER WHETHER WE ASK PEOPLE TO TALK ABOUT IT BUT ALL WE DO IS 

ENGENDER CONFLICT. THIS IS A COMMERCIAL ZONE ON AN ALMOST 8-LANE 

STREET. FOUR LANE STREET, IT'S NOISY AND HAS BUS LINES AND OTHER 

7-STOREY BUILDINGS. NO COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OWNER SHOULD 

ANTICIPATE A NEW ADJACENT COMMERCIAL BUILDING IS GOING TO 

RECTIFY AN IMPACT TO A PORTION OF THEIR BUILDING THAT THEY'RE 

NOT ENTITLED. WHEN WE GOT INTO ADJACENT COMMERCIAL LANDLORDS 

JUST SETTING IMPACTS THAT WERE NOT THE BUSINESS OF THE APPLICANT 

PROPOSING A PROJECT. SO IF PEOPLE WANT TO SAY WE HOPE YOU TALK 

ABOUT IT, THAT'S FINE. BUT I WANT TO BE CLEAR THAT IT'S NOT -- I 

Page 233 of 258

239



THINK WE'RE OVERREACHING TO REQUIRE THAT. WE HAVE NO CODE BASIS 

FOR REQUIRING IT. IT'S NOT A GENERAL WELFARE FINDING. IMPROVING 

THE GENERAL WELFARE MEANS OF THE COMMUNITY AS A WHOLE. IF THERE 

IS DETRIMENT, AND IN THIS CASE, THE DETRIMENT IS TO HOW MUCH 

THEY'RE GOING TO PAY MONTHLY FOR ENERGY. THEY'RE STILL GOING TO 

PAY LESS THAN THEY WOULD HAVE WITHOUT THE SOLAR PANELS. THE 

UTILITY PANELS ARE NOT ELIMINATED. IT'S EXPECTED THAT YOUR 

NEIGHBORS MAY HAVE A TALL TREE THAT COULD REDUCE THE CAPACITY OF 

THE SOLAR PANELS. I'M MINDFUL OF THE CONCERN, BUT I DON'T THINK 

THIS IS A GOOD PATH FOR US TO GO DOWN. I'M STILL IN FAVOR OF THE 

MOTION AND IN FAVOR OF HAVING NEIGHBORS COOPERATE. WE SHOULD NOT 

BE TELLING PEOPLE TO COOPERATE IF WE DON'T HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO 

ENFORCE IT BECAUSE WE CREATE TROUBLE AND EXPECTATIONS THAT 

SOMETHING IS GOING TO MAKE PEOPLE'S LIVES BETTER AND NOTHING IS 

LIKELY TO OCCUR AND PEOPLE GET MAD AT US AND THE APPLICANT. WE 

SHOULD KNOW THAT'S NOT A GOOD PATH TO WALK DOWN.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I COMPLETELY AGREE, DENISE. TERESA FIRST AND 

THEN PATRICK.  

 >> T. CLARKE: I WOULD LIKE TO HAVE US CONSIDER THE FENCE 

EITHER SEPARATELY. I WOULD LIKE TO SEE IF YOU'RE FRIENDLY TO 

AMENDING THAT SLIGHTLY. WHAT I WOULD LIKE TO SEE US RECOMMEND 

THE DESIGN REVIEW, SELECT THE TREES THAT ARE AGAINST MARTIN 

SCHWARTZ. I WOULD LIKE TO RECOMMEND A DESIGN REVIEW. WITH MATURE 

TREES THERE, LARGER TREES, TREES THAT ARE GOING TO GROW LARGER 

Page 234 of 258

240



IS GOING TO REDUCE THE IMPACT ON MARTIN'S HOUSE. THAT'S THE 

HOUSE YOU LOOK AT 0.7-A YOU CAN SEE IT WELL. IF YOU LOOK AT THE 

SECTION GOING FROM THE STREET BACK TO THE INNER PART OF THE LOT, 

THE FENCE WOULD GET TALLER AND TALLER AS YOU GET CLOSER TO 

DERBY. IF YOU HAD IT AT 8 FEET, I THINK 8 FEET IS REALLY TALL. I 

THINK I'D BE OKAY WITH 7 FEET. BUT I THINK -- HOW MANY PEOPLE 

CAN SEE OVER A 6-FOOT FENCE? SOME OF US CAN. AND THEN BUT WHO IS 

GOING TO BE KIND OF POKING THEIR HEAD OVER AND STARING AT OTHER 

PEOPLE? ANYWAY, I DON'T KNOW WHAT AN 8-FOOT FENCE WOULD GIVE US. 

I THINK 8 FEET IS EXTREME. IF YOU WANT TO KEEP IT AT 8 FEET, I 

WOULD ASK THAT YOU SEPARATE THAT MOTION FROM THE MAIN MOTION 

BECAUSE I WANT TO SPORT PROJECT AND I THINK IT'S WELL-DESIGNED 

AND I THINK THE ARCHITECT HAS MADE GOOD DESIGN MOVES TO REDUCE 

THE IMPACT TO THE ADJACENT PROPERTIES IN TERMS OF ALL THE THINGS 

WE TALKED ABOUT ALREADY. AND I WOULD LIKE US TO HAVE DESIGN 

REVIEW CONFIRM THE TREES THERE WHERE THE DOG RUN USED TO BE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: PATRICK.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: ON THE SUBJECT OF FENCE, I GENERALLY SUPPORT 

TERESA'S POSITION THAT SIX FEET ON PROPERTY LINES IS A 

REASONABLE STANDARD. I THINK IN THIS CASE, I DON'T KNOW THE 

EXACT LINES OF SIGHT INVOLVED BUT IF A LIVING SPACE IS ABOVE 

GRADE, A PERSON IS STANDING 9 OR 10 FEET OFF THE GROUND. IN 

WHICH CASE AN 8-FOOT FENCE WOULD PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL LEVEL OF 

PRIVACY. IS THIS REQUESTED BY THE NEIGHBORS. I THINK IN LIGHT OF 

Page 235 of 258

241



THAT REQUEST BY THE NEIGHBORS, TO WHICH THE PROJECT PROPONENT 

HAS AGREED, I DON'T SEE ANY REASON TO SPLIT HAIRS OVER IT. AND 

THEN I BELIEVE I MIGHT HAVE BEEN FROM DENISE'S COMMENTS, I MIGHT 

HAVE BEEN MISUNDERSTOOD AS TO WHAT I WAS SUGGESTING IN TERMS OF 

GOOD FAITH DISCUSSION AROUND SOLAR. I WAS NOT IN ANY WAY 

SUGGESTING THAT THERE BE A REQUIREMENT SIMPLY AN ENCOURAGEMENT 

TO HAVE THE DISCUSSION. AND WE CAN ALL HOPE THAT IT MIGHT LEAD 

SOMEWHERE. I THINK I HAVE PERSONALLY SEEN TANGIBLE POSITIVE 

RESULTS FROM THOSE KINDS OF DISCUSSIONS THAT ARE UNDERTAKEN 

VOLUNTARILY AMONG PROPERTY OWNERS AND I WOULD ENCOURAGE THAT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MATTHEW.  

 >> I WANT TO AGREE WITH -- WHAT WAS YOUR LAST NAME? 

COMMISSIONER PINKSTON. I AGREE THAT THE -- WHEN WE MAKE 

RECOMMENDATIONS OR SUGGESTIONS THAT THEY ARE NONBINDING. I DON'T 

THINK THAT'S THE ROLE OF CITY GOVERNMENT OR ANY GOVERNMENT FROM 

THAT MATTER TO BE SAYING WE GIVE RECOMMENDATIONS. THAT'S WHY I 

THINK MEDIATION BOARDS THAT DON'T HAVE RENT CONTROL POWERS ARE 

NOT USEFUL. I AGREE BECAUSE LIKE WHEN I THINK THAT THERE IS NO 

WAY TO ENFORCE IT AND SO -- BUT IN TERMS OF -- I THINK IT 

AFFECTS THE GENERAL WELFARE BECAUSE IT AFFECTS EVERYBODY. THERE 

IS LESS RENEWABLE ENERGY IS HOW I SEE IT WITH GENERAL WELFARE. I 

DON'T LIMIT IT TO JUST THAT. I THINK IT IS WITHIN OUR POWER -- I 

THINK IT'S MORE THAN FAIR FOR US TO CONDITION LIKE TO PUT IN A 

CONDITION OF SOME KIND TO MAKE SURE THE DECREASE IN SOLAR ENERGY 

Page 236 of 258

242



IS NOT LOSS SO WE DON'T HAVE LESS RENEWABLE ENERGY BUT 

SPECIFICALLY FOR THE NEIGHBORS. FOR THEM THEMSELVES ARE NOT 

LOSING THE BENEFIT THEY PUT IN. I THINK IT'S A MORE THAN FAIR 

ASK. I DON'T KNOW THAT I CAN FIND THE REQUIREMENTS IN THE CODE 

THAT THERE IS NO DETRIMENT TO THE THINGS THAT I'M REQUIRED TO 

FIND NO JUDGMENT FOR FOR APPROVAL OF THIS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: YOU'VE MADE YOUR POINT CLEAR. I'M GOING TO 

RECOGNIZE IGOR. AND IGOR IS NEXT AND THEN DENISE THAT I PROMISED 

I WOULD LIMIT BOARD SPEAKING TIME. LET'S GIVE EVERYONE -- I'LL 

RECOGNIZE YOU AND LET'S GO DOWN AND JUST EACH SAY FOR NO MORE 

THAN ONE OR TWO MINUTES WHAT WE HAVE TO SAY AND THEN -- I 

PROMISED A SHORT MEETING AND I FEEL LIKE BEHIND NOT DELIVERING 

ON THAT PROMISE. LET'S TRY THAT AND SEE HOW IT GOES. I'M GOING 

TO -- DENISE, ARE YOU OKAY WITH THAT? IGOR. A MINUTE.  

 >> I. TREGUB: PERFECT. I LOVE IT. SO I WOULD SUGGEST THAT 

THIS HOUR JUST IF YOU WANT TO CHANGE SOMETHING, PUT A MOTION OUT 

ON THE FLOOR AND SEE WHERE IT LANDS. WE NEED TO MOVE FORWARD ON 

SOMETHING. WHERE I COME DOWN ON -- I APPRECIATE WHERE TERESA IS 

COMING FROM. I FEEL DEEPLY UNCOMFORTABLE SECOND GUESSING 

SOMETHING THAT THE NEIGHBORS WHO HAVE A MUCH BETTER APPRECIATION 

OF THAT AREA THAN I DO. I TRUST THEM. SO WHERE I WOULD COME DOWN 

ON THAT IS IF THERE IS A WAY TO MAKE SOMETHING A CONDITION AND 

SAY EITHER 8 FEET OR IF THE APPLICANT AND NEIGHBORS AGREE TO 

SOMETHING DIFFERENT THAT GOES TO DESIGN REVIEW, I'D BE AMENABLE 

Page 237 of 258

243



TO THAT BUT I DON'T KNOW HOW TO PUT THAT INTO A CONDITION THAT 

LOOKS LIKE A CONDITION. OPEN TO SUGGESTIONS.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: I WOULD LIKE TO REQUEST THAT YOU VOTE ON THE 

FENCE SEPARATELY. I THINK IT'S NOT GOING TO BE THAT GREAT. THEY 

CAN GO UP TO 8 FEET. IF YOU WANT TO -- IF EVERYONE WANTS TO 

AGREE, YOU CAN DO THAT AS A SEPARATE MOTION. IT'S A SEPARATE USE 

PERMIT THAT HASN'T EVEN BEEN APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS CURRENT 

APPLICATION. SO IF YOU DON'T MIND JUST TAKING THAT OUT OF MAIN 

MOTION AND DOING IT SEPARATELY, I WOULD BE HAPPY.  

 >> I. TREGUB: WE COULD SEVER IT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: CAN WE DO THAT IF IT'S NOT ON THE AGENDA? WE 

SHOULD GET CLARIFICATION ON THIS. I WANT SHANNON'S OPINION.  

 >> I DON'T THINK I'M ANY MORE QUALIFIED THAN ANY OF THE ZAB 

MEMBERS ON THIS. I'M COMFORTABLE ADDING IT TO THE APPROVALS THAT 

ARE IN FRONT OF THE ZAB TONIGHT.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: BECAUSE IT'S RELATED TO WHAT WE'RE 

DISCUSSING.  

 >> IT IS VERY MUCH RELATED.  

 >> KEVIN: I WANTED TO MAKE SURE. THANK YOU. TERESA.  

 >> T. CLARKE: I'LL MAKE A SUBSTITUTE MOTION TO APPROVE IT 

WITHOUT THE FENCE. I THINK IT'S IMPORTANT -- IT HASN'T BEEN 

STUDIED THAT MUCH. NEIGHBORS THINK THEY WANT BIGGER IS BETTER. I 

THINK IT ACTUALLY REDUCES SAFETY IN THE NEIGHBORHOOD. THERE IS 

Page 238 of 258

244



SOMETHING CALLED DEFENSIBLE SPACE. HAVING EVERYTHING WALLED UP 

IS -- IT ISN'T GOOD.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THERE IS A SUBSTITUTE MOTION. PATRICK'S 

TURN.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: I SUPPORT THE MAIN MOTION. IN CLARIFYING THE 

LANGUAGE YOU COULD SAY MAXIMUM OF 8 FEET. AS AGREED BETWEEN THE 

PROPONENT AND NEIGHBORS.  

 >> I BELIEVE THE LANGUAGE IS UP TO 8 FEET.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: SO IT'S COVERED. NO NEED TO IMPROVISE.  

 >> THE MAIN MOTION INCLUDED UP TO 8 FEET.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: DOHEE.  

 >> D. KIM: I THOUGHT THE SOLAR PANEL DISCUSSION WAS 

INTERESTING, BUT I THINK AS THIS CONVERSATION BECOMES MORE 

FREQUENT WITH OTHER PROJECTS, THINK WE WOULD HAVE A MORE SET 

IDEA OF HOW TO HANDLE KIND OF MITIGATING THE IMPACT TO SOLAR 

PANELS, BUT FOR NOW, I SUPPORT THE MAIN MOTION AND IN REGARDS TO 

RENEWABLE ENERGY, I'D BE LOOKING FORWARD TO WHETHER THE CITY 

MAKES A JUST TRANSITION TO RENEWABLE ENERGY IN THE FUTURE WITH 

OTHER PROJECTS. BUT FOR THIS PROJECT IN PARTICULAR, I'M NOT 

COMFORTABLE MAKING IT AS A CONDITION, BUT I SUPPORT MAIN MOTION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I THINK THAT UP TO 8 FEET IDEA IS BRILLIANT 

BECAUSE -- WHERE IS MY MINUTE? BECAUSE I WAS GOING TO SUGGEST IT 

CHANGING IN THE EVENT OF A CHANGE OF MIND. I THINK THIS IS 

GREAT. I LIKE THE MAIN MOTION BECAUSE THIS IS A LARGE BUILDING 

Page 239 of 258

245



THAT IS GOING TO HAVE IMPACTS TO THE NEIGHBORHOOD AS IT ALWAYS 

DOES. I SAW A LOT OF NEGOTIATION THAT WAS PRETTY FRUITFUL AND I 

THINK SEEMS LIKE BOTH SIDES WERE NEGOTIATING IN GOOD FAITH AND 

WE GOT MOST OF WHAT THEY WANTED. THE OUTSTANDING THING IS THE 

GLASS WALL AND I WAS CONVINCED BY THE WINDOW WASHING ARGUMENT. I 

DON'T LIKE TO IMPOSE CONDITIONS THAT CAUSE UNINTENDED 

CONSEQUENCES. I'M SORRY TO THE NEIGHBORS, I KNOW YOU'VE WANTED 

THAT BUT YOU'VE GOTTEN A LOT OF WHAT YOU WANTED AND IT'S A NICE 

PROJECT AND I WANT TO APPROVE IT.  

 >> I WANT TO ACKNOWLEDGE THE EFFORTS OF THE NEIGHBORS AND 

DESIGN TEAM TO WORK TOGETHER. IT TALKS A LOT OF TIME.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: TIME IS UP.  

 >> BUT I ALSO WANT TO ACKNOWLEDGE THE -- THERE WAS A 

COMMENT PATRICK THAT YOU MADE ABOUT LOWERING THE PODIUM BY 

POSSIBLY GETTING THE PARKING BELOW GRADE. I APPRECIATE THAT WAS 

DONE BEFORE THEY EVEN CAME BACK HERE. AND I THINK THAT'S A LOT 

OF THE REASON WHY THOSE KINDS OF THINGS ARE WHY THIS IS BEING 

GENERALLY SUPPORTED UP HERE. I'LL BE VOTING FOR THE MOTION.  

 >> I SUPPORT THE MAIN MOTION IF WE MOVE TO MAKE THE SOLAR 

CHANGES MANDATORY, I AGREE WITH EVERYTHING MY COLLEAGUES SAID. I 

APPRECIATE THE NEIGHBORS WORKING WITH THE DEVELOPERS AND THE 

DEVELOPERS WORKING WITH THE NEIGHBORS AND THE ZONING BOARD TO 

ADDRESS THE CONCERNS. I SUPPORT THE MAIN MOTION.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: MATTHEW.  

Page 240 of 258

246



 >> IF I MADE SOME TYPE OF SUBSTITUTE MOTION TO INVOLVE 

SOMETHING ABOUT MAKING SOLAR MANDATORY, IS THERE ANYBODY ELSE ON 

THE BOARD THAT WOULD POTENTIALLY ACCEPT THE MOTION?  

 >> JUST MAKE THE MOTION.  

 >> I MOTION TO REQUIRE A SUBSTITUTE MOTION THAT REQUIRES A 

CONDITION TO PAY THE COST OF RELOCATING SOLAR PANELS SO THERE IS 

NO LOSS IN THE AMOUNT OF ENERGY GENERATED FROM THEM.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THERE CAN BE A SECOND. DO YOU WANT TO TAKE 

25 SECONDS?  

 >> IF THIS DOESN'T GET A SECOND, MY RECOMMENDATION IS THAT 

LIKE THE APPLICANT AND THE FOLKS RAISING THE ISSUES ABOUT THE 

SOLAR PANEL NEGOTIATE SOME KIND OF DEAL AND LIKE BASICALLY WE 

AGREE TO THESE CONDITIONS AND PART OF THAT, WE WON'T APPEAL THIS 

TO CITY COUNCIL. THAT'S ONE WAY.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WE'VE ALL SAID OUR PIECES.  

 >> IS ANYONE SECONDING?  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: THEY WILL IF THEY WANT TO. THAT WAS GOOD. 

EVERYONE. IS ANYONE DYING TO SAY ANYTHING ELSE? LIKE SECOND A 

MOTION?  

 >> T. CLARKE: SO THE PROPERTY LINE, NOT THE FENCE FACING 

THE STREET.  

 >> I. TREGUB: WHAT DID WE -- I THINK SOME.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: JUST ON THE PROPERTY LINE, NOT FACING THE 

STREET.  

Page 241 of 258

247



 >> MY UNDERSTANDING IT'S THE WESTERN PROPERTY LINE BETWEEN 

THE RESIDENTIAL USES AND THE PROPOSED PROJECT.  

 >> SO ONLY ON THE WEST SIDE. IT'S ONE SPECIFIC PROPERTY?  

 >> [OFF MIC]  

 >> SO THE SCHWARTZ'S DID NOT WANT IT 8 FEET. IT'S UP TO. SO 

THEY CAN DO 6 FEET IN SOME PLACES. 8 IN OTHER.  

 >> SO IT'S ONLY ADJACENT TO WHICH ADDRESS? 2643 DANA'S 

PROPERTY LINE. THAT WOULD BE MUCH BETTER. I FEEL MORE 

COMFORTABLE WITH THAT. I DIDN'T WANT TO SEE A HUGE FENCE ALL THE 

WAY ALONG THERE. I FEEL BETTER. 24108 CARLETON. IGOR, THIS IS 

YOUR MOTION.  

 >> YES.  

 >> DOHEE?  

 >> YES.  

 >> GREAT. ANYONE ELSE WANT TO SAY ANYTHING OR CAN WE VOTE 

ON IT?  

 >> I SECOND CALLING THE QUESTION.  

 >> CLERK: BOARD MEMBER CLARKE. I AM VOTING FOR IT BECAUSE 

OF THE CLARIFICATION. THANK YOU VERY MUCH.  

 >> CLERK: BOARD MEMBER TREGUB.  

 >> YES.  

 >> KIM.  

 >> YES.  

 >> PINKSTON.  

Page 242 of 258

248



 >> YES.  

 >> SHEAHAN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> BOARD MEMBER LEWIS.  

 >> ABSTAIN.  

 >> CLERK: VICE CHAIR KAHN.  

 >> YES.  

 >> AND CHAIR O'KEEFE.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: YES. MOTION PASSES APPEALABLE TO CITY 

COUNCIL. OKAY. GOOD JOB, EVERYONE. SORRY, DAVID, YOU CAN E-MAIL 

ME. DON'T GO. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS. DO WE HAVE ANY?  

 >> WE HAD ONE.  

 >> THERE IS ONE.  

 >> I. TREGUB: WE HAD A PRODUCTIVE -- IN LIGHT OF PUBLIC 

HEALTH CONCERNS RIGHT NOW --  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: LET'S SKIP THEM. DRC. A QUICK REPORT. EXCUSE 

ME, WE'RE HAVING A DRC SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT.  

 >> BURTON EDWARDS, ONE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE DRC HAS MOVED 

AWAY. AND SO, THERE WAS OUTREACH FOR, YOU KNOW, A REPLACEMENT. 

FIVE PEOPLE HAVE THROWN THEIR HATS IN THE RING. ONE OF THEM IS 

ME. I KNOW THAT PATRICK HAS BEEN INTERESTED IN JOINING DESIGN 

REVIEW. I KNOW THAT CARRIE HAS AN INTEREST IN THAT. I'M 

INTERESTED IN THE ARCHITECTURAL SLOT. I HOPE YOU'LL SUPPORT ME. 

I HOPE THE COMMITTEE WILL SELECT ME. THE ONE REASON I WANT TO DO 

Page 243 of 258

249



IT IS I THINK IT WOULD GIVE A BETTER REPRESENTATION BY ZAB ON 

THE DESIGN REVIEW. I JUST WANTED TO MENTION THAT IS HAPPENING. 

SO WE'LL SEE HOW IT ALL EVOLVES.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: WHEN DO WE VOTE ON THAT?  

 >> THE PROCESS IS THAT THERE IS A SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE 

DESIGN REVIEW THAT WILL BE PRESENTING APPLICANT. THEY'LL MAKE A 

REPRESENTATION FOR ZAB BUT IT WILL BE THE ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

BOARD DECISION. AND I ACTUALLY CAN PARTICIPATE IN THAT VOTE. 

IT'S NOT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: IGOR.  

 >> I. TREGUB: ON THAT NOTE, AND WE HAD A MUCH MORE DULL 

SELECTION PROCESS FOR CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR, BUT THANKS TO THE 

SUPPORT OF OUR COLLEAGUES, THANK YOU FOR MAKING ME CHAIR OF JAY 

SIZZLE AND SHOSHANA VICE CHAIR. IT'S GREAT TO SEE SO MUCH TALENT 

HERE ON ZAB AND FLOWING TO OTHER COMMISSION.  

 >> CONGRATULATIONS SHOSHANA AND IGOR.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: ANY MORE REPORTS? PATRICK.  

 >> P. SHEAHAN: I HAVE A NON-REPORT FROM ZORP. THERE WERE 

FOUR PEOPLE SHOWED UP AT THE LAST SCHEDULED MEETING. I WAS THE 

ONLY PERSON FROM ZAB. THERE WERE THREE PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEMBERS. IT TURNS OUT THAT TO HAVE A QUORUM FOR THESE COMMITTEES 

THAT ARE SPLIT BETWEEN ZAB AND PLANNING, THAT THERE NEED TO BE 

TWO MEMBERS OF EACH TO CONSTITUTE A QUORUM. SO THE MEETING WAS 

CANCELED AND PROCESS OF RESCHEDULING. I'M NOT SCOLDING, I'M 

Page 244 of 258

250



SAYING IT'S IMPORTANT IF WE'RE COMMITTED TO GOING WE MAKE SURE 

AT LEAST TWO OF US ARE THERE. IF ONE OF US HAS A PROBLEM OR SEND 

SOMEBODY ELSE LIKE WE OFTEN DO.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I DIDN'T COME TO JAY SIZZLE.  

 >> I. TREGUB: WE SHOULD PROBABLY HAVE AN OFF-LINE 

CONVERSATION WITH STAFF. BECAUSE I KNEW TWO WEEKS IN ADVANCE 

THAT MEETING WOULD CONFLICT WITH A DIFFERENT COMMISSION MEETING. 

I WAS TOLD IT WOULD BE POSSIBLE TO FIND AN ALTERNATE THEN I WAS 

TOLD THAT MAYBE ALTERNATES ARE NOT ASSIGNED FOR ZORP. MAYBE WE 

WANT TO CONSIDER A AGENDIZING WHENEVER WE MEET AGAIN. I GUESS 

WE'RE EXEMPT FROM NOT MEETING. MAYBE ON OUR NEXT AGENDA PUTTING 

ON SELECTING ALTERNATES FOR ZORP.  

 >> S. O'KEEFE: I SECOND THAT. SHANNON. IS THAT FINE?  

 >> I WILL LOOK INTO IT AND REPORT BACK AND EITHER REPORT 

BACK WITH IT BEING ON THE AGENDA OR I'LL JUST REPORT BACK.  

 >> EITHER WAY. THANK YOU. IT'S A GOOD IDEA.  

 >> WE WERE TRYING TO GET ALTERNATES FOR DESIGN REVIEW AND 

FOUND THAT PER THE CLERK'S OFFICE IT WASN'T LEGALLY, JUST THE 

WAY THE DUMB THING WAS WORDED, WE COULDN'T DO IT. THAT MAY BE 

DESIGN REVIEW.  

 >> ONE MORE COMMENT, I THINK IF WE HAVE THREE PEOPLE, IT 

SHOULDN'T BE THAT HARD FOR TWO OF US TO GET THERE. IF THAT'S A 

PROBLEM, WE SAY SO AHEAD OF TIME AND IT GETS RESCHEDULED. THAT'S 

THE EASIEST WAY TO DEAL WITH IT.  

Page 245 of 258

251



 >> S. O'KEEFE: I THINK WE ARE ADJOURNED. I HAVE TO DEAL 

WITH THIS. THANK YOU EVERYBODY. STAY HEALTHY. SOCIAL DISTANCING 

IS GOOD. FLATTEN THE CURVE. GOOD NIGHT.  

Page 246 of 258

252



ATTACHMENT 5
Page 247 of 258

253



6-3-2020 

Dear Ashley, 

I have sent Pamela a letter with color samples. As we have not finalized the color, I placed colors to 

which we will stay near that shade or color value. I am attaching those colors to this letter so it can be 

shown that they are much darker gray colors. I am also attaching to this letter the color of TPO roofing I 

will use in the new addition roof as per the request of the ZAB board. 

As the City knowns, that Pamela is extremely hard to get a hold of, I am attaching the receipt from the 

postal office showing that I did mail this letter certified yesterday June 2nd and it’ll be arriving to her 

home today June 3rd. 

Furthermore, I want to make known 2 homes near Pamela’s home which are modern looking homes like 

mine and that they are white. Also, one more newly built home (last 3 years) of another home in the 

neighborhood with similar style as mine. 

While I know it is Pamela’s right to appeal, I want to make known of 2 homes in our very close vicinity 

which the City approved and they did not enforce a color change or choosing the color of the home for 

the owner because a neighbor didn’t like the color the owners picked. It is our right to choose the color 

of our home, especially if nearby neighbor used a similar color palette. While I will add some gray’s and 

darker colors to my new construction, which I provided. I want to protect my rights, especially as the 

City approve 2 brand new builds with similar home style and colors. It would be atrocious for us all to 

spend our money time and resources arguing a color of a home. Please note that our neighbor, 1 home 

down from me and 1 home down from Pamela just built a home that is larger, taller and whiter than 

mine. Directly below Pamela’s. Lastly, for the record, my home is not white is light gray which you can 

see in the photo of my home in this document.  

Thank you for your time.  

Rod Ubillus 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 248 of 258

254



Receipt from postal service (letter to Pamela) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 249 of 258

255



Color which will be used for new construction roof, TPO gray. 

 

 

These are the shades of gray which I will stay near. Similar color value and shade of gray. 

 

 

Page 250 of 258

256



Example 1:  

1441 Grizzly Peak Blvd. which is the home right in front and 1 home to the left of Pamela’s. (My home is 

right in front of Pamela’s but one home to the right) Also, this home is on the same side of the street as 

mine and it there is 1 home separating me and 1441.  

This is a photo of the lot of land before the home was build. They are still building it. 

 

 

This is a photo of the home now built. As you can see, this home is white, taller than mine and a brand 

new construction, approved by the City of Bekrleey. They did not get any color restrictions. The home is 

modern as is mine.  The use permit for that home is Use Permit #ZP2015-0089 

Page 251 of 258

257



Example 2:  

This home is on Pamela’s street. It is 3-5 homes from her home.1453 Summit rd. 

I just want to point out that this home is modern and white, my home looks similar as well.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 252 of 258

258



Example 3: 

This is a home 2 blocks away on grizzly peak. Address is 1234 Grizzly peak. This was a completely new 

built home in 2016. It was an empty lot before. But you can see this is also a very modern home in 

white. Similar style to mine. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 253 of 258

259



This is a photo of my home taken yesterday. (all photos were taken yesterday or today) 

 

 

 

Page 254 of 258

260



Page 255 of 258

261



 

Administrative Record 
ZAB Appeal: 

1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard 
Administrative Use Permit  

#ZP2019-0111 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
This attachment is on file and available for review at 
the City Clerk Department, or can be accessed from 
the City Council Website.  Copies of the attachment 
are available upon request. 
 

 
 

City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
or from:  
 
The City of Berkeley, City Council’s Web site 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/ 

Attachments 6-7 

262



ATTACHMENT 8

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING – BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM,

1231 ADDISON STREET
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY REMOTE VIDEO ONLY

ZAB APPEAL: ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT #ZP 2019-0111, 1449 GRIZZLY PEAK 
BOULEVARD

Notice is hereby given by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that on TUESDAY JULY 7, 
2020 at 6:00 P.M. a public hearing will be conducted to consider an appeal of a decision by the 
Zoning Adjustments Board to uphold the Zoning Officer’s decision to approve Administrative 
Use Permit #2019-0111, to construct a 500 square-foot major residential addition on the third 
story of an existing 2,791 square-foot, three-story single-family dwelling, increasing the 
average and maximum building height by approximately two feet, and increase the number of 
bedrooms on the parcel from four to five.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.CityofBerkeley.info as of JUNE 30, 2020. Once posted, the agenda for this meeting 
will include a link for public participation using Zoom video technology.

For further information, please contact Ashley James, Project Planner at (510) 981-7458.
Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City Clerk, 2180 Milvia Street, 
Berkeley, CA 94704, in order to ensure delivery to all Councilmembers and inclusion in the 
agenda packet.  

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of the 
City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-
mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but 
if included in any communication to the City Council, will become part of the public 
record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made 
public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the City 
Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not 
include that information in your communication.  Please contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information.

__________________________________
Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Mailed: June 23, 2020

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny(Code Civ. Proc. 1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 65009(c)(5) an appeal, the 
following requirements and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6, 
no lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny or approve a Zoning Adjustments Board decision may be 
filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  
Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against 
a City Council decision to approve or deny a Zoning Adjustments Board decision, the issues and 
evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a public hearing 
or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Page 257 of 258

263

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


ATTACHMENT 8
If you challenge the above in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone 
else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the 
City of Berkeley at, or prior to, the public hearing.  Background information concerning this proposal will 
be available by request from the City Clerk Department and posted on the City of Berkeley webpage 
prior to the public hearing. 

Page 258 of 258

264



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning & Development Department

Subject: ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir), Use Permit #ZP2018-
0236

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing regarding an appeal of the Zoning Adjustments Board 
decision to deny Use Permit #ZP2018-0236, a request to establish a new 50’ high 
monopole 4G LTE wireless facility operated by Verizon Wireless at the East Bay 
Municipal Utility District site consisting of six antennas, six remote radio units, and 
associated ground equipment and, upon conclusion, consider the record of proceedings 
and testimony to determine whether the findings for approval can be made regarding 
view protection and camouflage.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
On December 17, 2018, the applicant team for Verizon Wireless, represented by David 
Haddock of Ridge Communications Inc., submitted an application for Use Permit 
#ZP2018-0236 for a proposed 50’ high wireless freestanding tower facility with 
antennas and remote radio units mounted on the monopole. Equipment cabinets and a 
standby generator are proposed on the ground near the monopole. The site is in the 
Single Family Residential District – Hillside Overlay (R-1H) Zoning District. 

On June 27, 2019, the ZAB conducted a public hearing and discussed the project. (See 
Attachment 2 for the staff report that was presented to ZAB.) There were approximately 
25 speakers, most of whom were local residents who opposed the project on grounds 
related to aesthetics, noise, health hazards, safety, property values, and procedural 
issues, among others.  The ZAB found that the applicant did not adequately address 
concerns and questions regarding the need for the facility and expressed concerns 
regarding the design and location of the facility. The ZAB determined that it could not 
make the necessary findings for approval and therefore denied the Use Permit by a 
unanimous vote (Yes: Clarke, Habibi, Kahn, Kim, Lee-Owens, Olson, Selawsky, 
Sheahan, Tregub). 

Page 1 of 143

265

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Special Meeting Item



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 2

On July 2, 2019, staff issued the notice of the ZAB decision (see AR pages 729 - 736). 
On July 16, 2019, the applicant filed an appeal of the ZAB decision with the City Clerk 
(see Attachment 3). On July 23, 2019, the appellant filed an agreement to toll the shot 
clock in order to allow the Council an opportunity to review the appeal.  On October 15, 
2019, notices were posted for an October 29, 2019 City Council hearing. The appellant 
subsequently requested a postponement of the originally scheduled October 29, 2019 
City Council hearing in order to prepare additional studies.  Several additional 
extensions were agreed to between the appellant and City (see Attachment 4).

On March 16, 2020, the applicant submitted additional information regarding the local 
service limitations and alternative sites that were considered. On May 7, 2020 the City’s 
peer reviewer determined that these documents reasonably demonstrated that the 
proposed facility would improve service in service area (including filling a coverage gap) 
and that the proposed antenna installation would have the least visual impact on the 
community (see Attachments 5A, 5B and 5C).

The City Clerk set the matter for a public hearing at the City Council meeting on July 7, 
2020. At least ten days prior to the hearing, staff posted the public hearing notice at the 
site and two nearby locations, and mailed notices to property owners and occupants 
within 300 feet of the project site and to all registered neighborhood groups that cover 
this area. This public hearing at City Council is required to resolve the appeal.

BACKGROUND
The site is in the Berkeley hills on the east side of Euclid Avenue. It is a 3.7 acre parcel 
belonging to the East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) and is developed with an 
approximately 2.6 million gallon water storage tank (reservoir). The balance of the 
property includes vehicular access areas for maintenance trucks, as well as 
landscaping, including a pedestrian path. The property is bowl-shaped, surrounded by 
an earthen berm and fence, with substantial trees around the perimeter of the property. 
The topography of the neighborhood is such that the elevation of the surrounding area 
is lower to the west across Euclid Avenue and increases to the east with homes located 
roughly 400 feet away and at an elevation 20 to 60 feet above the site. The area 
primarily consists of one- and two-story single-family residential dwellings along Euclid 
Avenue, Codornices Road, Rose Street and Tamalpais Road. Two public parks are also 
in the vicinity including Codornices Park immediately to the north (including a large 
playfield) and the Berkeley Rose Garden approximately 500 feet to the northwest and 
across the street (see AR page 2).

The proposed wireless telecommunications facility consists of a freestanding tower 
(“monopole”) that would be located at the far northern edge of the bowl-shaped 
depression on the site. Six antennas, six remote radio units, and other related cables 
and equipment are proposed to be mounted on the monopole. The equipment cabinets 
and standby generator are proposed to be placed on the ground of the lowest 
elevations of the site and would be obscured from view from the street.

Page 2 of 143

266



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 3

Federal Telecommunication Regulations
The Federal Communications Commission (FCC), pursuant to regulations established 
under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and the Spectrum Act of 2012, regulates the 
development of wireless communications infrastructure, limiting the scope and duration 
of local government review. Federal regulations prohibit the regulation of wireless 
facilities by state and local governments on the basis of Radio Frequency (RF) 
emissions to the extent that such facilities comply with the FCC’s regulations. 

The federal and state laws also limit or prohibit local discretionary review over certain 
other technical aspects of wireless facilities, including demonstration of need or 
alternative siting requirements that are excessively burdensome to applicants. This 
application has demonstrated compliance with all applicable FCC standards for RF; the 
City’s RF peer review consultant reviewed and confirmed these facts.

With respect to siting and other local regulations, current FCC rules prohibit local 
governments from adopting regulations that “materially inhibit” the ability of wireless 
providers to provide services. Under current federal rules, “a state or local legal 
requirement could materially inhibit service in numerous ways—not only by rendering a 
service provider unable to provide an existing service in a new geographic area or by 
restricting the entry of a new provider in providing service in a particular area, but also 
by materially inhibiting the introduction of new services or the improvement of existing 
services.” (FCC 18-133 ¶ 37.) Thus, local regulations cannot require an applicant to 
demonstrate the existence of a “coverage gap” or prevent an applicant from densifying 
an existing wireless network. (Ibid.)

On the other hand, the City retains the authority to regulate the placement and design of 
wireless facilities based on objective criteria, so long as reasonable alternatives are 
available to the carrier. Specifically, FCC Order No. 18-133 provides that local 
jurisdictions may implement rules for aesthetic and locational requirements that are “(1) 
reasonable, (2) no more burdensome than those applied to other types of infrastructure 
deployments, and are (3) objective and published in advance.” (FCC 18-133 ¶ 86.)

Additionally, local jurisdictions’ decisions on wireless applications have permitting time 
limits as mandated by Federal regulations, commonly referred to as the “shot clock,” 
which for this application originally expired on June 10, 2019. The applicant team did not 
originally agree to an extension or “tolling” of the clock prior to the ZAB public hearing 
on July 2, 2019. Following the submittal of the appeal by the applicant, the applicant 
team later agreed to toll this clock until November 22, 2019, to allow for the City Council 
public hearing and resolution of the appeal. Following the Applicant’s request for the 
postponement of the originally scheduled City Council hearing, the tolling agreement 
was subsequently extended to July 10, 2020 to allow for this hearing to take place. 

Page 3 of 143

267



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 4

City of Berkeley Wireless Telecommunication Regulations and ZAB Findings
The City of Berkeley’s regulations with respect to wireless telecommunications facilities 
complement the Federal requirements and focus on compliance with established 
standards while protecting public safety and promoting community welfare and aesthetic 
quality. 

The City’s regulations require that applicants provide information regarding the need for 
the facility and related design issues (see BMC Section 23C.17.100.B.3): 

(1) the telecommunications objectives sought for the proposed location; 
(2) whether the proposed facility is necessary to prevent or fill a significant gap or 
capacity shortfall in the applicant’s service area; 
(3) whether it is the least intrusive means of doing so; and 
(4) whether there are any alternative sites that would have fewer aesthetic 
impacts while providing comparable service. 

The application of BMC Section 23C.17.100.B.3 is constrained by FCC rules, which 
among other things expressly preempt local regulations requiring an applicant to 
demonstrate a gap in coverage, reject the “least intrusive means” standard that had 
been previously applied in certain federal Courts of Appeals, and prohibit the denial of a 
permit application based on unpublished or non-objective standards.

Subject to these constraints, the City retains discretion to regulate the design of wireless 
facilities, including its visibility from a public park, while considering technological 
requirements and the facilitation of future co-locations. Thus, placement, screening, 
camouflage, and colors and materials for facilities must be chosen to minimize visibility 
(see BMC Sections 23C.17.050.B, 23C.17.070.B and C, and 23C.17.100.B.2). 
Specifically, BMC Sections 23C.17.050.B states: that “[a]ll wireless telecommunications 
facilities proposed for locations where they would be readily visible from the public right-
of-way or from the habitable living areas of residential units within 100 feet shall 
incorporate appropriate techniques to camouflage or disguise the facility, and/or blend it 
into the surrounding environment, to the greatest extent feasible.” In addition, BMC 
Section 23C.17.050.C provides: 

C.    No readily visible antenna shall be placed at a location where it would impair 
a significant or sensitive view corridor except as provided in subsection 1, below.

1.    …. [G]round-mounted antennas shall not be placed in direct line of 
sight of significant or sensitive view corridors or where they adversely affect 
scenic vistas unless the [City] finds that the facility incorporates appropriate, 
creative stealth techniques to camouflage, disguise, and/or blend into the 
surrounding environment to the extent possible….

Page 4 of 143

268



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 5

“Readily visible” is defined as follows: 
A wireless telecommunications facility is readily visible if it can be seen from 
street level or from the main living area of a legal residence in a residential 
district or from a public park by a person with normal vision, and distinguished as 
an antenna or other component of a wireless telecommunication facility, due to 
the fact that it stands out as a prominent feature of the landscape, protrudes 
above or out from the building or structure ridgeline, or is otherwise not 
sufficiently camouflaged or designed to be compatible with the appurtenant 
architecture or building materials. For purposes of this definition, "main living 
area" means the living and dining and similar areas of a dwelling, but not 
bedrooms, bathrooms or similar areas.

Thus, the City’s Wireless Telecommunication Facility ordinance allows the Council to 
consider design and location alternatives for the installation of wireless facilities, 
consistent with the requirements under and constraints imposed by federal law.  

The applicant’s original proposal consisted of a “monopine” (faux tree), designed to look 
like a pine tree which blends in with the surrounding tree cover and vegetation as 
depicted in the submitted photosimulations (see AR pages 21-46). Staff requested that 
the applicant provide multiple photosimulations of design alternatives. The applicant 
team provided two design options painted in two different colors. These consist of an 
un-camouflaged monopole painted either grey or green or a four legged tower with an 
enclosure around the antennas painted grey or green. 

The applicant also provided two brief paragraphs as a “Statement Related to Need” in 
conjunction with the submitted Applicant Statement. Additionally, two tri-color coverage 
maps were provided which indicated existing and anticipated Verizon coverage 
following installation of the proposed monopole. These coverage maps denoted existing 
and expected on-street coverage, in-vehicle coverage, and in-building coverage within 
the wider Berkeley Hills area (see AR pages 71-75).  

During the review of the application, multiple public comment letters were received 
stating that the proposed faux tree was not a desirable design in proximity to the 
existing vegetation and tree cover. In response, staff advised the applicant that the 
proposed un-camouflaged monopole design option painted green was staff’s preferable 
option at the proposed location. Staff stated that this design option would minimize its 
visibility, and would require less additional monitoring and maintenance to ensure that 
the faux branches of the faux tree remain in good condition and are not damaged due to 
weather.
 
On June 27, 2019, the ZAB heard public testimony, considered the proposed wireless 
freestanding tower facility with related equipment, and discussed the height, location 
and visual impacts of the project. A view from one of the neighboring homes was 
presented with an unverified simulation of a tower at the site (see AR page 109). This 

Page 5 of 143

269



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 6

simulated tower appears to be much taller than the tower represented in the application 
materials. Requests were also made that a “story pole” be installed so the actual size 
and location of the proposed tower could be seen and that additional viewpoints such as 
from the hillside above the site and the public parks be considered when evaluating the 
aesthetic impact.  Members of the ZAB expressed a desire to review and consider 
additional information from the applicant, including such visual representations and 
location alternatives. However, due to the shot clock’s impending expiration at that time, 
the ZAB noted that it was required to make a decision regarding the proposal as 
presented. 

The ZAB determined that it could not make the findings for approval because the 
application did not provide adequate evidence that the proposed wireless 
telecommunications facility is required to address a coverage gap or capacity shortfall. 
The ZAB also found that the facility would be readily visible at the proposed location and 
would impair a significant or sensitive view corridor, and would be inconsistent with 
General Plan policies and ordinance purposes to preserve the character of the area. 
The ZAB concluded the public hearing and denied the project with findings regarding 
detriment. 1 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
The CEQA Determination prepared for the project was as Categorically Exempt 
pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (“Existing Facilities” and 
“New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures”). However, this determination 
was not adopted by the ZAB as the project was denied. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The issues raised in the appellant’s letter, and staff’s response, are as follows.

Appeal Issue #1: The applicant/appellant states that “[t]he ZAB erred in finding that the 
facility is not necessary to fill "a significant gap or capacity shortfall" in Verizon Wireless 
service as required by Code Sections 23C.17.040.C.2 and 23C.17.100.B.3…”

Staff Response: BMC Section 23C.17.040.C.2 requires that the applicant provide 
“a statement of the telecommunications objectives sought for the proposed 
location, whether the proposed facility is necessary to prevent or fill a significant 
gap or capacity shortfall in the applicant’s service area, and whether there are 
any alternative sites that would have fewer aesthetic impacts while providing 
comparable service.” The applicant’s originally submitted statement prior to the 
ZAB hearing was:

Verizon’s coverage objectives for this project are to improve service in the 
area described [of coverage in the Berkeley Hills area, especially along 

1 For the reasons previously explained, Council should consider the extent to which the bases for these 
findings are preempted by federal law.

Page 6 of 143

270



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 7

Euclid Avenue north of EBMUD’s Berryman Reservoir], and to offload 
traffic from other nearby sites that are often at or exceeding capacity. 
Coverage maps showing existing coverage are included with this 
application, as are coverage maps showing anticipated coverage after the 
proposed project is constructed.

The proposed location is most appropriate as it will allow Verizon to 
achieve its coverage objectives, while causing the least impact on the 
neighborhood. This EBMUD parcel is already used for utility purposes. 
Adding a Verizon tower to this location will allow Verizon to cover the 
neighborhood without changing its character.

The ZAB found that while the statements, coverage maps, and information 
provided in the application and at the public hearing reflected the 
telecommunications objectives sought for the proposed location, they did not 
clearly explain or demonstrate three of the other four concerns required by the 
applicant’s statement regarding coverage. Members of the ZAB found the 
information provided was inadequate to explain the significant gap in coverage or 
capacity shortfall. The ZAB also found that the applicant did not provide 
adequate information regarding specific alternative locations, either on-site or 
within the vicinity, and why they are unsuitable. 

Although the applicant team responded to questions raised during the ZAB public 
hearing, they did not clearly explain the discrepancy between the referenced 
coverage data and published marketing maps available on Verizon’s website 
which show that the area has coverage. The applicant stated these marketing 
maps reflect different information and are not accurate for all situations, including 
in-building and in-vehicle situations. Following receipt of the appeal letter, staff 
requested that the applicant provide additional information to confirm or elaborate 
on the coverage maps and information regarding coverage gaps. 

Subsequently, additional information was submitted on March 16, 2020. This 
consisted of a Statement in Support of Verizon Wireless’s Proposed Facility that 
described the local coverage and capacity limitations and an Alternative Analysis 
that discussed the potential placement of a similar antenna system on ten sites in 
the vicinity. These additional statements were peer reviewed by the City’s 
consultant (see Attachments 5A, 5B and 5C) and were found to be reasonable.

The additional evidence presented by the applicant included a “drive test” 
conducted in December 2019 to measure signal strength at different locations, 
plotted on a map, which the peer reviewer noted is “a usual and customary 
means of expressing signal strength at a given location.” The coverage maps 
also show the projected signal strength after the antenna installation. Alternative 
locations throughout north Berkeley were described and also evaluated, including 

Page 7 of 143

271



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 8

façade/roof-mounted antennas and freestanding antennas at institutional sites 
such as a church, school, park and utility. Upon reviewing the additional 
evidence, the City’s peer reviewer stated:

“[The Applicant’s] justification statement and its alternatives analysis 
reasonably demonstrate that: (a) there are underserved areas within the 
claimed gap area that are likely to be subject to reducing service levels if 
a new nearby cell site is not constructed, and (b) among the alternative 
sites identified by Verizon, the Berryman Reservoir site is most able to 
serve the claimed gap area….”

In reaching this conclusion, the City’s peer reviewer cited the distance from and 
topography around the proposed coverage area, lack of availability of the sites, 
and close proximity of the alternative sites to residences and other sensitive 
uses.  The City has limited discretion to deny the project based on these 
considerations, and in particular, cannot require the applicant to demonstrate a 
gap in coverage or service exists before granting an application to install wireless 
facilities.

Appeal Issue #2: The applicant/appellant asserts that “[t]he ZAB erred in finding that the 
Proposed Facility is not the least intrusive means of serving the gap [in coverage], and 
that Verizon Wireless did not show there are no alternative sites to provide service with 
fewer aesthetic impacts. The ZAB did not raise any alternatives that would be less 
intrusive and provided no factual basis for this finding of denial. Verizon Wireless 
presented alternative design options for an unconcealed monopole...”

Staff Response: As noted above, data in support of coverage gaps and location 
alternatives has been supplemented by the applicant and peer reviewed by the 
City’s consultants, and may support the conclusion that the project site is a 
necessary means of addressing the coverage gap.

As for options to reduce the intrusiveness of the project at the Berryman 
Reservoir site, the project was originally evaluated under three design scenarios 
including a 50-foot tall monopine, a monopole, and a boxy screening shroud, the 
latter two in color schemes of gray and green (see AR pages 30 – 46).

During the public hearing, the ZAB asked the applicant team whether the 
proposed facility could be moved more to the north and whether “there [was] 
something about this particular location that requires it to be in that particular 
spot.” The applicant team responded that “the location was mainly chosen for 
that precise purpose to move it as far away from the houses on the adjacent 
street and to tuck it in towards the trees.” The applicant further stated that the 
height could potentially be lowered, but that colocation of other providers is a 

Page 8 of 143

272



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 9

consideration, and did not provide any additional information regarding the 
potential to design the tower to be lower.

The ZAB could not affirmatively find based on the available evidence that the proposed 
project was the least intrusive means nor that it would not be readily visible or obstruct 
significant views from residential living areas, nor that it was not readily visible from a 
public park, and so it denied the project. The City has limited discretion to deny the 
project based on these considerations.  

In particular, the City cannot require the applicant to demonstrate that the proposed 
facility is the “least intrusive means” of providing service and cannot deny the 
application based on unpublished or non-objective standards. However, the City Council 
may evaluate the project based on objective standards related to impacts on view 
corridors (see generally BMC Section 23C.17.050.C), subject to the constraints that the 
application of those standards may not materially inhibit the provision of wireless 
services and may not be based on subjective considerations.

Appeal Issue #3: The applicant/appellant states that “[t]he written denial simply 
references [General Plan Land Use and Urban Design] policies but provides no 
explanation as to how the Proposed Facility does not comply. Similarly, the written 
denial referenced the provisions of the City's wireless regulations, Code Section 
23C.17.020.B.1, but did not elaborate on how the Proposed Facility does not satisfy 
those objectives…”

Staff Response:  During the public hearing on June 27, 2019, the ZAB stated that 
the project was not consistent with the General Plan Policies and voted to deny 
the wireless facility and directed staff to prepare the findings of denial. ZAB 
discussed that the proposed 50-foot tall wireless facility at the proposed location 
within an open area on the Berryman Reservoir, not adjacent to trees of similar 
heights, is not consistent with the scale or character of the Residential Hillside 
area. Members of the ZAB stated that they found the design and location 
proposed to be intrusive. The ZAB referenced the 2002 General Plan, which 
contains policies regarding area character, context, and design. 

Additionally, based on the proceedings of the public hearing, the written ZAB 
Findings of Denial state that the proposed wireless telecommunications facility 
does not meet the objectives of the City’s ordinance (BMC Section 
23C.17.020.B.1, Purposes) due to its design and location. Therefore, it was 
denied.

The site plan, aerial photos, visual simulations and viewshed map illustrate that 
the proposed monopine or monopole would be located adjacent to substantial 
trees and within an isolated portion of the existing reservoir bowl, such that it 
would be seen against a backdrop of similar height vegetation (see AR pages 21 

Page 9 of 143

273



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 10

– 46).  Any decision to uphold ZAB’s denial of the permit on this basis would 
require the Council to identify a published, objective design or location standard 
that meets the requirements of FCC Order 18-133 ¶ 86.
 

Appeal Issue #4: The applicant/appellant asserts that the ZAB erred when it concluded 
it was not possible to determine if a different location would render the Proposed Facility 
to be "not readily visible" as required by Code Section 23C.17.100.B.2. Verizon 
Wireless provided photosimulations as evidence that show the Proposed Facility 
treepole blends with the backdrop of established evergreen trees. 

Staff Response: The applicant originally submitted only one location option for 
the monopole on the subject property, which the ZAB reviewed and discussed. 
The ZAB reviewed and considered the alternative design options and photo 
simulations presented by the applicant and neighbors; the ZAB found that the 
views presented did not clearly demonstrate what the facility would look like from 
the surrounding properties, including the homes and public park in the area.  

BMC Section 23C.17.070.C (Design Requirements) further states: “No readily 
visible antenna shall be placed at a location where it would impair a significant or 
sensitive view corridor…” and BMC Section 23F.04.010 defines “view corridor” 
as: “A significant view of the Berkeley Hills…. or any other significant vista that 
substantially enhances the value and enjoyment of real property.” The ZAB 
considered the concerns of the neighbors and concluded that construction of the 
proposed 50’ tall monopole at the proposed location at Berryman Reservoir 
would be noticeable by residents and park visitors and could affect their views.

The “readily visible” test in BMC Section 23C.17.100.B.2 (Findings Required for 
Approval) states that in order to approve a Use Permit for a Wireless Facility the 
ZAB must find that the facility 1) not be readily visible; or (2) be readily visible, 
but it is not feasible to incorporate additional measures that would make the 
facility not readily visible. 

BMC Section 23F.04.10 defines “readily visible” as:

“A wireless telecommunications facility is readily visible if it can be seen 
from street level or from the main living area of a legal residence in a 
residential district or from a public park by a person with normal vision, 
and distinguished as an antenna or other component of a wireless 
telecommunication facility, due to the fact that it stands out as a prominent 
feature of the landscape, protrudes above or out from the building or 
structure ridgeline, or is otherwise not sufficiently camouflaged or 
designed to be compatible with the appurtenant architecture or building 
materials. For purposes of this definition, "main living area" means the 
living and dining and similar areas of a dwelling, but not bedrooms, 
bathrooms or similar areas.”

Page 10 of 143

274



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 11

The applicant has not submitted any additional information about views.  It is 
possible that neighbors and park users could see the pole, but it is not clear that 
it would be obtrusive in light of the existing tree cover around the perimeter of the 
reservoir and the distances to the viewers, and it does not appear that the pole 
would be in a line of sight to a significant view corridor because it would be 
located to the far north of the site while residential views are generally toward the 
west.  

In assessing the impact of the proposed wireless facility on views, the City 
Council must consider the availability of alternative sites and the possibility that a 
denial of the permit application would materially inhibit the provision of wireless 
services. The City retains discretion to determine the most effective means of 
camouflaging the tower, whether it be a pole (in gray or green) or a faux tree.

Appeal Issue #5: The applicant/appellant asserts that “the ZAB claimed that Verizon 
Wireless did not demonstrate that the Proposed Facility is designed to the minimum 
height and width required, or that a higher facility would facilitate other objectives per 
Code Section 23C.17.070.C.3. Verizon Wireless seeks an administrative use permit for 
height greater than allowed in the R-1H zone pursuant to Code Sections 23D.04.020.B 
and 23E.96.070. At only 50 feet, the Proposed Facility height is necessary in order for 
Verizon Wireless to achieve its coverage objectives given the Berryman Reservoir 
location, its elevation and nearby topography.”

Staff Response: BMC Section 23C.17.070.C.3 states: “All monopoles and lattice 
towers shall be designed to be the minimum functional height and width required 
to support the proposed antenna installation unless a higher monopole or lattice 
tower will facilitate co-location or other objectives”.

During the public hearing the ZAB asked why the height was necessary, why 50 
feet was proposed, and whether the wireless tower height could be lowered. The 
applicant team replied that the height of 50 feet was required to be above the 
metal reservoir water tank which would interfere with the signal and to 
accommodate future co-locations of other antennas. The applicant team stated 
that they may be able to lower the height, perhaps to a maximum height of 40 or 
45 feet, but did not specify to what degree. The additional information provided 
by the applicant does not discuss whether lowering the height of the proposed 
facility would materially inhibit the introduction of new services or the 
improvement of existing services.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.060.D, the Council may (1) dismiss the appeal and 
uphold the ZAB decision to deny the project (see Attachment 1, Exhibit A1 for ZAB-
adopted findings); (2) uphold the appeal and approve the project (see Attachment 1, 
Exhibit A2 for findings and conditions of approval prepared by staff prior to the ZAB 

Page 11 of 143

275



ZAB Appeal: 0 Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) PUBLIC HEARING
July 7, 2020

Page 12

hearing); or (3) modify either the denial or approval documents based on evidence and 
testimony at the hearing.

Action Deadline:
The City and Applicant have agreed to a tolling of the FCC “shot clock” to July 10, 2020. 
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.060.G, if the disposition of the appeal has not been 
determined within 30 days from the date the public hearing was closed by the Council 
(not including Council recess), then the decision of the Board shall be deemed affirmed 
and the appeal shall be deemed denied. 

CONTACT PERSONS
Timothy Burroughs, Director, Planning & Development Department, (510) 981-7437
Steven Buckley, Land Use Planning Manager, (510) 981-7411
Layal Nawfal, Associate Planner, (510) 981-7424

Attachments:
1. Draft Resolution

 Exhibit A1: Findings of Denial

 Exhibit A2: Findings and Conditions of Approval

 Exhibit B: Project Plans from June 27, 2019, ZAB Report

 Exhibit C: Photosimulations from June 27, 2019, ZAB Report
2. ZAB Staff Report, dated June 27, 2019 
3. Appeal Letter, dated July 16, 2019
4. Verizon Wireless Shot Clock Extension Agreements
5. Supplemental Applicant Submittal Materials

 Exhibit 5A: Alternative Analysis, submitted March 16, 2020 

 Exhibit 5B: Statement in Support of Verizon Wireless’s Proposed Facility, 
submitted March 16, 2020 

 Exhibit 5C: Peer Review of Alternatives Analysis and Justification Statement, 
received May 7, 2020 

6. Index to Administrative Record
7. Administrative Record
8. Public Hearing Notice

Page 12 of 143

276



ATTACHMENT 1

1

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

[UPHOLD / DENY] THE APPEAL OF THE ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD (“ZAB”) 
DECISION TO DENY USE PERMIT #ZP2018-0236 AND [DENY / APPROVE] THE 
REQUEST TO ESTABLISH A NEW 50’ HIGH [“MONOPOLE” / “MONOPINE”] 4G LTE 
WIRELESS FACILITY OPERATED BY VERIZON WIRELESS AT THE EAST BAY 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT BERRYMAN RESERVOIR SITE CONSISTING OF SIX 
ANTENNAS, SIX REMOTE RADIO UNITS, AND ASSOCIATED GROUND EQUIPMENT.

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2018, the applicant team for Verizon Wireless represented 
by David Haddock of Ridge Communications Inc., (“applicant”) filed an application for a 
Use Permit to establish a new wireless telecommunications facility to include a 50’ high 
wireless freestanding tower facility with antennas and remote radio units mounted on the 
monopole. Equipment cabinets and a standby generator were proposed on the ground 
near the monopole (“project”); and  

WHEREAS, on April 11, 2019, staff deemed the application complete; and

WHEREAS, on June 12 2019, staff mailed 125 public hearing notices to adjoining 
property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the site, and to interested neighborhood 
organizations and posted a Notice of Public Hearing at and in the vicinity of the site to 
inform the public of the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) Public Hearing; and

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2019, the ZAB held a public hearing in accordance with BMC 
Section 23B.32.030, and denied the Use Permit application; and 

WHEREAS, on July 2, 2019, staff issued the notice of the ZAB decision; and 

WHEREAS, on July 16, 2019, the applicant team filed an appeal of the ZAB decision with 
the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS on March 16, 2020, the applicant team submitted additional information about 
the existing coverage and capacity gaps and an alternative location analysis for City 
review; and 

WHEREAS on May 7, 2020, the City’s peer reviewer provided an assessment of the 
applicant’s submitted information; and 

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2020, staff mailed notices to adjoining property owners and 
occupants within 300 feet of the site, and to interested neighborhood organizations and 
posted a Notice of Public Hearing at and in the vicinity of the site, to inform the public of 
the City Council public hearing; and

Page 13 of 143

277



WHEREAS, on July 7, 2020, the Council considered the record of the proceedings before 
the ZAB, and the staff report and correspondence presented to the Council, and, in the 
opinion of this Council, the facts stated in, or ascertainable from this information, do not 
warrant further hearing.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council hereby [APPROVES / DENIES] Use Permit #ZP2018-0236 based on the findings 
and conditions shown in Exhibit A for the project depicted in Exhibits B and C, and 
dismisses the appeal.

Exhibit A1: Findings of Denial
Exhibit A2: Findings and Conditions of Approval
Exhibit B: Project Plans from June 27, 2019, ZAB Report
Exhibit C: Photosimulations from June 27, 2019, ZAB Report

Page 14 of 143

278



1

ATTACHMENT 1 - EXHIBIT A1

0 Euclid Avenue – Berryman Reservoir 
Use Permit #ZP2018-0236 to establish a new 50’ high “monopole” 4G 
LTE wireless facility operated by Verizon Wireless at the East Bay 
Municipal Utility District site consisting of six antennas, six remote radio 
units, and associated ground equipment.

FINDINGS OF DENIAL

1. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23B.32.040, the Zoning Adjustments 
Board (ZAB) finds that the proposed project, under the circumstances of the 
particular case existing at the time at which the application is granted, will be 
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the area or neighborhood of such proposed use and 
will be detrimental or injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent 
properties, the surrounding area or neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the 
City, because the application did not provide adequate evidence that the proposed 
wireless telecommunications facility is required to support the need to prevent a 
gap in coverage or capacity shortfall. 

Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.3, the ZAB does not 
find that the proposed facility “is necessary to prevent a significant gap in coverage 
or capacity shortfall in the applicant’s service area, and is the least intrusive means 
of doing so” because the applicant has not provided sufficient information to 
support a finding that the facility is necessary to support the existing Verizon 
facilities, particularly in order to increase the capacity of Verizon’s network. 

Additionally, the ZAB finds that the applicant did not demonstrate as required by 
BMC Section 23C.17.040.C.2 that that the proposed facility is necessary to prevent 
or fill a significant gap or capacity shortfall in the applicant’s service area, or that it 
is the least intrusive means of doing so, or that there are not any alternative sites 
that will have fewer aesthetic impacts while providing comparable service.

2. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.1, the ZAB finds that 
the project is not consistent with the requirements of this chapter and applicable 
specific requirements applicable because the project does not meet the provisions 
of the 2002 General Plan, particularly Policy LU-7 Neighborhood Quality of Life, 
Action A, Policy UD-16 Context, and Policy UD-24 Area Character, and does not 
meet the objectives of the chapter per BMC Section 23C.17.0520.B.1 (Purpose), 
as the proposed wireless telecommunications facility: 

Page 15 of 143

279



a. Is not consistent with the scale or historic character of the surrounding uses;

b. Does not foster an aesthetically pleasing urban environment; 

c. Does not prevent visual blight, protect and preserve public safety and general 
welfare; and 

d. Does not maintain the character of residential areas, consistent with the 
adopted General Plan and Area Plans.

3. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Sections 23C.17.100.B.2.a and 
23C.17.100.B.2.b, the ZAB finds that with the limited information provided, it is not 
possible to determine if a monopole or monopine, away from trees, in an area of 
complex elevations will not be readily visible.  

Similarly, the applicant did not demonstrate that the proposed project meets the 
requirements of BMC Section 23C.17.070.C (Design Requirements) which 
requires that “no readily visible antenna shall be placed at a location where it will 
impair a significant or sensitive view corridor”. The applicant did not demonstrate 
that the application meets the requirements of BMC Section 23C.17.070.C.3 that 
the proposed monopole was designed to be the minimum functional height and 
width required to support the proposed antenna installation, or that a higher than 
the minimum monopole height will facilitate other objectives of the Chapter.

Page 16 of 143

280



1

ATTACHMENT 1 - EXHIBIT A2

0 Euclid Avenue – Berryman Reservoir 
Use Permit #ZP2018-0236 to establish a new 50’ high “monopole” 4G 
LTE wireless facility operated by Verizon Wireless at the East Bay 
Municipal Utility District site consisting of six antennas, six remote radio 
units, and associated ground equipment.

CEQA FINDINGS

1. The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and 
California Code of Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to Sections 15301 and 
15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (“Existing Facilities” and “New Construction or 
Conversion of Small Structures”). Furthermore, none of the exceptions in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15300.2 apply, as follows: (a) the site is not located in an 
environmentally sensitive area, (b) there are no cumulative impacts, (c) there are 
no significant effects, (d) the project is not located near a scenic highway, (e) the 
project site is not located on a hazardous waste site pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65962.5, and (f) the project will not affect any historical resource. 

GENERAL NON-DETRIMENT FINDING

2. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23B.32.040, the Zoning Adjustments 
Board finds that the proposed project, under the circumstances of the particular 
case existing at the time at which the application is granted, will not be detrimental 
to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons residing 
or working in the area or neighborhood of such proposed use or be detrimental or 
injurious to property and improvements of the adjacent properties, the surrounding 
area or neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City, for the following 
reasons:

A. A report prepared by a registered engineer, and peer-reviewed by the City, 
demonstrates that the Verizon wireless telecommunications facility would 
comply with the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) standards for 
limiting human exposure to radio frequencies.

B. A report prepared by a registered engineer, and peer-reviewed by the City, 
confirmed that the proposed facility would significantly increase the capacity 
of Verizon’s wireless data network in the subject area.

Page 17 of 143

281



2

C. A noise study prepared for the project and peer-reviewed by the City 
demonstrated that the proposed equipment is not expected to generate 
audible noise levels and would not contribute to the ambient noise 
environment; and

D. The facility is conditioned to meet all standards of the California Building Code 
and all portions of the facility shall be anchored so that an earthquake does not 
dislodge them or tip them over.

OTHER REQUIRED FINDINGS

3. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.1, the Zoning 
Adjustments Board finds that the project is consistent with the general 
requirements of this chapter and any specific requirements applicable because the 
project meets the provisions of the 2002 General Plan, particularly Policy LU-7 
Neighborhood Quality of Life, Action A, Policy UD-16 Context, and Policy UD-24 
Area Character.

4. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.2, the Zoning 
Adjustments Board finds that project “will comply with all applicable state and 
Federal standards and requirements” for the following reasons: 

A. A report prepared by Hammett & Edison concludes that the Verizon will comply 
with the FCC standards for limiting human exposure to radio frequency energy; 
and

B. An independent licensed engineer peer reviewed this RF report and concurred 
with its analysis and concludes that the proposed facility will comply with the 
FCC guidelines for radio frequency emissions. 

5. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.2.a, and 
23C.17.100.C, the Zoning Adjustments Board finds that the design (i.e. location 
and height) of the new antennas is the least visible means of achieving the intent 
of their installation. The location of the monopole will ensure that is a less visible 
project than if located elsewhere in the neighborhood. The associated equipment 
enclosures are located in an area of the property which below grade of the 
surrounding public right of way and is surrounded by vegetation and will not be 
visible. 

6. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.3, the Zoning 
Adjustments Board finds that the facility “is necessary to prevent a significant gap 
in coverage or capacity shortfall in the applicant’s service area, and is the least 
intrusive means of doing so” because the City’s peer reviewer independently 
reviewed the Verizon proposal and concluded that the facility is necessary to 
support the existing Verizon facilities, particularly in order to increase the capacity 
of Verizon’s network.

Page 18 of 143

282



3

7. Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23C.17.100.B.4, the Zoning 
Adjustments Board finds that Verizon, is in compliance with Sections 
23C.17.090.A.1 and 23C.17.090.A.2 based on written certification that each 
Verizon facility in the City of Berkeley is operating in accordance with the approved 
local and federal permits, that includes contact information for Verizon, and 
provides written certification by a licensed professional engineer that the new 
facilities’ radio frequency emissions are in compliance with the approved 
application and any required conditions.

Page 19 of 143

283



4

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR ALL PROJECTS
1. Conditions Shall be Printed on Plans

The conditions of this Permit shall be printed on the second sheet of each plan set 
submitted for a building permit pursuant to this Use Permit, under the title ‘Use 
Permit Conditions.’ Additional sheets may also be used if the second sheet is not 
of sufficient size to list all of the conditions. The sheet(s) containing the conditions 
shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the construction drawings; 8-
1/2” by 11” sheets are not acceptable.

2. Applicant Responsible for Compliance with Conditions
The applicant shall ensure compliance with all of the following conditions, including 
submittal to the project planner of required approval signatures at the times 
specified.  Failure to comply with any condition may result in construction being 
stopped, issuance of a citation, and/or modification or revocation of the Use Permit.

3. Uses Approved Deemed to Exclude Other Uses (Section 23B.56.010)
A. This Permit authorizes only those uses and activities actually proposed in 

the application and excludes other uses and activities.
B. Except as expressly specified herein, this Permit terminates all other uses 

at the location subject to it.

4. Modification of Permits (Section 23B.56.020)
No change in the use or structure for which this Permit is approved is permitted 
unless the Permit is modified by the Zoning Adjustments Board, in conformance 
with Section 23B.56.020.A.

5. Plans and Representations Become Conditions (Section 23B.56.030)
Except as expressly specified herein, the site plan, floor plans, elevations, 
photosimulations and any additional information or representations submitted by 
the applicant during the Staff review and public hearing process leading to the 
approval of this Permit, whether oral or written, which indicated the proposed 
structure or manner of operation are deemed conditions of approval. 

6. Subject to all City and Other Regulations (Section 23B.56.040)
The approved use and/or construction are subject to, and shall comply with, all 
applicable City Ordinances and laws and regulations of other governmental 
agencies.

7. Exercised Permit for Use Survives Vacancy of Property (Section 23B.56.080)
Once a Permit for a use is exercised and the use is established, that use is legally 
recognized, even if the property becomes vacant, except as set forth in Standard 
Condition #8 below. 

8. Exercise and Lapse of Permits (Section 23B.56.100)
A. A permit for the use of a building or a property is exercised when, if required, 

a valid City business license has been issued, and the permitted use has 

Page 20 of 143

284



5

commenced on the property.
B. A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed exercised 

when a valid City building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has 
lawfully commenced.

C. A permit may be declared lapsed and of no further force and effect if it is 
not exercised within one year of its issuance, except that permits for 
construction or alteration of structures or buildings may not be declared 
lapsed if the permittee has (1) applied for a building permit or (2) made 
substantial good faith efforts to obtain a building permit and begin 
construction, even if a building permit has not been issued and/or 
construction has not begun.

9. Indemnification Agreement
The applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the City of Berkeley and 
its officers, agents, and employees against any and all liability, damages, claims, 
demands, judgments or other losses (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, 
expert witness and consultant fees and other litigation expenses), referendum or 
initiative relating to, resulting from or caused by, or alleged to have resulted from, 
or caused by, any action or approval associated with the project.  The indemnity 
includes without limitation, any legal or administrative challenge, referendum or 
initiative filed or prosecuted to overturn, set aside, stay or otherwise rescind any or 
all approvals granted in connection with the Project, any environmental 
determination made for the project and granting any permit issued in accordance 
with the project.  This indemnity includes, without limitation, payment of all direct 
and indirect costs associated with any action specified herein.  Direct and indirect 
costs shall include, without limitation, any attorney’s fees, expert witness and 
consultant fees, court costs, and other litigation fees.  City shall have the right to 
select counsel to represent the City at Applicant’s expense in the defense of any 
action specified in this condition of approval.  City shall take reasonable steps to 
promptly notify the Applicant of any claim, demand, or legal actions that may create 
a claim for indemnification under these conditions of approval.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Pursuant to BMC Section 23B.32.040.D, the Zoning Adjustments Board attaches the 
following conditions to this Permit:

Prior to Issuance of Any Building Permit
10. Project Liaison. The applicant shall include in all building permit plans and post 

onsite the name and telephone number of an individual empowered to manage 
construction-related complaints generated from the project.  The individual’s 
name, telephone number, and responsibility for the project shall be posted at the 
project site for the duration of the project in a location easily visible to the public.  
The individual shall record all complaints received and actions taken in response, 
and submit written reports of such complaints and actions to the project planner 
on a weekly basis. Please designate the name of this individual below:

Page 21 of 143

285



6

Project Liaison  
____________________________________________________

                Name Phone #

11. The plan set shall be revised to show the photo-simulations on one of the first 
three pages (Sheet A-1, for example). The sheet(s) containing the photo-
simulations shall be of the same size as those sheets containing the construction 
drawings. Revisions shall include the following:

a. The proposed facility shall be designed as an un-camouflaged monopole 
painted green. 

b. The plans shall strike all ‘future’ elements from the Plans and submittal 
materials. 

12. All final Noise Study and RF studies shall reflect final approval design and 
Conditions of Approval prior to issuance of Building Permit. The applicant shall 
provide a statement which expressly agrees to follow all of the City’s Municipal 
Code pertaining to RF safety, including but not limited to BMC Section 
23C.17.040.D, sworn statement and BMC Section 23C.17.090 Requirement for 
Certification of Facilities in its entirety. 

  
13. The applicant shall provide signage identifying the name and phone number of a 

party to contact in event of an emergency.  The design, materials, colors and 
location of signs shall be subject to the Conditions of Approval. The plans 
submitted for a building permit shall include a sample of the proposed emergency 
sign(s) as well as the warning signs as required in COA #25 & #26 below, as well 
as the location for posting such signs. 

14. Any outstanding Land Use Planning Fees or Peer Review Invoices shall be paid 
prior to issuance of a Building Permit. 

15. The applicant shall either secure a bond or provide financial assurances in a form 
acceptable to the City Manager for the removal of the facility in the event that its 
use is abandoned or the approval is otherwise terminated.

16. Transportation Construction Plan.  The applicant and all persons associated with 
the project are hereby notified that a Transportation Construction Plan (TCP) is 
required for all phases of construction, particularly for the following activities:

 Alterations, closures, or blockages to sidewalks, pedestrian paths or 
vehicle travel lanes (including bicycle lanes);

 Storage of building materials, dumpsters, debris anywhere in the public 
ROW;

 Provision of exclusive contractor parking on-street; or 

 Significant truck activity.

The applicant shall secure the City Traffic Engineer’s approval of a TCP.  Please 

Page 22 of 143

286



7

contact the Office of Transportation at 981-7010, or 1947 Center Street, and ask 
to speak to a traffic engineer.  In addition to other requirements of the Traffic 
Engineer, this plan shall include the locations of material and equipment storage, 
trailers, worker parking, a schedule of site operations that may block traffic, and 
provisions for traffic control.  The TCP shall be consistent with any other 
requirements of the construction phase.  

Contact the Permit Service Center (PSC) at 1947 Center Street or 981-7500 for 
details on obtaining Construction/No Parking Permits (and associated signs and 
accompanying dashboard permits).  Please note that the Zoning Officer and/or 
Traffic Engineer may limit off-site parking of construction-related vehicles if 
necessary to protect the health, safety or convenience of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  A current copy of this Plan shall be available at all times at the 
construction site for review by City Staff.

During Construction:
17. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 AM and 6:00 PM 

on Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 AM and 12:00 PM on Saturday. No 
construction-related activity shall occur on Sunday or any Federal Holiday.  

18. Public Works.  All piles of debris, soil, sand, or other loose materials shall be 
covered at night and during rainy weather with plastic at least one-eighth millimeter 
thick and secured to the ground.

19. Public Works.  The applicant shall ensure that all excavation takes into account 
surface and subsurface waters and underground streams so as not to adversely 
affect adjacent properties and rights-of-way.

20. Public Works.  The project sponsor shall maintain sandbags or other devices 
around the site perimeter during the rainy season to prevent on-site soils from 
being washed off-site and into the storm drain system.  The project sponsor shall 
comply with all City ordinances regarding construction and grading.

21. Public Works.  Prior to any excavation, grading, clearing, or other activities 
involving soil disturbance during the rainy season the applicant shall obtain 
approval of an erosion prevention plan by the Building and Safety Division and the 
Public Works Department.  The applicant shall be responsible for following these 
and any other measures required by the Building and Safety Division and the 
Public Works Department.

22. Public Works.  The removal or obstruction of any fire hydrant shall require the 
submission of a plan to the City’s Public Works Department for the relocation of 
the fire hydrant during construction. 

23. Public Works.  If underground utilities leading to adjacent properties are uncovered 
and/or broken, the contractor involved shall immediately notify the Public Works 

Page 23 of 143

287



8

Department and the Building & Safety Division, and carry out any necessary 
corrective action to their satisfaction.

Prior to Issuance of Occupancy Permit or Final Inspection:
24. Compliance with Approved Plan.  The project shall conform to the plans and 

statements in the Use Permit.  All landscape, site and architectural improvements 
shall be completed per the attached approved drawings dated March 3, 2018 
except as modified by Conditions of Approval,

At All Times:
25. Signage identifying the name and phone number of the individual to contact in the 

event of an emergency shall be installed at the project site (see Condition #13 
above).

  
26. Verizon Wireless, the operator, shall install warning signs and provide RF training 

for persons authorized to access the facility, as called for as mitigation measures 
in the RF-EME Report for the project by Hammett & Edison and the City’s Peer 
Reviewer, including the following: 

a. The permittee shall keep all access points to the site locked at all times, 
except when active maintenance is performed on the equipment.

b. The permittee shall install and at all times maintain in good condition an “RF 
Notice” sign and a network operations center sign adjacent to all access 
points of the site. The signs required in this condition must be placed in a 
location where they are clearly visible to a person approaching the access 
point(s) whether in the open or closed positions.

c. The permittee shall ensure that all signage complies with FCC OET Bulletin 
65 and ANSI C95.2 for color, symbol, and content conventions. All such 
signage shall at all times provide a working local or toll-free telephone 
number to its network operations center, and such telephone number shall 
be able to reach a live person who can exert transmitter shut-down control 
over this site as required by the FCC.

27. Subject to review and approval by the Zoning Officer, future changes to or 
replacement of the wireless equipment shall be permitted through issuance of a 
Zoning Certificate, rather than a Modification of the Use Permit, so long as the 
proposed changes are not detrimental, comply with performance standards within 
this Use Permit (e.g. noise levels, visual appearance, and RF standards), do not 
increase the size or visibility of any legally established wireless telecommunication 
facility, and complies with the FCC’s MPE limits for electric and magnetic field 
strength and power density for transmitters within the designated equipment area. 

28. The wireless telecommunications facility and related equipment, including lighting, 
fences, shields, cabinets, and poles, shall be maintained in good repair, free from 
trash, debris, litter and graffiti and other forms of vandalism, and any damage from 
any cause shall be repaired as soon as reasonably possible so as to minimize 

Page 24 of 143

288



9

occurrences of dangerous conditions or visual blight.  Graffiti shall be removed 
from any facility or equipment as soon as practicable, and in no instance more than 
forty-eight (48) hours from the time of notification by the city.

29. The wireless telecommunications facility shall be operated in a manner that will 
minimize noise impacts to surrounding residents and persons using nearby parks, 
trails, and similar recreation areas.  Except for emergency repairs, testing and 
maintenance activities that will be audible beyond the property line shall only occur 
between the hours of 8:00 am and 7:00 pm on Monday through Friday, excluding 
holidays.  All air conditioning units and any other equipment that may emit noise 
that would be audible from beyond the property line shall be enclosed or equipped 
with noise attenuation devices.  Backup generators shall only be operated during 
periods of power outages or for testing.  At no time shall equipment noise from any 
source exceed the standards specified in the Berkeley Community Noise 
Ordinance (BMC Chapter 13.40).

30. The exterior walls and roof covering of all aboveground equipment shelters and 
cabinets shall be constructed of materials rated as nonflammable in the Uniform 
Building Code.

31. Openings in all aboveground equipment shelters and cabinets shall be protected 
against penetration by fire and windblown embers to the extent feasible.

32. Material used as supports for antennas shall be fire resistant, termite proof, and 
subject to all applicable requirements of the California Building Code.

33. Telecommunications antenna towers shall be designed to withstand forces 
expected during earthquakes to the extent feasible. Building-mounted facilities 
shall be anchored so that an earthquake does not dislodge them or tip them over. 
All equipment mounting racks and attached equipment shall be anchored so that 
a quake would not tip them over, throw equipment off its shelves, or otherwise 
damage equipment.

34. All connections between various components of the wireless telecommunications 
facility and necessary power and telephone lines shall, to the extent feasible, be 
protected against damage by fire, flooding, and earthquake.  Reasonable 
measures shall be taken to keep wireless telecommunication facilities in operation 
in the event of a natural disaster.

35. No wireless telecommunications facility or combination of facilities shall at any time 
produce power densities that exceed the FCC’s limits for electric and magnetic 
field strength and power density for transmitters.  In order to ensure continuing 
compliance with all applicable emission standards, all wireless 
telecommunications facilities shall be reviewed by an approved engineer in accord 
with the schedule and procedures set forth in Section 23C.17.090. All reasonable 
costs of such inspections shall be borne by the owner or operator of the facility. 

Page 25 of 143

289



10

The City may require, at the operator’s expense, independent verification of the 
results of any analysis.  If an operator of a telecommunications facility fails to 
supply the required reports or fails to correct a violation of the Federal 
Communications Commission standard following notification, the Use Permit is 
subject to modification or revocation by the Zoning Adjustments Board following a 
public hearing.

36. Within forty five (45) days of initial operation or modification of a 
telecommunications facility, the operator of each telecommunications antenna 
shall submit to the Zoning Officer written certification by an approved engineer that 
the facility’s radio frequency emissions are in compliance with the approved 
application and any required conditions.  The engineer shall measure the radio 
frequency radiation of the approved facility and determine if it meets the FCC 
requirements. A report of these measurements and the engineer’s findings with 
respect to compliance with the FCC’s MPE limits shall be submitted to the Zoning 
Officer.  If the report shows that the facility does not comply with applicable FCC 
requirements, the owner or operator shall cease operation of the facility until the 
facility complies with, or has been modified to comply with, this standard.  Proof of 
compliance shall be a certification provided by the engineer who prepared the 
original report. In order to assure the objectivity of the analysis, the City may 
require, at the applicant's expense, independent verification of the results of the 
analysis. 

37. Hereafter, prior to January 31 of every year, an authorized representative for each 
wireless carrier providing service in the City of Berkeley shall provide written 
certification to the City that each facility is being operated in accordance with the 
approved local and federal permits and shall provide the current contact 
information.

38. Once every two years, the City may retain, at the operator’s expense, an approved 
engineer to conduct an unannounced spot check of the facility’s compliance with 
applicable FCC radio frequency standards.

39. In the event of a change in the FCC’s Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) limits 
for electric and magnetic field strength and power density for transmitters, the 
operator of the facility shall be required to submit to the Zoning Officer written 
certification by an approved engineer of compliance with applicable FCC radio 
frequency standards within 90 days of any change in applicable FCC radio 
frequency standards or of any modification of the facility requiring a new 
submission to the FCC to determine compliance with emission standards. If 
calculated levels exceed 50% of the FCC’s MPE limits, the operator of the facility 
shall hire an approved engineer to measure the actual exposure levels. If 
calculated levels are not in compliance with the FCC’s MPE limit, the operator shall 
cease operation of the facility until the facility is brought into compliance with the 
FCC’s standards and all other applicable requirements. A report of these 
calculations, required measurements, if any, and the engineer’s findings with 

Page 26 of 143

290



11

respect to compliance with current MPE limits shall be submitted to the Zoning 
Officer.

40. If the Zoning Officer at any time finds that there is good cause to believe that a 
telecommunications antenna is not in compliance with applicable FCC radio 
frequency standards, he/she may require the operator to submit written 
certification that the facility is in compliance with such FCC standards.

41. Within thirty (30) days of cessation of operations of any wireless 
telecommunications facility approved pursuant to this chapter, the operator shall 
notify the Zoning Officer in writing.  The permit for said wireless 
telecommunications facility shall be deemed lapsed and of no further effect six (6) 
months thereafter unless: 
A. The Zoning Officer has determined that the same operator resumed 

operation within six (6) months of the notice; or
B. The City has received an application to transfer the permit to another 

operator. 

42. No later than thirty (30) days after a permit has lapsed under the preceding 
condition of approval, the operator shall remove all wireless telecommunication 
facilities from the site. If the operator fails to do, the property owner shall be 
responsible for removal, and may use any bond or other assurances provided by 
the operator pursuant to the requirements of Section 23C.17.050 to do so. If such 
facilities are not removed, the site shall be deemed to be a nuisance pursuant to 
Section 23B.64 and the City may call the bond to pay for removal.

43. Failure to inform the Zoning Officer of cessation of operations of any existing facility 
shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Ordinance and be grounds for: 
A. Prosecution; 
B. Revocation or modification of the permit;
C. Calling of any bond or assurance secured by the operator pursuant to the 

requirements of Section 23C.17.050; and/or 
D. Removal of the facilities.

44. Any FCC-licensed telecommunications carrier that is buying, leasing, or 
considering a transfer of ownership of an already approved facility, shall provide 
written notification to the Zoning Officer and request transfer of the existing Use 
Permit.  The Zoning Officer may require submission of any supporting materials or 
documentation necessary to determine that the proposed use is in compliance with 
the existing Use Permit and all of its conditions including, but not limited to, 
statements, photographs, plans, drawings, models, and analysis by a State-
licensed radio frequency engineer demonstrating compliance with all applicable 
regulations and standards of the Federal Communications Commission and the 
California Public Utilities Commission.  If the Zoning Officer determines that the 
proposed operation is not consistent with the existing Use Permit, he/she shall 
notify the applicant who may revise the application or apply for modification to the 

Page 27 of 143

291



12

Use Permit pursuant to the requirements of Section 23B.56.

45. The applicant shall be responsible for paying all costs (including City staff time) 
associated with monitoring and/or enforcement of the above conditions.  Fees shall 
be based on the adopted City fee schedule in place at the time the work is 
performed or action is taken.

46. All exterior lighting shall be energy efficient where feasible; and shielded and directed 
downward and away from property lines to prevent excessive glare beyond the 
subject property.

47. This permit is subject to review, imposition of additional conditions, or revocation 
if factual complaint is received by the Zoning Officer that the maintenance or 
operation of this establishment is violating any of these or other required conditions 
or is detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the neighborhood or is detrimental or injurious to 
property and improvements in the neighborhood or to the general welfare of the 
City.

48. Noise and exterior lighting shall be controlled so as to prevent verified complaints 
from the surrounding properties.

Page 28 of 143

292



VICINITY MAP

SHEET INDEX

CODE COMPLIANCEPROJECT DESCRIPTION

T-1

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

DRIVING DIRECTIONS

PROJECT INFORMATION

TN

SITE LOCATION

ATTACHMENT 1 1, EXHIBIT BPage 29 of 143

293



Page 30 of 143

294



Page 31 of 143

295



Page 32 of 143

296



TN

A-1

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

Page 33 of 143

297



A-2

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

TN

Page 34 of 143

298



A-3

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

TN

Page 35 of 143

299



A-4

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

TN

Page 36 of 143

300



A-5

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

Page 37 of 143

301



A-6

273566
EBMUD BERRYMAN RESERVOIR

BERKELEY, CA 94708

Page 38 of 143

302



ATTACHMENT 1, EXHIBIT C
Page 39 of 143

303



Page 40 of 143

304



Page 41 of 143

305



Page 42 of 143

306



Page 43 of 143

307



Page 44 of 143

308



Page 45 of 143

309



Page 46 of 143

310



Page 47 of 143

311



Page 48 of 143

312



Page 49 of 143

313



Page 50 of 143

314



Page 51 of 143

315



Page 52 of 143

316



Example Mono Eucalyptus 

Page 53 of 143

317



Example four legged tower with FRP 

screen panels at the top. 

Page 54 of 143

318



Standard Monopole 

Page 55 of 143

319



Z O N I N G 

A D J U S T M E N T S 

B O A R D 

S t a f f  R e p o r t

1947 Center Street, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7410    TDD: 510.981.7474    Fax: 510.981.7420 
E-mail: zab@cityofberkeley.info

FOR BOARD ACTION 
JUNE 27, 2019 

0 Euclid Avenue – Berryman Reservoir 

Use Permit #ZP2018-0236 to establish a new 50’ high “monopole” 4G LTE 
wireless facility operated by Verizon Wireless at the East Bay Municipal 
Utility District site consisting of six antennas, six remote radio units, and 
associated ground equipment. 

I. Background

A. Land Use Designations:
• General Plan:  Low Density Residential
• Zoning:  R-1H, Single Family Residential District – Hillside Overlay

B. Zoning Permits Required:
• Use Permit to establish a Wireless Telecommunications Facility, under BMC

Section 23C.17.100.A.2;
• Use Permit to establish a Wireless Telecommunications Facility in the R-1 Single

Family Residential District, Hillside Overlay, under BMC Section 23D.16.030; and
• Administrative Use Permit to establish Wireless Telecommunications Facility,

other than those located within the public right-of-way built higher than 35’ in
height in the R-1H Single Family Residential District, Hillside Overlay under BMC
Sections 23E.96.070 and 23D.04.020.

C. CEQA Determination:  Categorically exempt pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15303
of the CEQA Guidelines (“Existing Facilities” and “New Construction or Conversion of
Small Structures”).

D. Parties Involved:

• Applicant David Haddock, Ridge Communications Inc  
for Verizon Wireless 
12919 Alcosta Blvd, Suite 1, San Ramon, CA 94583 

• Owner East Bay Municipal Utility District, Rob Korn 
PO Box 24055, Oakland, CA 94623 

ATTACHMENT 2Page 56 of 143

320



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 2 of 9 

 

Figure 1: Zoning & Vicinity Map  

 
 
 
 
 
  

Project Site 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 57 of 143

321



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 3 of 9 

 

Figure 2: Aerial View and Projected Visibility of Proposed Monopole* 

 
*See Attachment 2a for site plan and Attachment 2b for photosimulations of existing view, applicant’s 
proposed faux tree design and staff’s recommended design of un-camouflaged monopole.  
  

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 58 of 143

322



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 4 of 9 

 

Table 1:  Project Chronology/Shot-Clock 
Date Action 
December 17, 2018 Application Submitted 
January 16, 2019 Application Deemed Incomplete 
March 12, 2019 Additional Photosimulations submitted per Staff’s request 

April 11, 2019 Application Deemed Complete  

June 12, 2019 ZAB Meeting noticed mailed/posted 

June 27, 2019 ZAB Hearing 
This application is subject to FCC Ruling 09-99, allowing local governments 150 days as a “reasonable 
period of time” in which to act on new facility applications.  The FCC considers a new wireless facility 
on pole structure to be new facility.  Under California law (Govt. Code 65091) this is also a new facility, 
eligible for a 150-day Shot-clock.  The shot clock expires on July 10, 2019 and the applicant has not 
executed a tolling agreement.  

 

Table 2:  Land Use Information 

Location Existing Use 
Zoning 
District 

General Plan 
Designation 

Subject Property Berryman Reservoir (East Bay 
Municipal Utility District) 

R-1H Low Density Residential 

Surrounding 
Properties 

North Codornices Park 

R-1H 
Low Density Residential 

 

South Residential Dwellings 

East Residential Dwellings 

West Residential Dwellings 

 

Table 3:  Special Characteristics 

 
  

Characteristic Applies to 
Project? Explanation 

Compliant with FCC 
standards for RF 
EME levels and, 
therefore, 
permissible 

Yes 

47 United States Code § 332 (c) (7) (iv) prohibits the regulation of 
personal wireless facilities by state and local governments on the 
basis of radio frequency emissions to the extent that such facilities 
comply with the Federal Communication Commission’s regulations 
concerning such facilities and emission levels.  This application 
demonstrates compliance with all applicable FCC standards as 
described in Section V.A of this report and documented in Attachment 
4a; the City’s RF EME consultant has reviewed and confirmed these 
facts. 

Compliant with 
Federal shot clock 
timeframe for 150-
day review 

Yes 

47 United States Code § 332 (c) (7) (iii) and implementing FCC 
Regulations, including Regulation 09-99 as well as Section 6409 of the 
Spectrum Act (2012), require state and local governments to act on 
wireless telecommunication applications within a reasonable time 
period of time and mandate the following periods: 60 days for non-
substantial changes, 90 days for colocations, and 150 days for new 
facilities where future co-locations are presumed. This proposed 
facility is considered a new facility because it is a monopole design 
Accordingly the 150-day shot clock is applicable. Please see Table 1  

Subject to 
preemptive State 
approval 

No 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65964.1 for Wireless 
telecommunications facility approval, this request may not be deemed 
approved if the reasonable timeframes of the federal regulations are 
not met (see explanations, above) because it is a new facility and does 
not meet the State’s criteria under California Government Code 
Section 65850.6. 

Historic Resources No 
The site of the proposed wireless project is not on a parcel that 
contains a City Landmark. Therefore, the project was not referred to 
the Landmarks Preservation Commission for comment.  

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 59 of 143

323



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 5 of 9 

 

II. Project Setting 
 
A. Neighborhood/Area Description: The site is on the east side of Euclid Avenue near 

Bay View Place, in the Berkeley hills. The elevation in the area increase west to east.  
The surrounding area primarily consists primarily of single family residential dwellings 
and parks, including Codornices Park and the Berkeley Rose Garden.  
 

B. Site Conditions: The subject property is a 3.7 acre (161,401 square foot) parcel 
belonging to the East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD). It is developed with an 
approximately 2.6 million gallon water storage tank (reservoir). The balance of the 
property includes vehicular access for maintenance trucks, and landscaping.  

 

III. Community Discussion 
 
A. Neighbor/Community Concerns:  Prior to submitting the application to the City, a 

pre-application poster was erected on the project site by the applicant in December 
2018. On June 12, 2019, public hearing notices were posted on the site and at three 
locations in the vicinity; notices were also mailed to property owners and occupants 
within a 300’ radius, and to interested neighborhood organizations.  As of writing this 
staff report, staff has received approximately 40 emails regarding the proposed 
monopole, with the majority of the comments focused on the location and design of 
the proposed monopole and stating that the faux tree was not a desirable design (see 
Attachment 7).  

B. Committee Review:  Additional committee review is not required for this facility. Land 
Use and Design Review staff worked with the applicant team on alternative design 
options; see Section V.B. Design and Aesthetic Quality, below.  

 

IV. Project Description 
 
Verizon is proposing to install a new wireless telecommunications facility consisting of a 
freestanding tower also commonly referred to as a “monopole”, designed as a “monopine” 
or “treepole” in order to be disguised as an evergreen tree.  Antennas, remote radio units, 
and other related cables and equipment are proposed to be mounted on the monopole.  
Other equipment cabinets, including a standby generator are proposed be installed on the 
ground near the monopole and would not be visible from the street as the property is bowl 
shaped with the lowest elevations surrounded by an earthen berm. Verizon is proposing 
to provide LTE “data only” service from this facility. 

 

V. Issues and Analysis 
 

A. Zoning Compliance – BMC Chapter 23C.17 for Wireless Telecommunication 
Facilities: The Federal Communications Commission, pursuant to regulations 
established under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and the Spectrum Act of 2012, 
regulates the development of wireless communications infrastructure, limiting the 
scope and duration of local government review (47 USC  § 332).  The City of Berkeley’s 
regulations with respect to wireless facilities were written to compliment the Federal 
requirements, while protecting public safety, and promoting community welfare and 
aesthetic quality.  These regulations focus on compliance with established standards 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 60 of 143

324



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 6 of 9 

 

for facility necessity, Radio Frequency exposure and noise, and regulate provider 
compliance with applicable Federal Regulations, design and parking. As summarized 
in Table 4, below, the application is in compliance with the requirements established 
in Chapter 23C.17 for the approval of Use Permits for new wireless communication 
facilities. 

 
Table 4:  Wireless Facilities Compliance Checklist – BMC 23C.17 

Regulatory requirement Satisfied? Explanation 
Necessity. The applicant’s statement of the project 
objectives and necessity demonstrate that project will 
prevent or fill a significant gap in coverage or capacity; 
and these statements have been peer reviewed to 
confirm that the project will meet these objectives per 
BMC Sections 23C.17.040 and 23C.17.100 

Yes 

A peer review confirmed that the 
applicant’s statement of project 
necessity complied with applicable 
FCC standards. 

RF exposure. Compliance with FCC RF exposure limits 
shall be demonstrated and peer reviewed. Per BMC 
Sections 23C.17.040.F.1 

Yes 

See Attachment 4a. Maximum RF 
exposure at ground level from project 
was calculated at 60% of applicable 
public exposure limit. Maximum 
exposure in adjacent residences was 
calculated at 12% of applicable public 
exposure limit. Peer reviews by the 
City’s RF EME consultant confirmed 
these calculations, methodology used, 
and compliance with FCC standards. 

Noise. Applicant shall provide a noise study 
demonstrating that the facility will comply with the 
Berkeley Community Noise Ordinance (BMC 13.40) per 
23C.17.080.C 

Yes 

See Attachment 5.  The City’s noise 
consultant peer reviewed the 
applicant’s noise study (Hammett & 
Edison, Inc) and provided comments 
to ensure compliance with the 
Community Noise Ordinance and 
Conditions of Approval require that the 
final noise study be review and 
approved prior to the issuance of 
Building Permits.  

Provider compliance certification. Operator has filed 
a statement of compliance with FCC requirements with 
respect to all of their facilities in the City of Berkeley, per 
BMC Sections  23C.17.090.A.2 or 23C.17.100.B.4 

Yes 
Verizon Wireless has provided the 
requisite annual compliance report for 
2019. See Attachment 6. 

Height. Project is within the applicable height limits. Per 
BMC Sections 23C.17.060.D, 23D.16.070, 23E.96.070, 
and 23D.04.020 

Yes 

BMC Section 23D.04.020 requires that 
an Administrative Use Permit is 
secured for Wireless 
Telecommunications Facilities built to 
a height greater than the limit 
established for the district other than 
those located within the public right-of-
way. The Wireless Ordinance allows 
wireless facilities to extend up 15’ 
above the height limit of the district. In 
this case, the R-1H district height limit 
is 35’, accordingly, the proposed 50’ 
wireless tower would be within the 
applicable height limit. 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 61 of 143

325



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 7 of 9 

 

 
B. Design and Aesthetic Quality: The federal and state laws limit or prohibit local 

discretionary review over many technical aspects of wireless telecommunication 
facilities including the establishment of radio frequency emission levels and 
demonstration of need or alternative siting requirements that are excessively 
burdensome to applicants. Furthermore, local government permitting time limits are 
mandated by Federal regulations, as shown in Table 1. The City’s discretion over this 
request is limited to design and aesthetic consideration and the BMC prescribed 
design requirements for these facilities. Therefore, only these aspects of the 
discretionary application have become the City’s focus when reviewing requests for 
new and modified wireless facilities. Staff’s discussion of this proposed facility’s 
placement, design and aesthetic qualities follows for the Board’s consideration. 
 
BMC Section 23C.17.070 lists extensive design requirements for telecommunication 
facilities, including all facilities shall be designed and located to minimize their visibility 
to the greatest extent feasible, considering technological requirements, by means of 
placement, screening, and camouflage and colors and materials for facilities shall be 
chosen to minimize visibility. Subsection C.3 states: “All monopoles and lattice towers 
shall be designed to be the minimum functional height and width required to support 
the proposed antenna installation unless a higher monopole or lattice tower will 
facilitate co-location or other objectives of this Chapter.” 
 
Per BMC Section 23C.17.100.B.2, the Zoning Adjustments Board must make a finding 
that the facility the proposed antenna or related facility, operating alone and in 
conjunction with other telecommunications facilities, would comply with all applicable 
state and federal standards and requirements and would either:  
 

(1) not be readily visible; or 
 

(2) be readily visible, but it is not feasible to incorporate additional measures 
that would make the facility not readily visible.   

 
In this case, staff believes that the applicant’s original proposal of a “monopine” design 
would comply would comply with #1, above, to not be readily visible, as it is a 
camouflaged monopole designed to looks like a pine tree and blends in with the 
surrounding tree cover and vegetation as depicted in the photosimulations.  
 
Per staff’s request, the applicant has provided multiple photo simulations of design 
alternatives of the monopole (see Attachment 2b) including the following: 

• a “monopine”/”treepole”, faux tree design; 

• an un-camouflaged monopole painted grey; 

• an un-camouflaged monopole painted green;  

• a four legged tower with RF screen enclosure painted grey; and 

Design. Project is designed to minimize potential visual 
impacts per BMC Section 23C.17.070 

Yes 

The applicant presented a design 
intended to minimize visual impacts 
and integrate the new antennas and 
equipment with the surroundings, 
based on recent experience with other 
wireless applications in Berkeley. See 
the discussion in V.B, below. 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 62 of 143

326



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 8 of 9 

 

• a four legged tower with RF screen enclosure painted green. 
 

Alternative design options consisting of large enclosure screen walls were found to 
make the facility more noticeable and visible.  
 
Multiple public comment letters sent to the City state that the proposed faux tree is not 
a desirable design and in response Staff has evaluated the un-camouflaged design of 
the monopole. A monopole in proximity to the existing vegetation and tree cover 
minimizes the its visibility as required under #1 or #2 above, without the installation of 
faux tree as shown in the applicants submitted alternative photosimulations. 
Additionally, the proposed faux tree would require monitoring and maintenance to 
ensure that the faux branches designed to obscure the antennas are in good condition 
and not damaged due to weather. Because the un-camouflaged monopole can be 
painted green and its location would minimize the visibility of its respective 
components and preserve the aesthetic quality of the area, staff recommends that the 
Board approve the request for a new monopole wireless facility, with Condition of 
Approval that the wireless facility be designed as an un-camouflaged monopole 
painted green. 

 
C. General Plan Consistency:  The 2002 General Plan contains several policies 

applicable to the project, including the following: 
 
1. Policy LU-7–Neighborhood Quality of Life, Action A:  Require that new 

development be consistent with zoning standards and compatible with the scale, 
historic character, and surrounding uses in the area. 
 
Staff Analysis: The un-camouflaged monopole painted green option of proposal is 
consistent with the relevant zoning standards, which require that need for the 
wireless telecommunication facility be demonstrated and that the facility not be 
readily visible and not result in negative effects on public health (see Design and 
Aesthetic Quality and Zoning Compliance, above). 
 

2. Policy UD-16–Context: The design and scale of new or remodeled buildings should 
respect the built environment in the area, particularly where the character of the 
built environment is largely defined by an aggregation of historically and 
architecturally significant buildings. 

3. Policy UD-24–Area Character: Regulate new construction and alterations to 
ensure that they are truly compatible with and, where feasible, reinforce the 
desirable design characteristics of the particular area they are in. 
 
Staff Analysis: The un-camouflaged monopole painted green design option of the 
proposed wireless facility as shown in the submitted photo simulations is within an 
area which will reduce the visibility of the facility and will blend in with the 
surrounding vegetation at the reservoir.   
 

VI. Recommendation 
 

Because of the project’s consistency with the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan, staff 
recommends that the Zoning Adjustments Board APPROVE Use Permit #ZP2018-0236, 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 63 of 143

327



ZONING ADJUSTMENTS BOARD 0 EULCID AVENUE 
June 27, 2019 Page 9 of 9 

 

pursuant to BMC Sections 23B.32.030 and 23C.17.100, subject to the attached Findings 
and Conditions that the wireless facility be the un-camouflaged monopole painted 
green option presented by the applicant. (See Attachment 1). 

 
 
Attachments: 

1. Findings and Conditions 
2. a. Project Plans, March 3, 2018 

b. Photosimulations, dated November 6, 2016 
3. Notice of Public Hearing, dated June 12, 2019 
4. a. RF-EME Peer Review memo and Report, Hammett & Edison, Inc.  

b. Statement of need and coverage maps 
5. Acoustic Report, Bollard Acoustical Consultants and Peer Review memo 
6. Annual Compliance Certification, June, 6 2019  
7. Correspondences Received 

 
Staff Planner: Layal Nawfal, lnawfal@cityofberkeley.info, (510) 981-7424 

ATTACHMENT 3
Page 64 of 143

328



ATTACHMENT 3
Page 65 of 143

329



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 66 of 143

330



ATTACHMENT 2
Page 67 of 143

331



MACKENZIE & ALBRITTON LLP 
155 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 800 

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA  94104 

TELEPHONE 415/ 288-4000 
FACSIMILE 415/ 288-4010 

July 23, 2019 

VIA EMAIL 

Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City Attorney 
City of Berkeley 
2180 Milvia Street, Fourth Floor 
Berkeley, California 94704 

Re:  Verizon Wireless Application ZP2018-0236 
Telecommunications Facility, O Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) 
FCC Shot Clock Extension Agreement: November 22, 2019 

Dear Farimah: 

We write to you on behalf of our client GTE Mobilnet of California Limited 
Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless (“Verizon Wireless”) with respect to the above-
referenced application for a wireless telecommunications facility filed December 17, 
2018 (the “Application”).  Federal law requirements obligate the City of Berkeley (the 
“City”) to take final action on the Application within a specified time period unless the 
time period for the City to take final action is extended by mutual consent.  Verizon 
Wireless has appealed the denial of the Application by the Zoning Adjustments Board, 
and anticipates that a City Council appeal hearing will occur by November 22, 2019.  
When countersigned, this letter will confirm an agreement between Verizon Wireless and 
the City to extend the applicable time period for review of the Application under the 
federal Telecommunications Act to November 22, 2019 (the “Extension Date”). 

The federal Telecommunications Act requires that local governments act on 
wireless siting applications “within a reasonable period of time.”  See 47 U.S.C. § 
332(c)(7)(B)(ii).  In a 2009 declaratory ruling, the Federal Communications Commission 
established a legal presumption that a local government has violated this requirement if it 
takes longer than 90 days to act on an application to collocate a wireless facility, or 150 
days to act on any other type of wireless facility application, plus the number of days it 
takes an applicant to respond to a timely notice of incomplete application.  See In Re: 
Petition for Declaratory Ruling to Clarify Provisions of Section 332(c)(7)(B) to Ensure 
Timely Siting Review, Etc., FCC 09-99 (FCC November 18, 2009) (the “Ruling”).1  The
FCC recently codified the time period for action.  47 CFR § 1.6003(c).  The Ruling 

1 The Ruling was upheld by the United States Supreme Court on May 20, 2013.  See City of Arlington v. 
Federal Communications Commission, 569 U.S. 290 (2013).  

ATTACHMENT 4
Page 68 of 143

332



Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City of Berkeley 
July 23, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

further permits the period for review of an application to be extended by mutual consent.  
Ruling, ¶ 49; 47 C.F.R. § 1.6003(d).   

In order to allow the City to act on the Application without either party risking the 
loss of important rights, the parties agree that the time period within which the City may 
act on the Application shall be extended through the Extension Date, and that no 
limitations period for any claim of unreasonable or unlawful delay in processing the 
Application shall commence to run before said date.   

If you agree, this letter agreement may be executed in counterparts, and scanned 
or facsimile signatures shall be deemed equivalent to original signatures.  I will 
appreciate your returning a countersigned copy to me at your convenience. 

   Sincerely, 

 Paul B. Albritton 

cc: Layal Nawfal 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

City of Berkeley 

By: _________________________ 

Printed name: _________________ 

Title: _________________________ 

Christopher D. Jensen

Deputy City Attorney

Page 69 of 143

333

cjensen
Stamp



Page 70 of 143

334



MACKENZIE & ALBRITTON LLP 
155 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 800 

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA  94104 
 

TELEPHONE 415/ 288-4000 
FACSIMILE 415/ 288-4010 

 
 

November 11, 2019 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City Attorney 
City of Berkeley 
2180 Milvia Street, Fourth Floor 
Berkeley, California 94704 
 

Re:  Verizon Wireless Application ZP2018-0236 
Telecommunications Facility, O Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) 
FCC Shot Clock Extension Agreement: March 31, 2020 

  
Dear Farimah: 
 

In a letter agreement effective July 23, 2019 (the “Tolling Agreement”), Verizon 
Wireless and the City of Berkeley (the “City”) agreed to extend the time period for 
review under the federal Telecommunications Act for the above-referenced application 
through November 22, 2019 (the “Extension Date”).  This letter, when countersigned, 
will confirm that Verizon Wireless and the City have agreed to further extend the time for 
the City to act on the application, and that the Tolling Agreement is hereby amended by 
changing the Extension Date to March 31, 2020.  Except as expressly modified herein, 
the Tolling Agreement remains in full force and effect without modification. 
 

This amendment to the Tolling Agreement may be executed in counterparts and 
facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original.  
 
               Sincerely, 

    
    Paul B. Albritton 

       
 
cc:   Christopher Jensen, Esq. 
 Layal Nawfal 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 71 of 143

335



Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City of Berkeley 
November 11, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

City of Berkeley 

By: _________________________ 

Printed name: _________________ 

Title: _________________________ 

Christopher D. Jensen

Assistant City Attorney

Page 72 of 143

336

cjensen
Stamp



MACKENZIE & ALBRITTON LLP 
155 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 800 

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA  94104 

TELEPHONE 415/ 288-4000 
FACSIMILE 415/ 288-4010 

February 19, 2020 

VIA EMAIL 

Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City Attorney 
City of Berkeley 
2180 Milvia Street, Fourth Floor 
Berkeley, California 94704 

Re:  Verizon Wireless Application ZP2018-0236 
Telecommunications Facility, O Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) 
FCC Shot Clock Extension Agreement: April 30, 2020 

Dear Farimah: 

In a letter agreement effective July 23, 2019 and amended November 11, 2019 
(the “Tolling Agreement”), Verizon Wireless and the City of Berkeley (the “City”) 
agreed to extend the time period for review under the federal Telecommunications Act 
for the above-referenced application through March 31, 2020 (the “Extension Date”).  
This letter, when countersigned, will confirm that Verizon Wireless and the City have 
agreed to further extend the time for the City to act on the application, and that the 
Tolling Agreement is hereby amended by changing the Extension Date to April 30, 2020.  
Except as expressly modified herein, the Tolling Agreement remains in full force and 
effect without modification. 

This amendment to the Tolling Agreement may be executed in counterparts and 
facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original.  

   Sincerely, 

 Paul B. Albritton 

cc:   Christopher Jensen, Esq. 
Layal Nawfal 

Page 73 of 143

337



Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City of Berkeley 
February 19, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

City of Berkeley 

By: _________________________ 

Printed name: _________________ 

Title: _________________________ 

Christopher D. Jensen

Acting City Attorney

Page 74 of 143

338

cjensen
Stamp



MACKENZIE & ALBRITTON LLP 
155 SANSOME STREET, SUITE 800 

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA  94104 
 

TELEPHONE 415/ 288-4000 
FACSIMILE 415/ 288-4010 

 
 

May 13, 2020 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City Attorney 
City of Berkeley 
2180 Milvia Street, Fourth Floor 
Berkeley, California 94704 
 

Re:  Verizon Wireless Application ZP2018-0236 
Telecommunications Facility, O Euclid Avenue (Berryman Reservoir) 
FCC Shot Clock Extension Agreement: July 10, 2020 

  
Dear Farimah: 
 

In a letter agreement effective July 23, 2019 and amended November 11, 2019 
and February 19, 2020 (the “Tolling Agreement”), Verizon Wireless and the City of 
Berkeley (the “City”) agreed to extend the time period for review under the federal 
Telecommunications Act for the above-referenced application through June 30, 2020 (the 
“Extension Date”).  This letter, when countersigned, will confirm that Verizon Wireless 
and the City have agreed to further extend the time for the City to act on the application, 
and that the Tolling Agreement is hereby amended by changing the Extension Date to 
July 10, 2020.  Except as expressly modified herein, the Tolling Agreement remains in 
full force and effect without modification. 
 

This amendment to the Tolling Agreement may be executed in counterparts and 
facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original.  
 
               Sincerely, 

    
    Paul B. Albritton 

       
 
cc:   Christopher Jensen, Esq. 
 Layal Nawfal 
  
 
 
 

Page 75 of 143

339



Farimah Brown, Esq. 
City of Berkeley 
May 13, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

City of Berkeley 

By: _________________________ 

Printed name: _________________ 

Title: _________________________ 

Christopher D. Jensen

Assistant City Attorney

Page 76 of 143

340

CJensen
Stamp



Alternatives Analysis 

Berkeley Hills 
0 Euclid Avenue, City of Berkeley 

March 5, 2020 

Summary of Site Evaluations 
Conducted by Ridge Communications, Inc. 
Compiled by Mackenzie & Albritton LLP 

ATTACHMENT 5A

Page 77 of 143

341



2 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

I.	 Executive Summary .............................................................................................. 3	
II.	 Significant Gap ...................................................................................................... 3	
III.	 Methodology .......................................................................................................... 3	
IV.	 Analysis .................................................................................................................. 6	

Review of Microcell Network ................................................................................. 6	
Façade- and Roof-Mounted Facilities .................................................................. 8	

1. Congregation Beth Israel .............................................................................. 8	
2. Oxford Elementary School ......................................................................... 10	
3. Jane Goodall Institute ................................................................................. 11	

Freestanding Tower Facilities ............................................................................. 13	
4. Proposed Facility – Berryman Reservoir .................................................... 13	
5. Codornices Park .......................................................................................... 15	
6. Berkeley Rose Garden ................................................................................ 16	
7. Glendale-La Loma Park .............................................................................. 17	
8. PG&E Ridge Substation ............................................................................. 18	
9. Summit Reservoir ....................................................................................... 19	
10. Bay Tree Reservoir ................................................................................... 21	

V. 	 Conclusion ........................................................................................................... 23	
 

Map of Alternatives 

 
 

 

Page 78 of 143

342



3 

I. Executive Summary 
 

Verizon Wireless has a significant gap in service in the north Berkeley hills 
residential neighborhoods.  Based on a review of 10 alternatives as set forth in the 
following analysis, Verizon Wireless believes that placement of a new wireless tower 
disguised as a pine tree (the “Proposed Facility”) constitutes the least intrusive feasible 
alternative to provide service to the identified gap in network service based on the values 
expressed in the Berkeley Municipal Code (the “Code”). 

II. Significant Gap  
 

There is a significant gap in Verizon Wireless network service in the north  
Berkeley hills.  Residential areas lack reliable LTE in-building and in-vehicle service 
coverage, and there are pockets lacking any reliable service.  The coverage gap is 
particularly pronounced for the high-band PCS and AWS frequency spectrum bands that 
Verizon Wireless uses to provide over 70 percent of its LTE service throughout Berkeley.  
Further, a distant Verizon Wireless facility serving much of the area has reached capacity 
exhaustion.  This compromises communications for residents and visitors as well as 
emergency service personnel.  (Collectively, the “Significant Gap”)  The Significant Gap 
is described in detail in the Statement of Verizon Wireless Radio Frequency Design 
Engineer Amr Kharaba (the “RF Engineer’s Statement”).  To remedy the Significant 
Gap, Verizon Wireless must place new infrastructure to ensure reliable network service.     

III. Methodology 
 

Once a significant gap has been determined, Verizon Wireless seeks to identify a 
location and design that will provide reliable network service through the “least intrusive 
means” based upon the values expressed by local regulations.  In addition to seeking the 
least intrusive alternative, sites proposed by Verizon Wireless must be feasible.  
Feasibility means that a site has suitable radio frequency propagation, proximity to end 
users, available equipment space, access, topography, slope and other critical factors such 
as a willing landlord.  Wherever feasible, Verizon Wireless seeks to use existing 
infrastructure to minimize visual impacts.   

 
The Berkeley Hills present a challenge for providing wireless service.  In order to 

control radio signal propagation for network design, antennas generally face east into the 
Berkeley Hills.  West-facing antenna sectors are avoided to prevent signal propagation 
extending beyond desired coverage areas.  Further, west-facing antennas are problematic 
due to the signal-skipping properties of water on the bay that can result in interference as 
far away as Marin County and San Francisco.   

 
Private Property – Zoning Code 

 
Under the zoning code, applicants for facilities on private property must submit 

an alternatives analysis demonstrating that a new facility is the least intrusive means to 
provide service with the least aesthetic impact, with an explanation of why any preferred 
facility types are not feasible.  Code §§ 23C.17.040(C)(2), 23C.17.040(E)(4).   

 

Page 79 of 143

343



4 

Microcell networks on private property may be approved in any zoning district 
with an administrative permit, and all other new wireless facilities require a use permit.  
Code § 23C.17.100(A).  The preferred type of wireless facility is a microcell network, 
followed by façade-mounted facilities, roof-mounted facilities, ground-mounted facilities 
and freestanding towers.  Code §§ 23C.17.070(A), 23C.17.030(D).   

 
Wireless facilities must be designed to minimize visibility through screening and 

camouflage to the greatest extent feasible with respect to technological requirements, and 
designed to blend with surrounding buildings or the natural setting.  Code § 
23C.17.070(B).  One finding requires that facilities not be readily visible, or that it is 
infeasible to incorporate additional measures to achieve this.  Code § 23C.17.100(B)(2).  
Facilities must not impair significant or sensitive view corridors.  Code § 23C.17.070(C).  
A facility may be sited at a location visible from a public park if it meets the wireless 
facility findings.  Code §§ 23C.17.050(B), 23C.17.100.   
 

A new freestanding wireless facility should not be located within 1,000 feet of 
another freestanding facility unless it is stealthed to the extent feasible and co-location or 
placement on a building are not feasible.  Code § 23C.17.050(C).   
 
Public Right-of-Way – Streets and Sidewalks Code  
 
The City regulates wireless facilities in the right-of-way under its streets and sidewalks 
code, not the Zoning Code which applies to private property.  Right-of-way facilities 
require a public right-of-way permit issued by the Public Works Director.  Code §§ 
16.10.030, 16.10.045.   
 
Right-of-way location and design standards are set forth in the City’s Guidelines for 
Projects Requiring Telecommunications Encroachment/Excavation Permits (the “ROW 
Guidelines”).  Preferred locations are commercial and manufacturing districts, followed 
by neighborhood commercial districts, then residential districts, with least-favored 
locations including sites within 100 feet of City parks, landmarks or certain historic 
resources.  ROW Guidelines § II(A).   
 
Right-of-way facilities must use the smallest, least visible antennas and equipment that 
can meet service objectives.  Equipment must be no larger or more obtrusive and readily 
visible than existing facilities on a pole.  ROW Guidelines §§ III(C), III(E)(1).  Specific 
size constraints limit associated equipment to one enclosure on the subject pole up to 
approximately 12 inches wide, 10 inches deep and four cubic feet, and another such 
enclosure on a nearby pole, plus an electric meter and cut-off switch.  ROW Guidelines § 
III(E)(4).    
 
  

Page 80 of 143

344



5 

The map below is an excerpt of the City’s Wireless Telecom Facilities map showing 
wireless facilities on private property in the northeast Berkeley area.  The existing 
Verizon Wireless sites on this map are (1) Kensington Circle and (7) Shattuck North.  
There are no wireless facilities shown in the hilly area near the Proposed Facility.   

 
Excerpt of City of Berkeley 

Wireless Telecom Facilities Map 2015 

 
 
 
  

Proposed      
Facility 

• 

Page 81 of 143

345



6 

IV. Analysis 
 
Review of Microcell Network 
 

Verizon Wireless investigated the possibility of placing microcells (also known as 
small cells) in the gap area that could be approved administratively by the Planning 
Department or Public Works Department.  With respect to private property, the first 
preference for facility type under the zoning code is a microcell network.  Given the R-1 
zoning of the area, microcells on residential buildings would be required to serve the 
Significant Gap.   

 
To avoid siting on residences, Verizon Wireless reviewed placement of microcells 

in the right-of-way.  Though the ROW Guidelines prefer siting in commercial and 
manufacturing zones, residential zones are the only option in the gap area.  Right-of-way 
facilities are discouraged within 100 feet of parks, and there are several in the area.   

 
The ROW Guidelines place dimension constraints on right-of-way equipment that 

limit radio units to low-wattage models, resulting in facilities with a smaller coverage 
footprint.  Low-power radios mean more microcells are required to serve an area, though 
utility poles generally offer advantageous height for antennas, somewhat improving 
coverage.   

 
Low-power microcell facilities have a limited coverage radius of approximately 

500 to 1,500 feet, and signal would be easily impeded by the substantial tree clutter and 
topographic obstructions in the gap area.  Due to these factors, Verizon Wireless RF 
engineers determined that 12 microcell facilities would be required to serve the Significant 
Gap.  For this solution, the 12 microcells would be placed north and east of the Proposed 
Facility location.  A potential microcell network solution is shown in the following map. 

 
Elevated on utility poles along streets, right-of-way microcells would be more 

readily visible than the Proposed Facility, which is disguised as a tree and placed away 
from street vantage points.  Given the residential nature of the gap area, a number of 
right-of-way microcells would be located adjacent to residential properties, whereas the 
Proposed Facility is over 270 feet from the nearest residence.  The close proximity of 
numerous right-of-way microcells to streets and residences would lead to a more 
intrusive deployment overall.  Coverage limitations resulting from trees, building clutter 
and topography, as well as the prospect of more intrusive installations, make a microcell 
network a less feasible and potentially more intrusive alternative to the Proposed Facility.   
  

Page 82 of 143

346



7 

Example Map of Network of 12 Microcells 
     

 
 
  

Page 83 of 143

347



8 

Façade- and Roof-Mounted Facilities 
 

Verizon Wireless reviewed the vicinity of the gap for non-residential buildings 
that could support façade- or roof-mounted antennas, considering the following locations.   
 
   1. Congregation Beth Israel  
 Address: 1301 Oxford Street 
 Elevation: 320 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed placement of antennas on this building 0.3 miles west 
of the Proposed Facility and 120 feet lower in elevation.  Verizon Wireless RF engineers 
determined that a facility at this location cannot serve the Significant Gap.  As shown in 
the following coverage map, a facility at this location of the same height as the Proposed 
Facility would provide coverage to only the western fringe of the gap area.  Due to 
inability to serve the Significant Gap, this is not a feasible alternative to the Proposed 
Facility.   
  

Page 84 of 143

348



9 

High-Band 4G LTE Coverage Provided by a Facility at Congregation Beth Israel   
 

 
 
Coverage plot maps depict the anticipated level of signal, and therefore the 
projected coverage provided by a site at a given location.  The areas in green 
reflect good coverage that meets or exceed thresholds to provide consistent and 
reliable network coverage in homes and in vehicles.  The areas in yellow and red 
depict decreasing levels of coverage, respectively, with yellow areas generally 
representing reliable in-vehicle coverage only, and red areas depicting poor 
service areas with marginal coverage unsuitable for in-vehicle use.  Gray depicts 
marginal service areas with unreliable service levels. 
 
The circle surrounds the Proposed Facility location and its critical coverage area. 
 
Many wireless facilities in this area of the East Bay do not include west-facing 
antenna sectors.  This is because west-facing antennas would direct signal over 
the bay.  As signal propagates well over water, it would become a source of 
interference for distant wireless facilities in San Francisco and/or Marin County.  
In these coverage maps, the antenna sectors for the Proposed Facility and the 
various alternatives are not directed west.   
  

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

Page 85 of 143

349



10 

 
 
   2. Oxford Elementary School 
 Address: 1301 Oxford Street 
 Elevation: 380 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this school facility 0.4 miles northwest of the 
Proposed Facility and 120 feet lower in elevation.  Verizon Wireless recently contacted 
the Berkeley Unified School District regarding placement of wireless facilities on its 
property, and the District responded that it was not interested.  Due to lack of landlord 
interest, this is not a feasible alternative to the Proposed Facility. 
  

Page 86 of 143

350



11 

   3. Jane Goodall Institute 
 Address: 1581 Leroy Avenue 
 Elevation: 540 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this property 0.3 miles south of the Proposed Facility 
and 40 feet greater in elevation.  Verizon Wireless RF engineers determined that a facility 
at this location cannot serve the Significant Gap.  As shown in the following coverage 
map, a facility at this location of the same height as the Proposed Facility would provide 
coverage to only the southern fringe of the gap area.  Due to inability to serve the 
Significant Gap, this is not a feasible alternative to the Proposed Facility.   
  

Page 87 of 143

351



12 

High-Band LTE Coverage Provided by Facility at Jane Goodall Institute 
 

 
  

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

Page 88 of 143

352



13 

 
Freestanding Tower Facilities 
 

Lacking any non-residential buildings suitable for a façade- or roof-mounted 
facility, Verizon Wireless reviewed the gap area for non-residential properties with 
sufficient space for a new freestanding tower facility, identifying the following 
alternatives. 
 
   4. Proposed Facility – Berryman Reservoir 
 Address: 0 Euclid Avenue 
 Elevation: 500 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless proposes to conceal its panel antennas on a 50-foot freestanding 
facility camouflaged as a pine tree, placed in an unused area of an East Bay Municipal 
Utilities District property.  Antennas will be concealed within faux foliage and branches, 
and branches will extend beyond and above the antennas, providing a realistic tapered 
crown.  Antennas will be covered with needle socks for further concealment.  The 
treepole will be located near a row of established trees of similar height that provide 
screening as viewed from the park to the west, as well as a backdrop to allow the treepole 
to blend with its surroundings.   
 
 Near the treepole, a 500-square foot equipment area will contain radio cabinets 
and a diesel generator to provide continued service in case of emergencies.  The 
equipment area will be surrounded by a six-foot chain link fence.  Secure within the 
EBMUD compound, neither the treepole nor the equipment area will be accessible to the 

Page 89 of 143

353



14 

public.  Verizon Wireless also presented the City with alternative designs for an 
uncamouflaged monopole or a four-legged tower with antennas screened within square 
panels, with options for either design to be painted gray or green.   

 
With antennas elevated to the required centerline of 40 feet 9 inches at this 

optimal location, the Proposed Facility will provide reliable Verizon Wireless service to 
the Significant Gap.  As shown in the following propagation map, the Proposed Facility 
will provide new, reliable coverage in the north Berkeley hills.  It is also placed at an 
optimal location to relieve demand on the existing Verizon Wireless facilities currently 
serving the gap area, including exhausted antenna sectors of the Lower University facility 
to the southwest that serve much of the gap.  This will improve overall network 
performance in a greater area.  An analysis comparing existing and proposed coverage is 
found in the RF Engineer’s Statement.  This is Verizon Wireless’s preferred location and 
design for the Proposed Facility. 

 
High-Band 4G LTE Coverage Provided by Proposed Facility 

 

 
 
  

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

Page 90 of 143

354



15 

   5. Codornices Park 
 Address: 1201 Euclid Avenue 
 Elevation: 500 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

   
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this City park located due north of the Proposed 
Facility at a similar elevation.  The level areas of the park include a playing field north of 
the Proposed Facility, and a basketball court and playground further north.  A new 
freestanding wireless facility and equipment area in these level areas would remove 
recreational areas from use.  A facility on the slopes surrounding recreational areas would 
require substantial trenching and grading for placement of a tower foundation, equipment 
area and underground utility conduit, requiring tree removal if feasible at all.  This would 
present environmental impacts to a park property, whereas the Proposed Facility is placed 
on a utility property where it would not disrupt public uses.  Lastly, the Code discourages 
facilities visible from a public park.  A facility within the park itself would be readily 
visible to park users.  This cannot be considered a less intrusive alternative to the 
Proposed Facility.   
 
  

Page 91 of 143

355



16 

6. Berkeley Rose Garden 
 Address: 1200 Euclid Avenue 
 Elevation: 420-480 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

   
                    Berkeley Rose Garden                                                        Storage Area 

 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this public park across the street and 0.1 miles 
northwest of the Proposed Facility with a varying elevation.  The only area of this park 
not in recreational use is a small storage area in the northwest corner behind the tennis 
courts, immediately adjacent to homes.  This storage area is 50 feet lower in elevation 
than the Proposed Facility, requiring a much taller tower to elevate antennas to the height 
required serve the Significant Gap.  A new freestanding wireless tower in the storage area 
would be within 60 feet of homes, blocking views of the park beyond, whereas the 
Proposed Facility is over 270 feet from the nearest home.  The Code discourages 
facilities visible from a public park.  A very tall facility within the Rose Garden park 
would be readily visible to park users.  This cannot be considered a less intrusive 
alternative to the Proposed Facility.    

Page 92 of 143

356



17 

 
   7. Glendale-La Loma Park 
 Address: 1310 La Loma Avenue 
 Elevation: 780-840 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this City park located 0.3 miles east of the Proposed 
Facility with a varying elevation 280 to 340 feet greater.  This terraced park is situated in 
a canyon that opens to the west.  While the parking lot and playground are located at 
somewhat higher elevations on the east side of the park, they are flanked by ridges north 
and south that would block signal from antennas in those directions absent a very tall 
tower that would pose visual impacts to homes on the ridges.    
 

The playing field at the west end of the park is at the mouth of the canyon, where 
a facility at the western edge above a slope could potentially serve the Significant Gap.  
However, a facility at this location would silhouette against the sky and block bay views 
from vantage points east in the park.  Sloped areas surrounding the recreational areas 
would require substantial trenching and grading for placement of a tower foundation, 
equipment area and underground utility conduit, requiring tree removal if feasible at all.  
This would present environmental impacts to a park property, whereas the Proposed 
Facility is placed on an existing utility property where it would not disrupt public uses.  
Lastly, the Code discourages facilities visible from a public park.  As noted, a tower 
facility at the western edge within this park would be readily visible to park users.  This 
cannot be considered a less intrusive alternative to the Proposed Facility.   
  

Page 93 of 143

357



18 

   8. PG&E Ridge Substation 
 Address: 1313 Glendale Avenue  
 Elevation: 855 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this utility property located 0.35 miles east of the 
Proposed Facility and 355 feet greater in elevation.  A wireless facility placed on the one-
story building could not serve the gap because ridges north and south would block signal; 
a tower facility would be required.  The only area of the property potentially viable for 
placement of a new tower foundation and equipment area is the small parking lot, where 
a tower would be within 50 feet of homes.  A new tower facility at this location would 
present substantial visual impact as viewed from nearby residences and the adjacent 
roadway.  This cannot be considered a less intrusive alternative to the Proposed Facility.   
 
  

Page 94 of 143

358



19 

   9. Summit Reservoir 
 Address: Summit Road 
 Elevation: 1,340 Feet 
 Zoning:  City of Oakland 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this East Bay Municipal Utility District property 
located 0.9 miles east of the Proposed Facility and 840 feet greater in elevation.  Verizon 
Wireless RF engineers determined that a facility at this location cannot serve the 
Significant Gap.  As shown in the following coverage map, a facility at this location of 
the same height as the Proposed Facility would not provide any new coverage to the 
identified gap area.  Due to inability to serve the Significant Gap, this is not a feasible 
alternative to the Proposed Facility. 
 
  

Page 95 of 143

359



20 

High-Band LTE Coverage Provided by Facility at Summit Reservoir 
 

 
 
  

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

Page 96 of 143

360



21 

   10. Bay Tree Reservoir 
 Address: Bay Tree Lane 
 Elevation: 1,150 Feet 
 Zoning:  R-1 Residential 

 

 
 
 Verizon Wireless reviewed this East Bay Municipal Utility District property 
located 0.75 miles northeast of the Proposed Facility and 650 feet greater in elevation.  
Verizon Wireless RF engineers determined that a facility at this location cannot serve the 
Significant Gap.  As shown in the following coverage map, a facility at this location of 
the same height as the Proposed Facility would not provide any new coverage to the 
identified gap area.  Due to inability to serve the Significant Gap, this is not a feasible 
alternative to the Proposed Facility.   
 
  

Page 97 of 143

361



22 

High-Band LTE Coverage Provided by Facility at Bay Tree Reservoir 
 

 
  

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

Page 98 of 143

362



23 

 

V.  Conclusion  
 

Verizon Wireless has reviewed 10 alternatives and a microcell network to fill the 
Significant Gap in service in the north Berkeley hills.  Based upon the preferences 
identified in the Berkeley Municipal Code, the Proposed Facility, by placing antennas on 
a tower disguised as a pine tree on a utility property, constitutes the least intrusive 
alternative under the values expressed in the Berkeley Municipal Code.   
 
 

Page 99 of 143

363



8. PG&E Ridge
    Substation

Existing Shattuck 
North Facility

4. Proposed
    Facility

7 . Glendale-
     La Loma Park5. Codornices

    Park

6. Berkeley
    Rose Garden

1. Congregation
    Beth Israel

2. Oxford 
    Elementary
    School

10. Bay Tree
       Reservoir

9. Summit
    Reservoir

3. Jane Goodall
    Institute

Berkeley Hills
City of Berkeley

Alternative Site Locations
      

Page 100 of 143

364



2785 Mitchell Drive 
Walnut Creek, CA 94598 

March 5, 2020 

To: Berkeley City Council 

From: Amr Kharaba, Radio Frequency Design Engineer 
Verizon Wireless Network Engineering Department 

Subject: Statement in Support of Verizon Wireless’s Proposed 
Facility, 0 Euclid Avenue 

Executive Summary 

Verizon Wireless has identified a significant gap in its fourth-generation long-term 
evolution (4G LTE) service in the north Berkeley hills residential neighborhoods.  
This area currently receives inadequate 4G LTE service coverage from the 
existing Verizon Wireless Kensington Circle facility 1.1 miles northwest of the 
proposed facility, the Shattuck North facility 0.5 miles southwest, the Lower 
University facility 1.6 miles southwest, the Berkeley Bekins facility 1.8 miles 
southwest, and the Gilman Street facility 1.9 miles west.  Other existing facilities 
do not provide appreciable service levels to the area. 

As a result of the distance from existing facilities, there is a gap in 4G LTE in-
building and in-vehicle service coverage in the north Berkeley hills, and areas 
lacking outdoor coverage.  Further, exponential growth in voice and data usage 
by Verizon Wireless customers has increased the demand on the existing 
Verizon Wireless network in a manner that compromises network accessibility 
and reliability.  Slow data speeds and increased latency, resulting from network 
exhaustion, particularly compromise voice call quality and reliability for Verizon 
Wireless’s Voice over LTE (“VoLTE”) technology.  This exponential growth in 
demand has led to capacity exhaustion of the Verizon Wireless facility that 
provides the most service to the gap area.  I have described this significant gap 
in coverage and capacity in more detail below (the “Significant Gap”). 

To address the Significant Gap, Verizon Wireless is deploying efficient high-
speed 4G LTE technology in Berkeley.  Verizon Wireless provides the majority of 
its 4G LTE service using high-band PCS and AWS frequency spectrum.  Higher 
frequencies mean shorter wavelengths, which means that the PCS and AWS 
bands provide greater data capacity.  However, these high-band frequencies do 
not travel as far as low-band frequencies and require facilities closer together 
and closer to the end user to provide reliable LTE service.  

To provide reliable LTE service and avoid further degradation of Verizon 
Wireless service in the north Berkeley hills, Verizon Wireless must resolve the 
Significant Gap through construction of a new stealth tower facility at Berryman 
Reservoir, 0 Euclid Avenue (the “Proposed Facility”).  

ATTACHMENT 5B
Page 101 of 143

365



	 2 

Coverage Gap  
 
Verizon Wireless is experiencing a gap in 4G LTE service coverage in the north 
Berkeley hills (the “Coverage Gap”).  The gap is demonstrated by a recent drive 
test as well as coverage maps showing poor service throughout the area.   
 
Drive Test – 4G LTE Service Levels 
 
On Tuesday, December 17, 2019, Verizon Wireless drove a test truck through 
streets in the gap area to measure the 4G LTE signal strength received.  The 
strongest signal measured at a particular location was recorded and 
geographically plotted on the following map.  The drive tester collected the real-
time data using Verizon Wireless’s DMAT software (Device Monitoring and 
Analysis Tool). 
 
Referenced signal receive power (RSRP) is a measurement of signal level in 
decibels (dBm), which decreases due to distance, terrain and other factors.  The 
color of each point indicates the service level received at that location.  The 
coverage thresholds are: 
 

 In-building: Green depicts good coverage that meets or exceeds 
thresholds to provide reliable network coverage in homes and in vehicles. 

 
 In-vehicle: Yellow depicts reliable in-vehicle coverage only. 
 
 Outdoor: Red depicts reliable outdoor service only. 
 

Marginal: Gray depicts poor service areas with unreliable service levels. 
 
 None: Black depicts a lack of any usable service level. 

 
The drive test staff, timeframe and equipment setup are described below. 
 

Drive Tester  Gerald Kinney, Principal System Performance Engineer  
Drive Test Date, Time Tuesday, December 17, 2019, 12:07 p.m. – 3:18 p.m.  
Equipment Used Samsung Galaxy S7 & Samsung Galaxy S8  
Data analysis software  DMAT (Verizon Device Monitoring and Analysis Tool)  
4G LTE Bands Scanned  700 MHz, 850 MHz, PCS (1900 MHz), AWS (2100 MHz) 

 
 

                              
  

Page 102 of 143

366



	 3 

Drive Test Result - 4G LTE Service Levels 

 
 
This map shows a lack of in-building coverage in the north Berkeley hills and 
barely any in-vehicle coverage.  In most of the gap area, only outdoor coverage 
is available, with pockets receiving marginal or no coverage.    
 
Signal is weak due to distance of existing facilities.  The best serving signals 
received generally are in the low-band 700 MHz and 850 MHz frequencies, which 
travel farther because they have longer wavelengths.  The high-band PCS and 
AWS bands operate in the 1900 and 2100 MHz frequencies, and with shorter 
wavelengths, they do not travel as far.    
 
Verizon Wireless uses PCS and AWS to provide over 70 percent of its 4G LTE 
service capacity throughout Berkeley, as shown in the following chart.  However, 
the lack of PCS and AWS service is particularly pronounced in the gap area.   
 

Verizon Wireless Capacity by Band 
Band FCC Designation Frequency LTE Bandwidth % of total bandwidth 
700 MHz UHF Low Band 

 
700 MHz 22 MHz 19.64 % 

850 MHz Cellular 
 

850 MHz 10 MHz 8.93 % 

PCS Personal Communications 
Service 

1900 MHz 20 MHz 17.86 % 

AWS Advanced Wireless 
Service 

2100 MHz 60 MHz 53.57 % 

 
 

4G LTE RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    >= -110 dBm 
 None         < -110 dBm 

 

Page 103 of 143

367



	 4 

 
Modifying the surrounding facilities is not a feasible solution to the Significant 
Gap.  Other Verizon Wireless facilities serving the gap area are fully built out to 
provide all channels on all four frequency bands used by Verizon Wireless, 
except the Shattuck North facility which does not provide the 850 MHz band.  As 
described below, the Shattuck North facility provides very little service to the gap 
area, and adding the 850 MHz band will not provide significant relief to the 
Significant Gap.  
 
Coverage Maps 
 
Coverage maps depict the anticipated level of signal, and therefore the projected 
LTE coverage provided by a wireless facility at a given location.  Consistent with 
the above drive test map showing the actual, measured service levels, the 
following 4G LTE coverage map shows a lack of high-band service in the north 
Berkeley hills.  There is a lack of in-building coverage and barely any in-vehicle 
coverage, with the area receiving only outdoor or marginal coverage levels.   
 
Verizon Wireless uses a 4G LTE RF link budget to calculate the maximum 
allowable path loss (MAPL).  The link budget takes into account free space loss, 
fading and interference margins, and equipment receiver sensitivity to calculate 
the MAPL.  A combination of the transmit power out of the antennas and the 
MAPL determine the receive signal threshold required for outdoor coverage. 
Adding vehicle body losses to the calculation determines the receive signal 
threshold required for in-vehicle coverage.  Similarly, adding the building 
penetration losses to the calculation determines the receive signal threshold 
required for in-building coverage.  
 
Located near the center of the gap, the Proposed Facility will provide new reliable 
4G LTE service coverage to the gap area, including areas near Euclid Avenue 
between Keith Avenue and Vine Lane.  In total, the Proposed Facility will provide 
improved service coverage to an area of 1.6 square miles and a population of 
2,420 residents.   
 
 

See Coverage Maps on Following Page 
 
 

 
  

Page 104 of 143

368



	 5 

Current High-Band 4G LTE Coverage Map 

 
 

Proposed High-Band 4G LTE Coverage Map 

 
 

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

4G LTE AWS RSRP Coverage 
 In-building  >= - 85 dBm 
 In-vehicle   >= -95 dBm 
 Outdoor     >= -105 dBm 
 Marginal    < -105 dBm 

 

Page 105 of 143

369



	 6 

Drive Test - Best Serving Facility  
 
As described above, the specified gap area receives inadequate service from 
distant Verizon Wireless macro facilities.  The following drive test map depicts 
which Verizon Wireless facility is serving a particular location by providing the 
strongest signal to customer handsets.  Signal from each facility is depicted in a 
different color.  The percentage of the plotted area served by each facility is shown 
in the legend.   
 

Drive Test Result – Best Serving Facility 
 

 
 
Over half of the area plotted is served principally by the Lower University facility 
1.6 miles southwest of the Proposed Facility (shown in dark green).  As 
explained below, that facility has reached capacity exhaustion.  The Lower 
University facility serves much of the gap area, though weakly, because it has a 
good line-of-sight to the hills to the east.  The vertical dimension of the beam 
emitted from an antenna increases in height with greater distance, so signal from 
the Lower University facility easily reaches elevated terrain in the distant hills to 
its east, spreading across a broad area.  In contrast, the Shattuck North facility is 
close to the hills, and its signal immediately encounters nearby low-elevation 
terrain that impedes it from extending to the higher terrain beyond.    
 
The best serving facility map shows scattered service from other facilities 
throughout the gap area, intermixed with signal from the Lower University facility.  
This demonstrates a lack of reliable dominant signal, which compromises system 

 Best Serving  
Facility 

Percent  
Serving 

 Lower University 55.4% 
 Kensington Circle 22.2% 
 Gilman Street 9.1% 
 Berkeley Bekins 3.6% 
 Shattuck North 3.2% 
 Highway 80 Gilman 2.7% 
 Berkeley DT 1.3% 
 San Pablo/University 1.0% 
 UC Berkeley East 0.3% 
 El Cerrito 0.3% 
 Broadway Macarthur 0.2% 
 Albany 0.2% 
Other facilities serve 0.1% or less of the plotted area 

 

Page 106 of 143

370



	 7 

performance for Verizon Wireless customers, including those in transit.  As 
explained above, signal from all of the distant facilities is weak in the gap area, 
further compromising performance.  These factors lead to unreliable service for 
residents, visitors and emergency services personnel, particularly during busy 
hours. 
 
The Proposed Facility is strategically located to provide consistent dominant 
signal to the gap area, ensuring reliable service for customer handsets.   
 
Capacity Gap 
 
As noted above, the Lower University facility that serves more than half of the 
gap area has reached capacity exhaustion.   
  
The following capacity chart shows how increased demand has already 
outstripped the capacity of the Lower University facility’s antenna sectors that 
serve the gap area.  The capacity chart depicts the increased usage of this 
facility through January 2020 as well as predicted usage through late 2020.  
ASEU (Average Scheduler Eligibility Usage) is a measure of resource 
management of the facility and shows its ability to schedule the data packets 
over the radio channel.  The ASEU charts show that growth in the number of 
customers accessing the facility has outstripped its capacity to provide reliable 
service. 
 

See Capacity Charts on Following Page 
  

Page 107 of 143

371



	 8 

ASEU Capacity Charts 
Lower University Facility 

East-Facing Antenna Sectors 

 

 
 

Alpha Antenna Sector (80 degrees from north) 

  
 
 

Delta Antenna Sector (101 degrees from north) 

 
 

By comparing the trend line of average usage (orange line) with the maximum 
capacity of a facility (red line), Verizon Wireless RF engineering demonstrates 
that these Lower University facility antenna sectors reached capacity exhaustion 
over one year ago.  Capacity exhaustion severely compromises the Verizon 
Wireless network in the entire area served by the exhausted antenna sectors, 
leading to call failures and slow data speeds, as well as poor call quality and 
reliability over Verizon Wireless VoLTE technology (the “Capacity Gap”).   
 
At times of high traffic volume, the coverage area of the surrounding Verizon 
Wireless facilities shrinks to accommodate an increasing number of mobile 

Page 108 of 143

372



devices closer to each facility . As a result, the Coverage Gap area expands and 
is exacerbated during times of high customer usage. The contraction of 
coverage during times of high usage has become more relevant as the demand 
for wireless services has increased rapidly over time. In North America, mobile 
data traffic increased 44 percent during the year 2016. 1 

The Proposed Facility is strategically located to provide new dominant signal to 
the gap area, which will relieve the overburdened Lower University facility so it 
can devote its network capacity to customers closer to its location. This will 
improve overall network performance in Berkeley, and provide new reliable 
service within the gap area. 

As noted, the gap area generally receives weak signal in only the low-band 700 
MHz and 850 MHz frequencies, with little to no service in the high-band PCS and 
AWS frequencies . In addition to low-band service, the Proposed Facility will 
provide new high-band PCS and AWS service , which provides greater data 
capacity to customers. 

Conclusion 

As cellular networks mature, the network must be supplemented with more sites 
closer to customers, in large measure due to the increase in usage of the 
network. The L TE technology used by Verizon Wireless to provide 4G service 
requires facilities closer to customers, and this technology cannot be provided by 
the existing, distant facilities serving the gap area. These coverage and capacity 
challenges have resulted in the Significant Gap in Verizon Wireless 4G L TE 
coverage and network capacity in the north Berkeley hills. Verizon Wireless 
must deploy the Proposed Facility to provide reliable 4G L TE service to 
customers and to avoid further degradation of its network in the area of the 
Significant Gap. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or comments regarding 
Verizon Wireless's proposed facility. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amr Kharaba 
RF Design Engineer 
Network Engineering Department 
Verizon Wireless 

1 Cisco Visual Networking Index: Global Mobile Data Traffic Forecas t Update, 2016-2021 White 
Paper, updated March 28, 2017 . 

9 

Page 109 of 143

373



2001 So. Barrington Avenue • Suite 306 • Los Angeles • CA 90025 • T 310-312-9900 
3570 Camino del Rio North • Suite 102 • San Diego • CA 92108 • T 619-272-6200 TelecomLawFirm.com 

WIRELESS PLANNING MEMORANDUM 
RE: Alternatives Analysis and Justification Statement 

TO: Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
FROM: Dr. Jonathan L. Kramer 
DATE: May 7, 2020 
ADDRESS: East Bay Municipal Utility District (“EBMUD”) 

Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California 

CLIENT: Rincon’s Client – City of Berkeley, California 
CARRIER: Verizon 
LOC. NO: 273566 
LOCATION ID: BERKELEY HILLS 
RINCON #: 19-07869

I. SUMMARY

Telecom Law Firm, PC (“TLF”) is subcontractor to the lead contractor for the City of Berkeley 
(“City”), Rincon Consultants, Inc. (“Rincon”).  TLF is a telecommunications law firm retained by 
local governments.  TLF does not work for the wireless industry. 

TLF has carefully reviewed the alternatives site analysis and RF justification statements provided 
by Verizon into the public record for this case. 

Verizon’s justification statement and its alternatives analysis reasonably demonstrate that: (a) 
there are underserved areas within the claimed gap area that are likely to be subject to reducing 
service levels if a new nearby cell site is not constructed, and (b) among the alternative sites 
identified by Verizon, the Berryman Reservoir site is most able to serve the claimed gap area with 
the least visual impact on the community. 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

In May 2019, Verizon submitted a wireless application to the City to construct and operate a new 
wireless site, specifically a 50-foot-tall Monopine, at the East Bay Municipal Utility District 
(“EBMUD”) Berryman Reservoir in Berkeley, California. Verizon proposes to construct the 
Monopine north of the existing water tank on the property.   

• See Figure 1 for Verizon’s proposed project description;
• See Figure 2 for the overall location of the proposed Monopine and associated base

station equipment;
• See Figure 3 for the proposed location of the proposed Monopine and antenna azimuths;

ATTACHMENT 5C

Page 110 of 143

374



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

• See Figure 4 for the proposed antenna layout within the canopy of the proposed 
Monopine; and 

• See Figure 5 for an elevation view of the proposed Monopine.  
 

Figure 1: Verizon’s Project Description (Source: Plans, title page T-1).  

 
Figure 2: Overall location of the Monopine and associated equipment (Source: Plans, Page A-1).  

Page 111 of 143

375



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 3 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

  
Figure 3: Approximate (i) location of Monopine and (ii) azimuth orientations for the three proposed antenna sectors 
(Source: Google Maps; Annotated by Dr. Kramer).  
 

 
Figure 4: Antenna Plan (Source: Plans, Page A-4). 

Sector B 

Page 112 of 143

376



 
 

 

2001 So. Barrington Avenue • Suite 306 • Los Angeles • CA 90025 • T 310-312-9900  
3570 Camino del Rio North • Suite 102 • San Diego • CA 92108 • T 619-272-6200 TelecomLawFirm.com 

 

 
Figure 5: Overall height and design of Monopine (Elevation view; Source: Plans Page A5).  
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
 
  

Page 113 of 143

377



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 5 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

III. ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 
 
The City, through Rincon, requested that TLF review Verizon’s submitted alternatives analysis, 
prepared conducted by Ridge Communications, Inc. and compiled by Mackenzie & Albritton LLP 
and dated March 5, 2020 (“Alternatives Analysis”).  
 

 
Figure 6: List of ten alternative sites analysis (Source: Alternatives Analysis).  
 
The next sections analyze each of the alternatives as well as cross-compare them with the 
proposed Monopine.  
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
 

  

Page 114 of 143

378



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 6 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

1. Alternative No. 1: “CONGREGATION BETH ISRAEL”- See Figure 7 
Address: 1301 Oxford Street 

 Elevation: 320 Feet  
 Zoning: R-1 Residential 
 

 
Figure 7: “Congregation Beth Israel” (actually Congregation Beth El).  
(Source: Alternatives Analysis).  

 
Alternative No. 1, Congregation Beth El (mislabeled by Verizon as Congregation 
Beth Israel) is surrounded primarily by single family residences. 
 
Figure 8a depicts a close-in view of Verizon’s projected coverage map of the High-
Band 4G LTE Coverage that would be provided by a facility located at Congregation 
Beth El.  Figure 8a can be compared to Figure 8b, the projected Verizon coverage 
from the proposed Berryman Reservoir site at the same scale. 

 
[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 

 
 

  

Page 115 of 143

379



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 7 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

 

Figure 8a: Estimated 
coverage from Alt 1 site.  
The white “X” shows the 
approximately of the 
Berryman Reservoir. 

  

 

Figure 8b: Estimated 
coverage from the 
Berryman Reservoir 
candidate site (white “X”). 

 

Page 116 of 143

380



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 8 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

From the estimated coverage maps in Figures 8a and 8b it is seen the projected signal 
coverage from Alt 1 would be mainly to the west portion of the Verizon-claimed gap 
area, and that the candidate site at the Berryman Reservoir, which is substantially 
higher in elevation above sea level would provide substantially greater ‘fill in’ of the 
claimed gap area. As the elevation rises from west to east, the estimated signal from 
Alt 1 is attenuated or shadowed by the terrain. 
 
This alternative location is immediately adjacent to residential uses.  Moreover, a site 
at Alt 1 would be substantially closer to residences than Verizon’s candidate site at 
the Berryman Reservoir. The residential uses near Alt 1 are denser—both in 
proximity to each other and the religious center—than compared to those near the 
Berryman Reservoir. 
 
From the perspective of improving signal coverage in Verizon’s claimed gap area with 
less impact on community aesthetics, the Berryman Reservoir site is materially 
superior to Alt. 1. 

 
2. Alternative No. 2: “OXFORD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL”- See Figure 9 

Address: 1301 Oxford Street 
Elevation: 380 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 

 

 
Figure 9: Oxford Elementary School (Source: Alternatives Analysis).  

 
TLF notes that the Alternatives Analysis indicated that the Berkeley Unified School 
District responded to Verizon that the District is not interested in hosting a cell site at 

Page 117 of 143

381



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 9 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

this location. To the extent that this representation is true, this alternative should be 
considered not potentially available and therefore not a viable alternative candidate 
to the proposed site at the Berryman Reservoir. 
 
Additionally, Verizon has misidentified the location of the school as being the same as 
that of Verizon’s misidentified “Congregation Beth Israel” (correctly, Congregation 
Beth El). The correct address for Oxford Elementary School is 1130 Oxford Street. 

 
Notwithstanding the lack of landlord interest, it is extremely unlikely that a site at this 
school would provide substantially equal or more coverage to Verizon’s claimed gap 
area, much less more or even equally effective as the proposed Berryman Reservoir 
site. These factors strongly suggest that a site at the school would suffer from the 
similar technical concerns presented by a facility were it to be placed at Congregation 
Beth El. 
 
Finally, this alternative location is immediately adjacent to residential uses, which 
would not be the case at the proposed Berryman Reservoir site. 
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
 

  

Page 118 of 143

382



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 10 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

3. Alternative No. 3: “JANE GOODALL INSTITUTE”- See Figure 10 
Address: 1581 Leroy Avenue 
Elevation: 540 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 
 

 
Figure 10: Jane Goodall Institute (Source: Alternatives Analysis). 

 
We note that Verizon misidentifies the address of this location as “1581 Leroy 
Avenue.” The correct address is 1581 Le Roy Avenue. 
 
This alternative location is immediately adjacent to residential uses, which is not the 
case at the Berryman Reservoir. 

Figure 11a depicts a close-in coverage map of the High-Band 4G LTE Coverage 
Provided by a Facility at the Jane Goodall Institute compared to Figure 11b, the 
coverage from proposed site at the same close-in scale.   
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
  

Page 119 of 143

383



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 11 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

 

Figure 11a: Estimated 
coverage from Alt 3 site. 
The white “X” shows the 
approximately of the 
Berryman Reservoir 

  

 

Figure 11b: Estimated 
coverage from the 
Berryman Reservoir 
candidate site (white “X”). 

 

Page 120 of 143

384



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 12 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

From the estimated coverage maps in Figures 11a and 11b it is seen the coverage 
from Alt 3 would be mainly to a small southernly portion of the Verizon-claimed gap 
area, and that the candidate site at the Berryman Reservoir, which is lower than Alt. 
3 would provide substantially greater ‘fill in’ of the claimed gap area.   
 
Moreover, a site at Alt 3 would be closer to more residences than Verizon’s candidate 
site at the Berryman Reservoir. The residential uses near Alt 3 are denser—both in 
proximity to each other and the Jane Goodall Institute—than compared to those near 
the reservoir. Alt 3 appears to be potentially superior to Alt 1 due to slightly less 
dense development nearby and a larger property with more concealment 
opportunities, but not to the candidate site at the reservoir. 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 

  

Page 121 of 143

385



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 13 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

4. BERRYMAN RESERVOIR (Primary Candidate) 
Address: 0 Euclid 
Elevation: 500 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 

This is the primary candidate site.  The projected coverage from this site is shown in 
Figure 12, below: 

 
Figure 12: Estimated coverage from proposed candidate site at the Berryman Reservoir.  

In relation to the other alternatives identified by Verizon, the proposed site provides 
the most estimated signal coverage within Verizon’s claimed gap area, show as the 
red circle on the estimated coverage map. 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 

  

Page 122 of 143

386



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 14 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

TLF notes that the Berryman Reservoir is located immediately south of Codornices 
Park, a City owned public park, which is discussed in the next section. 

TLF has analyzed publicly available photographs taken within and above Codornices 
Park to assess whether a wireless site located at the Berryman Reservoir would be 
“readily visible” from that public park. 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank]  

Page 123 of 143

387



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 15 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

Figure 13a shows a flyover view of Codornices Park looking south to Berryman 
Reservoir.  Note the stand of mature trees identified by the white arrow between 
Codornices Park and Berryman Reservoir. 

 
Figure 13a: Flyover view looking south over Cordornices Park to the Berryman Reservoir (Source: Bing 
“Birds Eye” view; annotated by Dr. Kramer). 

A second stand of mature trees, also located inside Cordornices Park just south of 
the sandy play area and the Basketball court, is shown in Figure 13b. 

 

 

Page 124 of 143

388



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 16 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

Figure 13b:  Flyover view looking south over Cordornices Park to the Berryman Reservoir (Source: Bing 
“Birds Eye” view; annotated by Dr. Kramer). 

The City of Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23F.04.010 (“Definitions”) defined the 
term “readily visible” as follows:  

Page 125 of 143

389



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 17 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

“A wireless telecommunications facility is readily visible if it can be seen from 
street level or from the main living area of a legal residence in a residential 
district or from a public park by a person with normal vision, and distinguished 
as an antenna or other component of a wireless telecommunication facility, due 
to the fact that it stands out as a prominent feature of the landscape, protrudes 
above or out from the building or structure ridgeline, or is otherwise not 
sufficiently camouflaged or designed to be compatible with the appurtenant 
architecture or building materials. For purposes of this definition, "main living 
area" means the living and dining and similar areas of a dwelling, but not 
bedrooms, bathrooms or similar areas.” 

The directly relevant portion of the Municipal Code just cited is: “A wireless 
telecommunications facility is readily visible if it can be seen …from a public park by a person 
with normal vision, and distinguished as an antenna or other component of a wireless 
telecommunication facility, due to the fact that it stands out as a prominent feature of the 
landscape... “ 

Assessing the physical layout of Cordornices Park, including the stands of mature 
trees, and the proposed wireless site monopine tree camouflage for the trunk and 
antennas of the proposed site, TLF believes that Verizon’s proposed site at the 
Berryman Reservoir will not be ‘readily visible” within the meaning of Berkeley 
Municipal Code Section 23C.17.050(B) incorporating the relevant definition in 
Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23F.04.010.   

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 

  

Page 126 of 143

390



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 18 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

5. Alternative No. 5: “CODORNICES PARK”- See Figure 14 
Address: 1201 Euclid Avenue 
Elevation: 500 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 
 

 
Figure 14: Codornices Park (Source: Alternatives Analysis). 

  
Alt. 5 is located immediately north of the proposed candidate site.  
 
The Alternative Analysis provided by Verizon for this site indicates that “[t]his 
[alternative] cannot be considered a less intrusive alternative to the Proposed 
Facility.” TLF agrees, and refers the reader to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 
23C.17.050(B), which says in relevant part, “No wireless communications facilities 
shall be sited on or above a ridgeline or at any other location readily visible from a 
public park, unless the Zoning Adjustments Board makes the applicable findings 
required in Section 23C.17.100.”   If this alternative were selected, the cell site would 
be readily visible from within the park. 
 
Verizon elected not to provide a proposed coverage map for a site located at 
Codornices Park, but for all useful purposes it would be essentially identical to the 
proposed coverage from the proposed candidate site at Berryman Reservoir. 
 
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
  

Page 127 of 143

391

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/html/Berkeley23C/Berkeley23C17/Berkeley23C17100.html#23C.17.100


Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 19 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

6. Alternative No. 6: “BERKELEY ROSE GARDEN”- See Figure 15. 
Address: 1200 Euclid Avenue 
Elevation: 420-480 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 

 

   
Figure 15: Berkeley Rose Garden (Source: Alternatives Analysis). 
 
Alt 6 is located directly west of Cordornices Park across Euclid Avenue, and just 
northwest of the proposed candidate site.  Alt 6 has closely adjacent homes. 
 
Verizon’s Alternative Analysis for this site indicated that “A very tall facility within 
the Rose Garden park would be readily visible to park users. This cannot be 
considered a less intrusive alternative to the Proposed Facility”. TLF agrees.  
 
A wireless site at Alt 6 is visually counterintuitive as it would place a faux tree 
structure in an area reserved to preserve and present living flora.    
 
Alt 6 location is immediately adjacent to residential uses, which is not the case at 
the Berryman Reservoir. 
 
Verizon elected not to provide a proposed coverage map for a site located at the 
Berkeley Rose Garden Park, but for all useful purposes it would be essentially 
identical to the proposed coverage from the proposed candidate site at Berryman 
Reservoir. 
 
Based on the multiple stands of mature trees visually isolating the Berkeley Rose 
Garden from the Berryman Reservoir, TLF concludes that the proposed wireless 
site at Berryman Reservoir will not be “readily visible” from the Berkeley Rose 
Garden, a public park, but that a cell site within the Rose Garden would be “readily 
visible” to the public from within the park. 

Page 128 of 143

392



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 20 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

 
7. Alternative No. 7: “GLENDALE LA LOMA PARK”- See Figure 16 

Address: 1310 La Loma Avenue 
Elevation: 780-840 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 
 

 
Figure 16: Glendale La Loma Park (Source: Alternatives Analysis). 

 
The Alternative Analysis for this site indicated that: “…the Code discourages 
facilities visible from a public park. As noted, a tower facility at the western edge 
within this park would be readily visible to park users. This cannot be considered 
a less intrusive alternative to the Proposed Facility.”   
 
Verizon’s Alternative Analysis for this site indicated that “a tower facility at the 
western edge within [Glendale-La Loma Park] would be readily visible to park 
users. This cannot be considered a less intrusive alternative to the Proposed 
Facility.” TLF agrees , but notes that based on the distance from and mature trees 
between multiple stands of mature trees and existing residential structures 
visually separating Glendale La Loma Park from the Berryman Reservoir, the 
proposed wireless site at Berryman Reservoir will not be “readily visible” at the 
Glendale La Loma Park.  
 

Page 129 of 143

393



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 21 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

Verizon elected not to provide a proposed coverage map for a site located at the 
Glendale La Loma Park, but for all useful purposes it would be like the proposed 
coverage from the proposed candidate site at Berryman Reservoir. 
 
Alt 7 is immediately adjacent to residential uses, which is not the case at the 
Berryman Reservoir. 
 

8. Alternative No. 8: “PG&E RIDGE SUBSTATION”-See Figure 17 
Address: 1313 Glendale Avenue 
Elevation: 855 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential  
 

 
Figure 17: PG&E Substation (Source: Alternatives Analysis).    
 
Verizon’s Alternative Analysis for this site indicated that “[a] wireless facility 
placed on the one story building could not serve the gap because ridges north and 
south would block signal [sic]; a tower facility would be required. The only area of 
the property potentially viable for placement of a new tower foundation and 
equipment area is the small parking lot, where a tower would be within 50 feet of 
homes. A new tower facility at this location would present substantial visual 
impact as viewed.”   
 

Page 130 of 143

394



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 22 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

TLF has reviewed this alternative site using topographic maps and agrees with 
Verizon that the local topography is unfavorable to a rooftop cell site this location. 
Moreover, the apparent limited space in the adjacent parking area would be too 
small for a macrocell site, and even if so, would require the removal of trees in 
that lot.  
 
Moreover, this site is immediately adjacent to residential uses, which is not the 
case at the Berryman Reservoir.    
 

9. Alternative No. 9: “SUMMIT RESERVOIR”- See Figure 18 
Address: Summit Road (N37.884227, W122.246064) 
Elevation: 1,340 Feet 
Zoning: City of Oakland 
 

 
Figure 18: Summit Reservoir (Source: Alternative Analysis).  
 

Figure 19 depicts a coverage map of the High-Band LTE Coverage Provided by the 
Facility at Summit Reservoir in relation to the area of the Berryman Reservoir (marked 
with the white “X”. 
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
 
 

Page 131 of 143

395



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 23 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

 
Figure 19: Emissions from Summit Reservoir (Source: Alternatives Analysis; annotated by Dr. Kramer).  
 
Verizon reports that “[d]ue to inability [of the Summit Reservoir] to serve the 
Significant Gap, this is not a feasible alternative to the Proposed Facility.”   
 
TLF agrees.  The topography between the Summit alternative and the area of Verizon’s 
claimed gap prevents the Summit site from being considered as a viable alternative.  
No signals from this alternative would provide any benefit to the area claimed by 
Verizon to be in a service gap. 
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
 
 

  

Page 132 of 143

396



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 24 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

10. Alternative No. 10: “BAY TREE RESERVOIR” -See Figure 20 
Address: Bay Tree Lane 
Elevation: 1,150 Feet 
Zoning: R-1 Residential 
 

 
Figure 20: Bay Tree Reservoir (Source: Alternatives Analysis).  

 
Figure 21 depicts a predicted coverage map of the High-Band LTE Coverage Provided 
by the Facility at Bay Tree Reservoir. 
 
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 
 

  

Page 133 of 143

397



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 25 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

  
Figure 21: Emissions from Bay Tree Reservoir (Source: Alternatives Analysis; annotation by Dr. Kramer).  

 
Verizon reports that its “…RF engineers determined that a facility at this location 
cannot serve the Significant Gap. As shown in the [] coverage map, a facility at this 
location of the same height as the Proposed Facility would not provide any new 
coverage to the identified gap area.”  TLF agrees.  The Bay Tree Reservoir would afford 
no coverage whatsoever to the gap area claimed by Verizon.  As such, this is not a 
viable alternative to the proposed Berryman Reservoir site. 
  

A. Conclusion as to Alternative Sites 
 
It is TLF’s conclusion that none of the alternative sites identified by Verizon offer any 
realistic possibility to be a viable alternative to the proposed Berryman Reservoir site.  
Moreover, of the sites identified by Verizon, the Berryman Reservoir site is the location 
best suited to reducing Verizon’s claimed gap, with the least visual intrusion, and the 
greatest distance from the site to the most nearby residential uses.  
 

[Balance of page intentionally left blank] 

Page 134 of 143

398



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 26 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

IV. RADIO FREQUENCY JUSTIFICATION STATEMENT ANALYSIS 
 
The City also requested that TLF review and comment on Verizon’s March 5, 2020 Radio 
Frequency (“RF”) statement (“RF Justification Statement”).  As an initial observation, Verizon is 
presently proposing a 4G network upgrade, rather than a 5G network deployment. 
 
The RF Justification Statement indicated that on December 17, 2019 Verizon conducted a drive 
test through the Berkeley streets in the claimed gap area to measure the then-existing 4G LTE 
signal strengths. See Figure 22 for the drive test results.  
 

 
Figure 22: Drive Test Results (Source: RF Justification Statement).  
 
The dot-plotted results shown in Figure 22 are a usual and customary means of expressing signal 
strength at a given location.  The type of dot-map is produced by connecting a cellular receiver’s 
signal strength measurements coupled with a GPS receiver’s location data into a computer while 
driving on the street segments shown with dots.  The data are later analyzed and printed to scale 
on a local street map, all as shown in Figure 22. 
 

Page 135 of 143

399



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 27 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

In additional to the signal strength gradients shown in Figure 22, Verizon supplied those objective 
level bands with written descriptions of what each color means to Verizon.  The chart that Verizon 
provided to accomplish that task is show below in Figure 23: 
 

 
Figure 23: Coverage Thresholds (Source: RF Justification Statement).  
 
Note that the levels and descriptions shown above are solely selected by Verizon. They are not 
set or otherwise regulated by the FCC or any State of California agency, and each wireless 
company is free to select its own levels and descriptions.  
 
Verizon’s RF Justification Statement indicated that it uses PCS and AWS to provide over 70% of 
its 4G LTE services throughout the City of Berkeley. See Figure 24 for the bands of services, 
frequencies, LTE bandwidth and the percentage of the total bandwidth within the area of the City 
of Berkeley.  
 

 
Figure 24: Percentage of total bandwidth in the area by band (Source: RF Justification Statement). 
 
The RF Justification Statement provided the coverage maps of the existing high-band 4G LTE and 
the proposed high-band 4G LTE. See Figure 25.  
 

Page 136 of 143

400



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 28 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

 
Figure 25: Current and proposed high-band 4G LTE (Source: RF Justification Statement).  

Page 137 of 143

401



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 29 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

As may be deduced by looking at the before-and-after maps jointly shown in Figure 25, many “in-
building” coverage gaps will remain presuming that the proposed site is constructed.  That is 
common for evolving wireless network.  
 
The RF Justification Statement included a drive test map depicting different but relevant data.  
Specifically, the “Best Serving Facility” map, produced by the same drive test described above, 
lists which cell site was received at a particular location.  See Figure 26. 
 

 
Figure 26: Drive test results for Macros services specific areas (Source: RF Justification Statement). 
 
The information displayed in Figure 26 is helpful because it shows twelve cell sites are currently 
serving the claimed gap area measured by Verizon.  Of the twelve serving cell sites, one site 
(“Lower University” serves over 50 percent of the claimed gap area. In total, the highest four sites 
serve over 90 percent of the claimed gap area, but in total this map also shows that cellular users 
in the area are likely to be “bounced” from one cell site to another to another, rather than 
connected to and staying with a single dominant area cell site signal source as would be the case 

Page 138 of 143

402



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 30 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

with the Berryman Reservoir site if built. Staying on a single dominant area cell site is preferred 
from a network management standpoint, and also promotes greater data throughput (which for 
this purpose equates to higher data transfer speeds).  
 
Finally, Verizon’s RF Justification Statement also includes a chart regarding the availability 
capacity at the Lower University site (the dominant site serving the claimed gap area). Verizon 
relies on the data in the chart to show that the site has reached its capacity limit. See Figure 27. 
 

 
Figure 27: Capacity Gaps 80 degrees and 101 degrees (Source: RF Justification Statement).  
 

Page 139 of 143

403



Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
Justification Statement and Alternatives Analysis 

       Berryman Reservoir, Berkeley, California   
May 7, 2020 

Page 31 
 

 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 
 

Telecom Law Firm PC 

 

Whether the Local University site has reached its capacity limit is a metric not regulated by the 
FCC; rather this type of capacity exhaustion determination is left to each of the wireless carriers. 

In conclusion regarding Verizon’s RF Justification Statement, there are areas within the claimed 
gap that have adequate Verizon signal strength to provide personal wireless services, but other 
areas that do not.  Exacerbating this, the currently dominant serving cell site has, according to 
Verizon, reached its capacity limit.  Failing to add another cell site to more centrally and closely 
serve the claimed gap area may lead to lower data throughput speeds and potentially some 
undisclosed degradation(s) on the ability of Verizon customers (and those customers of other 
carriers that roam on Verizon’s network) to make and receive calls in the claimed gap area. 

/TLF 

Page 140 of 143

404



 

Administrative Record 
ZAB Appeal: 

0 Euclid Avenue 
(Berryman Reservoir) 

Use Permit #ZP2018-0236 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
This attachment is on file and available for review at 
the City Clerk Department, or can be accessed from 
the City Council Website.  Copies of the attachment 
are available upon request. 
 

 
 

City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
or from:  
 
The City of Berkeley, City Council’s Web site 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/ 

Attachments 6-7 

405



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING – BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM,

1231 ADDISON STREET
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION BY REMOTE VIDEO ONLY

APPEAL OF ZAB DECISION: DENIAL OF USE PERMIT #ZP2018-0236, 0 EUCLID AVENUE 
(BERRYMAN RESERVOIR)

Notice is hereby given by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that on TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2020 at 
6:00 P.M. a public hearing will be conducted to consider an appeal of the decision by the Zoning 
Adjustments Board to deny Use Permit # ZP2018-0236 to establish a new 50’ high “monopole” 4G LTE 
wireless facility operated by Verizon Wireless at the East Bay Municipal Utility District site consisting of 
six antennas, six remote radio units, and associated ground equipment.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.CityofBerkeley.info as of JUNE 30, 2020. Once posted, the agenda for this meeting will 
include a link for public participation using Zoom video technology.

For further information, please contact Layal Nawfal, Land Use Planning, 510-781-7424 or 
Lnawfal@cityofberkeley.info

Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City Clerk, 2180 Milvia Street, 
Berkeley, CA 94704, or council@cityofberkeley.info in order to ensure delivery to all Councilmembers 
and inclusion in the agenda packet.  

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s 
electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, 
names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to the City Council, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want 
your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the City Clerk.  If you do not want your 
contact information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your 
communication.  Please contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further 
information.

__________________________________
Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Mailed: June 23, 2020

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to approve or 
deny(Code Civ. Proc. 1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 65009(c)(5) an appeal, the following requirements 
and restrictions apply: 1) Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6, no lawsuit challenging a City 
decision to deny or approve a Zoning Adjustments Board decision may be filed more than 90 days after the date 
the Notice of Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed.  Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period 
will be barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a Zoning 
Adjustments Board decision, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, 

Page 142 of 143

406

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
mailto:Lnawfal@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


orally or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

If you challenge the above in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised 
at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of Berkeley at, 
or prior to, the public hearing.  Background information concerning this proposal will be available at the City Clerk 
Department and posted on the City of Berkeley webpage prior to the public hearing. 

Page 143 of 143

407



408



409



410



411

tbenado
Typewritten Text
1



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425

tbenado
Typewritten Text
2



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434

tbenado
Typewritten Text
3



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445

tbenado
Typewritten Text
4



446

tbenado
Typewritten Text
5



447

tbenado
Typewritten Text
6



448

tbenado
Typewritten Text
7



449

tbenado
Typewritten Text
8



450

tbenado
Typewritten Text
9



451

tbenado
Typewritten Text
10



452

tbenado
Typewritten Text
11



453

tbenado
Typewritten Text
12



454

tbenado
Typewritten Text
13



455

tbenado
Typewritten Text
14



456

tbenado
Typewritten Text
15



457

tbenado
Typewritten Text
16



458

tbenado
Typewritten Text
17



459

tbenado
Typewritten Text
18



460

tbenado
Typewritten Text
19



461

tbenado
Typewritten Text
20



462

tbenado
Typewritten Text
21



463

tbenado
Typewritten Text
22



464

tbenado
Typewritten Text
23



465

tbenado
Typewritten Text
24



466

tbenado
Typewritten Text
25



467

tbenado
Typewritten Text
26



468

tbenado
Typewritten Text
27



469

tbenado
Typewritten Text
28



470

tbenado
Typewritten Text
29



471

tbenado
Typewritten Text
30



472

tbenado
Typewritten Text
31



473

tbenado
Typewritten Text
32



474

tbenado
Typewritten Text
33



475

tbenado
Typewritten Text
34



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



505



506



507

tbenado
Typewritten Text
35



508



509



510



511



512

tbenado
Typewritten Text
36



513

tbenado
Typewritten Text
37



514

tbenado
Typewritten Text
38



515

tbenado
Typewritten Text
39



516

tbenado
Typewritten Text
40



517



518



519

tbenado
Typewritten Text
41



520



521

tbenado
Typewritten Text
42



522

tbenado
Typewritten Text
43



523

tbenado
Typewritten Text
44



524

tbenado
Typewritten Text
45



525

tbenado
Typewritten Text
46



526

tbenado
Typewritten Text
47



527

tbenado
Typewritten Text
48



528

tbenado
Typewritten Text
49



529

tbenado
Typewritten Text
50



530



531



532



533



534

tbenado
Typewritten Text
51



535



536

tbenado
Typewritten Text
52



537



538

tbenado
Typewritten Text
53



539

tbenado
Typewritten Text
54



540

tbenado
Typewritten Text
55



541



542



543



544


	07-07 Special Agenda 6pm - Council
	2020-07-07 Special Item 01 ZAB Appeal 1449 Grizzly Peak Boulevard
	2020-07-07 Special Item 02 ZAB Appeal  0 Euclid Avenue
	2020-07-07 (6PM) Communications



